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Early on a Spring morning standing on Penacook Road
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Heading toward the Orchard
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This unique photograph was taken by Byron Carr,
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Dedication

To the Men and Women ofAmericas Military Forces

Photograph courtesy ofBruce Salsbury.

If you were to visit Veteran's

Park in Hopkinton Village you

would find the statue pictured here,

which is dedicated to the men and

women of Hopkinton who fought

in wars waged in America's past.

Today we are engaged in a different

kind of war- the enemy seems to be

without form or clear objective. It

strikes at us for reasons borne out of

an irrational past. There appears to

be no territory at stake, no wealth to

\ be garnered. The motivation of the

'^J enemy is vague and incomprehensible,

but it is strong enough to justify in

the enemy a form of warfare that

encourages a pitiful self-destruction

in his attempts to inflict harm on us.

Our enemy in this war of the 21st century is an enemy that has brought the

war to our land and targets our citizens. In response America must call on the

best of our young men and women to put aside their own aspirations and take

up this awful and weary struggle to protect our freedom and our democratic way

of life. To do less would invite the failure of this great American experiment.

Today our soldiers proudly carry out their terribly dangerous yet necessary

tasks in a hostile and trying environment. Our duty is to support the men and

women of our military and their loving families in every way. It is imperative

for the future of mankind that freedom prevails and the enemies of freedom are

repelled.

Only then will our American way of life be preserved and our young men

and women be out of harm's way and return home.

Thank you, Soldier.
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Hopkinton Town Report

2004 Town Officers

*Moderator:

Gary Richardson Term Expires 2006

*Selectmen:

Donald K. Lane Term Expires 2005

Barbara W. Unger Term Expires 2005

Lloyd A. Holmes Term Expires 2006

Louise M. Carr Term Expires 2007

Clarke L. Kidder Term Expires 2007

*Town Clerk/Tax Collector:

Sue Strickford Term Expires 2007

Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector:

Sandra Babson

*Treasurer:

Bonita Cressy Term Expires 2005

Deputy Treasurer:

Carolyn Hackwell

*Budget Committee:

Jane Bradstreet Term Expires 2005

Robert Wells Term Expires 2005

Vacant Term Expires 2006

Patrice Gerseny Term Expires 2007

Karen Irwin Term Expires 2007

Peter Russell, Chairperson Term Expires 2007

Barbara Unger Selectmen's Rep

Thomas O'Donnell Hopkinton Precinct Rep

Richard Strickford Contoocook Precinct Rep

Arpiar Saunders School Board Rep

*Supervisors Of The Checklist

Mary Ella Cluff Term Expires 2006

Edith Allison Term Expires 2008

Carol McCann Term Expires 2010



*Trustees Of Trust Funds:

Hays Junkin Term Expires 2005

Herbert French Term Expires 2006

Richard Gourley, Chairperson Term Expires 2007

*Library Trustees:

Beth Bloomquist Term Expires 2005

Christine Hamm Term Expires 2005

EHssa Barr, Chairperson Term Expires 2006

George Chase Term Expires 2007

Holly Gagne Term Expires 2007

*Cemetary Trustees:

Susan Adams, Chairperson Term Expires 2005

Sara McNeil Term Expires 2006

Virginia Friberg Term Expires 2007

*Precinct Commissioners:

Hopkinton

Greg Berry Term Expires 2005

Craig Dunning Term Expires 2005

David Simmering, Chairperson Term Expires 2006

Contoocook

Richard Strickford, Chairperson Term Expires 2005

Mark Connelly Term Expires 2005

Stuart Nelson Term Expires 2006

*Representatives To The General Court:

David P. Currier Henniker

Barbara C. French Henniker

Christine C. Hamm Hopkinton

Richard E. Kennedy Hopkinton

Derek Owen Hopkinton

Town Administrator Edward Wojnowski

Chief Of Police David Wheeler

Fire Chief Richard Schaefer
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Deputy Fire Chief John Pianka

Forest Fire Warden Peter Russell

Deputy Forest Fire Warden Matthew Cox

Deputy Forest Fire Warden Nate Martell

Deputy Forest Fire Warden Bob White

Fireward Leonard George

Fireward Tom Krzyzaniak

Fireward Robert White

Supt. Of Public Works Harold Blanchette

Building Inspector Vacant

Emergency Mgmt. Director Richard Schaefer

Human Services Director Marilyn Bresaw

Health Officer Edward Wojnowski

Board Of Health:

Donald K. Lane Term Expires 2005

Barbara W. Unger Term Expires 2005

Lloyd A. Holmes Term Expires 2006

Louise M. Carr Term Expires 2007

Clarke L. Kidder Term Expires 2007

Fence Viewer Richard Drescher

Fence Viewer Richard Strickford

Surveyor OfWood And Timber Ron Klemarczyk

Surveyor OfWood And Timber John Herrick

Tree Warden David Story

Weigher Roger Andrus
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Town Road Committee:

Robert Wells Term Expires 2005

David Lancaster Term Expires 2005

Scott Coen Term Expires 2005

Donald Houston Term Expires 2006

Shad Wilson Term Expires 2006

Mark Bates, Chairperson Term Expires 2007

Lawrence Keniston Term Expires 2007

Conservation Commission:

Derek Owen, Chairperson Term Expires 2005

Melinda Payson Term Expires 2005

Erick Leadbeater Term Expires 2006

Jed Merrow Term Expires 2006

Leland Wilder Term Expires 2006

Todd Aubertin Term Expires 2007

Ronald Klemarczyk Term Expires 2007

Planning Board:

Celeste Hemingson Term Expires 2005

Jane Bradstreet Term Expires 2006

Bruce Ellsworth, Chairperson Term Expires 2006

Bethann McCarthy Term Expires 2006

Timothy Britain Term Expires 2007

Clarke Kidder (Selectmen's Rep) Term Expires 2007

Michael Wilkey Term Expires 2007

Planning Board Alternates:

Edwin Taylor Term Expires 2005

Richard Schoch Term Expires 2006

Zoning Board OfAdjustment:
Toni Gray Term Expires 2005

Charles Koontz Term Expires 2005

Carolyn Hackwell Term Expires 2006

Janet Krzyzaniak, Chairperson Term Expires 2006

George Langwasser Term Expires 2007

Alternates:

William Horsfall Term Expires 2005

Tony Lamarine Term Expires 2005

Patricia Ayers Term Expires 2006
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Transportation Advisory Commission:

David White Term Expires 2005

Central NH Regional Planning Commission:

Clarke Kidder

CNHRPC/Regional Resource Conservation Committee:

Ronald Klemarczyk—Voting Member
Todd Aubertin—^Alternate

Concord Regional Solid Waste Resource Recovery Co-op:

Hopkinton Representative

Richard Coen Term Expires 2006

Stephen Clough-Alternate Term Expires 2006

Hopkinton-Webster Landfill Committee:

Hopkinton Representatives

Roger Bloomfield Term Expires 2005

David Price Term Expires 2006

James Dammann Term Expires 2007

Recycling Committee:

Roger Bloomfield (Landfill Liaison) Term Expires 2006

Alan Davis Term Expires 2006

Deborah Augustine Term Expires 2007

Meredith Hatfield Term Expires 2007

Marc Morgan, Chairman Term Expires 2007

Binney Wells, Secretary Term Expires 2007

Stephen Clough Town Representative

Recreation Committee:

David Jones Term Expires 2005

Elizabeth Ridinger Term Expires 2005

Donald Lane (Selectmen's Rep) Term Expires 2005

Vacant Term Expires 2005

Jeffrey Eitreim Term Expires 2006

Rob Nadeau Term Expires 2006

Cindy Glass Term Expires 2007

Valerie Long Term Expires 2007

Robert Mattes Recreation Director
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Economic Development Committee:

Mark Bates, Vice Chairman Term Expires 2005

David Feller Term Expires 2005

Robert Houston Term Expires 2005

John Madden Term Expires 2005

Jack Ruderman Term Expires 2005

Bruce Ellsworth Term Expires 2006

Lloyd Holmes (Selectmen's Rep) Term Expires 2006

Judy Hampe, Chairman Term Expires 2007

Susan Leadbeater Term Expires 2007

Glen Ohlund Term Expires 2007

Sewer Committee:

Richard Drescher Term Expires 2005

Stuart Nelson Term Expires 2005

William Chapin Term Expires 2006

Lloyd Holmes (Selectmen's Rep) Term Expires 2006

Richard Strickford Term Expires 2007

Open Space Committee:

Byron Carr Term Expires 2007

William Chapin Term Expires 2007

Ronald Klemarczyk Term Expires 2007

Donald Lane (Selectmen's Rep) Term Expires 2007

Bryan Pelerin Term Expires 2007

Dijit Taylor Term Expires 2007

Houston Fields/George s Park Committee:

Jane Bradstreet Barbara Boatwright

Jeffrey Eitreim Christine Hamm (Co-Chair)

Rachel Hampe Donald Houston

Glen Ohlund Elizabeth Ridinger (Co-Chair)

Edwin Taylor Seth Shortlidge

Committee Advisors:

John Lavigne Bev Johnson

Marilyn Ceriello Bresaw Edie Houston

Owen French Rob Mattes

Eric Palson

Louise Carr, Board of Selectmen Representative
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Citizens' Advisory Committee:

Nini Allen Pamela McDonald

John Barthelmes Rob Morse

Roger Bloomfield Robert Nadeau

Beverly Johnson Peter Powers

Hayes Junkin Richard Schoch

Edward Kaplan Robert York

*Elected Officials
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Hopkinton Town Employees

Selectmens Office

Robert Blanchette Financial Director

Andrew LeMay Assessor

Nancy Skeldon Executive Secretary

Edward Wojnowski Town Administrator

Town Clerk/Tax Collector s Office

Sandra Babson DeputyTax Collector/Town Clerk

Carol Harless Assistant Clerk

Sue Strickford Tax Collector/Town Clerk

Planning and Zoning

Karen Robertson Planning Director

Police Department

Robert Arseneault Corporal

Rory Bohanan Patrolman II

Michael Feinauer Patrolman II

Frederick Finnerty Animal Control Officer

Patricia Finnerty Clerk/Secretary

Lawrence Hilton Patrolman I

Steve Pecora Sergeant

Kathleen Schoch Admin. Asst./Patrolman I

William Simpson Sergeant

John Webber Patrolman II

David Wheeler Police Chief

Fire Department

Matthew Cox FF/EMT I

Nate Mattel FF/Paramedic

John Pianka Deputy Chief-FF/EMT I

Brent Whitehouse FF/EMT

Recreation Department

Robert Mattes Recreation Director
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Public Works

Kent Barton Asst. Supt. PW
Daniel Blanchette Equipment Operator II

Harold Blanchette Superintendent PW
Robert Carruthers Buildings & Grounds

Brian Cayer Equipment Operator II

Bruce Cayer Equipment Operator I (Part-time)

Stephen Clough Asst. Supt. PW-Waste
Louis Corson Equipment Operator I (Part-time)

Robert Davis SW Fac. Supervisor

George Dockham TS Equipment Operator I

Henry Gagne TS Equip. Operator I (Part-time)

Mike Henley Equip. Operator I (Part-time)

Don Houston Asst. Supt. PW-Bldgs. & Grounds

Robert McCabe Equipment Operator II

Ken Miller Equipment Operator I

Adam Pearson Equipment Operator I (Part-time)

David Story Equipment Operator I (Part-time)

Jeff Yale Equipment Operator I (Part-time)

Library

Sonya Detwiler Reference Librarian

Karen Dixon ILL/Reference Librarian

Scott Huff Library Page

Ehzabeth Levy Library Director

Nancy Raymond Library Aid I

Leslie Skimmings Children's Librarian

Bobbi Slossar Reference Librarian

Human Services

Marilyn Ceriello Bresaw Human Services Director

14



Hours of Town Offices

Town of Hopkinton Website • www.hopkintonnh.us

Selectmen's Office

Town Hall, 330 Main Street

is open the following days and hours

unless posted otherwise:

Monday -Friday

8:30 A.M. -4:30 P.M.

Telephone Number: 746-3170

Fax: 746-2952

Email: Selectmen@hopkintonnh.us

Planning/Zoning Department

Planning Director

Town Hall, 330 Main Street

Telephone Number: 746-4487

Fax: 746-2952

Email: Planzone@hopkintonnh.us

Town Clerk's Office

Tax Collector's Office

846 Main Street

is open the following days and hours

unless posted otherwise:

Monday - Friday

8:00 A.M. -4:30 P.M.

Town Clerk: 746-3180

Tax Collector: 746-3179

Fax:746-4011

Email: Taxcollector@hopkintonnh.us

Email: Townclerk@hopkintonnh.us

Hopkinton Highway Department

250 Public Works Road

Telephone Number 746-51 18

Fax: 746-2952

Email: Publicworks@hopkintonnh.us

Human Services Department

Town Hall, 330 Main Street

Monday -Friday

8:30 A.M. -4:30 PM.
Telephone Number 746-5729 or

746-3170

Fax: 746-2260

Email: Humanservices@hopkintonnh.us

Hopkinton/Webster Landfill

49 1 East Penacook Road

Telephone Number 746-3810

Fax: 746-2952

Email: Waterworks@hopkintonnh.us

Transfer Station Hours

Monday 8:00 A.M. - 5:00 PM.
Wednesday 8:00 A.M. - 5:00 PM.

Friday 1:00 P.M. -5:00 P.M.

Saturday 8:00 A.M. - 5:00 PM.

Hopkinton Town Library

161 Houston Drive

Telephone Number 746-3663

Fax: 746-6799

Email: Hoplib@conknet.com

Library Hours

Tuesday 10:00 A.M. - 8:00 PM.
Wednesday 10:00 A.M. - 8:00 PM.
Thursday 10:00 A.M. - 8:00 PM.
Friday 10:00 A.M. - 5:00 PM.

Saturday 10:00 A.M. - 3:00 PM.

Police Department

1696 Hopkinton RD
Non-Emergency 746-5 151

24HR# 746-4141

Fax: 746-4166

Emergency 911

Email: Police@hopkintonnh.us

Fire Department

9 Pine Street, 110 Main Street

Non-Emergency 746-3 181

Fax:746-5134

Emergency 911

Email: Fire@hopkintonnh.us

Recreation Department

330 Main Street

Telephone Number 746-2915

Fax: 746-2952

Email: Parkrec@hopkintonnh.us
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Town Committee Hours

Please Check The Town Website At www.hopkintonnh.us ForA Schedule OfAll Meetings.

The Board Of Selectmen —

Meets every Monday evening beginning at 5:30 pm at the Town Hall, unless

otherwise posted.

Hopkinton Cemetery Board -

Meets on the first Wednesday of each month at 9:00 am in the basement of

the Town Clerk's Office, May - November.

Planning Board -

Meets on the second Tuesday of each month at 7:00 pm at the Town Hall.

Zoning Board OfAdjustment -

Meets on the first Tuesday of each month at 7:00 pm at the Town Hall.

Road Committee -

Meets as needed; the date and time is posted a week ahead of time.

Sewer Committee -

Meets as needed; the date and time is posted a week ahead of time.

Conservation Committee -

Meets on the third Tuesday of each month at 7:30 pm at the Kimball Lake

Cabins, unless otherwise posted.

Landfill Committee -

Meets as needed; the date and time is posted a week ahead of time.

Recreation Committee -

Meets on the last Tuesday of each month at 7:00 pm in the Parks & Recre-

ation Office at the Town Hall.

Recycling Committee —

Meets on the first Tuesday of each month; the time and location is posted a

week ahead of time.

Joint Loss Management Committee -

Meets quarterly; the date and time will be posted a week ahead of time.

Economic Development Committee —

Meets the 3rd Wednesday of each month at 7:00 PM at the Library.

Open Space Committee -

Meets on a bi-monthly basis as needed at the Town Hall; the date and time

will be posted ahead of time.

Houston Park Facility Committee -

Meets every other Thursday at 7:00 PM at the Library.
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How To Contact

Your Congressmen

Senator Judd Gregg

393 Russell Senate Ofc Bldg

Washington, DC 20510

(202) 224-3324

District: 225-7115

Fax: (202)224-4952

Email:mailbox@gregg.senate.gov

Senator John Sununu

Senate Russell Courtyard 4

Washington, DC 20510

(202) 224-2841

District: 625-5585

Fax: (202)228-4131

Email:mailbox@sununu.senate.gov

Rep. Charlie Bass

218 Cannon House Ofc Bldg

Washington, DC 20515

(202) 225-5206

District: 226-0249

Fax: (202)225-2946

Email:cbass@mail.house.gov

Rep. Jeb Bradley

1218 Longworth House Ofc Bldg

Washington, DC 20515

(202) 225-5456

District: 641-9536

Fax: (202)225-5822

Emaihwww.house.gov/bradley
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Town of Hopkinton, New Hampshire

Need Assistance?
"^

Town Clerk
Telephone: 746-3180

Monday - Friday

8:00 a.m. -4:30 p.m.

Fax: (603)746-4011

E-mail:

Taxcollector@hopkintonnh. us

See the Town Clerk for:

-Motor Vehicle Registration

-Boat Registration

-Dog License

-Marriage License

-Birth Certificate

-Death Certificate

-Voter Registration

-Election Processes

(Town, State and Presidential)

-Dump Sticker

-Wetlands Application

(See note below)

-Information

-Fish & Game Licenses

-OHRV Registration

See the Tax Collector for:

-Tax Payment

-Inquiries ofTaxes

WETLANDS: When operating near

wetlands or waterways, a Dredge & Fill

Application must be filed with the Town
Clerk to avoid a fine under RSA 483-A.

^ ^

iT ^
Select Board

Office

Telephone: 746-3170

Monday - Friday

830 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

Fax: (603) 746-2952

E-mail: Selectmen@hopkintonnh.

us

See the

Select Board Office

for:

-Building Permit

-Driveway Permit

-Sign Permit

-Assessors Card

-Zoning & Planning Board

Application

-Intent to Cut

(Logging & Timbering)

-State Statute

-Rental: Town Hall

-Minutes of Meeting

-Zoning Violations

-Town Bid

-Human Services &
Public Assistance

(Social Services

Intake & Referral)

V J
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^^^^^^^^^ Right to Know Law ^^^^^^^^^
A Guide to Public Access

1. What is the "Right to Know" Law RSA 91 -A?

It is New Hampshire's Statute which emphasizes that the business of the Town
is the publics business. It makes clear that, with very few exceptions, the public has

access to Town records and meetings held in connection with Town Government.

2. Who does it cover?

All of us, whether we are elected officials, employees, or volunteers serving

on Boards of the Town of Hopkinton.

3. What does it cover?

It covers all "meetings". A meeting occurs whenever a quorum of a Board,

Committee or Subcommittee gathers and discusses or acts upon a matter over

which that Board, Committee, or Subcommittee has supervision, control, juris-

diction or advisory power. The law also requires that the business of a Board be

conducted at a meeting, rather than by telephone, E-mail, or private gathering

of individuals.

4. If it is a meeting, what does that mean?

A notice of the time and place of the meeting must be posted at least 24

hours in advance (excluding Sundays, and legal holidays) in at least 2 public

places.

The Public is entitled to attend and may record or videotape the proceedings

with courtesy permission.

All votes, with the very few exceptions itemized below, must be taken in

open session and not be secret ballot.

Minutes must be taken and made available to the public within 144

hours.

5. When can we hold a Nonpublic Session?

Rarely - the Right to Know law lists certain limited situations which allow

a board to go into nonpublic session. Those situations are:

• Dismissal, promotion, or setting compensation for public employees RSA
91-A:3II(a).

• Consideration of the hiring of a public employee, RSA 91-A:3 II (b).

• Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the

reputation of any person - however, this cannot be used to protect a per-

son who is a member of your Board, Committee or Subcommittee RSA
91-A:3II(c).

• Consideration of the purchase, sale, or lease of real or personal property

RSA91-A:3II(d).
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• Discussion ofpending or threatened (in writing) litigation, RSA 91 -A:3 II (e).

6. How do we go into Nonpublic Session?

A motion must be made which specifically identities the statutory category

which is the reason for going into nonpublic session and then, a roll call vote

must be taken in which each member's vote on the motion must be recorded.

7. Ifwe go into Nonpublic Session, what then?

Minutes must be taken just as you would in open session.

You must stay to the subject which was the original reason for going into

the non-public session; if there is need to discuss other matters which discus-

sion would be covered by a different exemption, you need to first come out of

nonpublic session and then vote to go back in under that different exception.

It is only in this way that a proper record can be prepared for public review.

The Minutes for the nonpublic session must be made public within 72 hours

unless two-thirds of the members, while in nonpublic session, determine that

the divulgence of the information likely would adversely effect the reputation

of any person other than a member of the Board, Committee, or Subcommit-

tee, or render the proposed action ineffective, under those circumstances the

Minutes may be withheld until those circumstances no longer apply. Action

will be required to sequester.

8. Which Public Records are accessible?

The public has access to all records held by the town except to the extent

they may fall under one of the exemptions listed above.

9. How quickly do the records need to be supplied?

If the requested record cannot conveniently be made available immediately,

there is a deadline of five (5) business days for complying with the request.

10. If there is a question as to whether something is open to the Public, what

do I do?

Consult with the Selectmen, and they will get advice from Town Counsel,

if necessary.

1

1

. In what format can the public demand that Tovs^ records be produced?

Most records are available for photocopying but the Right to Know Law
also extends the right to obtain computer disks of material already in the Town's

computers. A reasonable charge can be made to cover the cost of providing the

copies or disks. In no case, however, does a member of the public have the right

to demand that the Town collect, search for, or arrange information that is not

aheady pulled together for the Town's own purposes.

The above is intended as a general outline ofthe "Right to Know'' Law, and is

somewhat simplifiedfor ease ofdescription. Ifyou have questions, please contact

the Selectmen s Office at 746-3170.
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Town of Hopkinton, NH== Report of the Annual Town Meeting ===
March 10, 2004

Moderator Gary Richardson called the Annual Meeting of the Town of

Hopkinton to order on March 9, 2004 at 7:30 a.m. in the Hopkinton Town

Hall. The Moderator recognized Celeste Hemingson for consideration of ballot

Articles 1, 2 and 3, seconded by Jayne Schoch.

Article 1: "To choose all necessary Town Officers by ballot and major

vote in the ensuing year as enumerated."

2 Selectman 3 Year Term

1 Selectman 1 Year Term

1 Town Clerk/Tax Collector 3 Year Term

1 Moderator 2 Year Term

1 Supervisor of Checklist 6 Year Term

1 Town Treasurer 1 Year Term

2 Budget Committee 3 Year Term

2 Library Trustee 3 Year Term

1 Cemetery Trustee 3 Year Term

1 Trustee ofTrust Funds 3 Year Term

Article 2: To see what action the Town will take with respect to the

following proposed amendments to the Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance by

ballot vote upon the following questions:

Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 1 as petitioned by the

voters for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows:

To amend Section XIV, Administration , Article 14.2 Building/Use Permit to

read as follows: (insertion of words underlined)

"14.2. 1 Permit Required: It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct,

reconstruct, or alter a structure without applying for and receiving from

the Building Inspector a building/use permit, except if the cost is less than

$2,000.00 . It shall be unlawful for any person to change the use or lot coverage

or extend or displace the use of any building, structure or lot without applying

for and receiving from the building inspector a use permit, except if the cost is

less than $2,000.00 ."

(Not Recommended by the Planning Board.)
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Are you in favor ofthe adoption ofAmendment No. 2 as proposed by the Planning

Board (by vote 5-0) for the Town ofHopkinton Zoning Ordinance as follows:

To amend Table of Contents , Section VIII by changing the words, "Cluster

Developments" to "Conservation Subdivisions".

To amend Section III, Establishment of Districts and Uses , by changing the

words, "Cluster Developments" to "Conservation Subdivisions" in paragraphs

3.5.1,3.5.2, 3.5.3, 3.5.4 and 3.5.8.

To amend Section III, Establishment of Districts and Uses , Table of Uses 3.6.A.4

by changing the words, "Cluster Developments" to "Conservation Subdivisions".

To amend Section IV, Dimensional and Density Requirements , paragraph 4.3 (b)

by changing the words, "Cluster Developments" to "Conservation Subdivisions".

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Developments by changing the title from

"Cluster Development" to "Conservation Subdivisions".

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Developments by changing the words, "Cluster

Development" to "Conservation Subdivision" in paragraphs 8.2, 8.4.1, 8.4.1 (c), 8.4.2,

8.5.1, 8.5.2, 8.5.4, 8.6, 8.6.1, 8.6.5, 8.6.7, and 8.6.7 (a).

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Developments , paragraph 8.5.3 by inserting

the word(s), "dwelling" or "dwelling units" in the configuration requirements

for the R-4, R-3, R-2, R-1, VR-1 districts.

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Developments , paragraph 8.5.3 by allowing

up to "four" units per building, rather than "eight".

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Developments , paragraph 8.6. 1 by referencing

"dwelling units," rather than "building lots".

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Developments , paragraph 8.6.1 by omitting the

requirement that lots created under this section shall not front on an existingTown

road, and in its place require that no lot shall utilize access from an existing Town

Road with the exception of access to the open space lot for forestry purposes.

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Developments , paragraph 8.6.2 by indicating

that an applicant shall prepare a sketch development plan to demonstrate how

the land would be developed using a conventional subdivision, rather than

indicating that the Planning Board may require the sketch development plan.
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To amend Section VIII, Cluster Development , paragraph 8.6.3 by reducing

the Conservation Subdivision site size requirement for the R-3 district to

45,000 square feet, rather than 60,000 square feet for each detached single

family dwelling and for the first dwelling unit when there are attached dwelling

units proposed. Additionally, clarification to the R-2, R-1 and VR-1 site size

by making it clear that the additional 8,000 square foot requirement is for each

additional attached dwelling unit, rather than detached units.

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Development , paragraph 8.6.4 (a) by requiring for

external dimensional requirements that there be a 150-foot buffer strip established

along an existing public highway. Furthermore, no buildings, driveways, parking

areas, lawns, leach fields, or detention basins shall be built within the buffer. Existing

trees within the buffer strip shall be maintained, and the Planning Board may require

planting of trees or other vegetation if this area has been previously cleared.

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Development , paragraph 8.6.4 (a) by changing the

external side and rear setback requirement from 50-feet to 60-feet to be consistent

with the present requirements for conventional subdivisions.

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Development , paragraph 8.6.4 (b) by specifying

a rear setback requirement of 25 -feet. Additionally, when there is more than one

principal building on a lot in the R-3, R-2, R-1, VR-1 districts, a minimum
distance between principal buildings shall be 50-feet. For setback requirements

for accessory structures reference is given to Section 4.4.1 of the Ordinance.

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Development , paragraph 8.6.7 (a) by requiring

a minimum of fifty (50) percent, rather than twenty-five (25) percent, of the

total site area for common open space. Further changes include typographical

corrections to words within the paragraph.

To amend Section VIII, Cluster Development , paragraph 8.6.7 (b) by omitting

the paragraph in its entirety as the paragraph requires 100-feet of buffer of

open space between the development and existing public highways. Omitting

paragraph 8.6.7 (b) will require changing the alphabetical sequence of

subparagraphs within paragraph 8.6.7. See proposed amendment to paragraph

8.6.4 (a) requiring a 150-foot buffer.

To amend Section IX, Manufactured Housing , paragraph 9.4.4 by replacing

the word "cluster" with "Conservation Subdivision requirements".

To amend Section IX, Manufactured Housing , paragraph 9.5.3 by changing the

words, "Cluster Development" to "Conservation Subdivision".
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To amend Section XVI, Affordable Housing Innovative Land Use Control ,

paragraph 16.6.1 by changing the words, "Cluster Developments" to

"Conservation Subdivisions".

To amend Section XVI, Affordable Housing Innovative Land Use Control , by

changing the words, "Cluster Development" to "Conservation Subdivision" in

paragraphs 16.6.3. 16.6.4 and 16.6.5.

(Recommended by the Planning Board.)

Article 3: "Are you in favor of changing the term of the town treasurer

from one year to 3 years, beginning with the term of the town treasurer to be

elected at next year's regular town meeting?"

At 12:00 (noon), the Annual Meeting recessed, but the polls remained open

until 7:00 p.m.

The 239^^ Annual Meeting reconvened at the Hopkinton High School

gymnasium on Wednesday, March 10, 2004. Moderator Gary Richardson

called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.

The Moderator announced the Veterans of Foreign Wars in Contoocook were

sponsoring a project to send prepaid telephone cards to the men and women of

Hopkinton and Contoocook and the 249 members of the Hillsboro National

Guard who are serving in Afghanistan, Iraq and Kuwait. The VFW requested

the names and addresses of family members and neighbors serving in the war

be given to the Town Clerk's office by March 31, 2004.

The Moderator recognized Boy Scout Troop 11 for the Presentation of Colors.

Kathy Donohoe sang the National Anthem, and Reverend Celeste Hemingson

gave the invocation.

The Moderator introduced the officials at the head table as follows: Moderator

Gary Richardson, Selectman Donald Lane, Selectman Celeste Hemingson,

Selectman Lloyd Holmes, Town Administrator Edward Wojnowski, Finance

Director Robert Blanchette, Town Clerk/Tax Collector Sue Strickford, and

Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector Sandi Babson.

The Moderator read the results of the March 9, 2004 election:

Selectman - Two 3-year terms

Renee E. Carey 313

Louise Carr 682 (elected)
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Fred Finnerty 216

Clarke L. Kidder 572 (elected)

Edwin C. Taylor 374

Selectman - One 1-year term

Liane Kerbyson 348

Barbara linger 764 (elected)

Town Clerk/Tax Collector - 3-year term

Sue B. Strickford 1172 (elected)

Moderator - 2-year term

Gary B. Richardson 1096 (elected)

Town Treasurer - 1 -year term

Bonita A. Cressy 1094 (elected)

Budget Committee — Three 3-year terms

Patrice Gerseny 271 (elected)

Karen Irwin 297 (elected)

**Budget Committee - One 2-year term

Peter Russell 106 (elected)

**Note: 3 positions were filled by write-in votes. The third vacancy was created

when David Feller resigned in 2003 and the Selectmen appointed Peter Russell

to complete Mr. Feller's term. By State law, the selectmen's appointee can only

serve until the next annual election. Mr. Russell's term will expire in 2006 at

the completion of Mr. Feller's original term.

Trustee of Trust Funds - 3-year term

Richard I. Gourley 1024 (elected)

Library Trustee - Two 3-year terms

George W. Chase 984 (elected)

Holly S. Gagne 965 (elected)

Cemetery Trustee - 3-year term

Virginia T. Friberg 1054 (elected)

Supervisor of the Checklist - 6-year term

Carol A. McCann 1039 (elected)
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School Board - 3-year term

Arpiar Saunders 662 (elected)

Seth Shordidge 434

School Treasurer - 1 -year term

Arnold C. Coda 996 (elected)

School Moderator - 1 -year term

Charles E. Dibble 1029 (elected)

School Clerk - 1 -year term

Susan H. Batchelder 1032 (elected)

Article 2. Zoning Amendments

Question 1 Yes - 224 No - 989

Article 2, Question 1 Failed

Question 2 Yes - 857 No - 270

Article 2, Question 2 Passed

Article 3. Town Treasurer Yes - 903 No - 237

Article 3 Passed

Moderator Richardson explained parliamentary procedures for the meeting.

TheModerator recognizedSelectman CelesteHemingson forpresentations. Selectman

Hemingson expressed appreciation to Luciele Gaskill, the retiring chairman of the

Budget Committee for 27 years of service to the Town. Mrs. Gaskill was presented

with 27 roses and received a standing ovation from the audience.

Selectman Hemingson presented a Certificate ofCommendation to Chris Gaudreault,

a Hopkinton Paramedic in recognition of medical assistance and lifesaving aid he

administered on July 29, 2003 while assisting the Henniker Rescue Squad.

A Certificate ofCommendation was presented to Police Sergeant Steven Pecora,

in recognition for the manner that he moderated a potentially threatening

situation during a medical emergency and also on another occasion when he

took control and maintained a calm presence in the performance of his duties

after an altercation on a school bus.

Selectman Hemingson thanked two Eagle Scouts for their contributions to the

Town. Connor Britain was recognized for the new podium that was designed

to house a portable sound system for use at the annual Memorial Day Parade.
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Ben Lajoie received recognition for the new bulletin board at the Post Office

for posting information about town events and town news.

Selectman Hemingson informed the audience that if residents have a barn or

other agricultural building that is at least 75 years old, there is an application

process to put the barn into a discretionary preservation easement under RSA
79-D:3 RSA. The deadline for applications is April 15, 2004 at the Town Hall.

Selectman Hemingson offered a motion to nominate the following appointees

who shall serve as appointed until another is appointed in their stead:

Fire wards: Richard Lord, Tom Krzyzaniak, Robert White

Fence Viewers: Richard Drescher, Richard Strickford

Surveyor ofWood & Timber: Ron Klemarczyk, John Herrick

Tree Warden: David Story

Weigher: Roger Andrus

Selectman Lane seconded the motion. The Moderator called for a voice vote

and declared the motion approved.

Article 4 was presented by Louise Carr and seconded by Selectman Hemingson.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to modify the elderly exemptions from property tax in the town of

Hopkinton, based on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers, to be as follows:

for a person 65 years of age up to 75 years, $40,000; for a person 75 years of

age up to 80 years, $40,000; for a person 80 years of age or older $40,000.

To qualify, the person must have been a New Hampshire resident for at least 5

consecutive years, owned the real estate individually or jointly, or if the real estate

is owned by such person's spouse, they must have been married for at least 5 years.

In addition, the taxpayer must have a net income of not more than $30,000,

or, if married a combined net income of less than $40,000; and own net assets

not in excess of $100,000.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Selectman Hemingson provided a summary of the proposed change noting

the Selectmen had received numerous inquiries regarding an increase in the
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exemption amount granted to qualifying property owners. The current income

limit is $20,000 - single, $30,000 - married, with an asset limit of $50,000.

Currently about 30 residents receive the exemption. The proposed article

would bring Hopkinton's guidelines closer to those in other nearby towns.

The board was unable to estimate the impact of the increased income and asset

limits. Passage of the article would enable the Town to be more sensitive to the

tax burden on the town's elderly residents.

The Moderator called for discussion and recognized Douglas Fuller. Mr. Fuller

asked for clarification of the wording of the regulation regarding what assets are

included and what time period is used to determine income.

Selectman Hemingson indicated a person's primary residence would be exempt

from the asset calculation. Savings, automobiles, boats, second homes, etc. count

as assets. She indicated the basic structure of the exemption is determined by

state statute. The Town's flexibility relates to the income limit and the amount

of the deduction.

Hearing no further discussion, Moderator Richardson called for a voice vote

and declared Article 4 passed.

Article 5 was presented by Jane Bradstreet and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $1,125,752 to defray the cost of

General Government Operations:"

General Government Functions $$ in Year 2004

Executive 172,191

Election, Registration, Vital Stats. & Tax Coll. 224,653

Financial Administration 98,871

Assessing 94,043

Legal 25,000

Personnel Administration 56,072

Planning & Zoning Departments 79,894

General Government Buildings 1 17,642

Cemeteries 45,714

Insurance 96,580

Hopkinton Fair Celebrations 1 12,512

Economic Development Committee 2,580

Total $1,125,752
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(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and Budget Committee recommended the article.

Selectman Lane highlighted the significant differences in the article:

• Executive -Town employees received an average of 5.1% increases, also

increase in board of selectmen to 5 members

• Election - 5 elections during 2004, only 1 in 2003

• Assessing — new software package

• Insurance - premium increases for unemployment and workers

compensation and property liability trust

• Hopkinton Fair - funds for special duty police and fire coverage. The

Fair Association reimburses all costs; it is an in/out account only.

The Moderator recognized Jayne Schoch who made a Motion to Amend Article

5 to read "To see ifthe town will vote to raise and appropriate $1,1 28,724.25 to

defray the cost of general government operations, an increase of $2,972.25.

Mrs. Schoch spoke in support of the amendment stating the Selectmen

were presented with information about replacement costs for the Town Hall

flagpole. It would be a 25' fiberglass pole, with timer lighting. The current

flagpole is broken, does not have a light and should be removed until replaced.

Mrs. Schoch indicated the proposal had been cut before reaching the Budget

Committee. She encouraged passage of the amendment and requested the new

flagpole be installed before Memorial Day.

Richard Schoch seconded Mrs. Schoch's motion to amend.

There being no discussion to Mrs. Schoch's amendment, the Moderator called

for a voice vote and declared Mrs. Schoch's Amendment passed.

The Moderator opened the floor to discussion of Article 5.

Peter Chalfant asked why the appropriation for the Hopkinton Fair Association

expenses are included if the fair reimburses the money.

Selectman Lane explained the State requires it be done that way becatise the Town

provides the services. The Town would receive the money from the Fair Association.

Bruce Burns asked if any dollars in General Operations included money for

capital spending and if not, he requested notification at the time of the vote on

the Capital allocations for the various departments.

Selectman Lane explained those appropriations were included in various articles.
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The Moderator called for voice vote on Article 5 as amended and declared

the voice vote passed.

Article 6 was presented by David Feller and seconded by Selectman Lloyd Holmes.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $1,088,340 to defray the cost

of Public Safety Operations:"

Public Safety Operations $$ in Year 2004

Police Department 583,230

Ambulance Service 296,101

Fire Department 197,234

Emergency Management 3,000

Rescue Squad 8,775

Total $1,088,340

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

The Moderator recognized Janet Krzyzaniak who made a Motion to Amend Article

6 to read "to see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $1,137,340 to defray

the cost of Public Safety Operations. The amendment was to increase the Fire

Department amount from $197,234 to $246,234." Seconded by Andrea Angwin.

Mrs. Krzyzaniak offered an explanation for her motion. She stated the request never

reached Budget Committee, as the Selectmen did not approve it. She explained

the amendment was to fund a full-time chief for the Fire Department. She stated

as the town's population grows, the demand on the department increases. The

present part-time fire chief makes himself available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Some of this time is conducted during non-working hours and a lot of time is

conducted during normal working hours. The fire department is responsible for

fire inspections, investigations, code compliance, plan review, research and report

writing, corresponding with the State Fire Marshals and Electrical Inspector,

meeting with contractors and conducting fire education. The town has 2 full-time

firefighter/EMT employees during the daytime who are committed to emergency

medical calls. In 2003 the fire department ambulance service generated $196,000

back to town from ambulance billings. It is the Fire Chief s responsibility to limit

the liability to the town through proper management of the fire department

and the firefighters. Mrs. Krzyzaniak stated she was speaking as the wife of a fire

fighter who was also a former chief and deputy chief She stated people have no

idea the amount of time that is involved and it is not a part-time job.
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The Moderator explained awritten request for a secret ballotvote had been submitted

and he opened discussion regarding Mrs. Krzyzaniaks Motion to Amend.

David Lancaster asked if $49,000 was sufficient to cover salary and benefits

and what the total cost of funding the full-time position would be.

Selectman Holmes responded the figure was for eight months. The total cost

for a full year, with benefits, would be $74,780.

Selectman Lane stated the responsibility of the Selectmen was to go through the

budget and determine where cuts could be made. It was done on a line-by-line basis.

He stated Mrs. Krzyzaniak was eloquent in stating reasons for the amendment, but

wanted all present to know the Board did exercise strong thought.

Patty Guay asked how much the chief is currently paid.

Selectman Lane replied the part-time chief is paid $7,500 a year.

Mrs. Guay commented it might be better to increase his part-time pay to

compensate for all that the chief does instead of making the position full time.

The Moderator indicated Mrs. Guay could make a Motion to that effect ifso desired.

Patty Guay made a Motion to Amend Mrs. Krzyzaniak'sAmendment to increase

the salary of the part time fire chief by $7,000. Peter Chalfant seconded Mrs.

Guay's Motion to Amend.

The Moderator stated Mrs. Guay's Motion to Amend would amend Mrs.

Krzyzaniaks Motion to Amend.

Peter Russell commented that Mrs. Krzyzaniak's Motion specified a full-time

chief so that could mean the town would get a full time fire chief for $7,000.

Tom Angwin expressed concern regarding the number of hours worked by the

Chief stating the extra money does not fix the problem.

Rob Nadeau asked about the salary of fiiU-time chiefs in similarly sized towns.

Pat Sangillo asked if Mrs. Guay's Motion was out of order because it changed the

intent of the original motion. She commented the original motion was for a full

time chief, Mrs. Guay's motion is to increase the salary of a part-time chief

The Moderator replied it was not out of order.

Selectman Hemingson asked for clarification of the amendment to the amendment.
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Moderator replied Mrs. Krzyzaniak's motion was to increase the fire department

budget to $246,234. Mrs. Guay's Motion to Amend Mrs. Krzyzaniak's

amendment would increase the fire department budget by $7,000. Mrs.

Krzyzaniak's Motion to Amend did not specify it was for a fiiU time chief,

it was an increase to the fire department budget figure only. The Moderator

stated his understanding of the intent ofMrs. Guay's Motion to Amend was to

reduce the $49,000 increase to $7,000.

Richard Gourley asked about the full-time aspect. He questioned whether a

warrant article was necessary to create a new full-time position.

Craig Dunning stated the original Motion to Amend was not earmarked

specifically for a full time chief but rather an increase of $49,000 to the fire

department budget.

Fire Chief Rick Schaefer replied to Mr. Nadeau's question regarding salary of

comparable towns stating it ranged from $45,000 to $68,000 based on research.

George Camp asked if Mrs. Guay's Motion to Amend the original amendment

was a voice vote or a secret ballot vote.

The Moderator stated it was going to be the next question. The original request

for a Yes/No ballot was for a full-time chief

Peter Russell asked for clarification about the Motion to Amend the original

amendment and commented there was a big decision to be made as to whether

there would be a part-time or a full-time chief

The Moderator stated he could not change the motion for clarification of intent.

The Moderator recognized Patty Guay who withdrew her Motion to Amend,

and Peter Chalfant who also withdrew the second.

The Moderator directed the audience back to Mrs. Krzyzaniak's original

Motion to Amend.

David Boughton asked for a point of clarification asking if the intent to hire a

fulltime chief was explicit.

Moderator Richardson replied it was not explicit in the motion.

Mrs. Krzyzaniak clarified it was her intent to increase the budget by $49,000

for a full-time fire chief position.
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The Moderator stated the original motion was to increase the fire department

budget by $49,000.

Tom Congoran made a Motion toAmend Mrs. Krzyzaniak's original amendment

to specify the purpose of the increase in the fire department budget be to hire

a fiill time fire chief.

Janet Krzyzaniak seconded Mr. Congoran's Motion to Amend.

The Moderator stated it did not appear that a Yes/No ballot on Mr. Congoran's

Motion toAmend was necessary. He further clarified the intent ofMr. Congoran's

Motion to Amend was to make it clear that the money being appropriated was

specifically designated for the purpose of hiring a fiill time fire chief

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Mr. Congoran's Motion to Amend
Mrs. Krzyzaniak's original Motion to Article 6 to include the purpose of fiill time

chief The Moderator declared Mr. Congoran's Motion to Amend passed.

Cameron Ford asked how the chief is currently selected and asked if that would

change if the position became full-time.

Peter Russell responded that the fire department membership votes on the

Chief every other year and that person has to be appointed by the Selectmen.

Selectman Hemingson offered clarification stating the position of the full time

chief would have to meet specific qualifications. The Board would select a

qualified candidate to become full time chief.

Erick Leadbeater asked the Selectmen if the full time position was approved

was the Town obligated to advertise to outside applicants.

Selectman Hemingson responded the newly elected Board of Selectmen would

determine the hiring process.

The Moderator ended discussion and gave instructions for a Yes/No ballot vote.

The Moderator read the results of the secret ballot vote. The results were 318

total votes resulting in 221 -No votes, 97-Yes votes. The Moderator declared

the Amendment to Article 6 failed.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Article 6 as originally printed and

declared it passed.
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The Moderator recognized Elizabeth Ridinger who made motion to address

Article 24 next. Richard Drescher seconded the motion. Mrs. Ridinger explained

time was a factor and it was an important article that deserved attention.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Mrs. Ridinger's motion to address

Article 24 next and declared it passed.

The Moderator took a brief break for Selectman Don Lane to extend thanks to

Celeste Hemingson for six years ofdedicated service to the Town as a selectman

and presented her with a gift.

Article 7 was presented by Louis Corson and seconded by Selectman Hemingson.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $47,000 to install a Vehicle

Exhaust System at the Contoocook Fire Station for the purpose of removing

fire truck vehicle exhaust and to withdraw $47,000 from the Replacement Fire

Vehicle/Equipment Capital Reserve fund established for this purpose.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Selectman Hemingson explained the Town already had the money to buy the

system. The vote would approve the move from the Capital Reserve Fund.

Fire ChiefRick Schaefer explained the health concerns ofbreathing the exhaust

inside the fire station.

The Moderator called for a voice vote called declared Article 7 passed.

Article 8 was presented by Richard Gourley and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $1,548,134 to defray the cost

of Public Works Operations:"

Public Works Operations $$ in Year 2004

Highway Administration 423,977

Highways & Streets 499,000

Street Lighting 1,200

Transfer Station Operations 497,560

Landfill Maintenance & Monitoring 30,980

Sewer Department 95,417

Total $1,548,134
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(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

There being no discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote and declared

Article 8 passed.

Article 9 was presented by Byron Carr and seconded by Selectman Holmes.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $108,772 to defray the cost of

Health and Human Services Operations:"

Health & Human Service Operations $$ in Year 2004

Health Administration 3,763

Community Center Contribution 15,000

Community Action Program ~ (CAP) 4,537

Human Services Administration 30,472

Human Services Vendors 55,000

Total $108,772

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

There being no discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote and declared

Article 9 passed.

Article 10 was presented by Richard Gourley and seconded by Selectman Hemingson.

Resolved by theTown ofHopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the Town
vote to support making the position of Human Services Director a full time

position and to raise and appropriate the sum of $22,365 which represents the

balance of wages and benefits for 6 months of a full time Director.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Louise Carr asked voters to support the article citing the amount of time that

Marilyn Bresaw devotes to the position.

Joy Bloomfield asked for the total amount of benefits and salary and whether it

was comparable to the salaries for the same position in other towns.

Selectman Hemingson responded the total would be $44,729 for one year

including benefits. She explained Marilyn Bresaw currently works 30 hours a

week, the article would add 10 additional hours and provide benefits.
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Tom Angwin asked whether the Board had researched the full-time position

with other towns of similar population.

Selectman Hemingson replied it varied widely from town to town, but the

advantage of a full-time welfare director would be the ability draw on federal

and state funds, not only town monies.

Patty Guay asked what the Human Services Administration $30,472 was in Article 9.

Selectman Hemingson indicated it was Marilyn Bresaw's current 30-hour salary.

The Moderator called for a voice vote and declared Article 10 passed.

Article 1 1 was presented by Dick Schoch and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $197,183 to defray the cost of

Recreation Operations:"

Recreation Operations $$ in Year 2004

Recreation Department 97,267

Parks Department 92,836

Patriotic Purposes 7,100

Total $197,183

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

There being no discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote and declared

Article 1 1 passed.

Article 1 2 was presented by Elissa Barr and seconded by Lloyd Holmes

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $228,054 to defray the cost of

the Hopkinton Library:"

Library Operations $$ in Year 2004

Hopkinton Library 228,054

Total $228,054

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Dale Warner asked for an explanation of various the library articles.
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Selectman Hemingson explained that Capital Reserve funds were being set up

to plan ahead for improvements in the future. The library was starting to put

money aside each year.

The Moderator called for a voice vote and determined it was too close to call.

He asked for a second voice vote and declared Article 12 passed.

Article 13 was presented by Richard Keane and seconded by Selectman Hemingson.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $3,725 for Conservation and

Tree Planting/Beautification program:"

Conservation & Tree Planting $$ in Year 2004

Conservation Commission 1,725

Tree Planting & Beautification Program 2,000

Total $3,725

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

There being no discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote and declared

Article 13 passed.

Article 14 was presented by Owen French and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $302,417 for the payment

of Principal and Interest of long-term debt; and interest for Tax Anticipation

Notes (TANS), if required."

Long-term Debt & TAN Interest $$ in Year 2004
Principal - Bonds and Notes 203,222

Interest - Bonds and Notes 94, 1 95

Interest - Tax Anticipation Notes 5,000

Total $302,417

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

David Lancaster asked what year the bond for the landfill and the library would end.

Selectman Lane replied the Library would be paid off in 2007, the Transfer

station in 2009 and the Landfill in 2017.

The Moderator called for a voice vote and declared Article 14 passed.
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Article 1 5 was presented by George Camp and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by theTown ofHopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the Town
vote to raise and appropriate the following funds to be placed in previously

established Capital Reserve funds as follows."

Capital Reserve Accounts $$ in Year 2004

Community Center 50,000

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades 6,000

Ambulance and Defibrillator Equipment 35,000

Fire Dept Vehicles and Equipment 100,000

Public Works Vehicles and Equipment 90,000

Police Cruisers and Accessories 33,000

Sludge Removal 7,500

Transfer Station Equipment 27,500

Total $349,000

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Joanne Casino asked about the increase from last year's capital reserve allotment

of $281,000~Article 15 in the 2003 Town Meeting warrant.

Selectman Lane explained the allotment was $331,000 in 2003, the increase

was $18,000 from 2003.

Elizabeth Sanders asked if the $50,000 for the community center was for a new

building or for the existing building.

Selectman Lane responded it was for a new building.

Joannie Mclntire asked for the current total in the Capital Reserve account for

Community Center.

Selectman Lane stated it was currently $103,000, if passed it would be

$153,000.

Joannie Mclntire asked for the amount being spent for the study for building.

Selectman Lane replied the Town would have to get a quote from a reputable

firm. The town would not receive a quote until there were some decisions

regarding what was to be built.
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Louise Carr explained the purpose of the Houston Park Facihties committee

and encouraged ail interested parties to attend the four public hearings.

Joy Bloomfield expressed concern about the Town Lines article about Houston

Park referencing the condition of the large barn and also asked about the Town

Hall renovations as referenced in the Master plan.

Pat Sangillo called the question.

The Moderator called for voice vote to terminate the discussion and declared

it passed.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Article 1 5 and declared it passed.

Article 16 was presented by Elissa Barr and seconded by Selectman Holmes.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to establish Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA
35:1 for the purpose of Library Replacement Building Systems and to raise

and appropriate the sum of $9,000 to be placed in this fund and to name the

Hopkinton Library Trustees as agents to expend.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Elissa Barr explained the appropriation was in anticipation of future expenses

including carpeting in about 10 years, HVAC and roof in about 20 years.

Dick Schoch commented the Library was the most inefficient Town building

in regard to energy for its age. He encouraged the energy needs of the building

be looked at immediately, not in the future.

Craig Dunning asked why there were two funds for seemingly the same

purposes referencing this article and Article 22.

Elissa Barr responded first to Mr. Schoch's concern. She explained the library

had undergone an energy audit in January and found that the insulation was

not adequately placed, thus resulting in heat loss and pipes freezing. She said

the issues had been addressed.

Ms. Barr also stated Article 22 contained an error that she planned to discuss

when Article 22 was brought up for discussion.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Article 16 and declared it passed.
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Article 17 was presented by Richard Gourley and seconded by Selectman Holmes.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to establish Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions ofRSA 35:1

for the purpose of Contoocook Village Cemetery Improvements and to raise

and appropriate the sum of $10,000 to be placed in this fund and to name the

Cemetery Trustees as agents to expend.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

There being no discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote on Article

17 and declared it passed.

Article 18 was presented by Edwin Taylor and seconded by Selectman Hemingson.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to establish Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA
35:1 for the purpose of a Legal Fund and to raise and appropriate the sum

of $25,000 to be placed in this fund and to name the Board of Selectmen as

agents to expend."

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Tom Angwin asked about the purpose of the establishment of the fund.

Selectman Hemingson replied it would be used as necessary and carried over

until legal fees had to be paid.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Article 18 and declared it passed.

Article 19 was presented by Janet Krzyzaniak and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by the Town ofHopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the Town

vote to raise and appropriate the following funds to be placed in previously

established Expendable General Trust Funds as follows."

Expendable General Trust Funds $$ in Year 2004

Town Facihties Maintenance Trust Fund 22,500

Recreation FaciHties Maint. Trust Fund 5,000

Hopkinton Library Technology Maint. Trust 9,000

Total $36,500

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.
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David Lancaster asked for an explanation ofthe $9,000 technology expenditure

and asked how much was in the trust currently.

Elissa Barr responded the fiind was established last year and had $3,300 in it. The

monies would be used to repair and replace the network, computers and servers.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Article 19 and declared it passed.

Article 20 was presented by Tammy Clay and seconded by Selectman Holmes.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to create an Expendable Maintenance Trust Fund under the

provisions of RSA 31:1 9-a, to be know as the Benefits Pay Trust Fund, to be

used to pay benefits accrued by Town employees and redeemed when they

leave employment with the Town of Hopkinton, and to raise and appropriate

the sum of $5,000 toward this purpose and to name the Board of Selectmen

as agents to expend."

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

After a brief discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote and declared

Article 20 passed.

Article 21 was presented by Richard Gourley and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by theTown ofHopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that theTown
vote to create an Expendable Maintenance Trust Fund under the provisions of

RSA 31:19-a, to be know as the Human Services Expendable Maintenance

Trust Fund, to be used to pay for support of the basic maintenance needs of

eligible individuals in the Town of Hopkinton, and to raise and appropriate

the sum of $20,000 toward this purpose and to name the Board of Selectmen

as agents to expend.

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

There being no discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote and declared

Article 21 passed.

Article 22 was presented by Chris Hamm and seconded by Elissa Barr.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the Town
vote to create an Expendable Maintenance Trust Fund under the provisions of

RSA 31:1 9-a, to be know as the Hopkinton Library Building Maintenance Trust
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Fund, for the purpose to replace library building components (roof, HVAC,
boiler, carpet), and to raise and appropriate the sum of$6,000 toward this purpose

and to name the Hopkinton Library Board ofTrustees as agents to expend."

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Elissa Barr made a Motion to Amend to strike "for the purpose to replace

library building components (roof, HVAC, boiler , carpet) and to insert "for

the purpose of painting the library building on an annual rotating basis and

exterior maintenance needs."

Ms. Barr explained there was an error in the printing of the warrant article.

Chris Hamm seconded the Motion to Amend.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on Ms. Barr's Motion to Amend and

declared the Motion to Amend passed.

The Moderator called for a voice vote on the main article as amended and

declared Article 22 passed.

Article 23 was presented by Larry Patz and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $15,000 for the installation of

irrigation systems at George's Park and Houston Fields and construction of

parking at Houston Fields.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

David Lancaster asked if the monies were for paving or adding parking.

Selectman Lane replied the purpose was to add more parking at Houston field.

Clarke Kidder asked for clarification as to the source of the water for the

irrigation system.

Selectman Lane responded the water source would be dug wells.

The Moderator called for a voice vote and declared Article 23 passed.

Article 24 was presented by Mary Ann Lewis and seconded by Selectman Lane.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the Town

vote to change the purpose of the Land Acquisition & Conservation Capital
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Reserve Fund to the George's Park Track Improvement Capital Reserve Fund.

(213 Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen and the Budget Committee recommended the article.

Richard Drescher referred to a letter to the editor printed in the Concord

Monitor on March 9, 2004 referring to Article 24. He asked for clarification.

Specifically he asked if the present track would be dismantled and the tennis

courts and a ball field would be removed and replaced with a regulation size

track. He asked how the project would be funded and commented that the

money had been set aside for the acquisition of land.

Selectman Lane responded that there were a number of misconceptions in the

article. The track was built 20-25 years ago. It is a one-fifth mile track, not the

regulation size of one-quarter mile. The track program encompasses 120 kids

in middle and high school and addresses those kids who are not on a team.

The letter in the Concord Monitor implied the Board was about to spend

$350,000-$500,000 for a track, which was incorrect. The plan Selectman Lane

had given to the Hopkinton Youth Sports Association (HYSA) stated the cost

would probably be about $120,000 to replace the track. Funding was to be

$40,000 from the town, $40,000 from the school, and $40,000 from private

donations. It is a long-term planning project starting with the track, to adjust

Clark field or replace Clark field with one at Houston Fields.

At the 2003 Town Meeting $40,000 was set aside to acquire a piece of property

north of the fairgrounds. The Selectmen spent lot of time dealing with the State

trying to reach an agreement on equitable price, but the State wanted $95,000

for the land. The Town will not be able to purchase it. When the track project

came up, the Board decided to consider using the money that was already set

aside. The question is whether the voters want to replace the track.

Dick Drescher commented that Selectman Lane had not answered the question

about the ball field and tennis courts. He asked about the long-term plans.

Selectman Lane responded that Clark field would either be moved or a new

one would by built at Houston Field by the Department of Public Works. He
stated the track needed to be replaced. The $40,000 had already been set aside.

The School would have to come up with $40,000.

Dick Drescher expressed concern about overextending the Highway Dept. by building

all the athletic fields and needing a maintenance department to maintain all the fields.

Selectman Lane answered that the Town has a Parks Department comprised of
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Don Houston, Dave Story and a summer temp managed by Herm Blanchette.

He commended the DPW for its excellent work.

David French, president of HYSA, thanked Don Lane for his work developing

fields for youth. He expressed the concern of the HYSA board that at Town
meeting 2003 Article 15 was passed to purchase property for a 90' baseball

diamond. HYSA was planning to donate an additional $20,000 for the

purchase of property. It was apparent the purchase was not going to happen

resulting in a setback to baseball program. Mr. French cited the major concern

was losing Clarke field for an indefinite time with no concrete replacement

field. Losing one field, even for a season, would have a major impact on the

baseball program. He stated HYSA was not against a track, but before fields are

removed, there needed to be a concrete replacement plan.

Ginny Nichols, the track coach for the Middle School and assistant for the

High School team encouraged support of the article. She highlighted some

of the accomplishments of the 1 20 students involved in track and explained

the current problems with the areas used by the students involved in track. A
regulation size track would allow Hopkinton to host home meets that would

provide cost savings in busing. Mrs. Nichols cited the need for the students to

have a safe training area.

Jan Hilliard, Health Coordinator for School District encouraged support for upgrading

the track to meet the kids needs. She cited the importance of youth physical fitness,

particularly in a sport where the only requirement is a pair ofrunning shoes.

Katie Merrow stated the Town needed to consider the full cost of the plan. She

encouraged community involvement in the planning process.

Joy Bloomfield, a school board member stated the School was asked by the

Town to put an article on the school warrant. She said the School Board chose

not to put it into the school warrant this year.

Rob Nadeau spoke in support of the article and explained no students were cut

from the track team, every student played every day. He offered the interior

field as part of the track as a way to address some of the needs for space. He
mentioned a full-size track could generate income.

Mark Mclntire offered statistics regarding tracks. He stated the positioning of

track could affect the current 90' baseball diamond. He stated he was not against

the track team, but there might be a better solution. He cited the vagueness of the
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replacement plan for the baseball field and said he would like to see consideration

given to building the ball field first and then building a track.

The Moderator recognized George Camp who called the question. Richard

Kennedy seconded motion.

The Moderator asked for a voice vote on whether to terminate discussion and

declared the motion passed.

The Moderator explained the vote on Article 24 required a 2/3 majority vote

by State law. He called for a voice vote and declared the No voice vote carried

and declared Article 24 defeated.

Katie Merrow moved to reconsider Article 24 stating she had voted in the negative.

David Lancaster seconded the motion also stating he had voted in the negative.

Mrs. Merrow proposed to reconsider Article 24 to amend the language to state

the funds would be set aside to improve fields and facilities for the Town of

Hopkinton. She explained it would give the Selectmen an opportunity to work

toward a plan and discuss it with the community.

The Moderator asked if it was Mrs. Merrows intention to strike word track from

original article. Mrs. Merrow indicated it was her intention to strike the word "track".

The Moderator called the question.

The Moderator called for a voice Vote on Mrs. Merrow's Motion to Reconsider

Article 24 and declared Article 24 defeated.

Article 25 was presented by Elaine Loft and seconded by Richard Houston.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $4,000 in the interest of public

health and safety to provide winter plowing and sanding on the following roads

during the winter months:

South Shore Drive 1500 feet

Ridge Lane 900 feet

Rolfe Pond Road 2000 feet

Salachar Road 500 feet

Perch Lane 700 feet

Sparrow Lane 1 000 feet

Robin Lane 400 feet
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This action shall in no way be interpreted as changing the status of these roads

from "private" to "public" roads. It is the general policy of the Town that no

work will be done on any private or Class VI highway.

Submitted by Petition.

After a brief discussion, the Moderator called for a voice vote on Article 25

and declared it passed.

Article 26 was presented by Clarke Kidder and seconded by Selectman Holmes.

Resolved by the Town of Hopkinton in Town Meeting convened, that the

Town hear the reports of agents, officers, and committees, heretofore chosen,

to pass any vote relating thereto, and to transact any other business that may
legally come before said meeting."

David Lancaster asked to have the following information included in the Town
Report:

• Number of registered voters in attendance 341

• Number of total registered voters 3,972

Mike Foley asked about the status of the lawsuit with Bio Energy. He asked

whether the REACH group was acting in conjunction with the Board of the

Selectmen. Selectman Lane replied REACH was an independent group.

Steve Adams commented that the remarks from residents questioning the

trustworthiness of town selectmen, committees, were a shame. He stated

residents need to trust the people they are electing into office because they

represent our interests.

Moderator Richardson made a Motion to Adjourn the meeting at 1 1:00 p.m.,

seconded by Selectman Lane.

Respectfully submitted.

Sue B. Strickford

Town Clerk

A true record "Attest"

March 10,2004

46



^^^^^^^^ Hopkinton Town Report ^^^^^^^^^"""""^"^"^
Special Town Meeting

SS: State ofNew Hampshire Merrimack County

Moderator Gary Richardson called the Special Town Meeting to order on

September 15, 2004 at 7:05 p.m. He introduced the Board of Selectmen,

Clarke Kidder, Lloyd Holmes, Barbara Unger, Louise Carr, Donald Lane, and

Town Administrator Edward Wojnowski. He reviewed procedures for the

meeting and explained each article would require a majority vote to pass. The

Moderator stated he had received a written request signed by 5 voters for yes/

no ballots on each article.

Warrant Article 1: The Moderator recognized Selectman Don Lane for

the purpose of moving Article 1 , seconded by Selectman Louise Carr. To see

if the town will vote to purchase the so-called "Beyers property". Tax Map 238

Lot 80, a l4.2-acre parcel of unimproved land located on Old Henniker Road

for $205,000. Funds for said purchase shall be drawn from the Open Space

Bond approved during the 2003 Annual Town Meeting, Warrant Article 7

established for this purpose. Recommended by the Board of Selectmen.

Selectman Lane introduced the Open Space committee members: Dorothy

"Dijit" Taylor, Ron Klemarczyk, Bill Chapin, Byron Carr, and Bryan Pellerin.

Selectman Lane was the board representative to the committee.

Selectman Lane spoke in favor of Article 1. He stated the Beyer property was

located on 202 & 9 abutting the Smith Pond Bog. It is 14.2 acres, primarily

woodland. The property was appraised for $305,000, and the asking price by

the owners is $205,000. He explained the property met all criteria to justify

its purchase. It would preserve the natural heritage and rural character and

provide town with a quiet way to control growth. If passed, the property

would be open for public access, passive use (hiking, bird watching, etc.). He
stated the alternative use of the property would be 5 house lots according to the

appraisal. The impact on the tax rate would be 3.7 cents per thousand.

The Moderator opened Article 1 for discussion.

Jeff Donohoe made a Motion to Amend the article to read "To see if the town

will vote to purchase a 100% fee-simple ownership interest in the so-called

"Beyers property". Tax Map 238 Lot 80, a l4.2-acre parcel of unimproved

land located on Old Henniker Road for $205,000. Funds for said purchase
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shall be drawn from the Open Space Bond approved during the 2003 Annual

Town Meeting, Warrant Article 7 established for this purpose. Robert Wells

seconded the Motion to Amend.

The moderator called for a voice vote on the Donohoe amendment and

declared it passed.

The moderator gave instructions for a ballot vote on Article 1 as amended.

The Supervisors of the Checklist stated 130 registered voters had checked in

as of 7:35 p.m.

The moderator announced the results of the ballot vote on Article 1: 120 in

favor, 6 opposed. Article 1 passed as amended.

Warrant Article 2: The Moderator recognized Selectman Don Lane for

the purpose of moving Article 2, seconded by Selectman Louise Carr. To see if

the town will vote to purchase the so-called "Carson's property". Tax Map 257

Lot 19.1, a 30-acre parcel containing land located at 531 Farrington Corner

Road for $235,000. Funds for said purchase shall be drawn from the Open

Space Bond approved during the 2003 Annual Town Meeting, Warrant Article

7 established for this purpose. Recommended by the Board of Selectmen.

Selectman Lane spoke in favor ofArticle 2. He explained the purchase would be

for 30 acres ofwoodlands abutting 96 acres of the Brockway preserve presently

owned by town. The appraised price was $235,000, and the asking price is

$235,000. The property would be used exclusively for passive recreation. He
stated the alternative use per the appraiser would be 5 or 6 house lots. The

impact on the tax rate would be 4.3 cents per thousand.

The moderator opened Article 2 for discussion.

Jeff Donohoe asked if the property had already been subdivided.

Ron Klemarczyk, from the Open Space Committee, replied it had not been

subdivided. The committee did not want to spend money for surveying until

the purchase was approved. The acreage was based on the tax map acreage, not

a complete survey of the property. The tax map says 36 acres and the house is

about 3 +/- acres. The committee knows where the boundaries will be for the

house, and is interested in just deeding the woodlands.

Jeff Donohoe made a Motion to Amend Article 2 to read "to see if the town

will vote to purchase a 100% fee simple ownership interest in the available 33 +/-
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acres portion of the so-called "Carson's property", Tax Map 257 Lot 19.1,

parcel containing land located at 531 Farrington Corner Road for $235,000.

Funds for said purchase shall be drawn from the Open Space Bond approved

during the 2003 Annual Town Meeting, Warrant Article 7 established for this

purpose. Recommended by the Board of Selectmen. Robert Wells seconded

the motion.

Seeing no further discussion on the amendment, the moderator called for a

voice vote on Mr. Donohoe's motion and declared it passed.

Martha McNeil asked why the slide showed a cost of $245,000, when the

article asks for $235,000.

Selectman Lane stated the monies would be paid for the appraisal and $5,000

would be set aside to hire someone to manage the easement.

Selectman Lane made a motion to amend Warrant Article 2 to $245,550, and

to strike $235,000. Louise Carr seconded the motion to amend.

Glen Smart questioned the motion stating the town would be paying $235,000

for the land, not $245,550. The money included $10,550 in miscellaneous

costs.

Jane Bradstreet questioned whether the intent of the original bond issue was to

include miscellaneous costs.

Janet Ward commented the miscellaneous costs are essential to the land

purchase.

Ron Klemarczyk made reference to the intent ofArticle 3 - 2003 Town Meeting

Warrant Article "... and to take any other action they deem appropriate to

effectuate the sale and/or issuance of said bonds ..."

Ron Klemarczyk explained the miscellaneous expenses were in regard to the

maintenance of the property. He stated nothing in the warrant article says

the land would be protected. Conservation easements would need to be put

on the properties to protect them. These agencies have monitoring and legal

responsibilities. They request an initial endowment to cover the costs. He
stated the Article needs to include these management fees.

The Moderator advised the voters that the Motion to Amend on floor was to

strike $235,000 and replace it with $245,550.
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Jane Bradstreet expressed concern about the legality of including the costs and

asked Mr. Lane to withdraw his amendment.

Dick Drescher asked what was meant by management fees.

Ron Klemarczyk explained the initial fee would go to whatever agency holds

the conservation easement. The Town cannot hold an easement on town

owned property.

Celeste Hemingson spoke in support of the Lane amendment, stating the

essential up front costs to acquire the property met the intent of the original

vote of town meeting.

The moderator re-read Mr. Lane's Motion to Amend Article 2 "to see ifthe town

will vote to purchase a 100% fee simple ownership interest in the available 33

+/- acres portion of the so-called "Carson's property", Tax Map 257 Lot 19.1,

parcel containing land located at 531 Farrington Corner Road for $245,550.

Funds for said purchase shall be drawn from the Open Space Bond approved

during the 2003 Annual Town Meeting, Warrant Article 7 established for this

purpose.

The moderator called for a voice vote and declared the Mr. Lane's Motion to

Amend passed.

Bruce Burns asked whether the Town's intent was to make the property part of

Brockway Preserve.

Ron Klemarczyk replied it would probably be a subdivision annexation. The

Brockway Preserve has an existing easement. The new parcel would be jointly

managed, not separate boundary.

Bob Koch asked if the effect of the motion to amend was to give $245,550 to

the Carsons.

The Moderator replied no, the signed Purchase and Sales agreement was for

$235,000.

The moderator gave instructions for a ballot vote on Article 2 as amended.

The moderator announced the results of the ballot vote on Article 2: 120 in

favor, 8 opposed. Article 2 passed as amended.

Warrant Article 3: The Moderator recognized Selectman Don Lane for
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the purpose of moving Article 3, seconded by Selectman Louise Carr. To see

if the town will vote to purchase the so-called "Rollins property", Tax Map
103 Lot 16, a 48.949-acre parcel containing land and buildings located at 337

Penacook Road for $475,000 ofwhich $300,000 shall be drawn from the Open

Space Bond approved during the 2003 Annual Town Meeting, Warrant Article

7 established for this purpose. Recommended by the Board of Selectmen.

Don Lane spoke in favor of article 3. He explained the town would sell the

house and three acres once Mr. Rollins moves to new location across the street.

Mr. Rollins would have one year to move out of the house. The land has

frontage on Penacook and Little Tooky Roads. The estimated development

capacity was initially placed at 4 lots, but could yield many more. The appraiser

indicated the house could sell for at least $175,000. The tax impact of the

purchase would be 5.4 cents per thousand.

The moderator opened discussion on Article 3.

Jeff Donohoe made a Motion to Amend Article 3, To see if the town will vote

to purchase a 100% fee simple ownership interest in the so-called "Rollins

property", Tax Map 103 Lot 16, a 48.949-acre parcel containing land and

buildings located at 337 Penacook Road for $475,000 ofwhich $300,000 shall

be drawn from the Open Space Bond approved during the 2003 Annual Town
Meeting, Warrant Article 7 established for this purpose. Recommended by the

Board of Selectmen. Richard Hampe seconded the Motion.

The Moderator called for voice vote on the Motion to Amend and declared the

amendment passed.

Janet Krzyzaniak made Motion to Amend Article 3 to read. To see if the town

will vote to purchase a 100% fee simple ownership interest in the so-called

"Rollins property", Tax Map 103 Lot 16, a 48.949-acre parcel containing

land and buildings located at 337 Penacook Road for $475,000 of which

$311,040.00 shall be drawn from the Open Space Bond approved during the

2003 Annual Town Meeting, Warrant Article 7 established for this purpose.

Richard Kennedy seconded the Motion to Amend.

Jeff Donohoe voiced concerned about having the articles overturned. Bond

article is pretty specific to purchase ofproperties, not to disposal ofconservation

easements on them. He added that long-term maintenance fees should not be

included.
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Dorothy "Dijit" Taylor explained the conservation easement is necessary for

permanent conservation so that the conservation land is not turned into schools

or soccer fields.

Richard Hampe stated the opinion of the Bond Counsel was all that was going

to matter, and the conservative method would be not to include the $1 1,000.

Joy Bloomfield asked whether the miscellaneous costs figure included closing

costs, advertising, etc. for selling the house.

Selectman Lane indicated they were included.

Discussion ensued regarding the potential profit from the sale of the house if it

sold for more than $175,000 appraised amount.

The moderator called for a voice vote on Mrs. Krzyzaniak's amendment to

strike sum $300,000 and increase it to $31 1,040 and declared it passed.

The moderator gave instructions for the ballot vote on Article 3 as amended.

The moderator announced the results of the ballot vote on Article 3: 120 in

favor, 3 opposed. Article 3 passed as amended.

Selectman Lane thanked the residents for selling the town the property. He
thanked the Open Space Committee for its hard work and thanked the citizens

for support of conservation lands.

At 8:55 p.m. the Moderator accepted Selectman Holmes' motion to adjourn,

seconded by Clarke Kidder.

Respectfully submitted.

Sue B. Strickford

Town Clerk

A True Record "Attest"

September 15, 2004
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_^^^^^^^ Selectmens __^^___^_
2004 Annual Report

2004 started out as a complex year for the Board of Selectmen and essentially

remained that way throughout. The overriding issue was, of course, the Bio

Energy matter. The concern of the Board centered on Bio Energy's conversion

from a cogeneration facility burning virgin wood chips to an incineration facility

burning construction debris. This "change of use" was initially approved by the

State Department of Environmental Resources and the plant most likely would

have gone into operation except that your previous Board of Selectmen issued a

Cease and Desist order preventing it from doing so. The basis ofthe Board's order

was that Bio Energy had not applied to the town for the appropriate permits.

Because the State had approved its operation. Bio Energy sued the town and was

granted a "partial" victory. The judge found that the town had no jurisdiction in

the technological area of emission controls and was preempted by the State. In a

separate decision the judge found that the town did have the power of site plan

review. At present the town has appealed to the State Supreme Court seeking a

reversal of the judge's decision relative to "change of use".

In the meantime, other organizations have entered the Bio Energy fray.

REACH, Residents Environmental Action Committee for Health, a very large

and active Hopkinton citizens group, has worked relentlessly to see that the

town gains control over the allowable emissions and that emissions are absolutely

minimized. REACH is a marvelous example of a group of citizens banding

together to achieve a goal about which they rightly feel very passionate. Another

organization. Citizens for a Future New Hampshire, an environmental group

dedicated to the preservation of New Hampshire's relatively pristine landscape

and to the health of its citizens, has also more recently joined forces with the town

and REACH to achieve a suitable solution. CFNH brings financial resources,

experience and great skill to this endeavor. Together, your Board of Selectmen

is confident that a satisfactory conclusion to this matter will be achieved this

coming year and we can turn the town's attention and resources to more positive

matters.

There were a number of positive steps taken by your Board and its citizen

groups this past year. After working for twelve months defining its mission in

detail, the Open Space Committee held its first "special" town meeting this

past September to obtain town approval to acquire three parcels that met the

"open space" concepts embraced by Hopkinton at its 2003 Town Meeting. The

acquisition of the three parcels presented was approved overwhelmingly. Each

purchase is located in different parts of town and will greatly add to the goal of
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preserving the rural character of the community. The Open Space Committee

has worked diligently, meeting at least twice a month since its inception, and

should be commended for its great work.

As requested by the 2004 Town Meeting, the Board formally directed the

Houston Park Committee to develop a plan to implement the construction of

a new community center on the grounds of Houston Fields. The need for such

a facility has been obvious for many years. The Committee has spent countless

hours defining the needs of the town and devising an approach that would meet

them. It recognized early that the segment of our community that has been

overlooked for years has been our senior citizens. The goal of the new facility will

be to meet their needs as well as those of all other segments of our population.

The new building, beautifully designed to blend into Houston fields, is an

excellent product of the major effort of the Houston Park Committee. Its work

will be judged, up or down, at our Town Meeting this year. The Board sincerely

hopes that the need is recognized and that the construction is approved.

Another matter relevant to Houston Fields is the fact that the town reached

agreement with the Conservation Commission to place most of the remaining

undeveloped land under a conservation easement. The two potential remaining

developments at the fields will be a major expansion of the walking paths and

the possibility of a softball field, if the need develops. The intent of placing the

easement was to preserve the truly beautiful natural aspects of Houston Fields.

It is a place that has successfully blended our needs for both active and passive

recreation. Everyone should make an effort to walk the fields come spring.

There was other significant progress made in meeting the active recreational

requirements of our town. The Board finalized the purchase of six acres of

land on Park Avenue that will be used to build a new fiall-sized baseball field.

Construction will begin this summer. We were also able to obtain from the city

of Concord, at no charge to our town, the chain link fencing and backstop that

will be needed at the new field. We were also able to make good progress on

the two new soccer fields at Houston. These should be ready for use next fall.

Public Works also replaced the sprinkler system at George's Park. We will need

to consider a similar effort at Houston in the near future.

Over the past six years we have made great progress at meeting our park needs.

We have playing fields that are the envy of central New Hampshire. Credit for

this should be given to Don Houston, Dave Story, Herm Blanchette and the

entire Public Works Department for a magnificent job. Having recognized the

progress made in the parks area, the Board decided to expand their responsibilities

to include our many buildings. At present, we have twenty-two structures,
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excluding schools and precinct buildings, owned by the town. Because there was

no direct responsibility, these structures were being neglected. A good look at

our beautifiil town hall will confirm this fact. To solve this problem the Board

created a new department. Buildings and Grounds, to address the growing

maintenance requirement. Buildings and Grounds will replace Parks and will

report to the Director of Public Works, Herm Blanchette. The manager of the

new department will be Don Houston.

Again, we incurred very little turnover in our town staff. We are very fortunate

to have such a stable, caring and competent group of men and women working

for our town.

It is equally important that we recognize one major failing that occurred this

past year. Probably because the Board struggled to find an efiScient and workable

method for coping with its new size (five members instead of three), decisions

took longer to be made than they had in the past. Consequently, the information

necessary for creating our most recent tax bills was late and an error in the billing

went undiscovered. People with Current Use land were under-billed and those

with no Current Use land were over-billed. This error will be corrected before

the next billing and steps will be taken to credit those who were over-billed.

Despite the travail of dealing with the Bio Energy matter and the tax bill

error we still had a pretty good year. This coming year we hope to solve the

problems that need our attention and pursue policies that continue to protect

the rural yet sophisticated character of our town while expanding our tax base to

guarantee that Hopkinton remains a livable and affordable community for all.

We are quite fortunate to live in Hopkinton.

Respectfully submitted,

Don Lane, Chairman

Lloyd Holmes

Louise Carr

Barbara Unger

Clarke Kidder

Hopkinton s l^irst 5-Mcmbcr Board of Selectmen

Standing: Lloyd A. Holmes, Donald K. Lane and Clarke L. Kidder

Seated: Louise M. Carr and Barbara W. Unger
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Building/Use Permit Report

2004

Type ofConstruction 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Residential 16 19 21 AA 20

Residential Additions & Renovations 85 50 70 85 69

(incl. attachedgaragesy decks, porches, etc.)

Garages, Barns & Sheds fi^^/^<3:c/7^<^y) 42 42 38 37 43

Garages, Barns & Shed, Additions thereto .... 4 2 9 3 2

Swimming Pools 10 4 3 7 3

Manufactured Housing 8

(Elm Brook Village & Deer Meadow)

Condominiums—Peaked Hill 2

(Two Bldgs., Sixteen Units)

Commercial Buildings

Commercial Addtns., Renov., Change in 6 5 9 14 10

Use & Accessory Structures

Home Occupations/ 3 12 3 5

Businesses/Accessory Uses

Conversions 12 3 3 2

(Two-Family & Multi-Family)

Signs 5 3 6 6 2

Temporary Signs on Town Property 3 4 2

Temporary Housing 1 1

Demolition 4 3 4 4 2

Town Buildings 1

{Library @ Houston Park & Shed @ Georges Park)

Private School-New Construction/ 1110
Additions (Hopkinton Independent School,

Contoocook School & Parkside Children's House)

Other 3 3 4 6 4
(Towers, Antennae, Fuel Storage Tanks,

Diesel Generator, Scoreboard, Signs, etc.)

TOTALS: 191 135 171 220 165

57



Hopkinton Fire Department
2004 Annual Report

During 2004, the Fire Department responded to 1053 calls. We had two

motor vehicle fatalities both occurred on 202/9. We had 705 medical calls

and due to patient billing we have receive over $223,000 which goes back to

the general fund to offset taxes. A breakdown of these calls follows this report.

Hopkinton Fire Department is still the second busiest department, behind

Concord, in the Capital Area Fire Mutual Aid compact.

2004 was the busiest year the Department has ever seen. Many updated

pieces of equipment also were received this year. The generator that we got on

a grant last year was installed; it is fully automatic and allows the Contoocook

Station to be totally operational in the event of a power outage. The 1997

aerial ladder truck has been used many times at building and chimney fires;

this is an excellent piece of fire apparatus. I would like to thank The Town of

Hopkinton for approving the fire equipment capital improvement fund every

year. Without this, this purchase which saved us over $100,000, would never

had been possible. We also moved the former ladder truck generator to the

Hopkinton station, although this must be manually started it allows that station

to be operational in the event of a power outage, this station has never had

this capability before. Also a base radio was added so we have communication

between our stations and dispatch center.

This year Jeff Killam has started the Fire Explorer program. Jeff and his

advisors currently have 4 active members I applaud their work, this very

important and it is the fire service's future.

Fulltime hours are Friday 6:00 AM to Monday 6:00 PM and Tuesday -

Thursday 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM. There are two fiilltime firefighters working each

shift at the Contoocook Station. Our very dedicated and competent call staff

handles all other times, when we use our second ambulance and all of the fire calls.

As for me, I have logged over 1250 hours on calls, meetings, training, administrative

duties, and writing grants. Training for both E.M.S. and firefighting is on going

and they are not compensated for this required part of the fire service.

Deputy Chief John Pianka spends a lot of time preparing for fire prevention

education in our schools. Every October John and E.M.S./fire personnel visit

kindergarten through sixth grade. This will range from the students seeing the fire

apparatus and ambulance, to a fire prevention movie, to operating a fire extinguisher.

We continue to have a problem with houses not being properly numbered.

Please have your home numbered on BOTH sides of your mailbox or signpost
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with reflective numbers, especially if your house cannot be seen from the road.

Remember ifwe cannot find you, we cannot HELP you.

I would like to thank the Selectmen, Police Department, Highway

Department, Rescue Squad, Water Precincts and of course. The Hopkinton

Fire Department personnel for their assistance throughout the year.

Respectfully Submitted:

Rick Schaefer

Chief

Hopkinton Fire Department

Hopkinton Fire Department
Callsfor the year 2004

TOTAL NUMBER OF CALLS 1,053

Medical Aid Calls (including 108 motor vehicle accidents) 705

Fire Alarm Activations 37

Brush and Non permit burns 27

Service Calls/Assist Public/Good Intent Call 98

Carbon Monoxide Detector Activations 7

Power lines Down / Tree on Wires 28

Fuel Leaks 10

Cover Trucks 19

Chimney Fires 4

Structure Fires mutual aid 13

Structure Fires (Hopkinton) 4

Other Fires 28

Vehicle Fires 7

Hazard Conditions (no fire) 12

Paramedic Intercepts (34 mutual aid) 45

Drills 9
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Hopkinton Human Services Department
2004 Annual Report

The mission of this office is to enable individuals and families who find

themselves in difficult situations to return to functioning as vital members of

our society without relinquishing their dignity. The ultimate goal is to render

assistance in a professional manner at the lowest cost to the town taxpayers.

Financial assistance is rendered in accordance with the guidelines adopted by

the selectmen and governed by state law. By law there is no limit to the amount

of assistance that may be granted to any one household. Nor is there any

stipulation controlling the type of assistance that may be expended. Ultimately,

assistance may vary from one time food or prescription assistance to many
months of shelter costs or on-going medical costs, depending on the need

presented and the requirement of the guidelines. Reimbursement is requested

and clients sign an agreement to do so if they become financially able. This year

over $10,000.00 was collected.

This office operates as mandated by state law RSA 165:1. Pursuant to law,

citizens of our community are assisted and served or as law states "relieved and

maintained". The method of service is governed by the need presented. Each

need and family situation reveals its unique problems and difficulties. Whether

it is direct financial assistance to meet a basic need, help with budgeting, paper

work or understanding and navigating the fragmented Social Services of New
Hampshire, it is the responsibility of this office to perform these duties. This

burden of responsibility became more realistic in 2004 when taxpayers voted

to make this office full time. This will allow expansion of the safety net this

Department provides.

2004 brought an increase in outreach to the community but interestingly

a decrease in actual expenditures. Even with the continued lack of affordable

housing, the soaring cost of prescription drugs, the necessary use of local

shelters and temporary housing costs decreased.

The breakdown for 2004 expenditures is as follows:

Food $ 6,565.47*

Housing $33,085.08

Fuel $ 2,975.99**

Medical $ 4,576.53

Misc. $417.99

TOTAL $47,621.06
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*Individual food vouchers beyond food pantry distribution

**This figure does not reflect the $25,770.00 in federal fuel assistance

allocated to clients in the town.

An additional $4,815.93 was expended from Town Trust Funds to meet

special needs. Sixty five households received direct financial assistance and

an additional 110 households were assisted by other means. These figures

do not reflect supplemental sources such as service organizations and private

donations.

The push continues for community based services. TheTown ofHopkinton

is fortunate to have many well established services that are vital resources in

our Town. Three of these services this department relies upon for support are

Hopkinton Respite, Hopkinton Food Pantry and Hopkinton Dial-a-Ride.

Respite is being coordinated by Lucy LaFond at 746-2200. Visitors offer respite

to care givers and friendly visits to the homebound. The well established Food

Pantry is supported by the Capital Food Program, Government Surplus Foods,

NH Food Bank and many local contributors including schools, churches,

organizations, business and individuals. Tammy Saltmarsh, the Food Pantry

Coordinator provides endless energy, organization skills and just plain hard

work to make this project a great success. Special thanks to Tammy for all

her hours of community service and her dedicated volunteers for another

successful year. Thank you to all who contribute either as volunteers or through

donations of food, money, produce or sundries. The third service, Dial-a-Ride,

provides rides to senior citizens for food shopping, errands and appointments

and graciously shares their office with Human Services.

Operation Christmas was again a great success. 75 households received

holiday food boxes and 60 households received additional holiday gifts. On
behalf of all the recipients, sincere appreciation is sent to all who graciously

gave of their time, money and energy.

No person should be without food, shelter or medical attention in our

community. Please do not hesitate to make referrals or inquiries. All information

is confidential.

Respectfully Submitted,

Marilyn Ceriello Bresaw

Human Services Director
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HOPKINTON TOWN LIBRARY
2004 Annual Report

y4 library is not a luxury but one ofthe necessities oflife.
" Henry Ward Beecher

The Hopkinton Town Library continues to grow in both services and usage.

Circulation increased 16% to 65,757 in 2004. On average, for every man,

woman, and child in Hopkinton, 12.18 books or other items were checked

out last year! When added to the large number of people who use the library

for study, computer access, programming, or meeting rooms, this reflects an

enormous increase in usage.

We said goodbye to Children's Librarian, Dara Magnon and welcomed

Leslie Skimmings as the new Children's Librarian on March 16. Leslie has a

Master's Degree in Education from Harvard and has taught in Massachusetts

and New Hampshire schools at several different levels. She also worked as an

artist, free-lance writer and landscape designer.

Leslie organized various enjoyable and informative children's programs

during the year. Nancy Raymond and Leslie worked on one of the year's

highlights, the Summer Reading Program whose theme was Heroes Near and

Far. Puppeteer Martha Dana,

storytellers LiMin Mo and

George RadcUiffe, along with

folksinger John Porcino, and

others entertained the children.

Weekly Baby Lapsit and

preschool storytimes introduced

new readers to the library with

songs, dances and stories.

Community members read David Guterson's Snow Falling on Cedars

during Hopkinton READS! 2004. Programs included the exploration of Civil

Liberties in Wartime with Hopkinton resident. Professor Richard Hesse of
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Franklin Pierce Law Center and Claire Ebel of

the NHCLU and Joanne Iritani's remembrances

of her experience as an internee during WWII.
HHS English Teacher, Mike Timm led two

book discussions, challenging his audiences with

questions of racism during wartime. Thanks to

Hopkinton READS! committee members Elissa

Barr, Susan Burns, Donna Dunlop, Joanna Henderson, Shelley Lochhead, Bill

Monroe, and Todd Quinn for this year's programming, to the Foundation for

funding the program, and to all who participated.

Reference service continues to grow with a 13% increase in questions asked

in 2004. Reference Librarians Karen Dixon and Bobbi Slossar have continued

their graduate studies in library and information science. Bobbi will graduate

from the University of Southern Connecticut in May and Karen at a later date

from the University of Rhode Island. 104 people took advantage of computer

classes taught by Karen and Bobbi in 2004. Offerings included old favorites on

the internet, e-mail, word processing, and spreadsheets as well as new classes

about being a savvy searcher, and finding health, consumer, and genealogical

information on the internet.

New technology available at the library in 2004 includes wireless internet

access introduced in November. Anyone with a laptop computer and a wireless

card is welcome to come to the library and log on during regular library hours.

Visitors to the library's website at www.hopkintontownlibrary.org can now
view the Contoocook Village Quilt online. The quilt now hangs in the library's

community room. Each of the 42 squares depicts a building or village scene.

Bobbi developed this online presentation of the quilt which includes digitized

pictures of each of the squares along with the original essays written by the

quilters. Ifyou have admired the quilt from a distance, visit the quilt online and

get a closer look at each of the squares, read about the quilters' experiences, and

learn about the history of Contoocook Village. From the website you will also

be able to search the library's online card catalog, check out the Community
Room calendar, find program information, read the library newsletter, and link

to other helpful sites.

Volunteer Nancy Brown delivers library materials to community members

who are temporarily or permanently unable to leave their home and would like

to receive delivery of library materials. Please inform anyone you know who
could benefit from Words on Wheels about the service. Call Karen at the library

for more information.
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Our volunteers are really wonderful! They shelved all 65,757 circulating

items last year with a speed and efficiency few libraries can celebrate. In

addition, they repair and cover books, keep our gardens looking beautiful, plan

programs, design and layout Library Ink, consult, serve on committees, and

a myriad of other things too numerous to mention. We are grateful to them

every day for their help.

I would like to thank all who contribute so much to the library and its

well-being. Thanks so much to Karen, Bobbi, Leslie, Nancy, Scott and Sonya,

the library staff, who with cheerful enthusiasm, positive attitudes, and great

knowledge help the many people who come to the library. Thanks also to

the Library Board of Trustees for their commitment and clear guidance, the

Friends of the Library for their support, and to the Foundation without which

we wouldn't be able to offer the breadth of materials and services currently

available. Thanks to Don Houston for his great care of library grounds, Bobby

Carruthers for his care of the building. Town departments and Selectmen, and,

of course, to community members — each of you helps make the Hopkinton

Town Library the great place that it is.

A lot was accomplished in 2004. What's in the future? The library operating

budget proposal for 2005 includes funds for opening Sunday afternoons

during the school year beginning September, 2005. In April 2002 and again

in April 2004 we conducted Customer Service Surveys of library users for one

week. When people in the 2002 survey were asked, "Are there other things

you would like the library to offer?" the most frequent response was "more

books" followed by "more hours." The 2004 survey asked for more detailed

information regarding hours. Of the 268 people who answered the question,

195 said they would like the library to be open more hours with more selecting

Sunday 1-4 than other possibilities.

We have worked hard to develop the library's collections ofbooks, books on

CD, videocassettes, and now DVD's since the 2002 survey. The 16% increase

in circulation of library materials in 2004 compared to 2003 shows a growing

increase in demand for library services.

The Library Board of Trustees invited a group of community residents

to serve on a Long Range Planning Committee which would plan for library

services over the next five years. The committee, facilitated by Alan Hall, met 5

times between October 2003 and January 2004 coming up with a plan proposed

to and accepted by the Library Board ofTrustees. Committee members Richard

Brandt, David Feltus, Holly Gagne, Joan Holmes, Melissa Jones, David Luneau,
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Marjorie Noon, and Bonnie White, included Sunday openings during the school

year, beginning in 2005 as part of the overall plan.

The cost for the library to open Sunday from 1-5 from September 11, 2005

through December 18, 2005 is $2,229 and includes staffing, benefits, and utilities.

Public libraries that open Sunday are often as busy in those few hours as

in some full days. Families who cannot get to the library during the week can

come together on Sunday afternoon. The assignment remembered at the last

minute can be completed. The book or book on CD for the business trip can

be found. Other libraries (school) in Hopkinton are not open on Sunday.

We look forward to seeing each of you at the library every day in 2005.

Thanks so much for your support.

Respectfully submitted,

Elizabeth Levy, Library Director

Library StaflF

Sonya Detwiler, Reference Librarian

Karen Dixon, ILL/Reference Librarian

Scott Huff, Library Page

Elizabeth Levy, Library Director

Nancy Raymond, Library Aide I

Leslie Skimmings, Children's Librarian

Bobbi Slossar, Reference Librarian
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Hopkinton Town Library
Circulation Statistics for 2004

Category Adult ]uvenile Totals

Fiction 16,325 22,948 39,273

Non-fiction 8,393 4,467 12,860

Audio/Video 5,448 5,089 10,537

Periodicals 1,948 1948

Inter-Library Loans 1,139 1139

Totals 33,253 32,504 65,757
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Hopkinton Town Library
=^ Board of Trustees ^^

2004 Annual Report

The Hopkinton Town Library Trustees thank the Town ofHopkinton - all

its citizens - for making this past year so successful. Success can be measured in

many ways and many are appropriate to the Library. First, the Town citizenry

has been most generous in its financial support of the Library. The budget

appropriated for the Library has allowed for the continued acquisition of

timely, pertinent and popular materials in a variety of formats. The collection

is not only expanding into new areas of interest but also deepening in content

as well. But, it is not a successful library if the shelves are full because no one is

checking out the books. Over 65,000 items - books, magazines, books on tape

and CD, DVDs, and other materials - were checked out of our Town Library

in 2004. This is a total circulation rate increase of 16% over the previous year.

Since the opening of the new building, 74% of the citizens of Hopkinton have

checked out items from the Library.

The Library staff has continued to offer services in many areas. A measure

of success is based on the use of these services. The Reference desk provides

essential services to the community by providing timely, accurate information

on demand. The level of staff time and involvement varies depending on the

request for information but overall, the rate of reference services for both

adults and children has increased by 13%. Programming, such as story times

for children and book discussions and computer classes for adults, continues

to show increases in attendance. Another important service, the processing of

interlibrary loan requests, is also up this year.

The budget allows for maintaining and updating computer hardware and

software which support accessing new databases and web-based services. The
new wireless network allows people to access these online services while using

their own laptops in the Library. The availability of these services continues

to draw people into the Library. In 2004, more than 7,000 hours of Internet

access were logged by 10,296 visitors to the library. For some of these visitors,

the Library computers are their only means of Internet access and for that

matter, their only access to a computer.

There are community members who do not make use of the above

mentioned services but still make the Library a destination. Many groups,

organizations, committees and associations use the Library's meeting spaces: the

Bates Community Room and the Local History Room. These rooms provide

public space for the free exchange of ideas and information, entertainment and

edification. The number ofroom reservations, nearly 500 in 2004, is indicative
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of the many activities, social and civic, that community members are involved in.

The Library is honored to be a recipient of such community commitment.

Another way to measure success is by acknowledging the contributions of the

many people who volunteer their time, talents, materials and hard work to the

Library. Some of our volunteers work in the Library repairing books, shelving

materials or providing refreshments for receptions - in general, making the

Library a wonderful place to visit. The Friends of the Library are an integral

part of the success of the Library by providing programming free and open to

the public. The Art Gallery Committee continues to select inspiring works by

community members which reflect talent, technique and creativity. Members
of the Friends of the Library have put much energy into the beautification

of the Library grounds - the

seasonal plantings are a joy to

behold. The Library received a

special donation of apple trees

from Erick and Susan Leadbeater,

which have been planted near

the front and side entrances.

The Hopkinton Public Library

Foundation donates to the

Library items that enrich and

enhance the collection and the

facility. Through their largess, as well as the talents of Pat Gruttemeyer, the

Library is able to publish the newsletter Library Ink, an effective means of

communicating Library programs, policies and events. To each and every one

who has contributed to the Library, we offer you our most sincere thank you.

The Long Range Planning Committee continued their efforts in identifying

areas for growth, improvement and additions to Library programming and

services. The members of the committee were selected to represent and reflect

the broad range of interests in the community. After much investigation the

Committee presented the Trustees with a five-year plan. One recommendation

is to have the Library open on Sunday. The Library conducted a survey with

results concurring with the request for additional hours. Therefore, the Trustees

have included in the 2005 operating budget an amount to cover the cost of four

hours of Library services on Sundays from September 2005 through December

2005. We thank the members of the committee for their time and diligence.

Finally, the tremendous responsibility of managing the Library, its staff,

programs, services, equipment, building systems and grounds rests with the

Library Director Elizabeth Levy. The Library can be the success it is because

Elizabeth and her staff serve with such professionalism and dedication. Thank
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you Elizabeth and to all your wonderful, talented staff, Karen Dixon, Bobbi ||

Slossar, Leslie Skimmings, Nancy Raymond, Scott Huff and Sonya Detwiler. ™

Respectfully submitted,

Hopkinton Town Library Board ofTrustees

Beth Bloomquist

George Chase

Holly Gagne

Christine Hamm
Elissa Barr, Chair

\
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Hopkinton Town Library

2004 Financial Report

Balance brought forward $ 41,354.95

Revenues

Trust Funds *$ 8,531.15

Gifts/memorials $ 1,200.00

Interest $ 209.43

Misc. (Fines, copier, book sales, etc.) $ 5,758.76

Sub-Total $ 16,124.90

Expenditures

Revenue to Town of Hopkinton $ 15,044.92

Program $ 28.99

Supplies $ 55.35

Sub-Total $ 15,129.26

Ending Balance $ 42,350.59

* Includes $2344.92 that went directlyfrom the Trustees ofthe Trust Funds to the

Town ofHopkinton, Library Interest Trust Fund, AccountNumber 100-3916-000-02.
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Hopkinton Police Department
2004 Annual Report

To the Board of Selectmen and the Citizens of Hopkinton, I submit the

annual report of the Hopkinton Police Department.

I wish to extend my sincere gratitude to the townspeople, our town

departments, their employees and my staff for their continued support to make

this community all that it is.

The past year was quite challenging for the Hopkinton Police Department.

With the military activation of Sergeant Stephen Pecora to service in Iraq in

May, personnel have been forced to put in many extra hours to fill in the

gap. A special thanks goes out to Part-time officer Larry Hilton, who without

reservation was quick to help out whenever needed.

Statewide, traffic deaths rose more than 23 percent in 2004. It is our hope

to reduce these numbers in 2005 through diligence and particular attention

to speed and aggressive driving behavior. In 2004 Hopkinton Police officers

stopped more than 4,300 vehicles for moving violations, yet we still experienced

102 traffic accidents, which resulted in the deaths of 2 people and injury to 19.

It is therefore, my hope that our citizens pay close attention to this issue and

work with us to reduce speed and carelessness on our highways.

As always, I encourage your involvement in sharing any information you

might have when it comes to suspicious activity within the community. This

way, we can continue working together and make Hopkinton a safer place to

live and raise a family.

Respectfully submitted.

David M. Wheeler

Chief of Police

\i/
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Police Statistics for

2004 Annual Report

Motor Vehicle Actions 2003 2004

Accidents Investigated 100 102

Persons Injured 19 19

Fatal Injuries 2

Warnings Issuec 3395 3719

Summonses Issued 295 415

Driving While Intoxicated Arrests 12 23

All Other Motor Vehicle Arrests 31 53

TOTALS 3852 4333

Criminal Offenses & Arrests 2003 2004

Arson 2 1

Burglary 9 10

Counterfeiting / Forgery

Criminal Trespass 7 7

Disorderly Conduct 31 39

Drug / Narcotics 7 15

Drunkenness / Protective Custody 3 8

False Pretenses / Swindle 23 21

Family Offenses / Domestic Violence 21 25

Incest 1

Intimidation / Criminal Threatening 9 19

Issuing Bad Checks 39 5

Juvenile Offenses 15 29

Liquor Law Violations 11 15

Loitering / Curfew / Vagrancy

Runaway 10 3

Sexual Assault 5 1

Suspicious person/vehicle 65 44

Shoplifting 2 2

Assault 9 12

Theft 46 27

Theft / Motor Vehicle 3 2

Criminal Mischief/ Vandalism 65 35
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Weapons Violation

911 Hang-Up Calls

Alarms

Assist Fire Department

Assist Other Agencies

Medical Assist

Unattended Deaths

All Other Offenses

36 22

121 132

61 44

165 125

74 83

2 1

670 625

TOTALS 1511 1328
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Hopkinton Public Works Department
2004 Annual Report

The winter of2003-2004 produced 63" ofsnow along with 5"of rain. Not

much if you compare it to the previous year with 115". The largest storm of

the season was December 6th which was 18".

The Department has been using a small portion of the Hopkinton

fairgrounds as a spot for an ice skating rink which also has lighting for night

skating. The area is located off route 103 at the yellow gate.

The Highway Department rebuilt 1 .73 miles of roads one portion of Gould

hill and another portion on Sugar hill. Here are some figures for what it took

for these two roads: 2,800 tons of gravel, 400 feet of culvert pipe various sizes,

6 catch basins and 2,340 tons of hot top. Along with these projects routine

maintenance was performed on other roads.

The Park Department replaced aeration lines on 2 fields at Georges Park.

The old system was next to impossible to work the soil properly being only 2"

under the surface in most spots.

You may have noticed the new crosswalks in Contoocook village at the

intersection of Pine street and Kearsarge Avenue. They look like bricks but

they are actually the asphalt that was there. They are called street prints. The

company uses infrared to heat the asphalt then they push a template into the

surface and after that they use a colored sealer to give it the brick finish.

A summary of the work and materials are as follows:

1) Culverts 560' new or replaced

2) Under drain 150'

3) Road signs 36

4) Road side mowing 48 miles

5) Tree removal 3 1 - outside contractors

6) Sweeping 32 roads, 9 parking areas

7) Hot top 4,900 tons (Pike Industries)

8) Hot top 200 ton - town's crew

9) Guardrail 760' (BI I Fencing)

10) Fertilizer for fields 13 ton

11) Grass seed 1,700 lbs.
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As always I would like to thank the townspeople, town officials, and

department heads for the continued support, and especially the public

works crew.

Safe traveling!

Respectfully submitted,

Harold Blanchette

Superintendent

Public Works Department
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Town Policy for Winter Maintenance

Snow Plowing

The Town vehicles begin plowing when the snow has accumulated 2 to 3 inches.

After roads are clear, sanding and salting will begin.

Winter Freezing Rain Storm

It is important to note that salt or sand is wasted if applied before rain stops.

There is nothing the Highway Department can do during a freezing rain storm.

However, as soon as the rain stops, salt and sand will be applied to the roads.

Clean Road Policy

The Town of Hopkinton does not have a clean road policy. In other words, all

roads and streets will not be kept completely clear of snow and therefore only

caution can be advised during winter driving. Salt will be used sparingly. Dirt

roads will be sanded, but with ice under the sand, it still makes instant stops

impossible.

Plow Routes

Each plow route is approximately 1 5 miles long and takes 3 to 4 hours to cover.

If plowing is started with two inches of snow, by the time the vehicle finishes

the route 3 to 4 hours later, there could be up to 6 inches of snow on the first

part of the route. Therefore, during a heavy snowstorm, at times, there will be

snow on the roads.
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Town Policy for Winter Maintenance
""^"^

Sidewalks and Town Parking Lots ^^~"

1

.

Parking lots will be plowed after roads have been cleared. Snow might ac-

cumulate several inches before parking lots are plowed.

2. Town sidewalks will be plowed after the storm is over. The individual who
plows the sidewalks also has a plow route. Therefore, no one is available to

plow the sidewalks until the roads are cleared and treated.

3. Sanding Town parking lots will be done when the roads are being treated

after the storm is over.

4. Sanding town sidewalks will be done as needed after roads have been treated.

Each Highway Department employee has a designated road sanding route,

so no one is available to sand sidewalks until after roads have been treated.

5. Some sidewalks cannot be plowed because of their location and width, par-

ticularly if there is substantial snow accumulation. These particular walks

have never been plowed. Some sidewalks that are located at the edge of State

roads have to be closed if there is an abnormal amount of snow.
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Hopkinton Public Works Department=^ Wastewater ==^
2004 Annual Report

The wastewater collection system and treatment plant that was constructed

to serve the Contoocook area will complete twenty years of service in 2005.

Prior to 1985 all of the sewage from the immediate village area went into

the Contoocook River by one route or another. It wasn't a pretty site and the

situation didn't do the nose any favors either on a warm day. The facilities,

which were built with a combination of federal, state, and local funds, have

done their job.

Roughly a quarter of billion gallons of wastewater have been treated and

returned to the Contoocook River. The process is monitored quantitatively

and qualitatively on a daily basis. The Environmental Protection Agency is

responsible for permitting the facility and a report is sent to them monthly with

all the laboratory results necessary to insure that the discharge is in compliance

with applicable permit parameters. The New Hampshire Department of

Environmental Services takes an oversight role and mandates other additional

requirements. They are also reported to on a monthly basis with more detailed

daily testing results. The appropriate state bureaus conduct inspections of the

plant's infrastructure and laboratory procedures annually.

The Hopkinton Wastewater Department Operation and Maintenance

Committee helps provide local oversight.The committee reviews budgets, service

fees, and applications to connect to the system and makes recommendations

to the Hopkinton Board of Selectmen. The committee also studies long-term

maintenance and planning issues.

The major planning issues now in the works are scheduling sludge removal

and evaluating which aeration system improvements are necessary. After

twenty years of operation the plant lagoons need to be cleaned and refurbished.

Financial planning has been ongoing for these projects and hopefully all

remaining details and specifications will be worked out during 2005. The

intention will be to insure another twenty years of cost effective and trouble

free service to the Contoocook community.

Respectfully submitted,

Stephen Clough

Assistant Superintendent

Public Works, Waste
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Hopkinton/Webster
= Municipal Solid Waste Facilities =====

2004 Annual Report

Since the transfer station was put on line in 1989 and the landfill

completely closed in 1 996 the volume of waste, as well as disposal costs, have

steadily increased. Brush and limited amounts of clean wood can be burned

according to permit requirements and fire regulations but everything else that

enters the facilities must be shipped out to other disposal sites. Services have

been expanded to meet resident's needs, reduce expenses, and to become as

environmentally responsible as possible.

The station has accepted tires, appliances, waste oil and batteries for over

a decade. It has also recently started accepting fluorescent light bulbs from

residents. There is an annual Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day that

is hosted by the Town of Henniker and available to residents of Hopkinton

and Webster. The Recycling Committee sponsored two Electronic Collections

in 2004 that were held at the MSW Facilities on weekends and staffed entirely

by volunteers. There was a charge for the electronic disposal but participation

was voluntary. These events were very successful and hopefully a more

comprehensive program can be developed in the future.

There is a rate structure in place but its primary function isn't to generate

revenue from taxpayers. It is environmentally irresponsible to allow free disposal

of items that are in fact expensive to process. It not only sets the facilities

up as a dumping magnet but also sends the message that there are no costs

involved for making poor purchasing decisions. The best approach to waste

management is obviously not to generate it when possible. There is however no

charge for minimum amounts of trash, demolition debris, and metals. Every

June for the past ten years the facilities have also sponsored an Environmental

Appreciation Day at which residents, commercial enterprises excluded, can

dispose of all acceptable items free of charge. As long as you are not remodeling

or generating a large amount of waste for some reason and you are willing to

work within the station's policies there is no reason for residents to spend any

money on disposal fees.

The leaf and yard waste program has collected and composted thousands

of tons of organic wastes. The final product each year is screened and either

given to the public free of charge or used in the maintenance of town ball

fields. All metals disposed of at the facilities are stripped of their more valuable
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components. Aluminum, brass, copper, etc. are separated and marketed to

maximize revenue.

The recycling program has saved the Towns of Hopkinton and Webster

approximately $400,000 in tax expenditures since its inception in 1990. The

infrastructure has been constructed over a period oftwelve years with ten separate

grants, small budget appropriations, and in-house labor. Every ton recycled in

2004 saved the towns over seventy dollars in taxes. The recycling committee has

been actively trying to increase resident participation and encourage businesses

to take advantage of this cost saving, socially responsible program.

Approximately 700 tons of recyclables were sorted, cleaned, baled, or

processed in one fashion or another in 2004. Over 4,500 tons of trash were

packed and shipped to the Wheelabrator Plant in Penacook for incineration.

Over 1,000 tons of demolition debris was loaded into roU-offs and transported

to a licensed landfill for disposal. About 250 tons of bulky metals were shipped

and sold for scrap.

The days when the towns of Hopkinton and Webster could throw their

waste in a hole and bury it are long gone. The operation of The Municipal

Solid Waste Facilities is a little more complicated now. The employees do all the

mowing, trimming, and yard maintenance during the summer. They do all of

the snow removal in the winter. They do all the upkeep on five buildings. They

maintain the truck, the loader, the forklift, the trash trailers, packing equipment,

and all associated mechanical infrastructure. They maintain the landfill cap and

surrounding area which includes mowing, liming, and fertilizing 23 acres as well

as repairing fences, drains, vents, rodent damage, and brush removal.

Nothing is simple anymore. Disposal and recycling policies may seem a

little overbearing to the public at times but there is a method to the madness

that is beyond the employees' control. The facilities are permitted and regulated

by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services which dictates

everything from signage and traffic control to which items can be accepted

and how. Weighmaster licensing is required to operate the scales and full-time

employees must complete operator certification. They are also required to take

annual continuing education. There is a Town Disposal Ordinance, a rate

structure, and general MSW policies that must be adhered to. And of course

there has to be a consciousness of safety issues and emergency planning.

The public must also be served in conjunction with all other operational

duties. Resident stickers have to be checked so that non-taxpayers don't take

advantage of the facilities' comprehensive and primarily free disposal services.
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People must be prompted to keep items properly separated. There are different

costs involved and restrictions on what can be sent where. Recyclables are a

financial bonanza but they must be collected and processed according to market

specifications. Questions must be answered and information provided.

Most people are aware to some extent of the difficulty that employees at the

MSW Facilities experience trying to balance operational concerns and public

demands. Hopefully everyone using the facilities can try to appreciate the efforts

that are being made and show some patience. It takes a little consideration

on everyone's part to make dealing with the public rewarding. Operational

changes are being made on an ongoing basis in an attempt to improve service

while recognizing fiscal restraints.

All residents are strongly encouraged to take advantage of what the

Hopkinton/Webster MSW Facilities have to offer. Disposing of wastes

properly and pitching in to do your part on an individual basis is not only

environmentally responsible but also cost effective. If you haven't been to the

"Town Dump" recently you're definitely missing something.

Respectfully submitted,

Stephen Clough

Assistant Superintendent

Public Works, Waste
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Hopkinton Recreation Department
2004 Annual Report

The Recreation Department has seen a few changes over this past year, the

most significant of which has been that of leadership. Angela Wright moved on

from her position as Recreation Director at the end of April and Robert Mattes

has taken up in her footsteps to continue moving the Recreation Department

forward. I want to thank Angle for the legacy she has left: with the Recreation

Department through the many wonderful programs she worked so hard to

establish such as the senior walking program and the Pre-Teen summer camp,

which were successful because of the hard work she dedicated to the programs.

This past summer was the inaugural summer for the Hopkinton Pre-Teen

camp and it was quite a success. Christopher Mazzone lead four one week

camps designed to teach pre-teens hard and soft life skills as they enter their

teenage years. Kayaking, rock climbing, and backpacking camps were the tools

used to teach these youth aged 11-12, and the response from participants was

wonderful. Chris, Vanessa Minery, and Annie Yonkers were instrumental in

making this camp a wonderful learning tool for young people. We are looking

forward to next summer and the opportunities that are held within it.

There have also been many dedicated volunteers that give so much of their

time on a weekly or seasonal basis. I would like to thank Maris Wofsy for

organizing the adult volleyball games that go on every Sunday night. Thanks

to Natalie Duval for organizing the pick-up soccer games this past fall. Thanks

to Sharon Nail for organizing cross-country ski and snowshoe adventures at

Elm Brook Park. Through your efforts we have been able to offer programs

that get adults more involved in town recreational activities. It is one of the

Recreation Department's goal to expand these programs even more and be able

to offer hikes, trips, and more technical trainings that would allow adults the

opportunity to learn new skills and freshen up some of the old ones.

Another exciting event that took place this fall was the Community Harvest

Festival. With the help of many local organizations and resident participation,

the Hopkinton Recreation Department was able to sponsor it's first ever

Community Harvest Festival and it was a great success. Individuals, families

and organizations came together for an evening of fun that included a chili

cook-off, pie bake-off, horse drawn carriage rides, pumpkin painting, s'mores,

prizes, and more. Because of all of the positive response we received from this

event, we are looking forward to hosting next year's festival and maybe even
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adding other events like it throughout the year. Thanks to all who were able to

volunteer and participate, you made this event truly wonderful.

If you were able to make it to Houston Park, George's Park, or any of the

other fields around town this past summer, you would come across some of the

best playing fields in the state. Thanks go out to Don Houston, Dave Story

and everyone else who spend their hours creating the magnificent fields that

this community plays on. DPW has been working very hard to keep up with

the demanding needs for field space by all of the groups in town. As such they

have been working hard to finish two new playing fields at Houston Park that

will hopefully be ready for play in the fall.

Thanks to all those who have made the Recreation Department successful

during this year. Thanks to the Recreation Committee (Jeff Eitriem, Cindy

Glass, David Jones, Valerie Long, Elizabeth Ridinger, Robert Nadeau, Selectmen

Representative Don Lane, and former members from this year Marlene

Minemier and Louise Carr) for all of the support and guidance that they have

given me and for all of the contributions to the Recreation Department with

ideas, suggestions for better programs, and hands-on involvement.

Finally, special thanks to Barbara Boatwright for taking up the position of

Interim Director in May and especially for all of the wisdom and assistance

she has given to make my transition into this department and community

successful. Having come into this position two weeks before the summer

programs began, I would have found it nearly impossible to have things run

smoothly had Barbara not been there to offer her knowledge and support.

Respectfully Submitted,

Robert C. Mattes

Recreation Director
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^^^ Hopkinton Board of Cemetery Trustees _^^_
2004 Annual Report

The Hopkinton Board of Cemetery Trustees oversees 1 1 cemeteries in

Town and we have burials in 5 cemeteries (Old Hopkinton, New Hopkinton,

Contoocook Village, Stumpfield, and Blackwater). We meet the first Tuesday

of the month at 9:30 a.m. at the Cemetery Office located in the lower part of

the Town Clerk Building in Contoocook from May through December. The

meetings are open to the public. The cemeteries are closed for burials during

the winter months.

We are working on redoing the cemetery maps which has been an ongoing

project for the past two years. We are nearly done with the New Hopkinton

Cemetery. Picture taking of the monuments is also an ongoing project, but

each year we are gaining on the completion of cataloging the stones.

We are planning on revitalizing the roadways in the Blackwater Cemetery

this coming year. They really need to be redefined with new crushed stone and

prep work. Bids have gone out for the work.

The Trustees are working on creating a cemetery trustee booklet answering

questions and explaining the duties for future Trustees.

Lilac plants were added in front of Putney Hill Cemetery and also in front

of the Stumpfield Cemetery.

The trees were trimmed in all of the cemeteries this fall.

The Board belongs to the New Hampshire Cemetery Association which

meets twice a year in various parts of the State. These meetings are always

informative and a nice way for us to see how other cemeteries in the State handle

various situations and what they are doing in regards to their cemeteries.

We also annually attend the State meeting held by the Attorney General's

Office in Concord which keeps us up to date on new State regulations. This,

too, is a very informative meeting.

The sale of lots/plots is handled by the Trustees.

Respectfully submitted,

Sue Adams

Ginny Friberg

Sara McNeil
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j____ Hopkinton Conservation Commission ^^^_.
2004 Annual Report

Once again, the Conservation Commission had a very busy year. The

highhght ofthe yearwas assisting theTown's Open Space Committee in acquiring

three tracts of conservation land. The Commission has been providing money

from the Conservation Fund to pay for appraisals and boundary surveys as well

as providing local expertise in the search for other potential acquisitions. The

lot that was acquired adjacent to Smith Pond Bog was used as a site for a land

protection class as part of the New Hampshire Association of Conservation

Commissions Annual Meeting. The Town's Natural Resource mapping project

was completed and the maps have been quite helpful in highlighting areas

with strong conservation values. The Commission "purchased" a Conservation

Easement on the undeveloped land at the Houston Fields from the Town that

will be held by the Five Rivers Conservation Trust. The monies will be used to

help acquire additional recreation land off of Park Street. Several other Town-

owned conservation easements were monitored by Commission members.

The relatively wet winter of2003-04 prevented the planned timber harvest

on the Hawthorne Lot. It is hoped that the winter of 2004-05 will be cold

enough to reduce the risk of creating mud during the logging operation.

Eighteen students and three teachers from the Concord High School "R.O.P.E."

(Reaching Our Potential in Education) Program constructed a hiking trail to

connect the Kimball Lake trail to New Road, with a short spur to Harold

Martin School. The students also built two footbridges on the trail, along with

a short loop trail to a "Balancing Boulder". The Commission greatly appreciates

their effort and encourages the Townspeople to go take a hike and see their

handiwork. Commission members worked with the Recreation Department

and the Department of Public Works and Highway to lay out trails and foot

paths at the Houston Fields. Wetlands permits were obtained and it is hoped

that the trail connecting Spring Street to the Houston Fields will be finished in

2005.

The Commission sponsored Christina Hurley at a summer conservation

camp. Commission members also provided educational tours of Smith Pond

Bog and took a third grade class from the Harold Martin School on a field trip

at the Kimball Lake Conservation Area, now conveniently located behind their

school.
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The Commission held a joint meeting with the Recyding Committee

in show of support for their efforts. The Commission also reviewed several

Wetland Dredge and Fill applications and proposed developments to assess

impacts on the water resources.

Finally, the Commission would like to again thank the Board of Selectmen

and all other Town Departments and Boards that have helped the Commission

in our various projects and programs.

Respectfully Submitted,

Derek Owen, Chairman

Todd Aubertin

Ron Klemarczyk

Erick Leadbeater

Jed Merrow

Melinda Payson

Lee Wilder
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Hopkinton Economic
=^=^=^=^=^ Development Committee ^^=^^^^

2004 Annual Report

Mission Statement

"Identify strategies to help the Town diversify its tax

base and reduce the residential property tax burden,

where appropriate. Create and maintain a friendly environ-

ment where businesses, both retail and commercial, feel

welcome and appreciated in the Town of Hopkinton."

In 2004 the Economic Development Committee began the New Year by

setting in motion our plan to reach out to businesses in town. As we stated last

year, our hope is that this outreach will enable us to start an ongoing dialogue

to keep us in touch with the concerns of our business community. Thirty-one

(31) letters were mailed in the first quarter of 2004, which were followed up with

calls and visits from Committee members. This initial contact resulted in over 20

visitations to date. Several common issues have surfaced, and upon completion

of the first phase of the program, the Committee will compile a summary, listing

issues and ideas thatwe feel need to be considered and dealt with. We will continue

reaching out to all of the businesses interested in speaking to the Committee and

holding HEDC meetings at several companies which have invited us to do so.

In November the Committee met with Andrew LeMay, Hopkinton's tax

assessor, in order to better understand the intricacies and idiosyncrasies of our

tax base. The small portion of commercial properties in Hopkinton's tax base

is a major focal point of this Committee's efforts.

Our Committee extends gratitude to former members Arnold Coda, Doug
Brown, Jeff Donohoe, and Jeffrey Taylor, for their long service and dedication to

the HEDC. We also extend our welcome to our newest recruit. Glen Ohlund.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mark Bates, Vice Chair Robert Houston

Bruce Ellsworth Susan Leadbeater

David Feller John Madden

Judy Hampe, Chair Glen Ohlund

Lloyd Holmes Jack Ruderman
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Hopkinton/Webster Recycling Committee
2004 Annual Report

Electronics Recycling Collections

Reducing the amount of toxins, such as lead, chlorinated plastic, mercury,

and other heavy metals being released into groundwater or into the air are

important reasons to recycle and properly dispose of old electronics. A TV or

computer monitor can contain as much as five to eight pounds of lead.

Some disposal sites are encouraging municipalities to collect electronics for recycling

to assist in maintaining environmental compliance. The Wheelabrator Incinerator in

Penacook, used by Hopkinton for disposal of solid waste, is one such disposal facility.

During the fall of 2003, the Hopkinton/Webster Recycling Committee

discussed projects for 2004. One ofthe projects discussed included an electronics

recycling event. A spring 2004 electronics collection was scheduled. Due to the

success of the spring collection, a fall collection was also organized.

In recognition of Earth Day, the Committee chose the two weekends

surrounding the April 22""^ holiday (April 17 and 24) to hold the spring event. The

fall collection was scheduled on November 20^*", in recognition ofAmerica Recycles

Day. Fliers were designed and hung around town. Volunteers were used to reduce

the overall cost of the recycling event. A group of students from the high school

called the "Students for the Environment" volunteered for the fall collection.

During the two collections, nearly 200 households, the Hopkinton School

District, Town Hall, and local businesses brought unwanted electronics to the

Hopkinton/Webster Solid Waste Facility for recycling and proper disposal.

Nearly ten tons of electronics were collected for recycling during these two

events. Electronics that were brought to the event included: monitors, TVs,

CPUs, printers, copiers, and "mixed" electronics. Mixed electronics included

items such as VCRs, DVD players, stereos, cell phones, and word processors.

A detailed list ofwhat was collected is provided below:

194 Monitors

29 Televisions

145 CPUs
64 Printers

15 Copiers

80 units of mixed electronics

20 Stereos

94



These types of collections will continue in the future. The next electronics

recycling event will take place in the spring of 2005.

The Hopkinton/Webster Recycling Committee meets on the second

Tuesday of every month at 6:30 pm. Meetings are held in the Local History

Room at the Hopkinton Town Library All residents from Hopkinton and

Webster are encouraged to attend.

Respectfully submitted,

Marc Morgan

Chairperson

Hopkinton/Webster Recycling Committee
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Hopkinton/Webster MSW Facilities

Recycling Income Statement

January 1 to December 31, 2004

Product Weight Revenue Savings*

Aluminum 5.071 Tons $ 4,766.40 $ 238.34

Tin 18.93 Tons $ 373.68 $ 889.71

Glass 167.91 Tons $ 329.75 $7,891.75

Plastic 15.87 Tons $ 5,240.03 $ 745.89

Textiles 2.23 Tons $0 $ 104.81

Electronics 9.77 Tons $0 $459.19

Magazines, 273.68 Tons $16,275.73 $12,862.96

Mixed Paper,

Newspaper

Cardboard 150.38 Tons $ 11,801.95 $ 7,067.86

TOTATS 643.841 Tons $38,787.54 $30,260.51

*Incinerator $37. 1 5/Ton Tipping Fee

Costs $ 9. 8 5/Ton Transportation

$47.00/Ton Savings

Heavy Metals:

Bulk Metals

Separated Metals

TOTALS

Weight

227.97 Tons

2.878 Tons

230.848 Tons

Revenue

$17,297.12

$3,155.20

$20,452.32

Transport,

Rental & Fees

$3,596.65

$3,596.65

Waste Oil: 1,300 Gallons
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Liabilities:

Time Processing l,439Hours $18,419.20

Shipping (Truck Exp & Wages) 13 loads/mixed paper $ 3,972.57

TOTAL LL\BILITIES $22,39

1

,11

Net Income/Savings:

Total Revenue and Savings $69,048.05

Total Liabilities $22,39 1 .77

Net Income and Savings $46,656.28

Total Tons (excluding heavy metals and waste oil) 643.841 Tons

Net Income and Savings per Ton Processed $ 72.47
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Houston Park Facility Committee
2004 Annual Report

At the 1998 Hopkinton Town Meeting, voters approved the

estabUshment of a Capital Reserve Fund to be used for a faciUty to house

the social, recreational and service needs of members of the Hopkinton

community. Since that time, the Board of Selectmen has commissioned

a series of committees to make recommendations about town facilities

and their ability to serve current and future needs, including those of our

increasing senior population. After careful consideration, it became clear

that the best alternative to address these issues would be to take advantage

of the town's existing assets by building a new facility to complement and

utilize the existing large barn at Houston Park. In December 2003, the Board

of Selectmen created the Design and Building Construction Committee,

charging it to "research, design and create a community facility that will

utilize the Houston property."

Situated on 68 acres, the site offers an ideal location. There is room for

growth and a capacity to accommodate a great number and variety of services.

The park is already home to several playing fields, walking trails, a playground,

picnic area and the town library.

Over the past year, the full committee has met twice a month, and

subcommittees more often, to develop a proposal to transform the Houston

Park site into a facility designed to meet the human service, social and

recreational needs ofHopkinton residents of all ages, with particular emphasis

on senior citizens. In addition to its regular meetings, the committee held

two public hearings, on May 6 and July 8, 2004. The final proposal contains

feedback from those hearings as well as information based on projected

demographic data, past studies and ongoing public input. The building plan,

which will be submitted for voter approval at the Town Meeting on Saturday,

March 12, 2005, includes a strategy for funding the facility without placing

an undue burden on Hopkinton taxpayers. Further information about the

proposal and plans for its implementation are contained in a brochure being

mailed to all town residents. There will be a final public hearing on Thursday,

February 3.

We would like to thank all the committee members, representing the

Board of Selectmen, the Budget Committee, the Recreation Committee, and

the Houston Park Committee, as well as a wide range of citizen interests and

abilities, for the time, interest and energy they have given this project: Barbara
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Boatwright, Jane Bradstreet, Louise Carr, Jeff Eitreim, Rachel Hampe, Don
Houston, Glen Ohlund, Seth Shordidge and Ed Taylor. Thanks also to those

who have offered valuable insight as committee advisors: Marilyn Bresaw, Larry

Donahue, Owen French, Edie Houston, Beverly Johnson, John Lavigne, Rob

Mattes and Eric Palson.

Respectfully submitted,

Christine Hamm and Elizabeth Ridinger

Co-Chairs

{

Houston ParkCen
Preliminanj Elevations

NC»TH ELEVATICa>J
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open Space Committee
2004 Annual Report

At the 2003 Town Meeting the citizens of Hopkinton passed a $5,000,000

bond issue for the express purpose of acquiring land or conservation easements

on land "to protect the natural heritage and rural character" of the town.

The warrant article called for the formation of a five-member Open Space

Committee, which the Board of Selectmen appointed in March 2003.

Now in its second year, the Hopkinton Open Space Committee continued

towards the goal of identifying important town land resources with potential

for conservation. After establishing its criteria for land selection and discussing

numerous parcels, the Committee was able to negotiate purchase agreements

with three landowners for the acquisition of 93 total acres of land. The Board

of Selectmen accepted the Open Space Committee's recommendations about

these three parcels and called for a special Town Meeting in September so

citizens could vote on the three proposals.

Town voters overwhelmingly approved the three purchases at the

special Town Meeting, held on September 15, 2004. The total price for

the three parcels was $761,590. This will be financed by a 15-year bond,

which corresponds to an annual tax impact of 13.4 cents per $1,000 of

assessed value. The three parcels are well distributed around town, with one

in Hopkinton Village, one in the Contoocook Water Precinct and one on

Farrington Corner Road. All three parcels will be permanently protected

from development by conservation easements and will be accessible to the

public for passive recreational uses.

In addition to the three projects that were brought to the special Town
Meeting in September, the Open Space Committee has another project very

close to agreement, recommendation to Board ofSelectmen and town vote, and

is in active discussion about an additional property. Both of these parcels are

also in different areas of town than the three that were approved in September.

Additionally, the committee has talked seriously with four other landowners

about possible conservation projects, and has had discussions about and/or

preliminary landowner contact about 16 other parcels. Owners of several other

important parcels will be (re) approached in 2005.

The Open Space Committee generally meets on alternate Wednesday

nights. The meeting dates are posted on the town calendar. Committee

members welcome suggestions from residents about parcels that may be
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important and available for conservation. The Open Space Committee looks

forward to continuing its work in 2005 and anticipates bringing several more

parcels to the voters for approval and acquisition by the Town. The Committee

consists of members Byron Carr, Bill Chapin, Ron Klemarczyk, Bryan Pellerin

and Dijit Taylor, and Selectman representative Don Lane.

Respectfully submitted,

Bryan Pellerin
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Hopkinton Planning Board
2004 Annual Report

The Hopkinton Planning Board (PB) consists of ten members, each of

whom is appointed by the Board of Selectmen for three year terms (or shorter

terms, if appointed to complete an unexpired term). Seven of these members

are regular members (the seventh member is a representative of the Board of

Selectmen), who are expected to sit on all hearings before the PB. The other

three members are alternates, who sit in place of regular members who either

cannot attend a meeting or wish to step down from a particular case.

The Planning Board is authorized to review applications for subdivision,

annexation, lot line adjustment, site plan review, and conditional use permits.

The PB schedules a hearing date, sends notice of that date and the applicant's

intentions to all abutters of the concerned property, and advertises the meeting

and scheduled case in a local newspaper, as well as posting copies of that same

notice in various public places throughout the town. For each hearing the PB

first listens to a presentation by the applicant explaining their request. The PB

then votes on a motion to "accept the application for consideration" based on

whether or not the majority feels that the application is complete. Then, the PB

receives public testimony from boards, commissions, departments, and abutters

or non-abutters that wish to comment on a particular application. If there is

any opposition, the first round of testimony is followed by a rebuttal round,

giving parties on both sides a chance to respond to statements made by the other

side. Once public testimony is closed the PB will deliberate the matter, asking

questions iffiirther information is needed, after which the PB comes to a decision

by voting on a motion to approve, deny or defer the matter to a later date in

order to obtain additional information. Generally, the PB will place conditions

or stipulations on applications that may in some way have an impact.

During the calendar year 2004, the PB processed nineteen (19) apphcations

ofwhich eighteen ( 1 8) were approved with one ( 1 ) application being withdrawn.

The accompanying table shows the breakdown of the applications.

• Karen M. Mayo—Site Plan Review to operate a certified public accountant

office as a home business at property located off Kearsarge Avenue, VR-1

district.

• United Construction, Inc.—Subdivision for annexation purposes with no

new lot created. Properties located off Clement Hill Road, R-3 district.

• A. David Dufauit— Subdivision for annexation purposes with no new lot

created. Properties located off Stonybrook Road, R-2 district.
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TookyVillage Investment Properties, LLC—Five (5) lot cluster subdivision

for the purpose of creating twenty-three (23) detached residential units,

located off Clement Hill Road, R-2 district.

Public Service of New Hampshire—Permission to remove and trim trees

and to cut brush along certain scenic roads.

Theodore Kupper, Provan & Lorber, Inc.—Subdivision for annexation

purposes with no new lot created. Properties located off Pine Street, VB-

1

district.

Sheila Weldon—Two (2) lot subdivision of property located off Hatfield

Road and Moran Road, R-4 district.

Martha Kruse—Site Plan Review to operate a yoga center as a home business

at property located off Stumpfield Road, R-4 district.

Capital Region Health Care Corp.—Site Plan Review to expand the

previously approved medical building housing Family Tree Health Care,

located at off Farrington Corner Road, R-3 district.

Lynn Durand & Jane Sullivan-Durand—Site Plan Review to operate a

fitness establishment, located off Maple Street, M-1 district.

Southworth Milton, Inc.—Site Plan Review to expand parking and outdoor

storage area, located off Maple Street, M- 1 district.

Frank & Lois Mrozek—Subdivision for annexation purposes with no new

lot created. Properties located off Little Frost Road, R-4 district.

Winnepocket Properties, LLC—Five (5) lot subdivision property located

off Kast Hill Road, R-3 district.

Roger & Josephine French—Three (3) lot subdivision of property located

off Clement Hill Road in the R-2 district.

Lamarine Technical Land Services—Two (2) lot subdivision of property

located off Farrington Corner Road, R-3 district.

TDS Telecom—Permission to remove and trim trees along a scenic road.

Herrick Millwork, Inc.—Site Plan Review to allow the rental ofwarehousing

space, located off Burnham Intervale Road, M-1 district.

Excalibur Shelving Systems, Inc.— Site Plan Review to allow the rental of

warehousing space, located off Burnham Intervale Road, M-1 district.

Ronald Klemarczyk—Subdivision for annexation purposes with no new lot

created. Properties located off Farrington Corner Road, R-3 district.
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In addition to review ofapplications, the Planning Board continued the process

of implementation of the Hopkinton Master Plan by proposing amendments

to the Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance. Amendments include an Outdoor

Lighting Ordinance for nonresidential structures, an Architectural Design

Review Ordinance for nonresidential structures, and a maximum gross floor

area for commercial retail stores and restaurants within the Town. Copies of

the Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations and Master Plan are available

at the Town Hall and Town Clerk's Office.

Bruce Ellsworth, Chairman—Term Expires 2006

Timothy Britain, Vice Chairman—Term Expires 2007

Clarke Kidder, Selectmen's Representative—Term Expires 2007

Celeste Hemingson—Term Expires 2005

Jane Bradstreet—Term Expires 2006

Michael Wilkey—Term Expires 2007

Bethann McCarthy—Term Expires 2006

Richard Schoch, Alternate—Term Expires 2006

Edwin Taylor—Term Expires 2005
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Road Committee
2004 Annual Report

The Road Committee had an active year. It is a pleasure working with

our PubUc Works Department as they do a great job in maintaining our

infrastructure and reconstructing our highways so that we have a safe and

efficient highway system. We continued the guardrail replacement and

pavement overlay projects. We hope you all notice how nicely Sugar Hill and

Gould Hill came out. We will make our spring evaluations on the roads to see

what roads should be brought onto the ten-year list.

The development roads have slowed down a little, but we are still looking

over all applications to make sure they are all constructed to the Town's standards

and to see how they impact the surrounding roads.

It is important for everyone to realize how difficult it becomes to keep the

highway system up with the never ending rise in costs from fijel to equipment, but

it is our mission to keep our system in excellent condition and keep costs down.

Also we are researching new products and methods in maintaining our

roads in hopes we can reduce costs and increase longevity of the system, along

with making our roads safer for everyone.

We hope everyone has a safe and smooth ride this year.

Respectfully submitted,

Mark Bates

Chairman
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Hopkinton Zoning Board^^=^^ ofAdjustment =^=^==^
2004 Annual Report

The Hopkinton Zoning Board ofAdjustment (ZBA) is an appeals board

consisting of nine members, each ofwhom is appointed by the Board of

Selectmen for three year terms (or shorter terms, if appointed to complete

an unexpired term) . Five of these members are regular members who are

expected to sit on all hearings before the ZBA. The other four are alternates,

who sit in place of regular members who either cannot attend a meeting or

wish to step down from a particular case.

The ZBA meets on the first Wednesday evening of each month. The ZBA
is authorized by State RSA's to hear four kinds of cases:

Variances

Special Exceptions

Equitable Waivers

Special Use Permits.

Appeals of zoning administrative decisions made by the Town zoning

officials or the Planning Board.

For Variances, which gives relief from the literal restrictions of the

Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance, state statutes require that a majority of the

sitting members find that an application meets all five requirements: (1) That

no decrease in the value of surrounding properties would be suffered, (2) That

granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest, (3) That

by granting the variance, substantial justice would be done, (4) That the spirit

and intent of the Ordinance will not be broken by granting the variance, (5)

That the denial of the variance would result in an unnecessary hardship to the

owner seeking it. Applicants seeking a Use Variance must also prove: (a) that

the zoning restriction as applied to the applicant's property interferes with the

applicant's reasonable use of the property, considering the unique setting of

the property in its environment, (b) That no fair and substantial relationship

exists between the general purpose of the Zoning Ordinance and the specific

restrictions on the property, (c) That the variance would not injure the public

or private rights of others. Applicants seeking an Area Variance must also prove:

(a) That an area variance is needed to enable the applicant's proposed use of the

property given the special conditions of the property, and (b) That the benefit

sought by the applicant cannot be achieved by some other method reasonably

feasible for the applicant to pursue, other than an area variance.

106



For Special Exceptions, nine different requirements apply. The

Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance defines the conditions under which special

exceptions can be granted (for example, to allow a home business as a

secondary use on residential property). For these requirements, a majority

of the sitting members must agree that the intended use satisfies the

requirements defined by the Zoning Ordinance.

For Equitable Waivers to the dimensional requirements of the Zoning

Ordinance, the applicant has to prove to the Board's satisfaction the elements

required by the statute. It is in the nature of a variance, but different

standards apply. The equitable waiver applies to lots or structures that are in

violation of the dimensional requirements (e.g. setbacks, frontage or area)

established by the Zoning Ordinance. It does not apply to use restrictions.

For Appeals of Administrative Decisions, the ZBA moves either to

uphold the administrative decision or to reverse that decision. For such

hearings the majority of sitting members must find they would or would not

have come to the decision that is being appealed.

For Special Use Permits, the ZBA may approve events in the Fair

District that have an anticipated attendance greater than 1000, but no more

than 26,000 people per day. The majority of the Board must find that the

proposed use meets the criteria required in the Zoning Ordinance, which

includes the standards for special exception.

For any of these types of cases the ZBA schedules a hearing date, sends notice

of that date and the applicants intentions to all abutters of the concerned property,

and advertises the meeting and scheduled cases in a local newspaper, as well as

posting copies of the same notice in various public places throughout the town.

For each hearing the ZBA first listens to a presentation by the applicant explaining

why the request should be granted and then from any abutter or afiected citizen

who wishes to speak either in favor of or in opposition to the request. If there is

opposition, the first round of testimony is followed by a rebuttal round, giving

parties on both sides a chance to respond to statements made by the other side. The

ZBA members then deliberate the matter, asking questions if farther information

is needed, after which the ZBA comes to a decision by voting on a motion to

"vote on the application" (either to approve or to deny, with occasional instances

of deferring the matter to a later date in order to obtain additional information).

Citizens who feel aggrieved by the decision have a period of 30 days in which to

file a request for a rehearing, after which the ZBA has a 30-day period in which to

decide whether rehearing of the case is warranted. In the event that a rehearing is

granted, the matter is then treated as a new case.
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During the year 2004, the ZBA processed and approved a total of

seventeen (17) applications. The accompanying table shows the breakdown.

Of the seventeen (17) applications, fourteen (14) applications were approved,

two (2) applications were denied, and one (1) application was withdrawn.

Variances:

Capital Region Health Care Corp.—Expansion of previously approved

medical building housing Family Tree Health Care, Farrington Corner Road,

R-3 district.

Sheila Weldon—Subdivision with one lot having insufficient acreage and

frontage, Hatfield Road, R-4 district.

Lamarine Technical Land Services—^Addition to a non-conforming resi-

dence, Gould Hill Road, R-2 district.

Sandra Christensen & James Hersey, Jr.—^Addition to a non-conforming

residence. Perch Lane, R-2 district.

Beverly Beckett—^Addition with less than the required side setback. Tucker

Drive, R-3 district.

Laidlaw Education Services—Temporary trailer at the school bus parking

lot, Maple Street, M-1 district.

Dan & Kelly Luce—Conversion from multiple commercial uses to a multi-

family residence use, Burnham Intervale Road, M-1 district.

Harry & Carol Benson—Reconstruction and enlargement of a non-con-

forming cottage. Trout Way, R-2 district.

Marcia & Perley Strout—^Addition to a non-conforming cottage. North

Shore Drive, R-2 district.

Dan Luce—Conversion from multiple commercial uses to a multi-family

residence use, Burnham Intervale Road, M-1 district.

Special Exceptions:

Karen M. Mayo—Operate a certified public account office as a home busi-

ness, Kearsarge Avenue, VR-1 district.

Martha Kruse—Operate a yoga center as a home business, Stumpfield Road,

R-4 district.

Lynn Durand & Jane Sullivan-Durand—Operate a fitness establishment.

Maple Street, M-1 district.
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• Katherine Browall—Conversion of residence into a two-family dwelling,

Pine Street, VB-1 district.

Equitable Waivers:

• McAllister Construction Services, LLC—Waiver from Section 8.6.4 (b)

Cluster Dimensional Requirements, side setback requirement 25 -feet. Snow-

shoe Trail, R- 1 district.

Special Use Permits:

• Hopkinton State Fair—^Amateur radio and computer flea market, sponsored

by a non-profit organization known as the Simadi Shrine Club.

• Hopkinton State Fair—^Annual Sheep & Wool Festival, sponsored by a non-

profit organization known as the New Hampshire Sheep & Wool Festival

Committee.

The Board wishes to thank the Selectmen, Planning Board and residents for

their cooperation during 2004.

Janet Krzyzaniak, Chairman—Term Expires 2006

Charles Koontz—Term Expires 2005

George Langwasser—Term Expires 2007

Toni Gray—Term Expires 2005

Carolyn Hackwell—Term Expires 2006

Patricia Ayers, Alternate—Term Expires 2006

Tony Lamarine, Alternate—Term Expires 2005

William Horsfall, Alternate—Term Expires 2005
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Capital Area
= Mutual Aid Fire Compact =i

2004 Annual Report

The following report is prepared for the Capital Area Fire Compact's Board

of Directors as a general summary of activities for the calendar year 2004. This

report is also forwarded to the governing bodies of the Compact's member

communities for informational purposes.

We welcomed the Town of Deering Fire Department as a new member to

the Capital Area Fire Compact in June. Deering provides fire and rescue service

to its community under the direction of Fire Chief Arnold Anderson. Upon
completion of communications equipment conversions, dispatch service began

on October 5, 2004.

With the addition ofDeering, the Compact now provides service to nineteen

member communities encompassing 675 square miles of area with a resident

population of 109,870. Mutual aid response is given to and received from several

other communities and mutual aid districts. Delivery ofemergency service varies

daily by community, based on tourism, special events, weather, and commercial

activity.

Fire and Emergency Medical dispatch service is provided by the City

of Concord Fire Department's Communications Center with six fiill-time

dispatchers under the direction of dispatch supervisor Captain Ernest Petrin.

All dispatchers participate in telecommunications training courses. Dispatched

incidents in 2004 increased to 16,107, approximately 6.5% above the previous

year. A detailed report by community is attached.

Due to increased call volume and activity in dispatch, the Compact with the

City of Concord have reviewed staffing requirements in Fire Alarm. Current

authorized staffing in 2004 is one Dispatcher Supervisor and six shift schedule

Dispatchers. We have recognized for some time that staffing would need to be

addressed. The Board of Directors in October 2004 unanimously agreed to

support the addition of two dispatchers in 2005 to provide two dispatchers on

duty at all times.

A major improvement to the communications link between the Fire Alarm

dispatch center and one ofour main transmitters at Mt. Kearsarge was completed

in the fall of 2004. We have been able to tie in to the State microwave link that

provides a high quality and redundant communications channel. The quality

and clarity of the signal is much improved with greater reliability.
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The Chief Coordinator responded to 134 mutual aid incidents in 2004, and

handles the administrative functions ofthe Compact. He continues to participate

on several state and regional committees that affect mutual aid operations. As an

active member of the NH First Responder Radio Interoperability Committee, I

can report that all Compact Departments have or will receive new digital mobile

radios for their fire apparatus and emergency ambulances through the Homeland

Security funding initiative, at little or no direct local cost. The second phase

of the program will address portable communications. All communities in

New Hampshire are receiving digital communications equipment for Fire and

Emergency Medical Services that will provide radio interoperability capability

with other public safety agencies.

The Compact 2004 operating budget was $600,578. All Compact

operations, including the ChiefCoordinator's position, office, command vehicle,

and dispatch services are provided through this budget. Funding by the member

communities is based on a combination of property values and population. We
actively pursue any grant funding.

The following members served the Compact in 2004 in the following

positions:

President: Chief Paul Welcome, Webster

Vice President: Chief Stewart Yeaton, Epsom

Secretary: Past Chief Peter Russell, Hopkinton

Treasurer: Firefighter John R. Burton, Bow
Chief Coordinator: Chief Richard E. Wright, Loudon

Executive Committee: Chief Paul Welcome, Pres., Webster

Chief Stewart Yeaton, V. Pres., Epsom

Chief Richard Brown, Warner

Chief Leonard Deane, Pittsfield

Chief Harold Paulsen, Pembroke

Chief Edwin Bowne, Salisbury

Chief H. Dana Abbott, Bow

Dispatch Committee Chair:

Training Committee Chair:

Chief Harold Paulsen, Pembroke

Asst. Chief Richard Pistey, Bow

Central NH HazMat Team Chief: Battalion ChiefWilliam Weinhold,

Concord Fire Dept.
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The Compact Training Committee chaired by Assistant Chief Dick Pistey,

with members Deputy Chief Mike PavegHo and Deputy Chief Shawn Mitchell

assisted all departments in hosting at least one mutual aid training exercise

during the year. Mutual aid drills involve several departments and test the system

capabilities in fire suppression, emergency medical, mass casualty, hazardous

materials, incident management, and personnel safety. We thank the Training

Committee for their continuing support to the Compact.

The Central New Hampshire HazMat Team, comprised of all Capital Area

and Lakes Region members continues to train bi-weekly and responds to 54

communities in our combined coverage area. The team operates with three

response units and will welcome personnel interested in joining, training, and

operating with the team. Funding has been approved through a Homeland

Security grant for a "new" Hazmat response vehicle to replace a used 1989 unit

and will be delivered in early 2005. We extend our thanks and appreciation to

all team members for their willingness to respond to these emergencies. We also

receive some grant funds for education, training, and to support data collection

of hazardous materials inventories reported by facilities in our operating area.

We encourage all departments to send representatives and actively participate

in all Compact meetings. Your input is needed on all issues and your members

need to be informed of Compact activities and planning.

Thanks to all departments for your great cooperation.

Please contact any Compact officer or the Chief Coordinator if we may be of

assistance.

Respectfully submitted,

Dick Wright, Chief Coordinator

Capital Area Fire Compact
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Central NH Regional
^^""^^"""^^

Planning Commission
^^"^^^^^""

2004 Report

The Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commission (CNHRPC)
is an association of 20 communities in Merrimack and Hillsborough Counties

established under RSA 36. CNHRPC provides a variety of planning services

to its members, including consultations on planning issues; planning research;

sample ordinances, regulations, and planning documents; access to Census

information and other data sources; grant information; review and comment

on planning documents; development review; and educational programs.

Membership also entitles a community to affordable planning services such as

master planning assistance, geographic information systems (CIS) mapping,

and other land use and transportation planning-related assistance.

In 2004, CNHRPC staff assisted the Town of Hopkinton with the

following:

• Worked with subcommittee to produce the Town's Natural Hazard

Mitigation Plan

• Provided consultation to the Planning Board on general planning topics

such as

• Zoning Ordinance language

• Information on collection and storage of solid waste

• Information on the uses of build out analysis

• Digitized a CIS layer of the Hopkinton Floodplain

• Provided a current land use map to Hopkinton Village Precinct for use in

their Master Plan update

• Conducted traffic counts as requested

• Conducted a Road Inventory using GPS

• Staff prepared maps and met with the town regarding the forecast year 2030

housing and employment figures for the regional transportation model

In addition to the local services described above, in 2004 the CNHRPC
provided the following services to Hopkinton as part of regional activities:

• Held training sessions related to Planning Board process and development

review procedures.
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Coordinated meetings of the CNHRPC Regional Resource Conservation

Committee (R2C2). The R2C2 seeks to bring representatives of each of the

region's communities together to work on conservation issues that affect the

overall region.

Hosted educational regional workshops on basic planning procedures.

Conducted traffic counts throughout the region.

Organized and hosted meetings of the CNHRPC Transportation Advisory

Committee (TAC).

Continued the update and expansion of the regional transportation model.

The transportation model will be an integral component of the 1-93 Bow to

Concord Transportation Planning Study.

Provided assistance to municipalities, groups and interested individuals

regarding the Transportation Enhancements (TE) and Congestion

Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) programs.

Provided continuing technical assistance to the Upper Merrimack River

Local Advisory Committee and the Contoocook North Branch Local

Advisory Committee.

Provided assistance to CNHRPC member towns regarding National Flood

Insurance Program (NFIP) participation and compliance.

Maintained and updated the www.nharpc.org website of statewide local

census data and statistics.

Assisted local housing and childcare advocacy groups through funding

provided by the Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA).

For additional information, please contact the CNHRPC staff or your

representative to the Commission, Clarke Kidder, or visit us on the internet at

www.cnhrpc.org.
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Concord Regional Solid Waste /

Resource Recovery Cooperative -

2004 Annual Report

We are happy to report to all member communities that 2004 marked our

fifteenth complete year of successful operations. Some items of interest follow:

The 2005 budget reflects a tipping fee of $38.65 per ton. This represents an

increase of $1.50/ton.

A total of 146,451 tons of Co-op waste was delivered to the Wheelabrator

facility this year. This represents a decrease of20 tons from 2003. This was only

the second time in fifteen years that the delivered tonnage actually decreased

from the previous year.

A total of 63,475 tons of ash were delivered to the Franklin ash monofill

for disposal. The ash landfill continues to operate very well. Phase III Stage V
is being filled at this time. Phase IV construction is planned for 2005. Phase IV

will provide disposal capacity through 2009.

Negotiations with Wheelabrator concerning the extension of the Service

Contract are in progress.

Preliminary planning continues for permitting a new landfill in Canterbury.
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Concord Regional Solid Waste /

Resource Recovery Cooperative =

2004 Budget

1. Wheelabrator Concord Company Service Fee $2,654,805

2. Rebates and Reconciliation 69,325

3. Bypass disposal Cost Reserve 224,000

4. Franklin Residue Landfill

a. Operation and Maintenance $ 942,586

b. Expansion Sinking Fund 2,000,000

c. Closure Fund 94,000

d. Long Term Maintenance Fund 26,000

Total $ 3,062,586

$ 3,062,586

5. Cooperative Expenses, Consultants & Studies 437,732

TOTAL BUDGET $ 6,448,448

6. Less: Interest, surplus, recycled tons and over GAT -1,125,000

Net to be raised by Co-op Communities $5,323,448

2005 GAT of 137,743 and Net Budget of $5,323,448 =

Tipping Fee of $38.65 per ton
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Contoocook Riverway Association

2004 Annual Report

The vision was simple. . ..a restored railroad depot in a park along the banks of the

Contoocook River with a bandstand ... a public gathering place for our community.

While the vision was simple, its aggregate components were numerous and complex. Pri-

vate land had to be acquired, development plans that met competing demands prepared,

historic and architecmral research needed to be completed, and substantial funds had to

be raised through donations and grants. Through the continued support and financial

generosity ofour Town's residents, the vision is being realized. We thank you.

The land along the Contoocook River, once abandoned, is now a public

riverfront park where a bandstand prominently is situated for the enjoyment of

our community. Our Town Band had their first summer concert series here along

with local talent also enjoying the venue. A brick walkway leads to the bandstand

so that all of our residents may enjoy it. The Depot's deteriorated roof, once an

eyesore in disrepair, has been replaced with new sheathing and wooden shingles,

and the exterior facades facing the village have been repaired and painted with

the colors of the Boston and Maine Railroad of the turn of the century.

Our next challenge is the restoration of the Depot's interior slated to begin

this spring.

Working closely with the State Historic Preservation Office, the interior ofthe

Depot will be restored to the condition as it appeared in the early 1900's when it

served as the gateway to our village. Many of the interior features that were added

to the building's interior have already been removed in anticipation of restoring

the bead board ceiling and walls that once welcomed travelers. The octagonal sta-

tion master's office will be restored to include to interior ticket windows; one that

served the larger waiting room that served all of the general public, and a second

to a smaller waiting room for women who may have been traveling alone with

children. Oak floors will replace the odd collection of vinyl tile and carpeting,

and exterior doors and windows will be restored to their original location. WTiile

simple electrical lights ofthe period will illuminate its interior, visitors will be able

to enjoy modern plumbing facilities of the present era. Several propane pot-belly

stoves will replicate those coal fired ones of a previous time. The Depot will be

eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places.

Much has been accomplished; yet, more remains to be completed. With

the community's continued support, the vision can be fulfilled. We invite folks

who may wish to help with the efforts ahead to contact us. We thank all who

have helped us come this far.
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Hopkinton Community Center
2004 Annual Report

As always, the Center thanks all its dedicated staff, instructors and volunteers

for their support and flexibility; you are "the Center", and thank you for another

wonderful year. The Center also thanks the Town of Hopkinton and all its citi-

zens for their continued support through donations, gifts and especially through

the yearly tax contribution. Your private support as well as the annual $15,000,

enables the Community Center to maintain historic Columbia Hall, defray in-

surance costs, and keep the doors open and the building in use by many town

organizations.

Again many thanks and wishes for another great year.

Respectfully Submitted,

The Hopkinton Community Center

Board of Directors and Nini Allen
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Hopkinton Community Center
"""""""""

2004 Financial Report

REVENUE PRODUCING PROGRAMS
*Preschool-ages 3 to 5

*Ballet-ages 5 and up

*Karate-preschool to adult

*Performing Arts-grades 2 through 6

* Aerobics - Adults, teens

*Tai-Chi-Adults

*Youth Basketball-grades 3 through 8

*Major League Soccer Camp-ages 4 through 13

*Hershey Track and Field-ages 9 through 14

*Out of School Suspension Program

NON REVENUE PROGRAMS (Services)

*Senior Luncheons

*Blood Pressure Screening

*Community Service Opportunities

*Senior to Senior program

*Yard Clean-up Days

*Holiday Baskets

*Community Assistance Resource

SPECL\LS

*The "Almost Dinner" Theatre in the Square,

*Strawberry Festival, Intergenerational Art Show
*Preschool Halloween party

"IN HOUSE" ORGANIZATIONS

*Dial-A-Ride

*Respite Care

*Food pantry

*High School/Middle School dances and concerts
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Hopkinton Community Center

2004 Financial Report

Revenue Expenses Salary Scholarship

Town of Hopkinton $15,000.00

Donations $15,375.00

Membership $6,080.00

Sports $7,050.00 $4,742.00 $450.00

Seniors $1,842.00 $2,687.00

Preschool $33,151.00 $1,203.00 $21,667.00 $10,110.00

Aerobics $5,198.00 $3,476.00

Karate $6,163.00 $3,723.00 $466.00

60/40 Specials $4,699.00 $3,150.00 $3,150.00 $560.00

Misc $1,990.00 $588.00

Fundraising $12,832.00 $3,751.00

HSD $10,825.00 $6,481.00

Payroll Taxes $3,903.00

Administration Wages $23,877.00

Maintenance Wages $4,340.00

Building Repairs $6,800.00

Maintenance $2,248.00

Office $1,155.00

Postage $520.00

Telephone $975.00

Lease $493.00

Workman's Comp. $827.00

Building Ins. $5,118.00

Health Ins. $7,695.00

Fuel/Oil/Propane $3,487.00

Electric $1,755.00

Water/Sewer $376.00

State Unemployment $0.00

Totals $120,205.00 $51,473.00 $66,714.00 $11,586.00
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Hopkinton Rescue Squad Report

2004 was a busy and productive year for the Hopkinton Rescue Squad. We
have had excellent and enthusiastic participation from all ofour members. Our

membership continues to grow with its two newest members, Terry Blaser and

Sarah Taylor, our first female volunteer.

Not only has our membership grown, but so has our knowledge and

safety.

The squad took advantage of several essential training opportunities this

year as well. These trainings included extensive ice rescue training and advanced

extracation courses.

Thanks to the generous donations we received from our community, we

were able to improve upon both the interior and exterior of our building. We
were able to update our SCUBA equipment to better aide us in water rescue.

In addition we were also able to train two more of our volunteer members

to be licensed SCUBA divers, Mike Shalfont and Sarah Taylor.

As the Captain of the 2004 Hopkinton Rescue squad, I would like to take

this opportunity to speak on behalf of the entire volunteer membership and

thank everyone in our community who has made our training and updates

possible through their support and donations.

Respectfully submitted,

Jamie R Schoch

Captain
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Hopkinton Rotary Club
2004 Annual Report

"I am changing people's lives because I am a Rotarian."

Where else can you find these opportunities? The Hopkinton Rotary Club is one of

3 1 ,000 Rotary clubs located in 1 66 countries. There are 1 .2 million ofus who are your

neighbors, your fi-iends, your customers and your clients. Rotarians develop community

service projects that address many of todays most critical issues. We support programs

for youth, educational opportunities and international exchange programs.

This year we are celebrating Rotary International's 100 years ofservice. With

the approval ofthe Hopkinton Board ofSelectmen and designed byThree Season

Landscaping, the Hopkinton Rotary Club will be sprucing up the Civil War

Park in the center of Hopkinton Village with additional plantings, walkways,

benches and repair to the stonewalls.

Most of the money we contribute comes from fund-raising projects: our

annual Golf Tournament, the Hopkinton Historic Calendar sales, selling of

advertisements and programs for the NH Highland Games, and the annual

Nordic Ski Race. From your support, we generally return 80% directly back

to the local community, with 20% going to international causes. We have en-

abled students to expand their knowledge through the $10,000 of scholarships

we awarded last past spring as well as to assist a couple of students to attend

outward-bound camp programs during the summer. We sponsor inbound and

outbound exchange students with other countries. We gave a $23,000 Ambas-

sadorial Scholarship for post graduate studies in peace and conflict resolution.

We have assisted needy families, fire victims, hurricane and tsunami victims and

others who are in need. We are about making a difference!

We would like to thank the host families for hosting our exchange students,

and you the Town of Hopkinton, for your continued support of our activities.

Our meetings are held everyWednesday morning at 7: 1 5AM in the Parish House

of the First Congregational Church in Hopkinton Village. If you would like a

part of our organization, please feel welcome to visit us at one of our meetings,

or check our website at www.hopkintonrotary.org.

Respectfully submitted, r-^fcl^*^^

H. Bruce Salsbury >pC>©<0]
President, 2004 - 2005 ^^^
Hopkinton Rotary Club
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Hopkinton State Fair Association

2004 Annual Report

The 89th annual Hopkinton State Fair was held September 2nd through

September 6th, 2004. We had excellent weather and our estimated attendance

of over 120,000 was well distributed over our five days.

Events this year included agriculture exhibits, livestock shows, horse and oxen

pulling, as well as farm and garden tractor pulling. Our over 5,000 individual

exhibits received over $70,000 in premiums. Our exhibitors provide a showcase

of the best in agriculture and home arts. Daily exhibits and demonstrations oc-

curred at our Morrill Family Farm Museum, our Petting Farm and the Maple

Sugar House.

Our Grandstand events began Thursday night with the return ofThe Free-

style MX.com Extreme Motorcycle Tour. Friday night featured a Woodsmen
show with several professional competitors. Our Saturday and Monday night

Demolition Derbies again drew large crowds and fierce competition. The Sun-

day night NTPA Grand National Truck and Tractor Pull was one of our best

shows ever, with the best trucks and tractors in North America competing on

our track.

Seasonal events began with the Hopkinton Rotary Club Nordic Ski Race

in February and ended with the New Hampshire Professional Drivers Associa-

tion, "Drive for Children," in October. Between these two events over 40 other

events occurred at the fairgrounds. Most of these events were sponsored by and

benefited non-profit organizations. The New Hampshire Highland Games

were held again in September. This is a three day cultural event. Celebrating

their 29th year, spectators were treated to competitions, demonstrations, and

traditional foods from Scotland.

This past year we also supported the Hopkinton High School graduating

class of 2004 by hosting their graduation on the fairgrounds in the Durgin

Arena. It was a very successful ceremony and may be the beginning of a new

tradition. Our main parking lot continues to be the location of lacrosse fields

for the teams of Hopkinton throughout the summer and in the winter the lot is

the home of the Hopkinton Cross Country Skiing course. Our facility provides

the cross country course for several JV and Varsity meets. The Town Public

Works Department and Recreation Department have once again turned our

horse show ring into a large skating rink. This is located just inside our yellow

gate on Park Avenue and is open to the public.
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We look forward to the continuation of a positive working relationship

with the citizens and organizations within our town of Hopkinton. The dates

of the 90th Hopkinton State Fair are September lst-5th, 2005. Please feel free

to contact us at 746-4191 or refer to our website: www.hsfair.org.

Respectfully submitted,

David W. Jones

President, HSF Board of Directors
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Hopkinton Woman's Club
2004 Annual Report

Our Mission: To unite a community ofwomen to address the needs of our

town through sharing our time, knowledge, and talents, and for nonpartisan

and nonsectarian fellowship.

In 2004, the Hopkinton Woman's Club (HWC) continued to address the

needs of our community through the following service projects: In February,

we served a delicious lunch to our senior friends at the Community Center. We
provided sandwiches, soups and snacks at the town election, the primary election,

and the presidential election. In early November, we held a food drive and a cold

weather outerwear drive. In December, we hosted the Christmas Tree Lighting

and provided hot cocoa and treats for those attending the annual event.

The HWC collected and distributed $10,250 in Community Scholarships

among 1 8 local students to further their education. The Community Scholar-

ships are created from annually donated funds from the community.

Contributions from our 2004 Community Outreach Funds were made to

the following organizations and projects: Contoocook Valley Counseling, Harold

Martin Playground Fundraiser, Hopkinton Boys and Girls Club, Hopkinton

Dial-A-Ride, Hopkinton Food Pantry, Hopkinton High School Project Graduation,

Val Chittim, Linda Dunning,

Alex Lawrence, Glenna Goodman,

Leah Randall and Melisa Staples

all listening carfully at the

Holiday Gathering.

Katy Thesing (Director),

Roxanne Benzel (Vice President),

and Sue Davis preparefor a

Gourmet Group Dinner.
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Hopkinton Respite Care, Hopkinton Senior Center, HWC Welcome Group,

Kids Vote NH, Maple Street Playground Fundraiser, and REACH.

HWC has launched a Matching Funds Cookbook Campaign. The Cookbook

Campaign promotes our Stone Walls and Warm Hearths -The Inns and Outs of

Eating in New Hampshire cookbook published by the Hopkinton Woman's Club.

For every cookbook sold, HWC will contribute a match on the profit ofthe sale to

Community Outreach. The goal is to sell 750 cookbooks between April 1 , 2004

and April 1, 2005. Several events are being planned throughout the 2004-2005

year to promote the Matching Funds Cookbook Campaign. Anyone interested

in purchasing a cookbook can call 1-866-HWC-COOK.

For the first time ever, the Hopkinton Woman's Club organized a team to

participate in the Concord area Making Strides against Breast Cancer Walk.

The 35 HWC team members raised over $4,400.

The HWC also organized a number of events and activities to promote our

mission and focus on fellowship. We always welcome any woman to join us. In

addition to the general club events, the following focus groups are active on an

ongoing basis: AIDS Project, Art and Artists, Bulb Sales, Cookbook Market-

ing and Sales, Gourmet, Needlecraft, Outing Club, Sophisticated Singles, and

Welcome to Town. Focus Groups can be started by any member at any time.

If you'd like information about The Hopkinton Woman's Club or if you

have suggestions for Community Outreach Contributions, please contact us

toll free at 1-866-492-2665 or write to PO Box 24, Contoocook.

Respectfully submitted.

Tammy Clay

President

Tamra Craig (Newsletter Designer)

y

Tammy Clay (President)

y

Glenna Goodman (Event Hostess)

y

and Pat Smith (Event Coordinator)

at the Holiday Gathering
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New Hampshire Antiquarian Society

20043 Annual Report

Although this is the first time the New Hampshire Antiquarian Society has

appeared in the Annual Town Report, the Society has been in existence since

1859, when it was founded by three Hopkinton residents. At first known as

"The Philomathic Club," NHAS was incorporated under its current name in

1875. In 1943 it was granted tax exempt status. Currently, the Antiquarian

Society is a not-for-profit organization with over 350 members, supported by

dues and donations. Membership is open to the public.

The purpose of the New Hampshire Antiquarian Society is to preserve the

history of the Town ofHopkinton, which includes the two "villages" ofHopkinton

and Contoocook. Thanks to diligent collecting by the earliest members, and

continued donations by generous townspeople, the Society currently owns

over 2500 artifacts, nearly 700 books, and a room filled with letters, diaries,

photographs, and other paper ephemera. Nearly all of these items pertain to the

history of the town, which was founded in 1765.

Each year, the Society runs over a dozen events, all open to the public, and

most without an admission charge. In 2004 there were programs devoted to

researching historic properties, fishing in New Hampshire, and traditional crafts.

In addition, there were four children's programs, a sale of local plants, and a

band concert on the front lawn by the "Fountain Square Ramblers." The sum-

mer exhibit featured photographs of Hopkinton taken over a two-year period

by resident Bill Finney. A smaller exhibit showcased china donated by Elizabeth

Putney Winger, and portraits from the NHAS collection.

As the historical society for the town, NHAS performs many civic duties.

In 2004, all grade four students from Maple Street School toured Main Street

in Hopkinton as part of their annual Art and Science Field Day program.

Numerous high school students came to research old files for their study of lo-

cal history. Students in grades K-6 received School Days, a newsletter (published

three times a year) ofHopkinton history. Many residents came to research their

historic homes. In addition, the Society fielded requests from people all over

the country who were searching for their Hopkinton "roots." The Rotary Club

borrowed vintage photos for their annual calendar, and surveyors came to look

at old town maps in an attempt to resolve property lines. All of these services

were provided free of charge, as a service to the community.

The Antiquarian Society, located in the William H. Long Memorial Build-

ing at 300 Main Street in Hopkinton Village, is open on Thursdays and Fridays
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from 9-3, and Saturdays from 9-1. The Society also owns Chase Park, with a

garden and a place to sit. The park is located across from the Cracker Barrel

Store in Hopkinton. NHAS welcomes all members of the community to visit

and learn more about the history of their town.

Respectfully submitted,

Elaine Loft

Director
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Northeast Resource

Recovery Association (Co-op)

2004 Annual Report

The Northeast Resource Recovery Association (Co-op) is a pro-active, non-

profit working with its members to make their recycling programs strong, efficient

and financially successfiil. The Co-op offers its members the following services:

COOPERATIVE MARKETING: The Co-op works to pool the recyclables

of its members to secure stable and competitive markets.

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING: Again, by taking advantage of "power

in numbers", the Co-op is able to offer supplies and equipment commonly used

in the collection and processing of recyclables at reduced rates.

EDUCATION AND NETWORKING OPPORTUNITIES: Decision

makers, coordinators and operators oftransfer stations/recycling centers are faced

with the constant changes in regulations, market specifications and pricing. The

Co-op works to keep its members informed with the latest trends, programs and

laws through the annual conference, workshops, monthly "Marketing Committee"

meetings and technical assistance.

Through the commitment of many members, the Co-op has had another

great year. Membership is on the increase with a year end total of357. Member's

technical assistance requests for minor issues, such as how to produce heavier

recyclable bales as well as more in depth issues such as complete recycling facility

design, keep our member services representatives always busy.

The School Recycling CLUB, a fun and innovative way to encourage kids

to be active recyclers, boosts a membership of 86,880 children from 182

schools. An US Environmental Protection Agency grant helped fund the

club's development of a student recycler peer matching program. The CLUB
also received support from Public Service ofNew Hampshire (PSNH) by being

selected a Manchester Monarchs PSNH Power Play participant.

US Department ofAgriculture, Rural Development Solid Waste Management

Program has once again chosen the Co-op for grant funding. This has allowed

the Co-op the needed funds for expanding programs, for example the new, very

popular equipment maintenance program ofwhich many Co-op members have

already taken advantage.
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Report of the Forest Fire Warden ^__^^_"^^^^^
and State Forest Ranger

"""^^^^

Your local Forest Fire Warden, Fire Department, and the State ofNew Hamp-
shire Division of Forests & Lands cooperate to reduce the risk of wildland fires in

New Hampshire. To help us assist you, contact your local Forest Fire Warden or Fire

Department to find out if a permit is required before doingANY outside burning.

A fire permit is required for all outside burning unless the ground is completely

covered with snow. The New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services

also prohibits the open burning of household waste. Citizens are encouraged to

contact the local fire department or DES at 1-800-498-6868 or www.des.state.nh.us

for more information. Safe open burning requires diligence and responsibility. Help

us to protect New Hampshire's forest resources. For more information contact the

Division of Forests & Lands (603) 271-2217, or online at www.nhdfl.org.

This last year was fairlywet throughout the spring and summer months, however

we finished the season with an active fall fire season. In order to meet an increased

demand for services, the Forest Protection Bureau was reorganized into three regions

with smaller Forest Ranger Districts and over the last several years we have added

two Forest Rangers. The fifteen state fire towers were the first to report on many
fires throughout the state and they completed many other projects on the low fire

danger days. The state implemented a program called Tower Quest to help citizens

learn about fire towers and the need to protect New Hampshire's forest resources.

The United States celebrated Smokey Bear's 60th birthday in 2004, and celebrations

were held throughout the state. Please help Smokey Bear, your local fire department

and the state's Forest Rangers by being fire smart and fire safe!

AAXUA
ONLYYOU CAN PREVENT WILD LAND FIRES
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2004 FIRE STATISTICS
(Allfires Reported thru November 18, 2004)'

m Number of Fires Acres

TOTALS BY COUNTY
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Causes OfFires
Reported

Arson 15

Campfire 4

1

Children 12

Smoking 19

Debris 201

Railroad 1

Equipment 5

Lightning 5

Misc.* 163

Total Fires TotalAcres

2004 462 U7

2003 374 100

2002 540 187

2001 942 428

('^'Misc: power lines, fireworks, electricfences, etc.)
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UNH Cooperative Extension
"

2004 Annual Report

One in four New Hampshire residents took advantage of at least one

University ofNew Hampshire Cooperative Extension program last year.

Our programs offer informal education in forest stewardship, parenting,

family finances, food safety, agriculture, home gardening, 4-H (including clubs,

camps and after school programs) for children and teens, nutrition education

for low income families, strategic planning and leadership development skills

for community groups.

County extension educators work extensively with towns and school districts

- organizing and advising after-school programs, helping school and town ground-

skeepers maintain athletic fields and landscaped areas, providing guidance to town

planners and boards on current use and other land use issues. Because studies show

that open space helps keep property taxes low, extension staffprovides education

to forest landowners and commercial farmers that helps keep their enterprises

profitable, while preserving open space and protecting natural resources.

Merrimack County Extension provides fact sheet notebooks to all town

libraries and produces monthly "Coffee Chat" radio segments which offer

information to residents throughout the station's listening area.

UNH Cooperative Extension's Strengthening Communities Initiatives

offers community leaders, grassroots organizers and community development

specialists an opportunity for professional growth.

UNH Cooperative Extension operates a statewide toll-free Info Line at our

Family, Home & Garden Education Center, staffed Monday through Friday,

9:00 AM - 2:00 PM (1-877-398-4769). Last year, the Info Line handled more

than 1,000 requests from Merrimack County residents. Extension also distributes

a wide range of information from our Web site: www.extension.unh.edu.

Finally, UNH Cooperative Extension trains and supports a large corps of

volunteers: 4-H leaders, master gardeners, wildlife coverts, community tree

stewards, water quality monitors, parent mentors and others who extend the

reach of Extension programs into many domains of New Hampshire life. If

volunteer opportunities interest you, please call Merrimack County Extension

office at 225-5505 or 796-2151, or stop by the office at 315 Daniel Webster

Highway in Boscawen next to the County Nursing Home on Route 3.
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2004 Legislative Report

The 2005 legislative session is especially noteworthy for Hopkinton, with

our town's own John Lynch in the Governor's Office. The election of a new

Speaker of the House with bipartisan support has further contributed to an

atmosphere of cooperation and has given the members of the House renewed

hope that Democrats and Republicans will be able to work together to make

progress on the many challenges facing our state.

The state budget is the by far the most important item on the legislative

agenda for 2005. Almost every other piece oflegislation is, in one way or another,

at the mercy of the budget. Unfortunately, the state finds itself in dire financial

circumstances. One major problem is that the state stands to lose a great deal

of federal funding, especially in the area of Medicaid. The non-partisan New
Hampshire Center for Public Policy Studies estimates that without changes in

current law, the budget deficit could reach more than $300 million by June

2007. Clearly this is the largest problem facing the state, and it will take many

months to come to a resolution.

In 2003, the Legislature passed major rollbacks in New Hampshire's health

insurance laws, mainly affecting small businesses. Since then the state's insur-

ance companies have had the authority to raise premiums by as much as 25%
per year based on a number of rating factors, including geographic location,

type of industry, and health and age of employees. Although supporters of the

legislation promised that Senate Bill 110 would bring more competition and

lower premiums, the result for more than 60% of businesses (according to the

New Hampshire Department of Insurance) has been higher premiums and in

some cases, outright loss of insurance coverage. Governor Lynch made SB 1 10

a centerpiece of his campaign, and there are at least half a dozen bills pending

that would modify this controversial law or repeal it outright.

Education funding will continue to be a major issue for the House and

Senate. The last two years saw two education funding bills pass, both of which

caused major fluctuations in the amount of state aid received by Hopkinton

schools. Governor Lynch has said that he intends to repeal the statewide property

tax and replace the current funding system with a targeted aid plan. There are

numerous other proposals pending before the House and Senate, and while the

outcome will not be known for some time, there is likely to be another major

overhaul of the system with consequences for our local schools.
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Our most important issue locally has become a major issue in the Legisla-

ture. There are at least four bills filed addressing the BioEnergy situation. I have

sponsored House Bill 57, which would ban the burning of construction and

demolition debris. There are three other bills that as of this writing have not

been assigned bill numbers: our state Senator, Sylvia Larsen of Concord, and

Hopkinton's Rep. Christine Hamm have sponsored a Senate bill that would

also ban the incineration of construction and demolition debris; Rep. Stretch

Kennedy and Rep. Hamm have filed a bill modifying the definition of solid

waste; and Rep. Hamm has also filed legislation establishing a committee to

study the issue and putting a moratorium into effect on the incineration of any

construction and demolition waste. All of these bills will be the subject ofpublic

hearings. Ifyou need more information about these bills, or any other piece of

legislation, please contact me or Rep. Hamm or Rep. Kennedy.

Respectfully submitted,

Rep. Derek Owen
Merrimack County District 4

Hopkinton
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_____^_^ 2005 Warrant ____^__
Annual Town Meeting

SS: State ofNew Hampshire Merrimack County

The Polls will be open from 7:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.

To the Inhabitants oftheTown ofHopkinton, in the County ofMerrimack,

in the said State, who are qualified to vote in Town affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Hopkinton Town Hall on Tuesday,

March 8th, 2005 at 7:30 a.m. to act upon the following subjects:

Article 1: To choose all necessary Town Officers by ballot and major vote for

the ensuing year as enumerated:

2 Selectman 3 Year Term each

1 Town Treasurer 3 Year Term

2 Budget Committee 3 Year Term each

1 Budget Committee 1 Year Term

2 Library Trustee 3 Year Term each

1 Cemetery Trustee 3 Year Term

1 Trustee ofTrust Funds 3 Year Term

Article 2: To see what action the Town will take with respect to the following

proposed amendments to the Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance by ballot vote

upon the following questions:

1. Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 1 as proposed

by the Planning Board (by vote 5-0) for the Town of Hopkinton Zoning

Ordinance as follows: To add a new Section XIX entitled Lighting Ordinance

to include certain criteria and restrictions on exterior lighting. The addition

of the Lighting Ordinance will require changing the numerical sequence of all

remaining sections of the Zoning Ordinance.

(Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No
2. Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 2 as proposed by the

Planning Board (by vote 5-0) for the Town of Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance

as follows: To amend Section IV, 4.3 Table of Dimensional Requirements,
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Section 4.3 Explanatory Notes, and Section 4.4.3 Principal Structure, to

include a maximum gross floor area of 40,000 square feet for commercial

retail stores and restaurants within the B-1 (commercial) and M-1 (industrial)

districts and a maximum gross floor area of 20,000 square feet for commercial

retail stores and restaurants within the VB-1 (village commercial) and VM-1
(village industrial) districts.

(Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No

3. Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 3 as proposed by the

Planning Board (by vote 5-0) for the Town of Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance

as follows: To add a new Section IV-A entitled Architectural Design Review

Ordinance to include architectural design criteria for non-residential and

multi-family structures.

(Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No

4. Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 4 as proposed by the

Planning Board (by vote 5-0) for the Town of Hopkinton Zoning Ordinance

as follows: To amend Section XV, paragraph 15.8.3 Variances by modifying

standards for unnecessary hardship to be consistent with the recent New
Hampshire Supreme Court decision in Michael Boccia v. City of Portsmouth.

(Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No

5. Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 5 as petitioned by the

voters for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows: To add a new Section A.l

Increased Shoreland Protection Standard to read as follows:

Section 4.7 Increased Shoreland Protection Standard for Certain Facilities: The

State Shoreland Protection laws (NH RSA 483-B:8) permit a Town to adopt

land use control ordinances relative to all protected shorelands which are more

stringent than the minimum State standards. As indicated in the Master Plan,

the Town's lakes, rivers, ponds and streams are a primary resource and asset for

the Town. The Contoocook River also serves as a drinking water sources and,

as such requires special consideration. Nonconforming solid waste facilities
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and any proposed or existing solid waste facilities as well as nonconforming

facilities and any existing facilities which store, or incinerate (or propose to

store or incinerate) solid waste, or construction and demolition debris in close

proximity to lakes rivers, ponds or streams, or artificial impoundment areas

which connect to lakes, rivers, ponds or streams represent an unacceptable

risk to these resources and the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens

of the Town. The Town hereby adopts a more stringent shoreland protection

standard for such uses. No existing, nonconforming, solid waste facility, or

facility which stores, or incinerates solid waste, or construction or demolition

debris nor any such facility allowed by variance, (except for a facility which

has, and maintains in good standing a permit which predates this ordinance,

permitting the placement of solid waste in accord with RSA 483-B:9 (IV-d))

shall be allowed to place solid waste or construction and demolition debris

within 300 feet of the reference line of public waters or within 300 feet of the

ordinary high water mark of a river, pond, stream or artificial impoundment

area, nor shall the edge of any impervious surface on which such solid waste

is located be within 300 feet of the reference line of public waters or within

300 feet of the ordinary high water mark of a pond, river, stream or artificial

impoundment area. In the event a pre-existing facility has its permit revoked by

the State, it shall be subject to this stricter standard. Nothing in this standard

shall be construed to allow a solid waste facility in a zone unless it is explicitly

permitted in that zone.

(Not Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No

6. Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 6 as petitioned by the

voters for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows: To add a new Section 5.6

Open Storage in the Industrial (M-1) zone to read as follows:

The open storage ofraw materials, finished goods or construction equipment

requires a special exception in the Industrial (M-1) zone. The following

conditions shall be imposed as minimum conditions on the grant ofany special

exception for the open storage of raw materials. All manufacturing materials,

stockpiles, raw materials, and finished goods shall be screened from the view of

abutting parcels and public roads. The Planning Board, for good cause shown,

may waive or reduce the screening requirement in the context of site plan or

subdivision review. In order to allow for fire suppression, stockpiles and raw

materials shall not exceed a height of twenty-five (25) feet and shall be fully
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accessible to fire and emergency equipment. Flammable stockpiles, including

mulch piles, compost piles and wood piles shall be arranged in windrows in order

to permit access by fire equipment and prevent the spread of fire. Any stockpiles

with the capacity to leach chemicals or metals into the ground shall be stored on

an impervious surface and shall be subject to all necessary State approvals. The

Planning Board shall have the authority to review open storage as part of its site

plan review process, to impose supplemental conditions beyond the conditions

imposed by the Zoning Board of Adjustment on any special exception and to

adopt regulations pertaining to open storage including the authority to require

that monitoring wells be installed on the perimeter of stockpiles.

(Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No

7. Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 7 as petitioned by the

voters for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows: To amend subsection 5.4.3

Dumping or Disposal of Garbage and other Refuse to read as follows:

No land in any district shall be used for a dumping place for garbage,

construction and/or demolition debris or refuse from either private or

commercial or industrial source except the public landfill and/or transfer

station, as provided by the Town. The Town hereby finds that the incineration

of certain types of construction and/or demolition debris presents a hazard to

the public health, safety, convenience and general welfare of the inhabitants of

the Town of Hopkinton by virtue of the hazardous emissions and discharges

emanating from such incineration. No land in any district shall be used for

the incineration of construction and/or demolition debris. The Town hereby

finds that such construction and/or demolition debris contains treated and

coated woods and other materials (including but no limited to woods and

other materials containing lead-based paints, lead based stains, and mercury

and formaldehyde treatments), and that these items, when incinerated, pose a

hazard to the public health, safety, convenience and general welfare. Further,

no prior variance granted by the town for the incineration of wood or wood

products shall be construed s o as to allow for the incineration of construction

and/or demolition debris, as any such use poses a hazard to the public health,

safety, convenience and general welfare.

(Not Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No
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8. Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 8 as petitioned by

the voters for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows: To amend the second

paragraph of Section 3.6.1 to read as follows:

Any use not specifically listed as a permitted use shall not be allowed unless the

Board of Adjustment determines it is substantially similar to a use listed as a

permitted use in the applicable zone by virtue ofan Administrative Appeal to the

Board. A use shall not be deemed substantially similar to a permitted use unless it

is substantially similar in all aspects to a permitted use; otherwise the use shall be

deemed to be a prohibited use. Any use deemed by the Board to be a prohibited

use, and any use explicitly prohibited by this Ordinance, shall only be allowed

in the event that the Board of Adjustment grants a variance allowing the use.

(Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No

9. Are you in favor of the adoption ofAmendment No. 9 as petitioned by the

voters for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows:

To amend Section 3.1.1 Expansion ofNon-Conforming Lot Area , and Section

5.1.2 Expansion of Non-Conforming Use , subsections b. and c; and further

to add a new subsection d. to read as follows:

Section 5.1.1 Expansion ofNon-conforming Uses outside and within Structures

- Except for agriculture, horticulture or floriculture, no non-conforming use on

a conforming lot occurring outside of a structure in whole or in part, or on a

lot without a structure, shall be expanded in area, density or intensity of use

more than five (5%) percent from the area, density or intensity of use on the

lot at the date of non-conformity. The expansion may be done at one time

or in successive stages, but shall not exceed five (5%) in the aggregate when

compared to the extent of use at the time the use first became nonconforming.

The expansion of a nonconforming use beyond five (5%) percent in the area,

density or intensity of use shall require a variance from the Board ofAdjustment.

If granted, the terms of the variance shall specifically define and limit the

scope of the expansion to the least amount of expansion required to provide

the necessary relief If the variance is granted, the proposed expansion shall

also be subject to site plan review if the underlying use would, but for its non-

conforming use status, be subject to site plan review. This section shall not

prohibit the expansion of a nonconforming use within an existing conforming

structure, provided the expansion otherwise complies with this Ordinance and
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has no adverse effect on the abutters or the zoning district. If the proposed

expansion is deemed by the Building Inspector/Zoning Administrator to be

a change in the type of nonconforming use, or to have an adverse effect on

the abutters or the zoning district, the applicant shall be required to apply for

a variance. Other than as allowed in Section 5. 1.2. a., a non-conforming use

shall not be permitted to expand on a nonconforming lot without a variance.

Section 5.1.2 Expansion of Non-conforming Uses - A) Non-conforming

residences may be expanded by up to fifty (50%) in square footage from the

square footage existing at the date of nonconformity, provided the addition does

not fiirther encroach upon non-conforming setbacks. The expansion shall meet

all other applicable sections of this Ordinance and may be done at one time or

in successive stages, provided the expansion does not exceed fifty (50%) in the

aggregate when compared with the square footage existing at the first date of

nonconformity. B) All other non-conforming, non-residential structures on a

conforming lot may be expanded up to five (5%) percent in square footage beyond

the square footage existing at the first date ofnonconformity, provided the owner

obtains a special exception from the Zoning Board of Adjustment, does not

further encroach on any current setbacks for a conforming lot and meets all other

applicable provisions of this Ordinance. C) Any expansion of nonconforming,

nonresidential structure beyond five (5%) in square footage (as compared to the

square footage existing at the first date of nonconformity) shall require a variance

from the Board of Adjustment. D) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to

prevent normal maintenance and repair of a non-conforming structure, provided

that such repair or maintenance does not increase the degree of nonconformity.

(Recommended by the Planning Board)

Yes No

Article 3: Shall we permit the town library to retain all money it receives from

its income generating equipment to be used for general repairs and upgrading

and for the purchase of books, supplies and income-generating equipment?

Note: By law the Meeting must open before the voting starts. Therefore, the

Meeting and polls will open at 7:30 a.m. for the considerations ofArticles 1 , 2 and

3. At 12:00 (noon), the Meeting will recess, but the polls will remain open until

7:00 p.m. The Meetingwill reconveneat theHopkinton High SchoolGymnasium

on Saturday, March 12th, 2005 at 9:00 a.m. to act upon the following Articles:
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Article 4: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$2,850,000 (Two milUon eight hundred fifty thousand dollars) (Gross Budget)

for the construction and original equipping of the Houston Park Center, and

to authorize the issuance of not more than $2,000,000 of bonds or notes in

accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33); to

authorize the Selectmen to apply for, obtain and accept federal, state or other

aid, if any, which may be available for said project and to comply with all laws

applicable to said project; to authorize the Selectmen to issue and negotiate

such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon; furthermore,

to authorize the withdrawal of the entire principal from the "community center

Capital Reserve Fund," plus all accumulated interest to date of withdrawal.

The balance to be raised by private funds and not general taxation.

(Two-thirds Ballot Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 5: To see ifthe town will vote to purchase a 100% fee simple ownership

interest in the so-called "Rice property". Tax Map 219, Lots 4, 5, 6, 7, 8,

9, and 12, a 210.61-acre parcel of unimproved land located on Route 127,

Maple Street, for $490,000. The purchase price is $478,000 and $12,000 for

miscellaneous expenses related to the bond issue. Funds for said purchase shall

be drawn from the Open Space Bond approved during the 2003 Annual Town
Meeting, Warrant Article 7, established for this purpose.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 6: To see iftheTown will vote to authorize the Board ofSelectmen to sell, if

appropriate,bysealedbid,theso-called"RedBarn"atHoustonFieldwiththeproceeds

to be used for the construction and original equipping ofthe Houston Park Center.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

Article 7: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to

sell, if appropriate, by sealed bid, Columbia Hall with the proceeds to be used

for the construction and original equipping of the Houston Park Center.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.
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Article 8: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to

sell, by sealed bid, the so-called Rollins Homestead that contains the residence,

several out buildings and approximately three (3) acres of land.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

Article 9: Shall the Town vote to adopt the provisions of RSA 72:28 for an

optional veterans exemption an expanded qualifying war service for veterans

seeking the exemption? The optional veteran' exemption is $500, rather than $ 1 00.

Submitted by Petition,

The Board ofSelectmen does not recommend this article.

Article 10: Shall the Town modify the provisions of RSA 72:28, V and VI,

for an optional veteran's tax credit and an expanded qualifying war service for

veterans seeking the tax credit? The optional veterans' tax credit shall be $150,

rather than $100.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

Article 11: Shall the Town modify the provisions ofRSA 72:35 for a tax credit

for Service-Connected Total Disability for veterans seeking the tax credit? The

tax credit for Service-Connected Total Disability for veterans shall be $2,000,

rather than $1,400.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

Article 12: To see if the Town will vote to have the Elderly Exemption Program

increased to read as follows:

RSA: 72:39-b

Exemption Proposed 2005 Program

65-75 years of age as of April 1, 2005 $ 90,000

75-79 years of age as of April 1, 2005 $1 10,000

80 years of age and older as of April 1, 2005 $130,000

*Net Income from all Sources:

Single $ 33,800

Married: (joint income) $ 43,900

**Net Assets: $200,000

(Excluding value of actual ***Residence and the land upon which it is located.)

FIO



Description:

*Net Income: Any Net Income from all sources in the calendar year preceding

April 1 including social security or pension payments. The following can be

deducted from net income: life insurance paid on the death of an insured;

expenses and costs incurred in the course of conducting a business; proceeds

from the sale of assets.

**Net Assets: The value of all assets, tangible and intangible, minus the value

of any good faith encumbrances. Assets would include any real estate over the

exception such as stocks, bonds, savings and checking accounts, IRA's motor

vehicles, jewelry, boats, coin collections, art collections, etc.

***Residence: Housing unit, related structures such as an unattached garage

or woodshed, which is the person's principal home.

Submitted by Petition.

The Board ofSelectmen does not recommend this article.

Article 13: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$1,077,449 to defray the cost of General Government Operations:

General Government Functions $$ in Year 2005

Executive 209,375

Election, Registration, Vital Stats. & Tax Coll. 238,646

Financial Administration 100,964

Assessing 93,060

Legal 25,000

Personnel Administration 56,3 1

8

Planning & Zoning Departments 90,683

Cemeteries 39,691

Insurance 93,393

Hopkinton Fair Celebrations 129,319

Economic Development Committee 1,000

Total $1,077,449

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article

Article 14: To see iftheTown will vote to eliminate the funding of the Assessing

Department (Dept#4152) included in General Government Operations warrant

article which included but is not limited to personnel related expenses and all

operatingexpensesand to raiseandappropriate thesumof$25,000 to beexpended
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for the purpose of annual assessing activities. Furthermore, to see if the town

will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of$40,000 for the purpose ofcovering

the cost associated with the completion ofa town wide assessment every 5 years.

Submitted by Petition.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen does not recommend this article

The Budget Committee does not recommend this article

Article 15: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$1,211,475 to defray the cost of Public Safety Operations:

Public Safety Operations $$ in Year 2005

Police Department 625,864

Animal Control 5,816

Ambulance Service 334,558

Fire Department 233,462

Emergency Management 3,000

Rescue Squad 8,775

Total $1,211,475

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 16: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$1,810,488 to defray the cost of Public Works Operations:

Public Works Operations $$ in Year 2005

Highway Administration 44 1 ,738

Highways & Streets 50 1 , 1 00

Building & Grounds (formerly Parks Dept) 195,863

Street Lighting 1,200

Transfer Station Operations 538,715

Landfill Maintenance & Monitoring 30,450

Sewer Department 101,422

Total $1,810,488

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.
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Article 17: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$128,401 to defray the cost of Health and Human Services Operations:

Health & Human Service Operations $$ in Year 2005

Community Center Contribution 15,000

Community Action Program ~ (CAP) 4,537

Human Services Administration 53,864

Human Services Vendors 55,000

Total $128,401

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 18: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$112,122 to defray the cost of Recreation Operations:

Recreation Operations $$ in Year 2005

Recreation Department 105,022

Patriotic Purposes 7, 1 00

Total $112,122

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 19: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$238,559 to defray the cost of the Hopkinton Library:

Library Operations $$ in Year 2005

Hopkinton Library 238,559

Total $238,559

(Majority Vote Required)

The Budget Committee recommends this article.
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Article 20: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$1,725 for Conservation:

Conservation & Tree Planting $$ in Year 2005

Conservation Commission 1,725

Total $1,725

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 21: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$314,284 for the payment of Principal and Interest of long-term debt and

interest for Tax Anticipation Notes (TANS), if required.

Long-term Debt & TAN Interest $$ in Year 2005

Principal - Bonds and Notes 206,520

Interest - Bonds and Notes 102,764

Interest - Tax Anticipation Notes 5,000

Total $314,284

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 22: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$6,300 for the excavation and improvement of the old and creation of new

roadways in Blackwater Cemetery.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 23: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following

funds to be placed in previously established Capital Reserve funds as follows.

Capital Reserve Accounts $$ in Year 2005

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades 10,000

Legal Fund 75,000

Blackwater Cemetery 2,000

Community center 50,000

F14



Contoocook Village Cemetery 10,000

Sludge Removal 7,500

Ambulance and Defibrillator Equipment 35,000

Fire Dept Vehicles and Equipment 75,000

Public Works Vehicles and Equipment 100,000

Transfer Station Equipment 32,500

Police Cruisers and Accessories 33,000

Library Replacement Building System 9,000

Total $439,000

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article

Article 24: To see if the Town will vote to name the Board of Selectmen as

agents to expend for the Contoocook Village Revitalization and Improvement

Capital Reserve Fund established at the March 12, 2002 Town Meeting.

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

Article 25: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following

funds to be placed in previously established Expendable General Trust Funds

as follows.

Expendable General Trust Funds $$ in Year 2005

Hopkinton Library Technology 9,000

Town Facilities 22,500

Recreation Facilities 5,000

Library Building/Grounds 5,000

Total $41,500

(Majority Vote Required)

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

F15



Article 26: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$4,000 in the interest of public health and safety to provide winter plowing

and sanding on the following roads during the winter months:

South Shore Drive

Ridge Lane

Rolfe Pond Road

Salachar Road

Perch Lane

Sparrow Lane

Robin Lane

1500 feet

900 feet

2000 feet

500 feet

700 feet

1000 feet

400 feet

This action shall in no way be interpreted as changing the status of these roads

from "private" to "public" roads. It is the general policy of the Town that no

work will be done on any private or Class VI highway.

Submitted by Petition,

The Board ofSelectmen recommends this article.

The Budget Committee recommends this article.

Article 27: To hear the reports of agents, officers, and committees, heretofore

chosen, to pass any vote relating thereto, and to transact any other business

that may legally come before said meeting.

Given under our hands and seal this 7th day of February, in the Year of our

Lord two thousand and five.

Donald K. Lane, Chairman

Lloyd A. Holmes

Barbara W. Unger

Louise M. Carr

Clarke L. Kidder

Board of Selectmen

Hopkinton, N.H.

Attest:

Donald K. Lane, Chairman

Lloyd A. Holmes

Barbara W. Unger

Louise M. Carr

Clarke L. Kidder

Board of Selectmen

Hopkinton, N.H.
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Annual Town Meeting
Narrative 2005

As in prior years, we are presenting to you an overview of the budget so

that you may have a better understanding as to the increases, department

initiatives and focus of the town's budgetary goals. Our goal is to provide you

with a better understanding of each budget item. We hope you will find this

information useful as you review this year's town budget.

Ballot Articles

Articles 1, 2 and 3 are ballot-voting articles, which will require action either by

voting in person attheTown Hall onTuesday, March 8 , 2005 orby absentee ballot.

All absentee voting should be directed through the office of the Town Clerk.

Voting will take place:

Where: Hopkinton Town Hall

When: Tuesday, March 8, 2005

Polls Open: 7:30 a.m. and will close at 7:00 p.m.

NOTE: Ifyou have not yet registered to vote, you may register on the actual

day ofvoting. Please bring a means ofidentification denoting physical address.

Article 1: Election ofTown Officers for the ensuing year.

Elect TWO Selectman - 3-years

Donald K. Lane

George A. Langwasser

Peter M. Russell

Elect ONE Town Treasurer - 3-years

Bonita A. Cressy
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Elect TWO Budget Committee - 3-years

Jane D. Bradstreet

Barbara W. Unger

Elect ONE Budget Committee - 1-year

No Candidates signed up

Elect ONE Trustee ofTrust Funds - 3-years

Carolyn M. Hackwell

ElectTWO Library Trustees - 3-years

Donna Dunlop

Christine C. Hamm

Elect ONE Cemetery Trustee - 3-years

Susan G. Adams

Article 2; Zoning Amendments as proposed by the Planning Board or as

petitioned by the voters and deliberated by the Planning Board per Public

Hearings held on November 16 and December 14, 2004, and on January 5,

January 11, January 18 and January 25, 2005.

Amendmient 1 ; Amends the Zoning Ordinance to include a Lighting

Ordinance that recognizes the benefits ofoutdoor lighting and provides criteria

and guidelines for its installation so as to help maintain and compliment

the character of the Town of Hopkinton. Amendment is proposed and

recommended by the Planning Board.

Amendment 2; Amends the Zoning Ordinance to include a maximum
gross floor area for commercial retail stores and restaurants so as to limit the

potential traffic congestion and over-burden of public infrastructure while

protecting the character of the Town of Hopkinton. Amendment is proposed

and recommended by the Planning Board.

Amendment 3: Amends the Zoning Ordinance to include an Architectural

Design Review Ordinance for non-residential and multi-family structures so

as to encourage building architecture that is functional, aesthetically pleasing

and compatible with the architectural heritage of Hopkinton. Amendment is

proposed and recommended by the Planning Board.
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Amendment 4; Amends the Zoning Ordinance by modifying standards for

unnecessary hardship to be consistent with the recent New Hampshire Supreme

Court decision in Michael Boccia v. City of Portsmouth . The traditional

standard for unnecessary hardship no longer applies to area (dimensional)

variance cases; instead, the Court has set forth two different and mutually

exclusive standards for use and area variance cases. Amendment is proposed

and recommended by the Planning Board.

Amendment 5 : Amends the Zoning Ordinance to include a new Section A.7

Increased Shoreland Protection Standard. Amendment is as petitioned by the

voters and is not recommended by the Planning Board.

Amendment 6: Amends the Zoning Ordinance to include a new Section 5.6

Open Storage in the Industrial (M-1) zone. Amendment is as petitioned by

the voters and is recommended by the Planning Board.

Amendment 7: Amends the Zoning Ordinance subsection 5.4.5 Dumping
or Disposal of Garbage and other Refuse. Amendment is as petitioned by the

voters and is not recommended by the Planning Board.

Amendment 8: Amends the Zoning Ordinance Section 3.6.1. Amendment
is as petitioned by the voters and is recommended by the Planning Board.

Amendment 9; Amends the Zoning Ordinance Section 5.1.1 Expansion of

Non-Conforming Lot Area, and Section 5.1.2 Expansion ofNon-Conforming

Use, subsections b. and c; and further to add a new subsection d. Amendment
is as petitioned by the voters and is recommended by the Planning Board.

Article 3: The question on the ballot stating that the Library will continue

to meet the requirements of State RSA 202-A:ll-a which states "All money

received from a library's income-generating equipment shall be retained by the

library in a separate nonlapsing fund" after receiving permission from voters as

required by RSA 202-A:l 1-b. The Library currently uses the revenue received

from use of its copy machine and printers to help defray repair and supply costs

for those machines as well as for the purchase of books and other materials.

The Library charges 10 cents per page for copies. The first five pages printed

from a computer are free and then cost 1 cents per page.

Deliberative Session - Operational Budgets

Meeting will reconvene:

Where: Hopkinton Middle/High School Gymnasium
When: Saturday, March 12, 2005

Time: 9:00 a.m.
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Article 4: It has been seven years since the 1998 Town Meeting voters first

approved the estabHshment of a Capital Reserve Fund for a faciUty to house

the social, recreational and human service needs of our community, including

those of our growing yet still under-served senior population. The hope is to

develop a center where all generations will have the opportunity to interrelate

with one another.

The chosen site is part of the town's 68-acre Houston Park. This provides

an ideal location with room for growth and the capacity to accommodate a

great number and variety of services. We are fortunate for the opportunity

it offers for indoor and outdoor activities and for fostering intergenerational

connections among users of this facility and other facilities already on site.

The new facility would provide office space for our Recreation and Human
Services Directors. It will help to maintain and enhance the spirit of our

community for a variety of groups and allow local non-profit and for-profit

organizations to expand their programs that enhance the quality of life for

seniors, teens, singles and families.

This proposed facility would provide a kitchen and dining room for meals

and banquets that is sufficiently large to meet the growing senior population. It

will provide an exercise room specifically designed for senior workout programs

and space for other exercise and dance programs for all generations.

The Boys and Girls Club of Hopkinton does not have sufficient space in

their present facility to run their program to its fullest potential. The Club

seeks to extend its services to the Town's teens by providing space for them at

this facility.

The total cost for the facility is $2,850,000. We are requesting approval for

a $2 million dollar bond for the construction ofa new structure ofapproximately

21,480 square feet. Included are renovations to portions of the existing large

barn.

The balance of funds, $850,000, will come from several sources:

1

.

Current capital reserve fund ~ $ 1 50,000,

2. Sale of Columbia Hall ~ $200,000 (estimated),

3. Boys and Girls Club contribution, grants and private fundraising

of $500,000.

It is anticipated that operating expenses will run approximately $95,442

annually. In order to make this facility close to self-supporting we anticipate

revenues of at least $90,780 annually from the rental ofspace (kitchen, meeting

room and office areas) and through recreation and arts programs.

F20



On an annualized basis, the cost ofthe $2 miUion dollar bond will be $35.00

for the first year of the bond (2006) for each $100,000 of property value. By

the 10th year of repayment, it will drop to $26.00 per $100,000 of valuation:

by year 20 to $18.00 per one-hundred thousand dollar of valuation.

As the bonds noted below are retired, their payments will be applied toward

reducing the cost of the Center:

• Library 2008 ($98,000 per year)

• Transfer Station 2010 ($43,000 per year)

As proposed, this multi-purpose, multi-generational facility will serve the

town's needs for decades to come without placing an undue burden on the tax

rate. With bond interest rates low and construction costs rising annually, there

is no better time than now to fulfill Hopkinton's long-term and continuing

commitment to the needs of all of its residents.

Article 5; This is the fourth parcel presented for purchase under the Open
Space Bond authorized in 2003. This parcel, the Rice property off Maple

Street, totals 210.61 acres, consists of several tracts of vacant land, northerly

from Maple Street and south ofthe Contoocook River. There is a small portion

of river frontage.

There is a right ofway granted on the land for access from Maple Street and is

encumbered by a 20-footwide right ofwayserving an agricultural lot to the north.

Overall, the topography is level to slightly sloped. The land generally slopes

down gently from the southwest to the northeast. Toward the northeastern

corner of the site the slope of the land diminishes to a wetland area, located in

the floodplain.

This property is subject to a federal government flood right as part of the

storage area for the Contoocook watershed.

Mostly wooded there is a quantity of marketable timber on the property.

The soils range from wet floodplain and poorly drained in the northeast, to

well drained soils in the center, western and southwestern areas. The southern,

western and central areas are well sited for development.

The Open Space Committee noted several important features regarding

this acquisition on their "selection criteria" worksheet used in assessing potential

properties for purchase. It notes the following;

• Provides greenways to connect other protected lands,

• Provides additional publicly accessible open space,
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• Contributes to the expansion of large blocks of protected land -

nearby flowage easement on Graziano property (65 acres),

• Is suitable for low impact public recreation such as trails for walking,

hiking and cross-country skiing and to enjoy nature,

• Provides additional public access to waterway (Contoocook River) for

fishing, swimming or low impact boating,

• Contains aquifer recharge areas and land valuable for the protection of

drinking water sources,

• Has an actively and well managed forest, and most importantly,

• The property has the potential for immediate change out of open space

with up to 40 + residential properties.

The purchase price for the 210 acres is $478,000. There is $12,000 to

cover the expenses for bond counsel review, reimbursement to the Conservation

Commission and hiring ofan organization to manage the conservation easement

that will be placed on the land. Therefore, the total bond is $490,000.

Article 6; The Selectmen are seeking approval to sell the "red barn" that is

located in front of the big barn at Houston Field. A minimum bid will be

established for the sale of the structure. By selling and having the red barn

removed, it will save on the cost to have it demolished in order to construct the

new Houston Park Center.

The red barn is a post and beam structure that can be removed and re-erected

at another location and therefore the beams have value. The intention ofthe Board

is to advertise and seek sealed bids for the barn with the proceeds to be used for

the construction and equipping of the Houston Park Center if Article 4 passes.

At the present time, the barn is used for storage of lawn equipment,

fertilizers and miscellaneous Public Works items.

Article 7: The Selectmen are seeking approval to sell "Columbia Hall"

located in Contoocook Village. At the present time, Columbia Hall houses

the Hopkinton Community Center, dial-a-ride, food pantry, senior citizen

programs and the office of the Human Services Director.

The Board has requested a market study be undertaken in order to determine

the highest and best uses and the minimum asking bid for the building. The

board will advertise and seek sealed bids from interested parties.

The intention of the Board is to use the proceeds from the sale for the

construction and equipping of the Houston Park Center it Article 4 passes.
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Article 8 : In September 2004, the town voted to purchase the RoUins property,

one of three parcels purchased for open space under the authority granted in

2003, Warrant Article 7, Open Space Bond.

In purchasing the 49-acre parcel, the town's intent is to subdivide the

Rollins homestead and sell it with a portion of the proceeds to be used to

complete the purchase transaction and excess revenues, if any, deposited into

the General Fund.

The purchase ofthe property has been completed and work is in progress to

subdivide the parcel, obtain Planning Board approval and establish a timetable

to complete the sale.

Article 9 & 10; These two articles speak to the same goal.

Article 9 was submitted by petition.

Article 10 was placed on the warrant, by the Selectmen after the board

received a request signed by numerous veterans asking "the selectmen... to

increase the veteran's homestead abatement, from the current $100 to an

amount more appropriate to today's economy."

The Board undertook a review of the current number of veterans receiving

the exemption finding that 304 veterans are entitled to the credit against their

property tax bill.

The Board reviewed what surrounding communities provided, in addition

to reviewing the impact that an increase for exemptions would have in the tax

setting process. To this end, the board agreed to recommend an increase to

$150, which would raise the total exemption cost to $45,600 from the current

$30,400. The Board felt strongly that the need to increase the exemption is

warranted while seeking to be mindful of the impact to the community.

The Selectmen further agreed that this exemption should be revisited more

often and appropriate increases recommended from time to time.

The petitioned request. Article 9, if adopted, would increase the total

exemption cost to $152,000.

Article 11: This article requests your consideration to increasing the credit

granted to veteran's who have a total and permanent war service connected

disability. Presently, Hopkinton has six (6) veterans who receive the credit of

$1,400. The Board felt, for the service and sacrifice these individuals provided

to this country, that it was appropriate to increase this credit to its maximum
amount of $2,000.
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Article 12; A petitioned warrant article.

Under this requested increase, the reduction reaUzed by quaUfying seniors

will be spread out amongst all taxpayers and calculated into the new tax rate

that will be established in October 2005. Qualifying seniors will realize a net

reduction in their tax burden, but in actuality, the tax rate itselfwill increase for

all residents as the exemption is subtracted from the gross base valuation used

to calculate the tax rate. Having adjusted the exemption last year the Board

feels that more time should pass before addressing this issue again.

Using the present number of qualifying seniors, 5 1 , the credit amount

would increase to $5,490,000. Under the current tax rate the net tax loss

would be $123,031.

In 2004, the Board of Selectmen considered and recommended a change

to the elderly exemption granted to qualified residents over 65 years of age.

Town Meeting concurred with that recommendation overwhelmingly.

In review, the prior program granted credits in the following amounts:

• 65-74 years $10,000 reduction in assessment

• 75-79 years $20,000 reduction in assessment

• 80+ years $40,000 reduction in assessment

Income limits were:

• Single $20,000

• Married $30,000

Asset limits had been set at $50,000.

The Board agreed that a change in the credits, income and asset limits were

necessary and proposed the following, which was adopted in 2004.

• 65 and older $40,000 reduction in assessment

Income limits were likewise increased to:

• Single $30,000

• Married $40,000

Asset limits was increased to $100,000.

With this change, we realized an increase in the number of seniors that

qualified for the exemption. Today 51 senior property owners qualify for a

total exemption credit of $2,040,000 and, at the current tax rate of $22.41 the

town realizes a net tax loss of $45,716.
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At the 2004 Town Meeting the Selectmen noted that "as a community we

need to bemore diligent in reviewing these exemptions at regular intervals in order

to be sensitive to the tax burden placed on our elderly citizens". Our goal was to

ensure a review would occur every few years and make adjustments accordingly.

This Board is extremely sensitive to the affect that the recent valuation

change has brought onto the entire community. However, every time the

Board is presented with a request to increase the amount of an exemption we

feel it important to make "all" citizens aware of the impact the exemption will

have on "every taxpayer", even those who directly benefit from it.

Operating Budget Overview

The total increase in the proposed 2005 Town budget is $292,106 which

represents a 6% increase over 2004. This increase is broken down in the

following manner.

Wages & Benefits: The Board has provided for a 4% increase for all town

employees.

The Board directed the Town Administrator to conduct a salary review of

all employees and to compare it with wages paid to employees in communities

with populations between 5,000 to 9,999. In the study the Board reviewed

those communities' pay scales and further examined what individuals in

positions similar to Hopkinton's were being paid in 2004.

Our review noted that in 90% of the positions our wages were equal to the

average of the communities used. We did notice that for several positions, the

town's pay was lower and for those employees we sought to bring them closer

to the average of the study communities.

Further, we have been confronted with a situation where we have been

unable to hire, and in some cases, retain qualified Paramedics to staff our

ambulance. To that end, we agreed to increase the wage for the ambulance

staff above 4%.

Similarly, we have found the same situation with hiring police officers and

have increased the starting wages for new recruits.

Lastly, this is the first full year of a five member Board of Selectmen and

the Human Services Director; we now have a part time Animal Control Officer

and part time secretary at the police department. We are recommending hiring

an additional full time employee for the Building & Grounds Division and

a part time employee for the Transfer Station. The Library seeks to increase

hours and the Board approved an increase in the stipend paid the Fire Chief
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Correspondingly, there is a 9% increase in benefits provided to all full time

employees. In overview, employees pay a portion of their health and dental

benefits. However, increases for these benefits are going up approximately 16%
effective July 1

.

The largest increase to impact us is for our contribution toward the employees

retirement benefit. For all employees, other than police and fire personnel, the

increase is from 5.90% to 6.81%. Police contribution will rise from 7.87%

to 9.68% and fire personnel will increase to 13.44%. These increases are the

town's portion of the contribution with the employees contributing 5.1% of

their total compensation.

Article 13: Highlights of the operating expenses for the following

departments:

Executive: Town Hall fuel costs have increased from $.98 in 2004 to $ 1 .338

for 2005—bid contract. Printing of the town report and quarterly newsletter

has seen a slight increase~$2,500.

Election, Registration & Tax: Several areas of increase are registry costs of

liens, increase cost of audit, printing costs of tax bills, costs associated with the

ballot machine and printing of ballots.

Financial Administration: audit increase and computer maintenance costs

have increased to covers the town office and police department.

Personnel Administration: provides for group life and disability, cobra/flex

costs for retired employees heath benefits cost that is 100% reimbursable.

Planning/Zoning: costs for a build out analysis, dues to CentralNH Regional

Planning Commission and Cartographies for property map maintenance.

Cemetery: reduction is result of new contract for mowing of cemeteries.

Insurance: Town's cost for insurance for unemployment, workers

compensation, property and general liability insurance.

Hopkinton Fair: costs for police, fire and ambulance coverage during the

Hopkinton State Fair and Highland Games. The Hopkinton Fair Association

reimburses all expenses associated with police, fire and ambulance coverage.

Economic Development Committee: costs associated with any mailing or

purchased materials.

Article 14; The Board was presented a petition "to eliminate the funding of

the Assessing Department", to operate the office with personnel for annual

assessing and to set aside funds for a future town wide revaluation "every 5 years."
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The Board of Selectmen strongly disagrees with this suggestion for the

following reasons:

1. The town would need to hire a full time clerk to conduct the daily

responsibilities relating to general record maintenance (deed transfers,

current use applications, elderly and veteran exemptions, etc.). The

clerk would be responsible for handling customer service inquiries and

addressing questions regarding values, abatement actions or making

correction to assessment cards. The clerk would assist a contracted

vendor by establishing appointments for meeting with taxpayers or

pickup of new properties for assessment inspections. This clerk would

cost approximately $25,000 plus $10,000 in benefits.

2. Contracting for assessing services with a licensed third party vendor

for new construction pick-ups, subdivision values, and inspections of

properties/residences as warranted. Approximate cost for 90 days of

service: $45,000 annually.

3. To undertake a town wide revaluation every 5 years would, at a

minimum, cost approximately $70 per parcel. Presently the town has

3,390 parcels. The cost would be $237,300 or $47,460 annually.

When you add those costs together, including approximately $7,000 for

office supplies, the total is $134,460.

The 2005 request for the department is $93,060. If this article were to

pass, it would cost the town an additional $41,400 annually.

Article 15; Highlights of the operating expenses for the following

departments:

Police: costs have increased for dispatch services from Merrimack County.

Animal Control: costs associated with housing of detained animals at a

shelter and supplies. Almost all expenditures are reimbursable from the Ella B.

Tarr Trust.

Ambulance: the town has assumed the cost for maintenance of a

defibrillation unit on loan from Concord Hospital.

Fire: Concord Dispatch has added two new full time positions to handle the

call volume shared by 1 8 towns, heating fuel cost increase, electricity increases

due to addition of exhaust removal system and the department is seeking to

purchase on a rotating program the Scott air bottles used by firefighters during

a structure fire. The goal is to replace six bottles a year.
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Article 16 : Highlights ofthe operating expenses for the following departments:

Highway Administration: Largest increase is for heating oil costs.

Highway & Streets: cost for shimming and paving, removal of dead trees,

rental of rollers, excavators, roadside mowers or bulldozers for projects, costs

for gravel purchase until town obtains Kast Hill land from Federal Government

and installation costs for two additional cross walk impressions.

Building & Grounds (formerly Parks Dept): new division established by

the Board ofSelectmen charged with the responsibility of maintaining not only

the grounds at Houston Field and George's Park, but also the 22 structures and

1 7 other grounds the town owns throughout the community.

In the past, each department head was charged with the responsibility

of overseeing the repairs and upkeep of the buildings in which they are

housed. Unfortunately, there was minimum attention paid at best, as other

responsibilities were more pressing.

The town's playing fields, over the years, have become the standard of

excellence in New Hampshire and we now wish to extend that same attention

toward preventive upkeep of the town's buildings. The department will consist

of individuals hired part time for grounds maintenance, one full time person

for overseeing repairs and upkeep to town structures—painting, minor repairs,

overseeing contractors for larger repairs, etc—and custodial responsibilities.

As the board reviewed the budget we removed funds from other departments

earmarked for "building repairs, custodial and landscaping" and re-directed

some of the funds to this new division and eliminated the balance.

The Board feels that planned maintenance of our buildings is as important

as maintenance or our grounds.

Transfer Station: costs for tipping fees paid for refuse disposal at Concord

Regional Solid Waste Cooperative, repairs to equipment, and material to

upkeep the landfill cap—repair and mowing.

Landfill Maintenance & Monitoring: costs paid to Nobis Engineering

for quarterly well monitoring and reporting requirement to the State of New
Hampshire.

Sewer: costs associated for sewer services paid for by users.

Article 17; Highlights of the operating expenses for the following departments:

Community Center: Grant to the Hopkinton Community Center, Inc.

housed at Columbia Hall.
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Community Action Program: Grant to CAP for outreach programs to the

homebound and direct assistance and services to income eUgible, low income,

handicapped and elderly residents.

Human Services Administration: costs associated with the department

such as telephone, mileage reimbursement and office supplies.

Human Services Vendor: payments made to vendors on behalf of clients

needing assistance for housing, heating fuel, electricity, medical, etc.

Article 18: Highlights ofthe operating expenses for the following departments:

Recreation: rental of restrooms at Kimball Pond, Lewellen Bandstand and

Maple Street School. Membership and conference costs, department supplies.

Patriotic Purposes: Fourth ofJuly fireworks celebration, flags for cemeteries,

band concerts.

Article 19; Highlights ofthe operating expenses for the following departments:

Library: The Hopkinton Town Library Trustees are requesting a 7%
increase in the operating budget for the Hopkinton Town Library. The single

largest increase is in heating fuel. Using the price negotiated by the Town for

heating fuel, the rate increases our cost by $4,464. Other cost increases include

materials (books, magazines, newspapers, AV, etc.), salary and wages (3%-4%),

and mandatory benefits (6%-l4%). Many other lines in the budget are either

reduced or level funded from last year. There is an addition of $2,229 that is

to cover staffing and utilities for opening the Library on Sundays from 1-5 pm
from September through December 2005. The decision to provide this service

was based on requests from community members (including 3 separate surveys)

and the recommendation of the Long Range Planning Committee. Overall,

the Library continues to be increasingly used by the community - circulation

rose by 16%, use of meeting rooms, reference services, inter-library loan and

computer use all continue to increase.

Article 20: Highlights ofthe operating expenses for the following departments:

Conservation Commission: Environmental events, conservation camps

enrollment fee, and dues.

Article 21; Highlights ofthe operating expenses for the following departments:

Principal—Debt Service: cost for principle repayment for transfer station,

landfill closure and library bonds.

Interest—Debt Service: cost for interest on transfer station landfill closure,

library and land acquisition bonds.
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Tax Anticipation Notes: cost of interest should the town need to purchase

a short-term note in anticipation of taxes.

Articlc22: BlackwaterCemeterylmprovements: $6300—Fundstobeusedforthe

reconstruction and/or installation ofnew roadways within Blackwater Cemetery.

Article 23: Capital Reserve Funds for existing accounts:

Computer Technology: Computer hardware and software upgrades for

Finance, Police, Fire, Public Works, Wastewater and Town Clerk. A new copier

and server will be acquired for the Town Clerk/Tax Collector's office.

Legal Fund : Funds for the ongoing legal action with Bio Energy.

Blackwater Cemetery: The purchase ofadditional land for future expansion.

community center: Additional savings for future construction.

Contoocook Village Cemetery: To create roadways for the new part of the

cemetery.

Sludge Removal: Continued savings for eventual removal of sludge from

Transfer Station lagoon.

Ambulance/Defibrillators: Continued savings for new vehicle and

equipment in 2006.

Fire Vehicles: Continued savings for new vehicle, next scheduled purchase

is a Tanker in 2008.

Highway Vehicles/Equipment: Purchase of a backhoe/loader and snow

blower/mower in 2005.

Transfer Station: Purchase of a Loader in 2005.

Police Cruiser/Accessories: Purchase of a cruiser in 2005.

Library Building Systems: Continued saving for eventual replacement of

carpeting, HVAC/boiler etc.

Article 24; At Town Meeting, 2002, the town considered warrant article, 18,

regarding the establishment of a Capital Reserve Fund for the Contoocook

Village Revitalization and Improvement Project and to name the Selectmen as

agents to expend.

The Department of Revenue Administration (DRA), in reviewing the

minutes of the Town Meeting, noted, "that the article was amended to change

the following language from; ' . . . (iii) to name the Board ofSelectmen as agents to

expend' to; 'provided that the Board ofSelectmen shall not expend said funds for

anything other than engineering plans without further vote ofTown Meeting'"
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DRA disallowed the "limited purpose pertaining to the capital reserve"

and "disallowed the original proposal to name the Board of Selectmen as full

agents on the fund." Therefore, no action can be taken on the utilization of

the fund.

The Board is requesting your approval to name the Selectmen as agents

to expend so that the Board may begin to use the funds for improvements in

Contoocook Village.

Article 25: Expendable Maintenance Trust Funds for existing accounts:

Library Technology: Continued funding for purchase ofnew and upgraded

automation system and computer technology.

Town Facilities: Funds to be used for repairs and improvements to the

twenty-two (22) buildings owned by the Town, to include roof replacements,

painting (inside and out), carpet replacement, etc.

Recreation Facility: To be used for repairs and maintenance at Kimball

Lake cabins, Kimball Pond (raft replacement, storage cabinet), Fiouston Field,

and George's Park.

Library Building: Funds to be used to painting the exterior and exterior

maintenance needs.

Article 26 : Submitted by Petition.

Article 27: To hear reports or transact other business that comes before the

meeting.
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Budget Form
for the Town— MS-7

MS-7

BUDGET OF THE TOWN/CITY

OF: TOWN OF HOPKINTON

BUDGET FORM FOR TOWNS WHICH HAVE ADOPTED
THE PROVISIONS OF RSA 32:14 THROUGH 32:24

Appropriations and Estimates of Revenue for the Ensuing Year January 1 , _2005 to December 31

,

2005_

or Fiscal Year From ^to

IMPORTANT:

Please read RSA 32:5 applicable to all municipalities.

1

.

Use this form to list the entire budget in the appropriate recommended and not recommended area.

This means the operating budget and all special and individual warrant articles must be posted.

2. Hold at least one public hearing on this budget.

3. When completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with the wan-ant. Another copy must be

placed on file with the town clerk, and a copy sent to the Department of Revenue Administration

at the address below.

This is to certify that this budget was posted with the warrant on the (date)

BUDGET COMMITT

^<t-cxL^^i<<2<^jc^

Please sign in ink.

THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT
FOR DRA USE ONLY

NH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

MUNICIPAL FINANCE BUREAU
P.O. BOX 487, CONCORD, NH 03302-0487

(603)271-3397
MS-7

Rev. 07/02
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MS-7 Budget - Town/City of.

1 2

.HOPKINTON_

3

FY 2005.

5

ACCTJ SOURCE OF REVENUE
Warr.

Art.#

Estimated Revenues
Prior Year

Actual

Revenues
Prior Year

Estimated

Revenues
Ensuing Year

~1
TAXES xxxxxxxxx XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3120 Land Use Change Taxes 50000 88060 50000

3180 Resident Taxes

3185 Timber Taxes 20000

3186 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 21000 2508 21189

3189 Otiier Taxes 28269 20000

3190 Interest & Penalties on Delinquent Taxes 65000 152482 78000

Inventory Penalties

3187 Excavation Tax ($.02 cents per cu yd)

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3210 Business Licenses & Permits 1500 2134 1500

3220 Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 936165 1022008 875000

3230 Building Permits 15000 14285 15000

3290 Other Licenses, Permits & Fees 50000 39641 50000

3311-3319 FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 22000 43460 15000

FROM STATE XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3351 Shared Revenues 44400 69301 44400

3352 Meals & Rooms Tax Distribution 156315 347706 156315

3353 Highway Block Grant 156579 156579 156579

3354 Water Pollution Grant

3355 Housing & Community Development

3356 State & Federal Forest Land Reimbursement 671 671

3357 Flood Control Reimbursement 110000 4050 113229

3359 Other (Including Railroad Tax) 23457 23542 40000

3379 FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 1340 1000

CHARGES FOR SERVICES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3401-3406 Income from Departments 450000 523615 475000

3409 Other Charges 115000 137495 125000

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3501 Sale of Municipal Property 9846

3502 Interest on Investments 35000 27660 10000

3503-3509 Other 128584 196776 78986

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3912 From Special Revenue Funds

3913 From Capital Projects Funds

MS-7
Rav. 07/02

F39



Budget Form
for the Town— MS-7

MS-7 Budget • Town/City of,

1 2

HOPKINTON FY_2005_

4
Actual Estimated

Warr. Estimated Revenues Revenues Revenues
ACCT.# SOURCE OF REVENUE Art.# Prior Year Prior Year Ensuing Year

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN cont. xxxxxxxxx XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3914 From Enterprise Funds

Sewer - (Offset)

Water - (Offset)

Electric • (Offset)

Airport - (Offset)

3915 From Capital Reserve Funds 531961 47000

3916 From Trust & Agency Funds 47000 45955 26131

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3934 Proc. from Long Term Bonds & Notes 2850000

Amounts VOTED From F/B ("Surplus")

Fund Balance ("Surplus") to Reduce Taxes

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE & CREDITS 2447000 U*t34t C2H000

'BUDGET SUMMARY*

PRIOR YEAR
ADOPTED BUDGET

SELECTMEN'S

RECOMMENDED BUDGET
BUDGET COMMrREE-8
RECOMMENDED BUDGET

SUBTOTAL 1 Approprittloni Rccommsnded (from pg. 5) 4«023t7 48a4<03 4S*4M3

SUBTOTAL 2 SpKliI Warant Artlclet Recommtnded (from pg. 6) 4163«t 32S»000 328(000

SUBTOTAL 3 'Indlvldu*!- Warrant Aiticlu RacommandMl (from pg. 6) 1US00 C3SS00 C3M00

TOTAL Approprlatlona Racommandad 61t12«2 871*003 871(003

Laaa: Amount of Eatimatad Ravanuaa & Cradlts (from abova) 2447000 (2f0000 1280000

Eatlmatad Amount of TaxM to ba Ralaad 2704202 344*003 3Mt003

Maximum Allowable Increase to Budget Committee's Recommended Budget per RSA 32:18: _$9,225,974_

(See Supplemental Schedule With 10% Calculation)

M8-7

Rav. 07/02
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^^^^^ Hopkinton Assessing Department ^^^_^^
2004 Annual Report

The assessing office is responsible for administration and maintenance of the

assessing records of the Town of Hopkinton. The office performs this function

through the appraisal and assessment of all taxable and non-taxable property,

analysis ofproperty valuations, preparing annual market analysis/studies, managing

all exemptions and tax credits, listings and issuance of warrants for collection of

taxes, and presentation of data to the Board of selectmen and the public. The

office operates under the broad supervision of the Board of Selectmen; however

the duties of the office are performed independently using technical judgment,

adhering to municipal ordinances, and in compliance with the laws of the State of

New Hampshire.

During this past year we continued to watch sales closely and compared them

to assessments. Prices paid for property in Town continued to show measurable

appreciation. The ratio of sale price to assessed value fell to almost 80% by the

spring and early summer. Prices paid for land were double the assessed value.

By adjusting the land assessments to their market prices the overall assessment

ratio for the Town rose to 96.9%.

State certification standards allow for a 10% margin therefore the ratio of

assessment to sale price can range 90% to 110% of sale price. The current ratio

places Hopkinton well within the acceptable range.

The combination ofa nearly 17% increase in the 2004 budget and the updating

of values to meet certification standards resulted in what can only be described as

taxpayer "sticker shock". This office has made every attempt to handle all taxpayer

concerns relative to the increased values and taxes. In addition to sending nearly

150 letters in response to taxpayer calls, over 200 individual meetings were held in

November and early December. Additionally over 100 properties have been field

reviewed. We will continue to work hard to provide the highest level of service to

the Town.

In 2005 we will be working with AVITAR Associates to complete the upgrade

of the existing database operating system to enhance service to the community.

While this is no small undertaking we anticipate that the new system will be

operational by the end of the year.

Respectfully submitted,

Andrew G. LeMay SRA SRPA CHNA
Assessor

F41



^^^^^^ Hopkinton Assessing Department ^^^^
2004 Annual Report

Contoocook Hopkinton

Value of land Town Precint Precinct

Current use 2,920,580 355,500 47,330

Conservation restriction 189,378

Discretionary easement 15,660

Discretionary preservation easement 1,750 250 250

Residential 221,331,232 58,906,980 16,219,670

Commercial/ Industrial 11,121,000 3,063,900 331,800

Total taxable land 235,579,600 62,326,630 16,599,050

Value of Buildings

Residential 295,459,060 66,061,400 23,578,900

Manufactured housing 15,257,200 1,575,000

Commercial/ Industrial 35,196,425 11,601,325 738,100

Discretionary Preservation easement 36,640 2,620 2,260

Total Taxable Buildings 345,949,325 79,240,345 24,319,260

Public Utility Companies

Total Valuation

Before exemptions 599,076,744 141,566,975 40,918,310

Less exemptions

Blind 120,000 30,000

Elderly 1,880,000 360,000 40,000

Solar/wind power 63,900 4,050

Total amount of Exemptions 2,063,900 364,050 70,000

Net value on which tax rate

For Municipal, County & Local

Education tax is computed 597,012,844 141,202,925 40,848,310

Less Public Utilities 17,547,819

Net value less pubHc utilities

On which tax rate for State 579,645,025

Education tax is computed
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UTILITY SUMMARY

Name of Public Utility Company

UNITIL Energy Systems 142,122

New -England Hydro-Transmission Corp. 5,670,000

New England Power Company 3,000,224

Public Service Company 5,986,285

CHI Energy 2,751,188

Total Value 17,547,819

How Your Tax Dollar is spent

Tax Rate Information

Municipal 4.19

Local Education 13.76

State Education 2.98

County 2.00

Combined Rate 22.93

Contoocook Village Precinct 1.22

Hopkinton Village Precinct .36

Summary - Tax Rates- Hopkinton

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Municipal- town rate 4.39 4.39 4.49 4.49 4.54 4.44 4.19

County tax rate 1.95 1.98 2.26 2.28 2.40 2.14 2.00

Local Education tax rate 22.06 12.68 14.59 12.12 15.11 13.61 13.76

State education tax rate 6.28 6.18 5.90 5.54 4.37 2.98

Combined tax rate 28.40 25.33 27.52 24.79 27.59 24.56 22.93

Contoocook Village Precinct 2.10 1.94 1.89 1.78 1.73 1.57 1.22

Hopkinton Village Precinct .40 .42 .67 .62 1.52 .29 .36
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Current Use Report

Current use classification # acres receiving current use assessment

Farm land 2,017.17

Forest land 9,057.60

Forest land with documented stewardship 3,472.69

Unproductive 12

Wet Land 847.20

Total Acreage 15,406.66

Other current use statistics

3,686.43 Acres receiving a 20% recreational adjustment

39.05 Acres removed fi'om current use during the year

Discretionary Easements

Acres Owners Description

38.78 1 Golf course

$30.00 -r

$25.00 -

$20.00

$15.00 -

$10.00 -

$5.00 -

$- -

U $2^

$27.52

Tax rates 2000-2004

$27.59

$24.79 $24.56 $22.93

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
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Schedule of

Town / School / Precinct Property

TOWN

Location Map/Lot Acres Value

SOUTH RD 238/070 0.02 25,200

LITTLE FROST RD 230/003 0.05 200

MAPLE ST 101/007 0.10 173,300

BASSETT MILL RD 231/008 9.70 37,300

CEDAR ST 101/017 0.43 58,400

CURRIER RD 259/020 0.16 600

FARRINGTON CORNER RD 266/044.01 96.20 219,700

PINE ST 101/020 1.10 312,700

MAIN ST 104/060.01 0.09 500

PINE ST 101/021 0.55 813,300

KEARSARGEAVE 222/067.2 16.00 170,200

EUGENE FOOTE RD 233/002 31.00 93,900

BEECH HILL & CURRIER RD 259/024 0.19 13,000

PINE ST 221/044 45.50 211,800

BARTON CORNER RD 217/041 24.00 88,300

ROLLINS RD 250/061 18.50 341,800

HOPKINTON RD 239/037 0.91 601,100

ROLLINS RD 250/065 7.00 35,000

NEWRD 251/001 3.90 27,300

BLUEBIRD LN 225/083 0.21 1,100

E PENACOOK RD 244/006 48.00 299,200

HAWTHORNE HILL RD 251/010.1 92.54 263,100

E PENACOOK RD 244/011 85.00 256,700

OLD PUTNEY HILL RD 239/056 33.50 194,000

MAIN ST 101/085 2.47 180,200

HOUSTON DR 221/083 67.85 1,599,120

BAILEY RD 210/014 0.25 55,600

KEARSARGEAVE 206/019 18.00 2,000

PUBLIC WORKS RD (& 250) 102/009 46.78 4,640,200
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GARRISON LN

SPRING ST

CARRIAGE LN

BOUND TREE & CLEMENT HILL RD
BOUND TREE & CLEMENT HILL RD
TAMARACK RD
CEDAR ST & MAPLE ST

OLD PUTNEY HILL RD
SPRING ST

CLEMENT HILL RD
SPRING ST

HOPKINTON & OLD HENNIKER RD
IRISH HILL RD
SUGAR HILL RD
HATFIELD RD
E PENACOOK RD
FIELDSTONE RD.

FARRINGTON CORNER RD
MAIN ST

MAPLE ST

SPRING ST

UPPER STRAW RD
MAIN ST

JEWETT RD
GAGE HILL RD
PATCH RD
PINE ST

PENACOOK & GOULD HILL RD
PATCH RD
PENACOOK & GOULD HILL RD
GAGE HILL RD
MAIN ST

PARK AVE & KEARSARGE AVE

BOUND TREE RD

251/056 0.40 12,900

221/104 0.18 900

102/022.01 1.42 7,200

207/016 4.30 65,800

207/017 40.00 219,500

211/014 0.06 9,700

102/038 0.03 200

105/024.01 0.06 300

221/126.1 6.43 1,040

208/001 0.53 54,100

221/126.2 4.81 780

105/031 0.33 82,500

237/038 1.30 6,900

237/039 5.80 30,700

214/001 41.50 362,600

246/006 97.00 184,600

251/061 16.19 11,350

265/002 1.80 11,400

106/003 52.50 438,200

102/085 0.67 56,000

222/021 7.08 36,100

265/027 0.06 12,900

106/023 0.47 473,400

256/005 16.40 2,650

238/049 0.31 24,200

249/013 33.46 215,400

220/035 12.00 33,900

103/017 0.47 2,400

249/021 0.05 12,900

103/022 0.15 24,000

229/001 0.20 900

106/049 1.20 191,200

101/052 0.05 8,000

207/038 33.50 90,500

F46



Location

PARK AVE

MAPLE ST

MAPLE ST

MAIN ST

Hopkinton Assessing Department
2004 Annual Report

Map/Lot Acres Value

222/067.1 9.63 5,158,900

102/003 0.48 151,900

102/004 5.80 2,247,900

106/007 8.00 2,227,000

CONTOOCOOKVILLAGE PRECINCT

Location

BOUND TREE RD
PLEASANT POND RD
BOUND TREE RD
BOUND TREE RD
HOPKINTON RD

Map/Lot Acres Value

204/013.1 3.00 547,400

204/021 14.90 149,900

204/024 0.07 18,500

204/025 4.10 86,900

104/095.01 0.12 312,700

HOPKINTON VILLAGE PRECINCT

Location

BRLm HILL RD
OLD PUTNEY HILL RD
OLD PUTNEY HILL RD
MAIN ST

Map/Lot Acres Value

250/006 14.74 61,300

239/059 0.75 86,800

105/022 15.00 138,000

105/049 0.11 89,700
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Plodzik& Sanderson
Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors

193 North Main Street Concord New Hampshire 03301-5063 603-225^6996 FAX-224-1380

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen

Town of Hopkinton

Hopkinton, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Town of Hopkinton, New Hampshire as of

and for the year ended December 31, 2003 as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose financial statements

are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose

financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The general purpose financial statements referred to above do not include the general fixed assets account group which

should be included in order to conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. As

is the case with many municipal entities in the State of New Hampshire, the Town of Hopkinton has not maintained

historical cost records of its fixed assets. The amount that should be recorded in the general fixed assets account group is

not known.

In our opinion, except for the effect on the financial statements of the omission described in the preceding paragraph, the

general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Town of Hopkinton as of December 31, 2003, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its nonexpendable

trust funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of the Town of

Hopkinton taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements listed as schedules in the table of

contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial

statements of the Town of Hopkinton. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation

to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

April 9, 2004
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EXHIBIT A
TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Combined Balance Sheet

All Fund Types and Account Group
December 31, 2003

GovernmentalFiduciaryAccount Group

Fund TvDes Fund Types

Trust and

General

Long-Term

Total

ASSETS AND Special (Memorandum
OTHER DEBITS General Revenue Agency Debt Only)

Assets

Cash and Equivalents $ 5,346,391 $ 317,185 $ 82,235 $ $ 5,745,811

Investments 18,391 1,905,077 1,923,468

Receivables (Net of

Allowance For Uncollectible)

Taxes 635,113 635,113

Accounts 2,192 10,376 12,568

Intergovernmental 175,615 175,615

Interfund Receivable 50,494 14,961 4,915,783 4,981,238

Other Debits

Amount to be Provided

for Retirement of

General Long-Term Debt 2,644,912 2.644.912

TOTAL ASSETS
AND OTHER DEBITS $ 6.209.805 $ 360.913 $ 6.903.095 $ 2.644.912 $ 16.118.725

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 16,394 $ $ $ $ 16,394

Intergovernmental Payable 2,821 5,235,717 5,238,538

Interfund Payable 4,930,744 16,511 33,983 4,981,238

Escrow and Performance Deposits 23,359 23,359

Deferred Tax Revenue 26,221 26,221

General Obligation

Bonds/Notes Payable 2,047,204 2,047,204

Capital Lease Payable 12,108 12,108

Accrued Landfill

Postclosure Care Costs 585.600

2,644,912

585.600

Total Liabilities 4.973,359 19.332 5,293.059 12.930.662

Equity

Fund Balances

Reserved For Encumbrances 26,050 26,050

Reserved For Endowments 595,618 595,618

Reserved For Special Purposes 1,014,418 1,014,418

Unreserved

Designated For Special Purposes 341,581 341,581

Undesignated 1.210.396

1,236,446

$ 6,209,805

1.210.396

Total Equity 341.581

$ 360,913

1.610.036

0,903,095

3.188.063

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 2.644^12 $ 16.118.725

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B
TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Fiduciary

Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Total

Special Expendable (Memorandum
General Revenue Trust Only)

Revenues

Taxes $ 2,227,390 $ 27,489 $ $ 2,254,879

Licenses and Permits 1,040,205 1,040,205

Intergovernmental 591,558 591,558

Charges for Services 642,579 122,423 765,002

Miscellaneous 111,442 34,841 12.296 158,579

Total Revenues 4.613,174 184.753 12.296 4,810,223

Expenditures ^

Current

General Government 959,351 959,351

Public Safety 1,124,061 1,124,061

Highways and Streets 884,205 884,205

Sanitation 532,190 80,631 612,821

Health 28,147 28,147

Welfare 85,484 85,484

Culture and Recreation 380,709 69,422 450,131

Conservation 1,000 1,000

Debt Service 298,737 298,737

Capital Outlay 104.982

4.397.866

133.189

133.189

238,171

Total Expenditures 151.053 4,682,108

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 215.308 33.700 (120.893) 128,115

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Interfund Transfers In 40,082 2,394 409,500 451,976

Interfund Transfers Out (409,500)

(369,418)

(8,475)

401,025

(417.975)

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 2,394 34.001

Net Change in Fund Balances (154,110) 36,094 280,132 162,116

Fund Balances - January 1 1.390,556 305.487 390,333 2.086,376

Fund Balances - December 3

1

$ 1,236,446 $ 341.581 $ 670.465 $ 2.248.492

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C
TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

General and Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Revenues

Taxes $

Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current

General Government

Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and Recreation

Conservation

Debt Service

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Interfund Transfers In

Interfund Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Unreserved Fund Balances - lanuary 1

Unreserved Fund Balances - December 3

1

General Fund

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

2,173,708 $ 2,227,390 $ 53,682

1,016,000 1,040,205 24,205

525,683 567,062 41,379

452,075 642,579 190,504

30,200 111.442 81.242

4.197.666 4.588,678 391,012

954,748 954,402 346

1,154,915 1,099,565 55,350

906,592 886,205 20,387

535,258 532,190 3,068

21,590 28,147 (6,557)

84,756 85,484 (728)

402,713 379,559 23,154

3,725 3,725

303,737 298,737 5,000

29,000 1 14,000 (85,000)

4.397.034 4.378.289 18,745

(199,368) 210,389 409,757

29,569 40,082 10,513

(425.201) (409,500) 15,701

(395,632) (369,418) 26,214

$ (595.000) (159,029)

1,369,425

$ 1.210.396

$ 435.971
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Annually Budgeted

Special Revenue Fund

Budget

Total

(Memorandum Only)

ActualBudget Actual

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

$

101,493

$

78,136

2,442

$

(23,357)

2,442

$ 2,173,708

1,016,000

525,683

553,568

30.200

$ 2,227,390

1,040,205

567,062

720,715

113.884

$ 53,682

24,205

41,379

167,147

83.684

101.493 80.578 (20.915) 4.299.159 4.669.256 370.097

101,493

101.493

80,631

80.631

20,862

20.862

954,748 954,402 346

1,154,915 1,099,565 55,350

906,592 886,205 20,387

636,751 612,821 23,930

21,590 28,147 (6,557)

84,756 85,484 (728)

402,713 379,559 23,154

3,725 3,725

303,737 298,737 5,000

29.000 114.000 (85,000)

4.498.527 4.458.920 39.607

i53) m) (199.368) 210.336 409.704

:Qr_

$ 73.868

(53) $ (53)

73.921

29,569

(425.201)

(395.632)

$ (595.000)

40,082

(409.500)

(369.418 )

(159,082)

1.443.346

$ 1.284.264

10,513

15.701

26.214

$ 435.918

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D
TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Operating Revenues

New Funds

Interest and Dividends

Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Trust Income Distributions

Transfers Out To Other Funds

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance •• December 3

1

$ 28,260

25,276

114.138

167.674

21,566

34.001

55.567

112,107

827.464

$ 939.571

The notes to financial statcnicnts are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E
TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash Received as Interest and Dividends $ 25,276

Cash Received as New Funds 28,260

Cash Paid as Trust Income Distributions (21,566)

Cash Paid to Other Funds (34,001)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (2,031 )

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds From Sale and Maturities o( Investments 15,555

Net Increase in Cash 13,524

Cash -- January 1 45,352

Cash -December 31 $ 58.876

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net

Cash Used by Operating Activities

Operating Income $ 112,107

Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income to Net

Cash Used by Operating Activities

Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments (114,138)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ (2,031 )

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6
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TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles

(GAAP) as applied to the governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted

standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of

the government's accounting policies are described below.

1-A Reporting Entity

The Town of Hopkinton, New Hampshire is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board of

Selectmen. As required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the

Town of Hopkinton (primary government). Component units are organizations for which the primary

government is financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the

primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be

misleading or incomplete. Based on the foregoing criteria, no other organizations are included in the Town's

financial reporting entity.

1-B Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each ofwhich is considered a

separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing

accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses, as appropriate.

The various funds are grouped by type in the financial statements. The following fund types and account groups

are used by the Town:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. All general tax revenues and

other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this

fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed charges, and the capital

improvement costs that are not paid through other funds.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue

sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or

regulatory provisions or administrative action.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held or established under a formal trust agreement or

Town Meeting vote, or assets held by the Town as a trustee or agent for individuals, private organizations, or

other units of government.

Account Groups

Account groups are not "funds." They are concerned only with the measurement of financial position. They are

not involved with the measurement of results of operations. The Town uses the following account groups:
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TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HA2V1PSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

General Fixed Assets Account Group - General fixed assets have been acquired for general governmental

purposes and have been recorded as expenditures in the applicable fund. These acquisitions are required to be

capitalized at historical cost in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. In accordance with the practice

followed by many other municipal entities in the State, the Town does not maintain such a record of its general

fixed assets and, accordingly, a statement of general fixed assets, required by U.S. generally accepted accounting

principles, is not included in this financial report.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This account group is established to account for all long-term debt

of the Town.

1-C Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this

method, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both available and measurable

(flow of current financial resources measurement focus). Licenses and permits, fines and forfeits, and most

miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received in cash. General taxes, intergovernmental revenues, charges

for services, and investment earnings are recorded when earned (when they are measurable and available).

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable,

except expenditures for prepayments, debt service, and other long-term obligations, which are recognized when

due.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Using this basis of

accounting, revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred

(flow of economic resources measurement focus)

.

1-D Assets. Liabilities and Fund Equity

1-D-l Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-

term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the Town.

New Hampshire statutes require that the Town treasurer have custody of all moneys belonging to the Town and

pay out the same only upon orders of the Board of Selectmen. The treasurer shall deposit all moneys in

participation units in the public deposit investment pool established pursuant to N.H. RSA 383:22 or in solvent

banks in the state. Funds may be deposited in banks outside the state if such banks pledge or deliver to a third

party custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits. United States government

or government agency obligations, or obligations of the State of New Hampshire in value at least equal to the

amount of the deposit in each case.

Investments - Whenever the treasurer has in custody an excess of funds which are not immediately needed for

the purpose of expenditure, the treasurer shall, with the approval of the Board of Selectmen, invest the excess

funds. New Hampshire law authorizes the Town to invest in the following types of obligations:

Obligations of the United States Government,

The public deposit investment pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22,

Savings bank deposits, or

Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of

New Hampshire or in banks recognized by the state treasurer.
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Any person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in

securities of any kind shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, make available at the time of such deposit or

investment an option to have such funds secured by collateral having a value at least equal to the amount of

such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated for the exclusive benefit of the Town. Only securities defined by

the bank commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to RSA 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged as

collateral.

Investments are stated at fair value as of the balance sheet date which is based on quoted market prices.

l-D-2 Receivables

Tax revenue is recorded when a warrant for collection is committed to the Tax Collector. All taxes receivable

are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts. The allowance has been established for possible

abatements of current receivables.

As prescribed by law, the Tax Collector executes a lien on properties for all uncollected property taxes in the

following year after taxes are due. The lien on these properties has priority over other liens and accrues interest

at 18% per annum. If property is not redeemed within the 2 -year redemption period, the property is tax-deeded

to the Town.

Various service charges (ambulance, police and sewer) are recorded as revenue for the period when service was

provided.

l-D-3 Interfund Balances and Activity

During the course of normal operations, the Town has transactions between funds, including expenditures and

transfers of resources to provide services and fund capital outlay. The accompanying governmental and fiduciary

fund financial statements reflect such transactions as transfers. To the extent that certain transactions have not

been paid or received as of December 3 1 , balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been

recorded. Also, an interfund receivable/payable has been recorded to account for the portion of the property tax

activity in the General Fund that is due to the school district from the Agency Fund.

l-D-4 Compensated Absences

Employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment. Compensated

absences accumulate and are recorded as expenditures when they are paid.

l-D-5 Deferred Revenue

The government reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenue arises when a

potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current

period. Deferred revenue also arises when resources are received by the government before it has a legal claim to

them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent

periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to the resources,

the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.
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l-D'6 Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables and accrued liabilities are reported in the financial statements.

In general, Governmental Fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner

and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of these funds. However, claims and

judgements, and compensated absences that will be paid from Governmental Funds are reported as a liability in

the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year.

The Town reports long-term debt of Governmental Funds at face value in the General Long-Term Debt

Account Group. Certain other Governmental Fund obligations not expected to be financed with current

available financial resources are also reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

l-D-7 Fund Equity

Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current liabilities. The Town
reserves those portions of fund balance that are legally segregated for a specific use or that do not represent

available, spendable resources, and therefore are not available for appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved

fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation in future periods.

Designations are management's intent to set aside these resources for specific purposes.

The following reserves are used by the Town:

Reserved for Encumbrances - is used to account for open purchase orders, contracts and other commitments at

year-end for which goods and services have not been received.

Reserved for Endowments - represents the principal balance of the Town's Nonexpendable Trust Funds which

must be held for investment purposes only.

Reserved for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balance of restricted funds. These

consist of the Town's Expendable Trust Funds and the income portion of the Town's Nonexpendable Trust

Funds.

The following designation is used by the Town:

Designated for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balances ofSpecial Revenue Funds.

l-D-8 Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial

statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

11
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l-D-9 Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned as memorandum only because they

do not represent consolidated financial information and are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. The
columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results of operations or cash flows in

accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made in

the aggregation of this data.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, C02VCPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

2-A Budgetary Information

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled by a formal

integrated budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements which govern the Town's

operations. At its annual meeting, the Town adopts a budget for the current year for the General and Sewer

Department Funds. Except as reconciled on the following page, budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but expenditures

may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless

encumbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations (certain

projects and specific items not fully expended at year-end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental

funds. Encumbrances are not the equivalent of expenditures and are therefore reported as part of the fund

balance at December 3 1 and are carried forward to supplement appropriations of the subsequent year.

State statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use ofbeginning unreserved fund balance to achieve

that end. In the fiscal year 2003, $595,000 of the beginning General Fund fund balance was applied for this

purpose.

2-B Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Amounts recorded as budgetary revenues and expenditures in the Combined Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General and Special Revenue Funds

(Exhibit C) are presented on the basis budgeted by the Town. The amounts differ from those reported in

conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in the Combined Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

(Exhibit B) as follows:
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General
Fund

Special
Revenue
Funds

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Per Exhibit C (Budgetary Basis) $ 4,628,760 $ 80,578

Adiustments

Basis Difference

Retirement Contributions Paid by the State of New Hampshire 24,496

Entity Difference

Unbudeeted Funds

Safe Schools 37

Town Forest 7,939

Conservation Commission 27,849

Recreation 44,549

Police/Fire Grants 2,303

Public Library 23.892

Per Exhibit B (GAAP Basis) $ 4.653.256 $ 187.147

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Per Exhibit C (Budgetary Basis) $ 4,787,789 $ 80,631

Adjustments

Basis Difference

Encumbrances - December 31, 2002 21,131

Encumbrances - December 31, 2003 (26,050)

Retirement Contributions Paid by the State ofNew Hampshire 24,496

Entity Difference

Unbudgeted Funds

Town Forest 200

Conservation Commission 1,000

Recreation 49,286

Public Library 19.936

Per Exhibit B (GAAP Basis) $ 4.807.366 $ 151.053

2-C Bonds or Notes Authorized - Unissued

Bonds and notes authorized and unissued as of December 31, 2003 were as follows:

Per

Town Meeting

Vote of Purpose

Unissued

Amount

1997' Article 6

2003 - Article 7

Playing Field

Land Purchase

$ 388,000

5.000.000

Total UJ88.0Q0
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

3-A Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments

At year-end, the Town's carrying amount of deposits was $5,745,811, and the bank balance was $5 ,8 17, 123. Of
the bank balance, $182,913 was insured or collateralized with securities held by the Town or its agent in the

Town's name; $5,595,842 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions's trust

department or agent in the Town's name; and $38,368 was uninsured and uncoUateralized.

Investments made by the Town are summarized below. The investments that are represented by specific

identifiable investment securities are classified as to credit risk into three categories as follows:

Category I Includes investments that are insured or registered for which the securities are held by the Town
or its agent in the Town's name.

Category 2 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the Town,
broker, counter party's trust department or agent in the Town's name.

Category 3 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker,

counter party, counter party's trust department or agent, but not in the Town's name.

3-B

Cateeory

$

Fair

1 2

$

3

$

Value

United States Government

Obligations

Corporate Bonds

Common Stocks

$ 148,476

285,753

533.008

$ 967.237

148,476

285,753

533,008

New Hampshire

Public Deposit Investment Pool

Total Investments

Taxes Receivable

$ -0- $ -0- 967,237

956.231

1.923.468

The property tax year is from April 1 to March 3 1 and all property taxes are assessed on the inventory taken in

April of that year. The net assessed valuation as of April 1, 2003, upon which the 2003 property tax levy was

based is:

For the New Hampshire Education Tax $ 486, 153,975

For All Other Taxes $ 500,311,775

The Town subscribes to the semi-annual method of tax collection as provided for by RSA 76: 15-a. Under this

method, tax bills are sent on or around June 1 and November 1 of each year, with interest accruing at a rate of

12% on bills outstanding for more than 30 days. The June 1 billing is considered an estimate only and is one half

of the previous year's tax billing. The remaining balance of taxes due is billed in the fall after the New
Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration has calculated and approved the Town's tax rate for the

fiscal year.
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In connection with the setting of the tax rate, Town Officials with the approval of the Department of Revenue

Administration, establish and raise through taxation an amount for abatements and refunds of property taxes,

known as overlay. This amount is reported as a reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by management for any

tax allowances at year-end. The property taxes collected by the Town include taxes levied for the State ofNew
Hampshire, Hopkinton School District, Merrimack County, Hopkinton Village Precinct and Contoocook

Village Precinct, which are remitted as required by law. The taxes collected for these other entities are recorded

in an Agency Fund. The ultimate responsibility for the collection of taxes rests with the Town.

The tax rates and amounts assessed for the year ended December 31, 2003, were as follows:

Property

Per $1,000 of Taxes

Assessed Valuation Assessed

Municipal Portion $ 4.44 $ 2,219,823

School Portion

State of New Hampshire $ 4-37 2,124,235

Local $13.61 6,809,198

County Portion $ 2.14 1,072,531

Precinct Portion $ 1.86 185.038

Total Property Taxes Assessed $ 12.410.825

During the current fiscal year, the Tax Collector executed a lien on April 15 for all uncollected 2002 property

taxes.

Taxes receivable at December 31, 2003, are as follows:

Property

Levy of 2003 $ 570,770

Unredeemed (under tax lien)

Levy of 2002 97,807

Levy of 2001 42,266

Levy of 2000 17,909

Levy of Prior Years 7,626

Timber 4,735

Less: Allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes (106.000)

Net Taxes Receivable $ 635.113

3-C Other Receivables

Receivables at December 31, 2003, consist of accounts (landfill and miscellaneous) and intergovernmental

receivables arising from grants and reimbursements.

Receivables are recorded on the Town's financial statements to the extent that the amounts are determined to

be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic

method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and collectibility.
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Interfund Balances and Transfers

Interfund balances at December 31, 2003 consist of budgetary transfers and the Agency Fund's liability to the

school district which is comprised of property taxes receivable and cash in the General Fund.

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Interfund

Receivable

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Trust Funds

Agency Fund

Totals

Interfund

Payable

$ 50,494

14,961

4.915.783

$ 4.981.238

$ 4,930,744

16,511

33,983

$ 4.981.238

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2003 consisted of the following:

In

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Trust Funds

Totals

Transfers

Out

Transfers

$ 40,082

2,394

409.500

$ 409,500

42,476

$ 451.976 $ 451.976

Intergovernmental Payable

Amounts due to other governments at December 31, 2003 consist of:

Special Revenue Fund
Sewer Department

Balance of sewer rents due to the Contoocook Village Precinct $ 2,821

Trust Funds

Expendable

Balance of funds belonging to the Hopkinton School District 319,934

Agency Fund

Balance of 2003-2004 district assessment due to the Hopkinton School District 4,915.783

Total $ 5.238.538

Deferred Revenue

General Fund

Deferred revenue at December 3 1 , 2003 of $26,22 1 consists of property tax payments collected in advance, to be

applied to the subsequent year s levy.
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3-G Long-Term Debt

Changes in the Town's long-term obligations during the year ended December 31, 2003, consisted of the

following:

Balances,

January 1, 2003 Additions

Balances,

Reductions December 31, 2003

General Obligation Bonds/Notes

Capital Lease

Accrued Landfill

Postclosure Care Costs

Totals

$ 2,242,261

23,429

504,000

$ (195,057)

(11.321)

81,600

$ 2,047,204

12,108

585,600

$ 2.769.690 $ 81.600 $ (206.378) $ 2.644.912

Long-term debt payable at December 31, 2003, is comprised of the following:

General Obligation

Bonds/Notes Payable

Transfer Station

Landfill Closure

Library Building

Capital Lease Payable

Pick-Up Truck

Accrued Landfill

Postclosure Care Costs

Total

Original

Amount

$ 800,000

$ 1,859,384

$ 725,000

Issue

Date

1989

1998

1998

$ 46,967 2001

Maturity

Date

2009

2017

2007

2004

Interest

Rate

%

6.75

Variable

4.57

6.95

Outstanding

at

December 31. 2003

$ 240,000

1,452,204

355.000

2.047.204

12.108

585.600

$ 2.644.912

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation debt outstanding as ofDecember 31, 2003, including

interest payments, are as follows:

Annual Requirements To Amortize General Obligation Bonds/Notes Payable

Fiscal Year Ending

December 3 1

.

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009-2013

2014-2017

Totals

Principal Interest Total

$ 203,221 $ 94,195 $ 297,416

206,519 84,352 290,871

214,956 74,157 289,113

223,538 63,581 287,119

132,271 52,616 184,887

563,090 176,861 739,951

503.609 54,175 557.784

$ 2.047.204 $ 599.937 $ 2.647.141
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The final payments on the outstanding lease are due in 2004 and consist of $12, 108 principal and $841 interest,

for a total of $12,949.

All debt is general obligation debt of the Town, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid

from general governmental revenues.

The lease-purchase agreement contains a non-appropriation funding clause whereby, in the event no funds or

insufficient funds had been appropriated by the Town, the lease would have terminated without penalty or

expense to the Town.

Accrued Landfill Postchsure Care Costs

The Town ceased operating its landfill in 1997. Federal and State laws and regulations require that the Town
continue to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site. A liability is being

recognized in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group based on the future postclosure care costs that will

be incurred. The estimated liability for landfill postclosure care costs has a balance of $585,600 as of December

31, 2003, which is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to

monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31, 2003. However, the actual cost of

postclosure care may be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and

regulations. The Town expects to finance the postclosure care costs by annual appropriation.

NOTE 4 - OTHER MATTERS

4-A Pensions

Plan Description and Provisions

The Town of Hopkinton participates in the New Hampshire Retirement System (The System) which consists of

a cost-sharing, multiple-employer contributory pension plan and trust established in 1967 by RSA 100-A: 2 and

is qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401 (a) and 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The

plan is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to

members and their beneficiaries. Provisions for benefits and contributions are established and can be amended

by the New Hampshire State Legislature. The System issues a publicly available financial report that may be

obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 4 Chenell Drive, Concord, NH 03301.

Description of Funding Policy

The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the Town. Member contribution rates are

established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the System

trustees based on an actuarial valuation. All employees except police officers and firefighters are required to

contribute 5% of earnable compensation. Police officers and firefighters are required to contribute 9.3% ofgross

earnings. For the six month period ended June 30, 2003, the Town contributed 5.33% for police officers, 6.61%

for firefighters and 4-14% for other employees. For the six month period ended December 3 1 , 2003, the Town
contributed 7.87% for police officers, 13.44% for firefighters and 5.90% for other employees. The contribution

requirements for the Town of Hopkinton for the years 2001, 2002, and 2003 were $53,475, $61,543, and

$94,850, respectively, which were paid in full in each year.
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The State of New Hampshire funds 35% of employer costs for police officers and firefighters employed by the

Town. The State does not participate in funding the employer costs of other Town employees. GASB
Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance requires

this amount to be reported as a revenue and expenditure in the Town's financial statements. This amount

$24,496 has been included on Exhibit B - Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds and is reconciled to the budgetary

expenditures in Note 2-B.

4-B Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors

or omissions; injuries to employees; or natural disasters. During 2003, the Town was a member of the New
Hampshire Municipal Association Local Government Center Property-Liability Trust, LLC and the New
Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex) Workers' Compensation Program. These entities are

considered public entity risk pools, currently operating as common risk management and insurance programs for

member towns and cities.

The New Hampshire Municipal Association Local Government Center Property-Liability Trust, LLC is a

Trust organized to provide certain property and liability insurance coverages to member towns, cities and other

qualified political subdivisions of New Hampshire. As a member of the Local Government Center

Property- Liability Trust, LLC, the Town shares in contributing to the cost of, and receiving benefits from, a

self-insured pooled risk management program. The membership and coverage run from July 1 to June 30. The

program includes a Self-Insured Retention Fund (SIR) from which is paid up to $500,000 for each and every

covered property, auto physical damage or crime loss, subject to a $1,000 deductible, and each and every

covered general liability and public officials' liability loss. The Trust maintains, on behalfof its members, various

reinsurance policies shared by the membership.

Contributions paid in 2003 for fiscal year 2004 ending June 30, 2004, to be recorded as an insurance expenditure

totaled $52, 188. There were no unpaid contributions for the year ending June 30, 2004 and due in 2003. The

trust agreement permits the Trust to make additional assessments to members should there be a deficiency in

Trust assets to meet its liabilities. At this time, the Trust foresees no likelihood of any additional assessments for

past years.

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex) Workers' Compensation Program is a

pooled risk management program under RSAs 5-B and 281 -A. The workers' compensation and employer's

liability policy provides statutory coverage for workers' compensation and up to $2,000,000 of employer's liability

coverage. Primex retained $500,000 of each loss. The membership and coverage run from January 1 through

December 31. The estimated net contribution from the Town of Hopkinton billed and paid for the year ended

December 3, 2003 was $33,703. The member participation agreement permits Primex to make additional

assessments to members, should there be a deficiency in contributions for any member year, not to exceed the

member's annual contribution. At this time, Primex foresees no likelihood of any additional assessment for this

or any prior year.
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4-C Contingent Liabilities

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such grantor

agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable

funds. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time

although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

4-D New Reporting Standard

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial

Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. This statement

establishes new financial reporting requirements for all state and local governments. When implemented, it will

require new information and restructure much of the information that governments have presented in the past.

Comparability with reports issued in all prior years will be affected. The Town is required to implement this

standard for the year ending December 31, 2004-
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REVENUES
Taxes
Property

Land Use Change
Timber
Excavation

Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Interest and Penalties on Taxes

Total Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees

Business Licenses and Permits

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees

Building Permits

Other

Total Licenses, Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental

State

Shared Revenue Block Grant

Meals and Rooms Distribution

Highway Block Grant

State and Federal Forest Land Reimbursement

Flood Control Reimbursement

Other

Federal

FEMA
Total Intergovernmental

Charges For Services

Income From Departments

Garbage - Refuse Charges

Ambulance Fees

Other

Total Charges For Services

Miscellaneous

Interest on Investments

Other

Total Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources

Interfund Transfers

Trust Funds

Expendable

Nonexpendable

Total Other Financing Sources

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Unreserved Fund Balance

Used To Reduce Tax Rate

Total Revenues. Other Financing

Sources and Use of Fund Balance

Estimated Actual

Over
(Under)

Estimate

$ 2,077,841

20,000

10,000

15,867

50,000

2.173.708

$ 2,059,734

53,907

22,010

86

20,689

70,964

2.227.390

$ (18,107)

33,907

12,010

86

4,822

20.964

53.682

1,000

950,000

. 15,000

50.000

1.016.000

3,616

976,380

17,176

43.033

1.040.205

2,616

26,380

2,176

(6,967)

24.205

69,301

163,251

155,546

899

113,229

23,457

69,301

163,251

155,546

899

114,033

51,269

804

27,812

12.763

567.062

12,763

525.683 41,379

222,360

115,000

114,715

452.075

159,507

230,994

146,744

105.334

642.579

(62,853)

115,994

146,744

(9,381)

190,504

30,000

200

30.200

35,171

76.271

111,442

5,171

76.071

81,242

29,569

29.569

8,476

31,606

40,082

8,476

2,037

10,513

4,227,235 $ 4.628.760 $ 401J25

595,000

$ 4,822.235

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1.
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Encumbered Expenditures Encumbered (Over)

From Appropriations Net of To Under

2002 2003 Refunds 2004 Budget

Current

General Government

Executive $ $ 148,720 $ 163,815 $ $ (15,095)

Election and Registration 208,350 196,512 11,838

Financial Administration 106,097 105,897 200

Revaluation of Property 86,427 99,382 (12,955)

Legal 25,000 17,125 7,875

Personnel Administration 52,621 54,093 (1,472)

Planning and Zoning 4,949 81,403 87,379 (1,027)

General Government Buildings 123,467 112,370 11,097

Cemeteries 43,079 36,754 6,325

Insurance, not otherwise allocated 79.584

954.748

86.024

959.351

(6.440)

Total General Government 4.949 346

Public Safety

Police Department 682,886 641,726 41,160

Ambulance 274,934 265,459 9,475

Fire Department 188,320 192,380 (4,060)

Other 8.775

1.154.915

8.775

Total Public Safety 1.099.565 55.350

Highways and Streets

Administration 412,272 405,473 6,799

Highways and Streets 492,820 477,717 2,000 13,103

Street Lighting 1.500

906,592

1.015

884.205

485

Total Highways and Streets 2.000 20,387

Sanitation

Solid Waste Disposal 503,398 507,231 (3,833)

Solid Waste Cleanup 31,860

535,258

24.959

532.190

6.901

Total Sanitation 3.068

Health

Administration 2,269 51 2,218

Health Agencies and Hospitals 19.321

21.590

28.096

28,147

(8.775)

Total Health (6,557)

Welfare

Administration 29,756 18,705 11,051

Vendor Payments 55.000

84.756

66.779

85.484

(11.779)

Total Welfare (728)
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SCHEDULE A-2 (Continued)

TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund

Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Encumbered

From

2002

Appropriations

2003

Expenditures

Net of

Refunds

168,628

205,928

6,153

380.709

Encumbered

To
2004

350

(Over)

Under

Budget

Culture and Recreation

Parks and Recreation

Library

Patriotic Purposes

1,500

177,665

218,848

6,200

402.713

9,037

14,070

47

Total Culture and Recreation 1.500 350 23.154

Conservation

Administration 3,725

195,057

103,680

5,000

303,737

25,000

4,000

3.725

Debt Service

Principal - Long-Term Debt

Interest - Long-Term Debt

Interest - Tax Anticipation Notes

195,057

103,680

5.000

Total Debt Service 298,737

14,682

1,300

4,000

85,000

104,982

5.000

Capital Outlay

Village Revitalization

Athletic Fields

Private Roads

Land Purchase

14,682

23,700

(85.000)

Total Capital Outlay 14,682 29,000 23.700 (85.000)

Other Financing Uses

Interfund Transfers

Trust Funds

Expendable

Capital Reserve

Other

374,501

50,700

425.201

$ 4.822.235

374,500

35.000

409.500

$ 4,782.870

1

15.700

Total Other Financing Uses 15.701

Total Appropriations,

Expenditures and Encumbrances $ 41.U1 $ 26.050 $ 34.446

Sec Independent Auditor's Report, page I.
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SCHEDULE A'3

TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund

Statement of Changes in Unreserved - Undesignated Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Unreserved. Undesignated Fund Balance - January 1 $ 1,369,425

Changes

Unreserved Fund Balance Used To Reduce 2003 Tax Rate (595,000)

2003 Budget Summary

Revenue Surplus (Schedule A-l) $ 401,525

Unexpended Balance of Appropriations (Schedule A'2) 34,446

2003 Budget Surplus 435,971

Unreserved. Undesignated Fund Balance - December 3

1

$ 1,210,396

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1

.
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SCHEDULE B-l

TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2003

ASSETS

Cash and Equivalents

Investments

Accounts Receivable

Interfund Receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

Sewer Safe Town
Department Schools Forest

$ 82,824 $ 3,338 $ 101,060

10,376

$ 93.200 $ 3.338 $ 10L060

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Intergovernmental Payable

Interfund Payable

Total Liabilities

$ 2,821

16.511

19.332

Equity

Fund Balances

Unreserved

Designated For Special Purposes 73.868 3.338 101.060

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 93.200 $ 3.338 $ 101.060
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Conservation Police/Fire Public

Commission Recreation Grants Library —Total

$ 80,454 $ 18,096 $ 8,453 $ 22.960 $ 317,185

18,391 18,391

10,376

14,961

$ 95.415 $ 18.096 S> 8.453 ^ 41.351 $ 360,913

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1

.
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SCHEDULE B'2

TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Revenues

Taxes $

Charges for Services

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Sewer

Department

Safe

Schools

Town
Forest

$

78,136

2,442

$

37 7.939

80,578 37 7,939

Expenditures

Current

Sanitation

Culture and Recreation

Conservation

80,631

200

Total Expenditures 80,631 200

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures i53) 31 7.739

Other Financing Sources

Interfund Transfers In

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances •• January 1

(53)

73.921

37

3,301

7,739

93.321

Fund Balances - December 3

1

$ 73.868 $ 3.338 $ 101.060
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Conservation

Commission Recreation

Police/Fire

Grants

Public

Library Total

$ 27,489

360

$

44,287

262

$

2.303

$

21.498

$ 27,489

122,423

34,841

27.849 44.549 2,303 21.498 184,753

80,631

49,286 19,936 69,422

1.000 1.000

1.000 49.286 19.936 151.053

26.849 (4.737) 2.303 1.562 33.700

2.394 2.394

26,849 (4,737) 2,303 3,956 36,094

68.566 22.833 6.150 37.395 305.487

$ 95.415 $ 18.096 $ 8.453 $ 41.351 $ 341.581

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1

.
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SCHEDULE C-l

TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Trust and Agency Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2003

Trust Funds

Agency

Funds

Expendable

)endable

$ 58,876

880,695

ASSETS
Capital

Reserve

$

937,839

Other Nonexf

$

86,543

Total

Cash and Equivalents

Investments

Interfund Receivable

$ 23,359

4,915,783

$ 4.939.142

$ 4,915,783

23,359

4,939,142

$ 82,235

1,905,077

4.915.783

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Intergovernmental Payable

Interfund Payable

Escrow and Performance Deposits

$ 937.839

$ 284,199

33,983

$ 86.543

$ 35,735

$ 939.571

$

$ 6.903.095

$ 5,235,717

33,983

23,359

Total Liabilities 318,182 35,735 5.293.059

Equity

Fund Balances

Reserved For Endowments

Reserved For Special Purposes 619,657 50.808

Total Equity 619.657 50.808

595,618

343,953

939,571

595,618

1.014.418

1.610.036

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND EQUITY $ 937.839 $ 86.543 $ 939.571 $ 4.939.142 $ 6.903.095

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1.
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SCHEDULE C-2

TOWN OF HOPKINTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Expendable Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Revenues

Interest and Dividends

Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments

Total Revenues

Capital

Reserve Other Total

$ 4,600 $ 1,525

6.171

7.696

$ 6,125

6.171

4,600 12,296

Expenditures

Current

Capital Outlay 129.522 3.667 133.189

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (124.922) 4,029 (120.893)

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 366.025 35.000 401.025

Net Change in Fund Balances 241,103 39,029 280,132

Fund Balances •• January 1 378.554 11.779 390.333

Fund Balances - December 3

1

$ 619.657 $ 50.808 $ 670.465

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1

.
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Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors

193 North Main Street Concord New Hampshire 03301-5063 603-225-6996 FAX-2244380

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S COMMUNICATION OF
REPORTABLE CONDITIONS AND OTHER MATTERS

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen

Town of Hopkinton

Hopkinton, New Hampshire

In planning and performing our audit of the Town of Hopkinton for the year ended December 31, 2003, we considered the

Town's internal control structure in order to determine the scope of our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing

our opinion on the financial statements. Our review of these systems was not intended to provide assurance on the internal

control structure and should not be relied on for that purpose.

Under the standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, reportable conditions involve

matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control structure

that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Town's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data

consistent with the assertions ofmanagement in the financial statements. A material weakness is a reportable condition in

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low

level the risk that errors or irregularities, in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being

audited, may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their

assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the

internal control structure that might constitute reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all

reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above.

Prior-Year Comments

General Accounting Records

At the beginning of the prior year, the Town had converted computer systems and only retained this new system for

approximately three months. A further conversion was made to yet another program and the combination of these system

conversions resulted in many misclassifications and incorrect account balances during 2002. Considerable extra audit time

had been spent to analyze and correct the deficiencies in the financial reporting. This finding was corrected in 2003.

Tax Collector

We had to again expend additional audit time to reconcile the year-end summary of accounts (MS-6 1 ) . The MS-6 1 was not

in agreement with records maintained by the Tax Collector, and a thorough analysis of the records had to be performed in

order to correct it. In addition, the computer system also presented problems which compounded the preparation of the

MS-61. We recommend that the Tax Collector prepare an accurate MS-61 report at year-end as required by State statute.
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Town of Hopkinton

Independent Auditor's Communication of Reportable Conditions and Other Matters

Library Accounts

The summary of activity that was provided for audit last year contained many inconsistencies. The summary was not added

correctly and included receipts and disbursements that were paid out of the General Fund accounts. We recommended that

the Library s report contain only the activity that runs through the Library s checking account. This finding was corrected

in 2003.

Long'Term Debt Authorized - Unissued - Repeat Comment

The Town voted in 1997 in Article 6 to issue long-term debt in the amount of $388,000 for the construction of a playing

field . The construction was completed in 1997, and annual appropriations of $78,000 have been made since to cover the

cost of the project. Since the entire balance had been recovered as of December 3 1 , 2002, we again recommend that this

vote be rescinded at the next annual Town Meeting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the administration. This

restriction is not intended to limit distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record.

April 9, 2004
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Plodzik& Sanderson
Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors

193 North Main Street • Concord - New Hampshiie • 03301-5063 • 603-225-6996 FAX-224-138Q

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR 'S REPORT

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen

Town of Hopkinton

Hopkinton, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Town of Hopkinton, as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2004 as shown on pages 2 through 6. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of

Hopkinton' s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are firee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Management has chosen not to implement Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic

Financial Statements - andManagement 's Discussion andAnalysis -for State andLocal Governments Therefore these

financial statements are presented following the principles that were in effect prior to GASB Statement No. 34.

Management has not presented government-wide financial statements to display the financial position and changes in

financial position of its governmental activities and business-type activities, The financial statements presented do not

contain separate statements for governmental, proprietary, ifapplicable and fiduciary fund types, nor are major and non-

major funds separately identified and classified. The financial statements presented report expendable and

nonexpendable trust funds, some of which should be reported as special revenue and permanent funds under the new
reporting model. The financial statements also present a general long-term debt account group which should not be

reported as such, but the information contained therein should be included in the government-wide financial statements

were they presented. Also, the financial statements do not contain any information on capital assets because the

government has not maintained historical cost records of such assets. Management has not presented a management'

s

discussion and analysis as required. The amounts that would be reported in the missing statements and required

supplementary information, and the effects of reclassifying and properly reporting the information presented are not

reasonably determined.

In our opinion, because of the effects of the matters discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements

referred to above do not present fairly, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America, the financial position of the Town of Hopkinton as of December 31, 2004, or the changes in its financial

position or its cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the

Town ofHopkinton basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements are presented for purposes

of additional analysis, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. For reasons stated in the third

paragraph of this report, we expressed an opinion that the financial statements of the Town of Hopkinton do not fairly

present financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America. Therefore, we do not express an opinion on the accompanying combining and

individual fund statements.

January 28, 2005 V^J&liSfcJlB'^W^ (WecXotXdtO
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EXHIBITA
TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Balance Sheet
All Fund Types and Account Groups

December 31, 2004

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables, net of

allowance for uncollectible:

Taxes

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Interilind receivable

Other debits:

Amount to be provided for

retirement of general long-term debt

Total assets and other debits

Governmental

General

Fund Types
Special

Revenue

$ 302,956

18,573

Fiduciary

Fund Types

Trust and

Agency

$ 18,668

1,958,131

Group
General

Long-Term
Debt

Total

(Memorandum
Only)

$ 5.456,309 $ $ 5,777,933

1,976,704

708,217

8,909

113,229

44,806

9,299

30,791

3.192,673

$ 3.192.673

708,217

18,208

113,229

75,597

3.192.673

$ 6.331.470 $361,619 $ 1.976.799 $ 11.862.561

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Intergovernmental payable

Interfund payable

Escrow and performance deposits

Deferred tax revenue

General obligation bonds/notes payable

Accrued landfill postclosure care costs

Total liabilities

Equity:

Fund balances:

Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved for endowments
Reserved for special purposes

Unreserved:

Designated for special purposes

Undesignated

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

$ 548,650

4,395,723

30,791

9,751

$

2,821

9,823

$

346,130

34,983

18,668

$

2,605,483

587.190

3.192.673

$ 548,650

4,744,674

75,597

18,668

9,751

2,605,483

587.190

4.984.915 12.644 399.781 8.590.013

34,800

636,829

940,189

34,800

636,829

940,189

1.311.755

348,975 348,975

1,311,755

1.346,555 348.975

$361,619
1,577.018

$ 1.976.799

3,272,548

$ 6.331.470 $ 3.192.673 $ 11.862.561

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITB
TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Cunent:

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Debt service

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds of general obligation debt

Interfund transfers in

Interfund transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Fiduciary

Governmental Fund Tvpes Fund Tvpe Total

Special Expendable (Memorandum
General Revenue

$ 30,791

Trust Onlv)

$ 2,504,986 $ $ 2,535,777

1,117,702 1,117,702

613,775 613,775

495,162 124,705 619,867

289.421 46.999 31,303 367.723

5.021.046 202.495 31.303 5.254.844

1,068,410 1,068,410

1,150,914 1,150,914

837,071 837,071

550,401 86,034 636,435

31,700 31,700

78,782 78,782

394,448 56,079 450,527

1,699 52,988 54,687

299,227 299,227

1,386.437 1.386.437

5,799,089 195.101

7.394

5.994.190

(778.043) 31,303 (739.346)

761,500 761,500

602,152 475,500 1,077,652

(475.500) (583,220)

(107.720)

(76,417)

(1.058.720)

888,152 780,432

110,109 7,394 41,086

1,236,446 341,581 670,465 2,248.492

$ 1,346.555 $ 348.975 $ 594,048 $ 2.289.578

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITC
TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Budgetaiy Basis)

General and Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Cunent:

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Debt service

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds of general obligation debt

Interfund transfers in

Interflind transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Unreserved fiind balances, beginning

Unreserved fund balances, ending

General Fund

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 2,485,382 $ 2,504,986 $ 19,604

941,500 1,117,702 176,202

580,235 584,935 4,700

504,583 495,162 (9,421)

88,986 289.421 200,435

4,600,686 4.992.206 391,520

1,016,212 1,068,410 (52,198)

1,200,852 1,128,556 72,296

928,177 835,071 93,106

528,540 550,401 (21,861)

23,300 31,700 (8,400)

107,837 78,782 29,055

425,257 396,209 29,048

3,725 1,699 2,026

302,417 299,227 3,190

1,384.430 1,388,944 (4.514)

5.920.747 5,778,999 141,748

(1.320.061) (786,793) 533.268

761,500 761,500

634,061 602,152 (31,909)

(460.500) (475.500) (15,000)

935,061 888.152 (46,909)

$ (385.000) 101,359

1,210.396

$ 1,311.755

$ 486,359
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Annually Budgeted

Special Revenue Fund1

Total

(Memorandum Onlv)

Variance Variance

Positive Positive

Budget Actual

$

81,735

770

(Negative)

$

(13,682)

770

Budget

$ 2,485,382

941,500

580,235

600,000

88.986

Actual (Negative)

$

95,417

$ 2,504,986

1,117,702

584,935

576,897

290.191

$ 19,604

176.202

4,700

(23,103)

201.205

95.417 82.505 (12,912) 4.696.103 5.074.711 378.608

95,417

95.417

86,034

86.034

(3.529)

9,383

9.383

(3,529)

1,016,212 1,068,410 (52,198)

1,200,852 1,128,556 72,296

928,177 835,071 93,106

623,957 636,435 (12,478)

23,300 31,700 (8,400)

107,837 78,782 29,055

425,257 396,209 29,048

3,725 1,699 2,026

302,417 299,227 3,190

1.384.430 1,388.944 (4.514)

6.016.164

(1,320,061)

5.865.033

(790.322)

151.131

529.739

$ -0- (3,529)

73.868

$ 70.339

$ (3.529)

761,500

634,061

(460.500 )

935.061

$ (385.000)

761,500

602,152

(475.500)

888.152

97,830

1.284.264

$ 1.382.094

(31,909)

(15.000)

(46.909)

$ 482.830

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITD
TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year EndedDecember 31, 2004

Operating revenues:

Interest and dividends % 30,251

Net increase in fair value of investments 41,212

Total operating revenues 71.463

Operating expenses:

Trust income distributions 9,132

Transfers out to other funds 18.932

Total operating expenses 28.064

Operating income 43,399

Fund balances, beginning 939.571

Fund balances, ending $ 982,970

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

5

F88



2004 Auditor's Report

EXHIBITE
TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
All Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year EndedDecember 31, 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received as interest and dividends $ 30,25

1

Cash paid as trust income distributions (9, 1 32)

Cash paid to other funds (18,932 )

Net cash provided by operating activities 2, 1 87

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of investments (61.063)

Net decrease in cash (58,876)

Cash, beginning 58,876

Cash, ending $ -0-

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income $43,399

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net increase in fair value of investments (41,212)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,187

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6

F89



2004 Auditor's Report

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies . . ,

,

1

Reporting Entity , - ..,,., 1 - A
Basis of Presentation , 1 - B
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 1 - C
Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity 1 - D
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments . , , 1 - D - 1

Receivables 1 - D - 2

Interflind Balances and Activity , 1 - D - 3

Compensated Absences , , 1 - D - 4

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 1 - D - 5

Fund Equity ..,.,. , 1 - D - 6

Estimates , , , . 1 - D - 7

Memorandum Only - Total Columns ... 1 - D - 8

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 2

Budgetary Liformation ... 2 - A
Budget/GAAP Reconciliation 2 - B
Bonds or Notes Authorized - Unissued , . 2 - C
New Reporting Standard ,

.

2 - D

Detailed Notes on All Funds and Account Groups 3

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments , 3 - A
Taxes Receivable .... 3 - B
Other Receivables 3 - C
Interfund Balances and Transfers . 3 - D
Intergovernmental Payable . 3 - E
Long-Term Debt .

, 3 - F

Other Matters , 4

Pensions , 4 - A
Risk Management .

.

4 - B
Contingent Liabilities , , 4 - C

7

F90



2004 Auditor's Report

TOWNOFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

The more significant of the government's accounting policies aie described below.

1-A Reporting Entity

The Town of Hopkinton, New Hampshire, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board of

Selectmen. These financial statements present the Town of Hopkinton (primary government). Component
units are organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable or for which the nature

and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the

reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete Based on the foregoing criteria, no

other organizations are included in the Town' s financial reporting entity.

1-B Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each ofwhich is considered

a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-

balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses, as

appropriate, The various funds are grouped by type in the financial statements. The following fund types and

account groups are used by the Town:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. All general tax revenues and

other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this

fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed charges, and the capital

improvement costs that are not paid through other funds.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue

sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal

or regulatory provisions or administrative action.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held or established under a formal trust agreement

or Tovm Meeting vote, or assets held by the Town as a trustee or agent for individuals, private organizations,

or other units of government.,

Account Groups

Account groups are not "funds," They are concerned only with the measurement of financial position. They

are not involved with the measurement of results of operations. The Town uses the following account groups:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - General fixed assets have been acquired for general governmental

purposes and have been recorded as expenditures in the applicable fund. The Town does not maintain a record

of its general fixed assets valued at historical cost and, accordingly, a statement of general fixed assets is not

included in this financial report.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This account group was established to account for all long-term

debt of the Town.
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TOIVN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

1-C Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this

method, revenues are recognized in the accounting per iod in which they become both available and measurable

(flow of current financial resources measurement focus). Licenses and permits, fines and forfeits, and most

miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received in cash. General taxes, intergovernmental revenues,

charges for services, and investment earnings are recorded when earned (when they are measurable and

available) Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if

measurable, except expenditures for prepayments, debt service, and other long-term obligations, which are

recognized when due.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting,, Using this basis of

accounting, revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred

(flow of economic resources measurement focus).

1-D Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

1-D-l Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-

term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the Town-

New Hampshire statutes require that the Town treasurer have custody of all moneys belonging to the Town
and pay out the same only upon orders of the Board of Selectmen , The treasurer shall deposit all moneys in

participation units in the public deposit investment pool established pursuant toN H. RSA 383 :22 or in solvent

banks in the state. Funds may be deposited in banks outside the state if such banlcs pledge or deliver to a third

party custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits, United States

government or government agency obligations, or obligations of the State ofNew Hampshire in value at least

equal to the amount of the deposit in each case.

Investments - Whenever the treasurer has in custody an excess offunds which are not immediately needed for

the purpose of expenditure, the treasurer shall, with the approval of the Board of Selectmen, invest the excess

funds. New Hampshire law authorizes the Town to invest in the following types of obligations:

• Obligations of the United States Government,
• The public deposit investment pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22,

• Savings bank deposits, or

• Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements ofbanks incorporated under the laws of the State

ofNew Hampshire or in banks recognized by the state treasurer.

Any person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in

securities of any kind shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, make available at the time of such deposit or

investment an option to have such funds secured by collateral having a value at least equal to the amount of

such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated for the exclusive benefit ofthe Town Only securities defined

by the bank commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to RSA 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged

as collateral.

Investments are stated at fair value as of the balance sheet date which is based on quoted market prices.

1 -D-2 Receivables

Tax revenue is recorded when a warrant for collection is committed to the Tax Collector All taxes receivable

are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts The allowance has been established for possible

abatements of current receivables.
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TOWNOFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

As prescribed by law, the Tax Collector executes a lien on properties for all uncollected property taxes in the

following year after taxes are due. The lien on these properties has priority over other liens and accrues

interest at 18% per annum. If property is not redeemed within the 2-year redemption period, the property is

tax-deeded to the Town.

Various service charges (ambulance, police, and sewer) are recorded as revenue for the period when service

was provided.

l-D-3 Interfund Balances and Activity

During the course ofnormal operations, the Town has transactions between funds, including expenditures and

transfers of resources to provide services and fund capital outlay. The accompanying governmental and

fiduciary fund financial statements reflect such transactions as transfers. To the extent that certain transactions

have not^een paid or received as of December 3 1 , balances of inter fund amounts receivable or payable have

been recorded,

l-D-4 Compensated Absences

Employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment Compensated
absences accumulate and are recorded as expenditures when they are paid,

I-D-5 Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables and accrued liabilities are reported in the financial statements.

In general, Governmental Fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner

and in full from cunent financial resources, are reported as obligations of these funds. However, claims and

judgements, and compensated absences that will be paid from Governmental Funds are reported as a liability

in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are "due for payment" during the current year

The Town reports long-term debt of Governmental Funds at face value in the General Long-Term Debt

Account Group. Certain other Governmental Fund obligations not expected to be financed with current

available financial resources are also reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

1 -D-6 Fund Equity

Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current liabilities The Town
reserves those portions of fund balance that are legally segregated for a specific future use or that do not

represent available, spendable resources, and therefore are not available for appropriation or expenditure

,

Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fiind balance that is available for appropriation in inture

periods. Designations are management' s intent to set aside these resources for specific purposes.

The following reserves are used by the Town:

Reserved for Encumbrances - is used to account for open purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
at year-end for which goods and services have not been received.

Reserved for Endowments - represents the principal balance of the Town' s Nonexpendable Trust Funds

which must be held for investment purposes only.

Reserved for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balance ofrestricted funds. These

consist of the Town' s Expendable Trust Funds, and the income portion of the Town' s Nonexpendable Trust

Funds.
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TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

The following designation is used by the Town:

Designated for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balances of Special Revenue
Funds.

l-D-7 Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those

estimates.

l-D-8 Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the financial statements are captioned as "memorandum only" because they do not represent

consolidated financial information and are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. The columns do not

present information that reflects financial position, results ofoperations or cash flows in accordance withU .S.

generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this

data,

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

2-A Budgetai-y Information

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds aie controlled by a formal

integrated budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements which govern the

Town' s operations. At its armual meeting, the Town adopts a budget for the current year for the General and

Sewer Department Funds Except as reconciled on the following page, budgets were adopted on a basis

consistent with US generally accepted accounting principles.

Managementmay transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but expenditures

may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless

encumbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations (certain

projects and specific items not fully expended at year-end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental

funds. Encumbrances are not the equivalent of expenditures and are therefore reported as part of the fund

balance at December 31 and are carried forward to supplement appropriations of the subsequent year.

State statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use of beginning unreserved fund balance to

achieve that end In the fiscal year 2004, $385,000 of the beginning General Fund fund balance was applied

for this purpose.

2-B Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Amounts recorded as budgetary revenues and expenditures in the Combined Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General and Special Revenue Funds

(Exhibit C) are presented on the basis budgeted by the Town. The amounts differ from those reported in the

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund

Types and Expendable Trust Funds (Exhibit B) as follows:

11

F94



2004 Auditor's Report

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

2-C

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Per Exhibit C (Budgetary Basis)

Adjustments

Basis Difference

Retirement Contributions Paid by the State ofNew Hampshire
Entity Difference

Unbudgeted Funds

Safe Schools

Pubhc Library

Conservation Commission
Town Forest

Recreation

Police/Fire Grants

Per Exhibit B

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Per Exhibit C (Budgetary Basis)

Adjustments

Basis Difference

Encumbrances - December 3 1 , 2003
Encumbrances - December 3 1 , 2004
Retirement Contributions Paid by the State ofNew Hampshire

Entity Difference

Unbudgeted Funds
Pubhc Library

Conservation Commission
Recreation

Per Exhibit B

Bonds or Notes Authorized - Unissued

Special

General Revenue
Fund Funds

$ 6,355,858 $ 82,505

28,840

30

16,124

56,415

893

43,153

3,375

S 6,384.698 $ 202.495

$ 6,254,499 $ 86,034

26,050

(34,800)

28,840

15,127

52,988

40.952

$ 6.274.589 $ 195.101

Bonds and notes authorized and unissued as of December 31, 2004 were as follows:

Per

Town Meeting
Vote of

1997 -Article 6

2003 - Article 7

Total

2-D New Reporting Standard

Purpose

Playing Field

Land Purchase

Unissued

Amount

$ 388,000

4.238.500

$ 4.626.500

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No 34, Basic

Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments.

When implemented, it requires new information and restructures much of the information that governments

have presented in the past. Comparability with reports issued in all prior years will be affected The Town
is required to implement this standard for the year ended December 31, 2004, but has not done so.
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TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDSAND ACCOUNT GROUPS
3-A Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments

At year-end, the Town' s canying amount of deposits was $5,777,933, and the bank balance was $5,683,495

.

Of the bank balance, $124,655 was insured or collateralized with securities held by the Town or its agent in

the Town's name; $5,263,142 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions' s

trust department or agent in the Town' s name; and $295,698 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments made by the Town are summarized below. The investments that are represented by specific

identifiable investment securities are classified as to credit risk into three categories as follows:

Category 1 Includes investments that are insured or registered for which the securities are held by the Town
or its agent in the Town' s name.

Category 2 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the Town,
broker, counter party' s trust department or agent in the Town' s name.

Categoiy 3 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker,

counter party, counter party' s trust department or agent, but not in the Town' s name.

United States Government Obligations

Corporate Bonds
Common Stocks

Mutual Funds
New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool

Total Investments

3-B Taxes Receivable

The property tax year is firom April 1 to March 3 1 and all property taxes are assessed on the inventory taken

in April of that year. The net assessed valuation as of April 1, 2004, upon which the 2004 property tax levy

was based is:

For the New Hampshire Education Tax $ 579,465,025

For All Other Taxes $ 597,012,844

The Town subscribes to the semi-annual method of tax collection as provided for by RSA 76: 1 5-a. Under this

method, tax bills are due on or around July 1 and December 1 of each year, with interest accruing at a rate of

1 2% on bills outstanding after the due date. The first billing is considered an estimate only and is one half of

the previous year's tax billing. The remaining balance of taxes due is billed in the fall after the New
Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration has calculated and approved the Town's tax rate for the

fiscal year.

In connection with the setting of the tax rate, Town officials with the approval of the Department ofRevenue

Administration, establish and raise through taxation an amount for abatements and refunds of property taxes,

known as overlay. This amount is reported as a reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by management for

any tax allowances at year-end. The property taxes collected by the Town include taxes levied for the State

of New Hampshire, Hopkinton School District, Merrimack County, and Hopkinton Village Precinct and

Contoocook Village Precinct, which are remitted as required by law. The ultimate responsibility for the

collection of taxes rests with the Town.
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Category Fair

1 2 3 Value

$ 274,585

238,915

555.244

$ $ $ 274,585

238,915

555,244

$ 1.068.744

tPool

$ -0- $ -0- $ 1,068,744

71,162

836.798

$ 1.976.704

F96



2004 Auditor's Report

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

The tax rates and amounts assessed for the year ended December 3 1 , 2004, were as follows:

Per $1,000 of
Assessed Valuation

Property

Taxes

Assessed

Municipal Portion

School Portion

State ofNew Hampshire

Local

County Portion

Precinct Portion

$ 4.19

$ 2.98

$13.76

$ 2.00

$ L58

$ 2,502,209

1,725,839

8,213,126

1,196,039

186.973

Total Property Taxes Assessed $ 13.824.186

During the current fiscal year, the Tax Collector executed a lien on April 15 for all uncollected 2003 property

taxes.

Taxes receivable at December 31, 2004, are as follows:

Property

Levy of 2004 $ 631,684

Unredeemed (under tax lien)

Levy of 2003 100,210

Levy of 2002 50,381

Levy of 2001 12,340

Levy of prior years 18,052

Timber 13,550

Less: Allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes (118 OOP)

Net Taxes Receivable $ 708.217

Other Receivables

Other receivables at December 31, 2004, consist of accounts (billings for sewer and other user charges), and

an intergovernmental amount for flood control

Receivables are recorded on the Town' s financial statements to the extent that the amounts are determined to

be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic

method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and collectibility.

Interfund Balances and Transfers

Interfund balances at December 31, 2004 consist of overdrafts in the pooled cash, and budgetary transfers.

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2004 are as follows:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds

Trust Funds

Totals

Interfund

Receivable

$ 44,806

30,791

Interfund

Payable

$ 30,791

9,823

34.983

$ 75.597 $ 75.597
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Transfers

In

Transfers

Out

$ 602,152

475.500

$ 1.077.652

$ 475,500

602.152

$ 1.077,652

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

Interflind transfers for the year ended December 31, 2004 consisted of the following:

General Fund
Trust Funds

Totals

3-E Intergovemmental Payable

Amounts due to other governments at December 31, 2004 consist of:

General Fund:

Balance of 2004-2005 district assessment due to the Hoplcinton School District $ 4,395,723

Special Revenue Fund:

Sewer Department:

Balance of sewer rents due to the Contoocook Village Precinct 2,821

Trust Funds:

Expendable:

Balance' of funds belonging to the Contoocook Village Precinct 232,950

Balance of funds belonging to the Hopkinton Village Precinct 108

Balance of funds belonging to the Hopkinton School District 113,072

Total $ 4.744.674

3-F Long-Term Debt

Changes in the Town's long-term obligations during the year ended December 31, 2004, consisted of the

following:

Balances, Balances,

Beginning Additions Reductions Ending

General Obligation Bonds/Notes

Capital Leases

Accrued Landfill Postclosure Care Costs

Totals

$ 2,047,204 $ 761,500 $ (203,221) $ 2,605,483

12,108 (12,108)

585.600 1,590 587,190

$ 2,644,912 $ 763,090 $ (215,329) $ 3.192.673

Long-term debt payable at December 31, 2004, is comprised of the following:

Original

Amount
General Obligation

Bonds/Notes Payable

Transfer Station

Landfill Closure

Library Building

Land

$ 800,000

$ 1,859,384

$ 725,000

$761,500

Accrued Landfill Postclosure Care Costs

Total General Long-Term
Debt Account Group

Issue Maturity

Date Date

1989

1998

1998

2004

2009

2018

2007

2020

Interest

Rate

%

6.75

Variable

4.57

4,25-500

Outstanding

at

December 31, 2004

$ 200,000

1,373,983

270,000

761,500

587.190

$ 3,192,673

15

F98



2004 Auditor's Report

$ 206,519 $ 102,763 $ 309,282

271,456 105,395 376,851

278,538 92,375 370,913

182,271 79,441 261,712

186,161 70,956 257,117

795,143 245,647 1,040,790

635,395 69,374 704,769

50.000 1,063 51.063

$ 2,605,483 $ 767,014 $ 3,372,497

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation debt outstanding as of December 3 1 , 2004,

including interest payments, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 3 1

,

Principal Interest Total

2005
2006
2007
2008

2009
2010-2014

2015-2019

2020

Totals

All debt is general obligation debt of the Town, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid

from general governmental revenues.

Accnied Landfill Postclosure Care Costs

The Town ceased operating its landfill in 1997. Federal and State laws and regulations require that the Town
continue to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site. A liability is being

recognized in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group based on the future postclosure care costs that will

be incurred. The estimated liability for landfill postclosure care costs has a balance of $587,190 as of

December 31, 2004, which is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services

required to monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31, 2004. However, the actual

cost ofpostclosure care may be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill

laws and regulations. The Town expects to finance the postclosure care costs by annual appropriation

NOTE 4 - OTHER MATIERS

4-A Pensions

Plan Description and Provisions

The Town ofHopldnton participates in the New Hampshire Retirement System (The System) which consists

ofa cost-sharing, multiple-employer contributory pension plan and trust established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2

and is qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The plan is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement

benefits to members and their beneficiaries. Provisions for benefits and contributions are established and can

be amended by the New Hampshire State Legislature. The System issues a publicly available financial report

that may be obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 4 Chenell Drive, Concord, NH
03301.

Description ofFunding Policy

The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the Town. Member contribution rates

are established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the

System trustees based on an actuarial valuation. All employees except police officers and firefighters are

required to contribute 5% ofearnable compensation. Police officers and firefighters are required to contribute

9.3% of gross earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Town contributed 7.87% for police

officers, 1 3 44%) for firefighters and 5 .90%) for other employees. The contribution requirements for the Town
of Hopkinton for the years 2002, 2003, and 2004 were $61,543, $94,850, and $92,046, respectively, which

were paid in full in each year
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$ 206,519 $ 102,763 $ 309,282

271,456 105,395 376,851

278,538 92,375 370,913

182,271 79,441 261,712

186,161 70,956 257,117

795,143 245,647 1,040,790

635,395 69,374 704,769

50,000 1,063 51.063

$ 2,605,483 $ 767.014 $ 3.372,497

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation debt outstanding as of December 31, 2004,

including interest payments, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 3 1

,

Principal Interest Total

2005
2006
2007

2008
2009

2010-2014

2015-2019

2020

Totals

All debt is general obligation debt of the Town, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid

from general governmental revenues.

Accrued Landfill Postclosure Care Costs

The Town ceased operating its landfill in 1 997. Federal and State laws and regulations require that the Town
continue to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site. A liability is being

recognized in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group based on the future postclosure care costs that will

be incurred. The estimated liability for landfill postclosure care costs has a balance of $587,190 as of

December 3 1 , 2004, which is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services

required to monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31, 2004. However, the actual

cost ofpostclosure care may be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill

laws and regulations. The Town expects to finance the postclosure care costs by annual appropriation

NOTE 4 - OTHER MA ITERS

4-A Pensions

Plan Description and Provisions

The Town of Hoplcinton participates in the New Hampshire Retirement System (The System) which consists

of a cost-sharing, multiple-employer contributory pension plan and trust established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2

and is qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code
The plan is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement

benefits to members and their beneficiaries. Provisions for benefits and contributions are established and can

be amended by the New Hampshire State Legislature. The System issues a publicly available financial report

that may be obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 4 Chenell Drive, Concord, NH
0.3301.

Description ofFunding Policy

The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the Town. Member contribution rates

are established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the

System trustees based on an actuarial valuation. All employees except police officers and firefighters are

required to contribute 5% ofearnable compensation Police officers and firefighters are required to contribute

9.3% of gross earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Town contributed 7.87% for police

officers, 1 3 44% for firefighters and 5.90% for other employees. The contribution requirements for the Town
of Hopkinton for the years 2002, 2003, and 2004 were $61,543, $94,850, and $92,046, respectively, which

were paid in full in each year
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TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

The State ofNew Hampshire funds 35% of employer costs for police officers and firefighters employed by
the Town. The State does not participate in funding the employer costs of other Town employees GASB
Statement No 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance

requires this amount to be reported as a revenue and expenditure in the Town' s financial statements, This

amount, $28,840, has been included on Exhibit B - Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds and is reconciled to

the budgetary expenditures in Note 2-B.

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction ofassets; errors

or omissions; injuries to employees; or natural disasters. During 2004, the Town was a member of the Local

Government Center Property-Liability Trust, LLC and theNew Hampshire Public RiskManagement Exchange
(Primex) Workers' Compensation Program. These entities are considered public entity risk pools, currently

operating as common risk management and insurance programs for member towns and cities.

The Local Government Center Property-Liability Trust, LLC is a trust organized to provide certain property

and liability insurance coverages to member towns, cities and other qualified political subdivisions of New
Hampshire. As a member of the Local Government Center Property-Liability Trust, LLC, the Town shares

in contributing to the cost of, and receiving benefits from, a self-insured pooled risk management program.

The membership and coverage run fi"om July 1 to June 30. The program includes a Self-Insured Retention

Fund (SIR) from which is paid up to $500,000 for each and every covered property, auto physical damage or

crime loss, subject to a $1,000 deductible, and each and every covered general liability and public officials'

liability loss. The Trust maintains, on behalf of its members, various reinsurance policies shared by the

membership.

Contributions paid in 2004 for fiscal year 2005 ending June 30, 2005, to be recorded as an insurance

expenditure totaled $52,002. There were no unpaid contributions for the year ending June 30, 2005 and due

in 2004. The trust agreement permits the Trust to make additional assessments to members should there be

a deficiency in Trust assets to meet its liabilities. At this time, the Trust foresees no likelihood of any

additional assessments for past years

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex) Workers' Compensation Program is a

pooled risk management program under RSAs 5-B and 281 -A. The workers' compensation and employer's

liability policy provides statutory coverage for workers' compensation and up to $2,000,000 of employer'

s

liability coverage. Primex retained $500,000 ofeach loss. The membership and coverage run fi-om January 1

through December 3 1 . The estimated net contribution fi^om the Town of Hopkinton billed and paid for the

year ended December 31, 2004 was $40,580., The member participation agreement permits Primex to make
additional assessments to members, should there be a deficiency in contributions for any member year, not to

exceed the member' s annual contribution. At this time, Primex foresees no likelihood of any additional

assessment for this or any prior year.

Contingent Liabilities

Litigation

There are various claims and suits pending against the Town which arise in the normal course of the Town* s

activities. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these various claims and suits will not

have a material effect on the financial position of the Town.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable ftom grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such grantor

agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the

applicable funds. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined

at this time although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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SCHEDULE A-l
TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

General Fund
Statement ofEstimated and Actual Revenues
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

Taxes:

Property

Land use change

Timber
Excavation

Payment in lieu of taxes

Interest and penalties on taxes

Total taxes

Licenses, permits and fees:

Business licenses, permits and fees

Motor vehicle permit fees

Building permits

Total licenses, permits and fees

Intergovernmental:

State:

Shared revenue

Meals and rooms distribution

Highway block grant

State and federal forest land reimbursement

Flood control reimbursement

Other

Federal:

FEMA grants

Total intergovernmental

Charges for services:

Income from departments

Miscellaneous:

Interest on investments

Other

Total miscellaneous

Other financing sources:

Proceeds of general obligation debt:

General obligation bonds

Inter fund transfers:

Trust funds:

Expendable

Nonexpendable

Total interfund transfers in

Total other financing sources

Total revenues and other financing sources

Unreserved fund balance used to reduce tax rate

Total revenues, other financing sources and use of fund balance

Variance

Positive

Estimated Actual rNeeative)

$ 2,333.992 $ 2,362,228 $ 28,236

50,000 57,183 7,183

20,000 35,070 15,070

34 34

3,390 2,508 (882)

78,000 47,963 (30.037)

2,485,382 2,504,986 19,604

51,500 81,409 29,909

875,000 1,022,008 147,008

15,000 14,285 (715)

941,500 1,117,702 176,202

69,301 69,301

184,455 184,455

156,579 156,579

671 671

113,229 117,280 4,051

41,000 40,960 (40)

15,000 15,689 689

580.235 584,935 4,700

504,583 495,162 (9,421)

10,000 27,660 17,660

78,986 261.761 182,775

88.986 289.421 200,435

761.500 761,500

583,220607,930 (24,710)

26,131 18,932 (7,199)

634.061 602.152 (31,909)

1,395,561 1,363,652 (31,909)

5,996,247 $ 6,355,858 $ 359.611

385,000

$ 6.381,247

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1
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SCHEDULE A-2
TOWNOFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

General Fund
Statement ofAppropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

Cunent:

General government:

Executive

Election and registration

Financial administration

Revaluation of property

Legal

Personnel administration

Planning and zoning

General government buildings

Cemeteries

Insurance, not otherwise allocated

Other

Total general government

Public safety:

Police department

Ambulance
Fire department

Emergency management
Other

Total public safety

Highways and streets:

Administration

Highways and streets

Street lighting

Total highways and streets

Encumbered Expenditures Encumbered Variance

From Appropriations Net of To Positive

2003 2004 Refunds

$ 174,296

2005 (Negative)

$ $ 172,191 $ $ (2,105)

224,653 219,669 4,984

98,871 98,801 70

94,043 97,728 (3,685)

25,000 82,095 (57,095)

56,072 52,558 3,514

79,894 78,601 1,293

120,614 122,603 (1.989)

45,714 44,230 1,484

96,580 97,829 (1,249)

2.580

1,016.212

695,742

2.580

1,068.410

658,016

(52.198)

6,482 31,244

296,101 269,660 26,441

197,234 192,245 4,989

3,000 2,153 847

8.775

1.200,852

423,977

8.775

1.122.074

383,521

6.482 72.296

40,456

2,000 503,000 452,395 52,605

1.200 1.155 45

2,000 928.177 837,071 93.106

Sanitation:

Solid waste disposal

Solid waste cleanup

Total sanitation

497,560

30.980

528.540

524,546

25.855

550.401

(26,986)

5.125

(21.861 )

Health:

Administration

Health agencies and hospitals

Total health

3,763

19.537

23.300

3,388

28.312

31.700

375

(8.775 )

(8.400)

Welfare:

Administration

Vendor payments

Total welfare

52,837

55,000

107.837

30,602

48.180

78.782

22,235

6.820

29.055

Culture and recreation:

Parks and recreation

Library

Patriotic purposes

Total culture and recreation

350

350

190,103

228,054

7.100

425.257

180,268

211,580

2.600

394.448

2,111

2.111

9,835

14,713

4.500

29.048
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SCHEDULE A-2 (Continued)

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
General Fund

Statement ofAppropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

Conservation:

Administration

Other

Total conservation

Debt service:

Principal - long-term debt

Interest - long-term debt

Interest - Tax anticipation notes

Total debt service

Capital outlay:

Athletic fields

Vehicle exhaust system

Irrigation system

Capital reserve expenditures

Land purchase

Total capital outlay

Other financing uses:

Interfund transfers:

Trust funds:

Expendable:

Capital reserve

Other

Total other financing uses

Total appropriations,

expenditures and encumbrances

Encumbered

From
2003

Appropriations

2004

. Expenditures

Net of

Refunds

1,018

681

L699

203,222

94,195

1,810

299,227

23,700

47,000

18,497

557,240

740,000

1,386,437

Encumbered

To
2005

Variance

Positive

(Negative")

1,725

2,000

3.725

203,222

94,195

5,000

302.417

47,000

15,000

560,930

761,500

1,384,430

707

1.319

2,026

3,190

3,190

23,700 4,707

21.500

26.207

(4,707)

(3,497)

3,690

23,700 (4,514)

393,000

67.500

460,500

408,000

67.500

475.500

(15,000)

(15.000)

$ 26.050 $ 6.381.247 $ 6.245.749 $ 34.800 $ 126,748

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1.
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SCHEDULE A 3

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
General Fund

Statement of Changes in Unreserved- Undesignated Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year EndedDecember 31, 2004

Unreserved, undesignated fund balance, beginning $ 1,210,396

Changes:

Unreserved fund balance used to reduce 2004 tax rate (385,000)

2004 Budget summary:

Revenue surplus (Schedule A-1) $ 359,611

Unexpended balance of appropiiations (Schedule A-2) 126J48
2004 Budget surplus 486.359

Unreserved, undesignated fund balance, ending $ 1.311,755

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1.
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SCHEDULE B-l

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2004

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable

Interfund receivable

Total assets

Sewer Police/

Safe Public Conservation Town Depart- Fire

Schools Library Commission Forest Recreation ment Grants Total

$3,368 $23,775 $68,051 $101,953 $20,297 $73,684 $11,828 $302,956

18,573 18,573

9,299 9,299

30.791 30.791

$ 3.368 $ 42.348 $ 98.842 $ 101.953 $ 20.297 $ 82.983 $ 11.828 $361.619

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:

Intergovernmental payable

Interfund payable

Total liabilities

Equity:

Fund balances:

Umeserved:

Designated for

special purposes

Total liabilities

and equity

$ 2,821 $

9.823 _
12.644

$ 2,821

9.823

12.644

3.368 42.348

$ 3.368 $ 42.348

98.842 101.953 20.297 70.339 11.828 348.975

98.842 $ 101.953 $ 20.297 $ 82.983 $ 11.828 $361.619

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1
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SCHEDULE B-2
TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

Safe

Schools

Public '

Library

Conservation

Commission

Tovra

Forest Recreation

Sevi'er

Depart-

ment

Police/

File

Grants Total

Revenues:

Taxes

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

$

30

30

$

16,124

16,124

$ 30,791

25.624

56,415

$

893

893

$

42,970

183

43.153

$

81,735

770

82.505

$

3.375

3,375

$ 30,791

124,705

46,999

202.495

Expenditures:

Current:

Sanitation

Culture and recreation

Conservation

15,127

52.988

52,988

3,427

40,952

86,034 86,034

56,079

52.988

Total expenditures 15.127

997

40.952

2,201

86,034

(3,529)

195,101

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 30 893 3,375 7,394

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

3.338

$ 3,368

41.351

$ 42,348

95,415

$ 98.842

101,060

$ 101,953

18.096

$ 20.297

73,868

$70,339

8.453

$ 11.828

341,581

$ 348,975

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1
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SCHEDULE C-1

TOWN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Trust and Agency Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2004

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Total assets

Trust Funds

Agency

Funds

$ 18,668

Expendable

Nonexpendable

$

982.970

$ 982,970= ^ =

Capital

Reserve Other Total

$ $

818.225 156.936

$ 18,668

1,958.131

$ 818.225 $ 156.936 $ 18.668 $ 1.976.799

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:

Intergovernmental payable

Interfund payable

Escrow and performance deposits

Total liabilities

Equity:

Fund balances:

Reserved for endowments

Reserved for special purposes

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

$ 285,941

34,983

$ 60,189 $ $

18,668

18.668

$ 346,130

34,983

18.668

320.924 60.189

96.747

96.747

$ 156.936

399.781

497,301

636,829

346.141

982.970

$ 982.970

636,829

940.189

497,301 1.577.018

$ 818.225 $ 18.668 $ 1.976.799

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1
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SCHEDULE C-2

TOIVN OFHOPKINTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Expendable Trust Funds

Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues:

New funds

Interest and dividends

Net decrease in fair value of investments

Total revenues

Other financing sources (uses):

Interfund transfers in

Interfund transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Capital

Reserve Other Total

$ 24,000

6,574

$

869

(140)

729

$ 24,000

7,443

(140)

30.574 31.303

408,000

(560,930)

(152,930)

67,500

(22.290)

45.210

475,500

(583,220)

(107.720)

(122,356)

619.657

$ 497,301

45,939

50.808

$ 96,747

(76,417)

670.465

$ 594.048

See Independent Auditor's Report, page 1
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Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors

193 North Main Street - Concord New Hampshiie - 03301-5063 - 603-225-6996 - FAX-224-1380

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR 'S COMMUNICA TION OF
REPORTABLE CONDITIONSAND OTHER MATTERS

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen

Town of Hopkinton

Hopldnton, New Hampshire

In planning and performing our audit ofthe Town ofHopkinton for the year ended December 3 1 , 2004, we considered

the Town' s internal control structure in order to determine the scope of our auditing procedures for the purpose of

expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our review of these systems was not intended to provide assurance

on the internal control structure and should not be relied on for that purpose.

Under the standards established by the American histitute ofCertified Public Accountants, reportable conditions involve

matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control

structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Town's ability to record, process, summarize, and report

financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements, A material weakness is a

reportable condition in which the design oi operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not

reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities caused by error or fraud, in amounts that would be

materia] in relation to the financial statements being audited, may occur and not be detected within a timely period by

employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions Our consideration of the internal control

structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might constitute reportable

conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be

material weaknesses as defined above

During the course of our review, the following conditions were noted that were considered to be material wealcnesses

as defined above:

General Accounting Records

Additional time was required to reconcile and analyze various accounts in the general fund ledgers, due to many
misclassifications in recording entries. Transfers between the general fund and the trust funds were difficult to trace

and reconcile, and many of the balance sheet accounts were not easily reconciled,

Tax Collector Records

Again this year, there were many unresolved problems regarding accounting for the financial activity of the Tax

Collector records, particularly in the preparation of Form MS-61 (State Report of Tax Collector's reconciliation of all

tax warrants)

.

The summary given to us had to be drastically revised in order to present meaningful information.

We therefore recommend the following:

1 Prepare an MS-61 report monthly (or at least quarterly), which will allow the tax collector to fix problems when they

occur, rather than trying to resolve discrepancies at December 31 that may have occuned much earlier in the year.
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Town ofHopkinton

Independent Auditor's Communication ofReportable Conditions and Other Matters

2. Seek adequate training on the new Avitar software system. It is essential that the individuals working in the tax

office gain an understanding of how the system works and what information is available to aid in the performance

of their duties.

3

.

Establish the year-end cut-offat December 3 1 to ensure that only transactions up through that date appear on the MS-
61.

4. Improve the recordkeeping system at the tax office. When tax information is filed in its proper place and in a timely

fashion, it provides an effective audit trail for fixing errors and preparing monthly reports.

Also, we again noted the following with regard to debt authorization:

Long-Term Debt Authorized - Unissued

The Town voted in 1997 in Article 6 to issue long-term debt for the construction of a playing field in the amount of

$388,000. The construction was completed in 1997, and annual appropriations of $78,000 have been made since to cover

the cost of the project. Since the entire balance had been recovered as ofDecember 3 1 , 2002, we recommend that this

debt authorization be rescinded at the next Town Meeting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of selectmen, and others within the

administration. This restriction is not intended to limit distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record-

January 28, 2005
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^^^^ Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan ^^^^
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Year s Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades

Community Center

Town Facilities Maintenance Trust Fund

Ambulances & Defibrillators

Fire Vehicles & Equipment

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment

Transfer Station Equipment

Police Cruisers & Accessories

Recreation Shuttle Bus

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund

Tennis Courts Replacement

Old Hopkinton Cemetery

Contoocook Village Cemetery

Blackwater Cemetery

Cemetery Historical Markers

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund

Sludge Removal @ Treatment Plant

Transfer Station Bond ($800,000 in '90 for 20 Yrs.)

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.)

Library Bond ($725,000 in '98 for 9 Yrs.)

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.)

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.)

$1,481,035

2005 $ 15,000

2005 $ 75,000

2005 $ 50,000

2005 $ 40,000

2005 $ 75,000

2005 $ 110,000

2005 $ 32,500

2005 $ 43,000

2005 $ 28,000

2005 $ 5,000

2005 $ 20,000

2005 $ 8,000

2005 $ 15,000

2005 $ 5,000

2005 $ 3,000

2005 $ 9,000

2005 $ 5,000

2005 $ 9,000

2005 $ 7,500

2005 $ 54,000

2005 $ 139,400

2005 $ 97,800

2005 $ 83,750

2005 $ 551,085

2005
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Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Year's Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades

Town Hall Renovations Arch/Eng

Ambulances & Defibrillators

Fire Vehicles & Equipment

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment

Transfer Station Equipment

Police Cruisers & Accessories

Recreation Shutde Bus

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund

Recreation Joint Track Project/School

Tennis Courts Replacement

Old Hopkinton Cemetery

Contoocook Village Cemetery

Blackwater Cemetery

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund

Sludge Removal @ Treatment Plant

School District Technology

School District Maintenance Trust Fund:

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

Replacement HMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Transfer Station Bond ($800,000 in '90 for 20 Yrs.)

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.)

Library Bond ($725,000 in '98 for 9 Yrs.)

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.)

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Roof Bond ($548,500 in '04/'05 for 5 Yrs.)

School Joint Track Project/Town

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

2006

15,000

50,000

40,000

75,000

110,000

32,500

43,000

28,000

5,000

40,000

20,000

8,000

15,000

5,000

9,000

5,000

9,000

7,500

75,000

150,000

2006 $ 51,000

2006 $ 139,400

2006 $ 98,800

2006 $ 81,500

2006 $ 206,700

2006 $ 547,165

2006 $ 124,700

2006 $ 40,000

2006 $2,031,265
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Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades

Ambulances & Defibrillators

Fire Vehicles & Equipment

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment

Transfer Station Equipment

Police Cruisers & Accessories

Recreation Shutde Bus

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund

Tennis Courts Replacement

Old Hopkinton Cemetery

Contoocook Village Cemetery

Blackwater Cemetery

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund

Sludge Removal @ Treatment Plant

School District Technology

School District Maintenance Trust Fund:

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

Replacement HMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Transfer Station Bond ($800,000 in 1 990 for 20-years) 2007 $48,000

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.) 2007 $139,400

Library Bond ($725,000 in '98 for 9 Yrs.) 2007 $99,500

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 1 5 Yrs.) 2007 $79,250

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.) 2007 $195,000

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.) 2007 $547,645

School District Roof Bond ($548,500 in '04/'05 for 5 Yrs.) 2007 $121,000

School District Facilities Study 2007 $30,000

School District Phase I & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.): 2007 $551 ,000

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

Year Cost Year's Cost

2007 $7,500

2007 $45,000

2007 $75,000

2007 $110,000

2007 $27,500

2007 $43,000

2007 $12,000

2007 $5,000

2007 $20,000

2007 $7,000

2007 $15,000

2007 $5,000

2007 $12,000

2007 $5,000

2007 $10,000

2007 $7,500

2007 $75,000

2007 $150,000

2007 $2,442,295
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Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Year's Cost

2008 $7,500

2008 $45,000

2008 $75,000

2008 $120,000

2008 $27,500

2008 $43,000

2008 $12,000

2008 $5,000

2008 $7,000

2008 $15,000

2008 $5,000

2008 $12,000

2008 $5,000

2008 $10,000

2008 $7,500

2008 $75,000

2008 $150,000

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades

Ambulances & Defibrillators

Fire Vehicles & Equipment

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment

Transfer Station Equipment

Police Cruisers & Accessories

Recreation Shuttle Bus

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund

Old Hopkinton Cemetery

Contoocook Village Cemetery

Blackwater Cemetery

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund

Sludge Removal @ Treatment Plant

School District Technology

School District Maintenance Trust Fund:

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

ReplacementHMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Transfer Station Bond ($800,000 in 1990 for 20-years)

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.)

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.)

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Roof Bond ($548,500 in '04/'05 for 5 Yrs.)

School District Phase I & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.):

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

2008 $45,000

2008 $139,400

2008 $77,000

2008 $190,000

2008 $547,405

2008 $118,000

2008 $585,000

2008 $2,323,305
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^^^^ Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan ^^^^
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Year's Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades 2009 $7,500

Ambulances & Defibrillators 2009 $50,000

Fire Vehicles & Equipment 2009 $ 1 00,000

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment 2009 $120,000

Transfer Station Equipment 2009 $27,500

Police Cruisers & Accessories 2009 $43,000

Recreation Shuttle Bus 2009 $12,000

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund 2009 $5,000

Old Hopkinton Cemetery 2009 $7,000

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems 2009 $ 1 2,000

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust 2009 $5,000

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund 2009 $10,000

Sludge Removal @ Treatment Plant 2009 $7,500

School District Technology 2009 $75,000

School District Maintenance Trust Fund: 2009 $ 1 50,000

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

Replacement HMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Transfer Station Bond ($800,000 Yr. 1990 for 20 Yrs.)

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.)

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.)

communit)^ center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Roof Bond ($548,500 in '04/'05 for 5 Yrs.)

School District Phase I & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.): 2009

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

2009 $2,309,803

2009 $43,000

2009 $139,400

2009 $74,750

2009 $185,000

2009 $551,153

2009 $115,000

2009 $570,000
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Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Year's Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades

Ambulances & Defibrillators

Fire Vehicles & Equipment

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment

Transfer Station Equipment

Police Cruisers & Accessories

Recreation Shutde Bus

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund

Sludge Removal @ Treatment Plant

School District Technology

School District Maintenance Trust Fund:

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

ReplacementHMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.)

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.)

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Roof Bond ($548,500 in '04/'05 for 5 Yrs.)

School District Phase I & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.):

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

$7,500

$50,000

$100,000

$120,000

$27,500

$43,000

$12,000

$5,000

$14,000

$6,000

$11,000

$7,500

$75,000

$150,000

2010 $139,400

2010 $72,500

2010 $180,000

2010 $548,880

2010 $111,000

2010 $555,000

2010 $2,235,280
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Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Years Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades

Ambulances & Defibrillators

Fire Vehicles & Equipment

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment

Transfer Station Equipment

Police Cruisers & Accessories

Recreation Shuttle Bus

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund

School District Technology

School District Maintenance Trust Fund:

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

ReplacementHMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.)

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.)

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Phase I & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.):

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

2011

$7,500

$56,000

$100,000

$130,000

$27,500

$43,000

$12,000

$5,000

$14,000

$6,000

$11,000

$75,000

$150,000

2011 $139,400

2011 $70,250

2011 $175,000

2011 $550,750

2011 $540,000

2011 $2,112,400
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^^^^ Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan ^^^^
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Year s Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades 2012 $7,500

Ambulances & Defibrillators 2012 $56,000

Fire Vehicles & Equipment 2012 $100,000

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment 2012 $130,000

Transfer Station Equipment 2012 $27,500

Police Cruisers & Accessories ~ 2012 $43,000

Recreation Shuttle Bus 2012 $12,000

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund 2012 $5,000

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems 2012 $ 1 4,000

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust 2012 $6,000

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund 20 1

2

$ 1 1 ,000

School District Technology 2012 $75,000

School District Maintenance Trust Fund: 2012 $150,000

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

ReplacementHMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.) 2012 $139,400

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.) 2012 $68,000

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.) 2012 $170,000

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.) 2012 $546,763

School District Phase I & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.): 2012 $525,000

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

2012 $2,086,163
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^^^^ Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan ^^^^
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Years Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades 2013 $7,500

Ambulances & Defibrillators 2013 $56,000

Fire Vehicles & Equipment 20 1

3

$ 1 00,000

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment 2013 $130,000

Transfer Station Equipment 2013 $27,500

Police Cruisers & Accessories 2013 $43,000

Recreation Shuttle Bus 2013 $12,000

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund 2013 $5,000

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems 20 1

3

$ 1 6,000

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust 2013 $6,000

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund 20 1

3

$ 1 1 ,000

School District Technology 2013 $85,000

School District Maintenance Trust Fund: 20 1

3

$200,000

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

Replacement HMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.) 2013 $139,400

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.) 2013 $65,750

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.) 2013 $165,000

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.) 2013 $546,918

School District Phase 1 & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.): 2013 $510,000

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

2013 $2,126,068
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^^^^ Hopkinton Capital Improvement Plan
Capital/Non-Capital Projects Funding by Year

Project Year Cost Year s Cost

Computer Hardware/Software Upgrades 2014 $5,000

Ambulances & Defibrillators 2014 $60,000

Fire Vehicles & Equipmem 2014 $100,000

Public Works Vehicles & Equipment 2014 $130,000

Transfer Station Equipment 2014 $27,500

Police Cruisers & Accessories ~ 2014 $43,000

Recreation Shuttle Bus 2014 $12,000

Recreation Equipment Maint Trust Fund 2014 $5,000

Library Rplcmnt Building Systems 2014 $21,000

Library Building/Grounds Maint Trust 2014 $8,000

Library Technology Maint Trust Fund 2014 $ 1 2,000

School District Technology 2014 $85,000

School District Maintenance Trust Fund: 2014 $200,000

District Wide Storage, Central Office Renovations/Repairs,

HMS Carpet Replacement, HMS Doors, HMS Gym Floor

ReplacementHMS Furnace Upgrade, HMS Paving/Parking,

HMS Furniture Classroom, HMS RoofRepairs, MSS Classroom

Carpet/Tile Replacement, MSS Paving/Parking, HHS Emergency

Generator, HHS Paving Rear Parking Lot.

Landfill Closure Bond ($1,859,000 in '98 for 20 Yrs.)

Open Space Land Bond ($750,000 in '05 for 15 Yrs.)

community center Bond ($2,000,000 in '05 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Bldg. Bond ($7,000,000 in '97/'98 for 20 Yrs.)

School District Phase I & II Bond ($6,000,000 in '06/'07 for 20 Yrs.

MSS Gymnasium & Renovations

HHS Classroom & Core Facility Expans.

2014 $2,117,150

Contoocook Village Precinct Projects Year Cost

Bear Pond Water Lines ($300,000) 2005 $140,000

Water Line Extension Phase II (Penacook Road) ($318,000) 2005 $50,000

1998 Installation of Water Main & Hydrants (Burnham Int.) ($86,000) 2005 $8,600

1998 Installation of Water Main & Hydrants (Burnham Int.) ($86,000) 2006 $8,600

1998 Installation ofWater Main & Hydrants (Burnham Int.) ($86,000) 2007 $8,600

Water Line (Spring Street) ($ 1 20,000) 2007 $ 1 20,000

Water Filtration Plant Upgrade ($318,000) 2010 $106,000

Water Filtration Plant Upgrade ($318,000) 201

1

$106,000

Water Filtration Plant Upgrade ($318,000) 2012 $106,000

2014 $139,400

2014 $63,500

2014 $160,000

2014 $550,750

2014 $495,000

Total $653,800

F121



OOlAOCMCSh-COANr^QOCDO^OIOpCOv^
eou>o>o>o^o>ooo(Dt-^Mt-00IO<OCO
C<r « «0 O" CO to T-"
<o CM lo ^ CO eo o

0> CO 0> (O O " o>
^ CO h- CD r- O) CO
cs ^ CO od oi ^ dO r- C^ ^ K - 00
-_ u> o cs o
CO T^ of oT d

«^^^M-«A^«»^M^«»M-M^«»M^^C^^^«»

CO
11)

CM
CM
00

^

a
o

Cm
o

o

CO O CO 00
CM CM T- ^
CM CM
•* CM
CM U)

00 o>
CO
CO

C7> lO U> T- CO
iq O CM CM T-^

CM S
T- CO

lO CM CO CO O CO o>
r*; CO lo ^ T- c» CO

o>o6coc7>fororocM^d
rocMcoiOh>o>h>h«inooO 0> CO t*- 0> CM T-

yk1»i»^0^^1f^^^1^^^^»^^y^it^^»^»¥k1^i^

to
iq

00
CO
CO
of

1
o o o K IO CO CO CM CM 00O O iO r^ CO K CO

. •^ . *=l .
o

S
1 d CD CM ' «* ' CO CO ' ^ ? § dO CO T- 0> CO <^ CO

^ o^ ^. » C0_ <J> CD^ s^ o> o> a>

Q
IO ccf CO
1^ •«- CO CM

cm" CO
o>

of CM
0> "f- s

^ CM CO
HI
Q

^ UJ

Ih
Q.

2S
<2 ^̂

4»«»«»«»M^4»M^4»4»4»4»C^4»«»C»4»4^ ^
>+M Q
<M <a
'm^ S O o o o o o o o o O O O O o
s O

00
o o
d d

o o o'odd o
d
o
d •2 o o o o

d d d d p
00O .C^ r«- o o o o o o o o o o o o h-

'<N Q
LU
Q

o>
CO

o o
ccf IO

o u> in

co" h-" h-T

o o o
d

o o o o
d of IO d*

o>
IO

C^
•^-^ r^ CO CO CM CO CM o 0> CM T- s

V b̂ < M^

Oh

|2

CMI0O^CMI0T-0>^C0^r^T-ll>O>C0I^CO^^00O0>l0N>C0CMa>
O 0> ^ CO CO CD ^
CO CM 10 "

h> 00 IO CM CO CO C»cocoipop^iocoop_ _ CO o - ^ _
^^ CD 0> h^ - T-^ 1**^ O^ '^ CM O p IO CO
i^Tco CO cM"dcoioccfcDcodof
00O> O vCOOOCO^ o>o

i^i^i^i^y^4A^i»y*^i^y^i^i^iA^4^i»¥^iA^

s
CO
CO
00

CO
o>

«»

o (t

^ UJ o ^o < 0^ (t U

VIL

PRCT

C/R

SD

MAIN/REN

u.
o
(0

u]

<

UJ
»-
z
UJ
o

z

a:

o

o
Q.

-J E

CRUISER

C/

3E

REMOVAL

i

1- )^ o 2 > O Qz Q. (t S Q. -1 3o o < o o o _J
o X I o X Q. V)

0^ m <:

o u- -^

-r ^ Z
^ Q O
(0 UJ

°^z

si
sH <

O

UJ

O OC

oc o
UJ v'

I-3 9^m u.

UJ H-

< -I Z

0^ > y
> < Q.
r_ ^ UJ

oCDm
o z D

UJ
o

^3
Q >

TT UJ

< ^
UJ O
-J O O

I-

F122



^^^^^^^^^^ Tax Collector/ ^^^^^^^^^^
Town Clerk Report

Four elections in 2004 kept our office and the supervisors of the checklist

very busy! Turnout for the November 2 General Election was 3,823 voters,

with 277 same day voter registrations. Thanks to all of the election officials

who work hard to make sure the Hopkinton voting process is smooth and

accurate. Minutes for the 2004 March Town Meeting and the Special Town
Meeting held on September 15, 2004 are posted on the town website at

www.hopkintonnh.us under Election Information.

NEW for 2005 ~ Per New Hampshire Department of Safety mandate, in order

to renew any registration, you must present either the registration to be renewed

or the state renewal letter mailed to you. We will ask for photo identification for

all requests for certified copies ofvital records including birth, death or marriage

certificates. These requirements were enacted to protect an individual's right to

confidentiality of information.

Please license your dog for 2005! NH law states all dogs over three months

must be vaccinated for rabies and licensed with the town annually between

January 1 and April 30. Please provide the rabies paperwork from the vet when

obtaining a license for your dog. All dogs must be licensed by May 1 each year.

Ifyou no longer have a dog, please notify the office so we can remove your name

from the list.

The Tax Collector's office is responsible for collecting revenue for property

taxes, current use, yield and excavation taxes, and Contoocook precinct water

& sewer fees. We strive to respond to all inquiries in a courteous and timely

manner.

The Town Clerk's office registers and titles motor vehicles, registers boats,

ATVs, snowmobiles, licenses dogs, sells hunting and fishing licenses, issues

landfill permits, and issues birth, marriage and death certificates. The office

also administers elections, absentee ballots and voter registrations. The clerk

maintains town records, IRS and other liens, UCCs, and processes wetlands

applications and oaths of office.

Thanks to everyone who purchased the Support Our Troops magnetic rib-

bons and donated items and CDs. We sent several packages to Steve Pecora

and David Geiger who are active military in Iraq.

The Town Clerk & Tax Collector's office, located in Contoocook

village, at 846 Main Street, is open Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to
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4:30 p.m. Our phone number is 746-3179 or 3180. Our email address is

townclerk@hopkintonnh.us or tax collector@hopkintonnh.us. Please stop in

or call us with any questions.

Sandi, Carol and I extend our appreciation to the residents for their friendly

attitudes and tidbits ofwisdom. We enjoy working for and with the people in

the community.

Respectfully submitted,

Sue B. Strickford

Town Clerk/Tax Collector
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Town of Hopkinton
Tax Collectors Report MS-61

Year Ending 12/31/04

DEBITS

Levy for Year

of this Report

2004

Prior Levies

(Specify years)

2003 2002 2001 & Prior

UNCOLLECTED TAXES

BEG OF YEAR:* 570,769.87

Property Taxes xxxxxxxxxx

Land Use Change xxxxxxxxxx

Yield Taxes xxxxxxxxxx 4,734.77

Excavation Tax @$.02/yd xxxxxxxxxx

Excavation Activity Tax xxxxxxxxxx

Interest xxxxxxxxxx

Utihty Charges xxxxxxxxxx

TAXES COMMITTED f'

Property Taxes #3110 13,756,354.00 xxxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxx

Land Use Change #3120 87,974.00 xxxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxx

Yield Taxes #3185 34,869.78 xxxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxx

Excavation Tax #3 1 87 33.74 xxxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxx

Excav. Activity Tax #3188 xxxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxx

Utility Charges #3189 xxxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxx

Gravel Tax xxxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxxx

OVERPAYMENT
Property Taxes #3110 25,219.08

Land Use Change #3 1 20

Yield Taxes #3185

Excavation Tax #3187

Excav. Activity Tax #3188

Prepayments 6,876.03

Prepayments to be Refunded 2,875.00

Interest Collected #3190 4,757.98 26,783.93

Other Costs & Penalties

Excess Credits 1,158.85 8,179.97

TOTAL DEBITS $13,920,118.46 $610,468.54 $0.00 $0.00

* This amount should be the same as last year's ending balance. If not, please explain.

MS-1 2004-05 Page 1
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Town of Hopkinton
Tax Collectors Report MS-61

Year Ending 12/31/04

CREDITS
Levy For

This Year

2004 2003

Prior Levies

(Please specify years)

2002 2001 & Prior

Remitted to Treasurer During Fiscal Yr 447,845.47

Property Tax 13,125,493.09

Land Use Change 87,974.00

Yield Taxes 25,688.72 1,120.16

Interest 4,757.98 26,783.93

Penalties

Excavation Tax @$.02/yd 33.74

Excavation Activity Tax

Utility Charges

Conversion to Lien (should equal line 2, pg 3) 131,104.37

Prepayments 26,220.56

DISCOUNTS ALLOWED:

ABATEMENTS MADE:

Property Taxes 8,331.39

Land Use Change

Yield Taxes

Excavation Tax @ $.02/yd

Excav. Activity Tax

Utility Charges

Prepa£a^

Current levy deeded

Interest

UNCOLLECTED TAXES

End of Year

Property Taxes 631,683.98

Land Use Change

Yield Taxes 9,935.00 3,614.61

Excavation & Excav. Activity Taxes

Utility Charges

Excess Debits

TOTAL CREDITS $13,920,118.46 $610,468.54 $0.00 $0.00

MS-1 2004-05 Page 2
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Town of Hopkinton
Tax Collectors Report MS-61

Year Ending 12/31/04

Does your municipality commit taxes on a semi-annual basis (RSA 76:15-a)? Yes

Tax Collector's Signature Date:

ms-l tc report 2004-05.xls

DEBITS

Last Year's

Levy 2003 2002

Prior Levies

2001 2000 & Prior

Unredeemed Liens

at Beg. of Fiscal Year 97,808.64 $42,266.19 $25,534.70

Liens executed during fiscal year 141,854.70

Interest & Costs Collected after lien 2,882.05 5,184.13 $6,311.62 $1,898.83

Excess Credits $4,903.58

TOTAL DEBITS $144,736.75 $102,992.77 $48,577.81 $32,337.11

^_i ^^mm^^ii^ ^^^^^
CREDITS

Remitted to Treasurer:

Redemptions 41,644.21 46,232.69 29,926.38 12,386.40

Interest & Costs after lien execution 2,882.05 5,184.13 6,311.62 1,898.83

Abatements of Unredeemed Taxes

Liens Deeded to Municipality

Unredeemed Liens Bal End ofYr 100,210.49 50,380.85 12,339.81 18,051.88

Excess Debits 1,195.10

TOTAL CREDITS $144,736.75 $102,992.77 $48,577.81 $32,337.11

MS-1 2004-05 Page 3
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Town of Hopkinton

01/01/04 - 12/31/04 •

TOWN RFCEIPTS 2004

Motor Vehicle Permits (8,060) $1,022,007.81

Motor Vehicle Title Fees $2,810.00

Motor Vehicle Decal Fees $18,995.50

Dog License Town Fees & Penalties (1,289) $5,827.50

Town Boat Fees $1,810.39

UCC Fees $2,134.37

Miscellaneous Fees $943.17

Certified Copies Town Fees $518.00

Marriage License Town Fees $189.00

STATE OF NH RFCEIPTS

Motor Vehicle & Boat Registrations - Direct Deposit to State $312,317.49

Certified Copies - Town Remits to State $990.00

Dog License Fees - Town Remits to State $2,865.00

Marriage License Fees - Town Remits to State $1,026.00

Fish & Game - Licenses - Town Remits to State $2,084.00

Fish & Game - OHRV Registrations - Town Remits to State $3,764.00

TOTAL RECEIPTS $1,378,282.23

REMITTANCES
to Town Treasurer $1,065,964.74

to State ofNew Hampshire Direct Deposit $312,317.49

to State ofNH from Town $10,729.00

TOTAL REMITTANCES $1,378,282.23
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Town of Hopkinton
Treasurer's Report

Bonita A. Cressy, Treasurer, in Account with the Town of Hopl^inton, NH

Balance at the time of settlement - December 31, 2003

RECEIPTS:

U. S. Govemment: Payments on Federally-owned lands

Highway Block Grant

Landfill Grant

Reimbursement-Forest Fires

Revenue Sharing

Flood Control

Rooms & Meals Tax

Reimbursement-Town Departments

Reimbursement-Hopkinton School District

Reimbursement-Landfill Closure-Town of Warner

Ella Tarr Trust

Ambulance Income

Landfill Income

Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Rental-Town Property

Sale-Town Property

Other Financial Sources

Town Clerk Fees

Property Taxes

Interest on deposits-Checking

Transfer from BNH POOL
Payroll Transfer

TOTAL RECEIPTS:

GRAND TOTAL:

TOTAL PAID ORDERS OF SELECTMEN:

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 , 2004

5,346,340.90

$ 126,531.17

$ 53,590.37

$ 16,360.49

$ 69,301 .00

$ 285.75

$ 347,706.34

$ 986,492.69

$ 22,247.88

$ 21,029.75

$ 6,186.24

$ 230,973.03

$ 287,559.39

$ 6,283.59

$ 16,105.00

$ 5,171.00

$ 1,553,574.94

$ 1,065,964.74

$ 13,976,222.44

$ 30,820.20

$ 341,880.01

$ 28,005.12

$ 19,192,291.14

$ 24,538,632.04

$ 19,112,067.07

$ 5,426,564.97
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Town of Hopkinton
Treasurer's Report

MCKBRCHER FIRE FUND

Balance at of December 31 , 2003
Income from McKercher Trust

Interest on depoeita-BNH

fmereston depoeits-BMB&T

Total

Expended

Balance as of Decemtier 31 , 2004*BMB&T

$ 2.393.01

$ 1.641.53

$ 0.50

s 29.06

4,0M.09

4,064.0»

tICKERCHER POLICE FUND

Balance as of Oecemk}er 31 , 2003

Income from McKercher Trust

Interest on deposits-BNH

Interest on deposits-BMB&T

Total

Expended

Balance as of Decemt)er 31 , 2004-BMB&T

1 1,249.S2

$ 1.641.63

$ 0.27

$ 19.16

2,910^

2.91048

POLICE/DRUG FORFEIT FUND

Balance as of December 3 1 , 2003

Interest on deposrts-BNH

Interest on deposits-BMB&T

Total

Expended (transfer)

Balance as of December 31, 2004-BMB&T

4310.82

0.97

38.18

4^49.97

511.52

4.338.48

POLICEyPRUQ FORFEIT STATE FUND

Balance as of December 31 , 2003

Income (transfer)

Interest on deposits-BMB&T

Total

Balance as of December 31, 2004-BMB&T

$

$

$

611.52

3.38

f 814.90

f 814.90
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gAFEgCHWLS

Balance as of Deoember 31 , 2003

tntarest on daposits-BNH

Intarest on dapoaita-BMB&T

Total

Expended

Balance as of December 31, 2004-BMB&T

3,338^3
0.68

26.63

3,367.74

3.367J4

KWSf^PUND

Balance as of December 31 , 2003

Sue Strlckford-2003 Sewer Fees

-2003 Sewer Fees Interest

-2003 Water Fees

-2004 Sewer Fees

-2004 Sewer Fees Interest

Interest on deposits-BNH

Interest on deposits-BMB&T

Total

Reimbursement-Contoocook Village Precinct

Reimbursement-Town of Hopkinton, NH

Total

Balance as of December 31 , 2004-BMB&T

% 82324.M
$ 7,749.43

$ 289.76

$ 236.07

$ 76,081.94

$ 36.53

$ 10.26

$ 433.25

$ 188341.88

$ 236.07

$ 92.721.50

$ 92.957.57

$ 73.884.28

HOPKINTON TOWN FOREST

Batanoe as of December 31 , 2003

income Town of Hopkinton. NH
Interest on deposits-BNH

Interest on deposfts-BMB&T

Totrt

Expended

$ 101,058.83

$

8 20.60

$ 672.65

I 101,983.28

I i_

Balance as of December 31 . 2004-6MB&T 8 101J83.28
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HOPKINTON C0M8ERVATION COMMISSION

Balance as of December 31 , 2003 $ 80,494^2
Income Town of Hopkinton, NH $ 24.461.00

Gift $ 25.000.00

Interest on deposits-BNH $ 16.20

Interest on deposrts-BMB&T $ 607.64

Total $ 130.639.0f

Expended $ 62.488.14

Balance as of December 31 . 2004-BMB&T $ 68.060.82

PARK RECREATION ACCOUNT

Balance as of December 31 . 2003 $ 18»096.42

Income $ 42,070.45

Interest on depoeits-BNH $ 2.87

Interest on deposlts-BMBAT % 179.59

Total $ 61.249.33

Bank Fees $ 7.50

Reimbunwrnent Town of Hopkinton, NH $ 40.945.15

Total I 40.952.65

Balance as of December 31 , 2004-BMB&T $ 20.296.66

VEST PARTNERSHIP

Balance as of December 31 , 2003 I 1 ,077.00

Interest on deposlts-BMB&T { 9.29

Total $ 1,086J9

Expended | ;___

Balance as of December 31. 2004-BM6&T 6 1.066.29

FIELDSTONE ROAD

Balance as of December 31 , 2003 6 20,662.67

Interest on depoeits-BNH $ 4.19
Interest on deposits-BMB&T $ 106.70

Total I 20.693.66

Expended $ 14.114.11

Balance as of December 31 . 2004-BMB&T $ 6.679.46
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ySADOWViEW DEVELOPMENT

Balance as of Oeoembar 31 , 2003

Interest on deposlts-BNH

Interest on deposits-BMB&T

$

$
s

U%A4
0.17

Total $ 84S.81

Expended $ 849.81

Balance as of December 31, 2004-BMB&T J- -

8NOWSHOE DEVELOPMENT ftjI^NT^I^Np^

$Balance as of Decemt)er 31. 2003 •

Income

Interest on deposits-BMB&T $

10,000.00

66.37

Total $ 10,086.37

Expended $ -

Balance as of Decemtwr 31 , 2004-BM6&T $ 10.086.37

MQW^O^ PlYfiWPMPfT CONSTRUCTION

TQOKYVrLLAQEJNV

Balance as of December 31 , 2003 $

Income $ 8,700.00

Interest on deposits-BMB&T $ 35.63

Totai I 8,736.63

Expended $ 7.819.65

Balance as of December 31 , 2004-BMB&T f 916.88

Balance as of December 31 , 2003

Income

Interest on depoeits-BMB&T

1
S

$

•

2,800.00

8.22

Total 8 2,808J2

Expended $ 2,806.22

Balance as of December 31 , 2004-BMB&T $ -
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HOUSTON PARK COMMUNITY CENTER

Balance as of December 31, 2003

Donations

Total

Balance as of Decervtoer 31 , 2004'BMB&T

Respectfully submitted,

$

$ 315.00

1

f

ais.oo

316.00

Bonita A. Cressy

Treasurer
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Contoocook Village Precinct

2004 Annual Report

The Contoocook Village Precinct completed another year on budget and

a number of outstanding issues have been addressed over the past year. The

addition of a part-time employee to assist the Superintendent has been very

successful and a number of outstanding items have been addressed.

At the direction ofthe Precinct Commissioners, Weaver Brothers completed

the installation of approximately 1,000 feet of water line extending down the

PenacookRoad.The Projectwas on budgetand completed in a timelymanner. It is

plannedthattheentirePenacookRoadpipelineextensionwillbecompletedin2006.

Over the past year the Precinct has replaced hydrants on Prospect Street and

School Street, established a watershed protection plan and instituted regular

inspections of the watershed area. Precinct employees re-built the valves on the

water treatment tanks and cleared brush around the water treatment building and

lagoons. The area around the dam was cleared and trees removed in preparation of

workon the main valves and the waterline from the pond to the treatment facility.

The Precinct has also installed long needed isolation valves on a number oflines.

The Precinct, through its engineers, defined a scope of work for the re-

lining of the existing water dam to treatment facility pipeline. A bid was

obtained for the replacement of the main valves and re-lining of the pipeline

from the dam to the treatment facility. This work was originally estimated

to be approximately $550,000.00 and the Precinct Commissioners explored

alternatives such as bonding or a phased project.

In June, the Precinct Commissioners received a fixed price bid from

Heitkamp, Inc. of Watertown Connecticut of $295,825.00 for the entire

project, including replacement of the main valves and valve house, installation

of a temporary water line and the cleaning and re-lining of the water line from

the pond to the treatment facility. Heitkamp, Inc. can begin the project in May
or June 2005. The Commissioners believe that by using the capital reserve

and a one time increase in taxes, this proposal offers a unique opportunity

to complete the renewal of the water system at a substantial savings to the

taxpayers. A warrant article has been proposed for approval of this project at

the March meeting.

The Commissioners have also held continuing discussions of possible long

term plans to relocate the Main Street reservoir to a higher elevation.

F140



As part of the continuing regulation by the State of New Hampshire and

Federal EPA the Precinct is continuing to be faced with new testing and

treatment requirements. This requires continuing extensive testing of the

system to insure compliance with new regulations. The Precinct will be faced

with new instrumentation and treatment requirements in the future and the

Commissioners will continue to work to insure the system remains safe and

reliable. The Commissioners would like to thank all users for their cooperation

and ask that all users treat water as a valuable resource.

The ContoocookVillage PrecinctAnnual Meeting will be held at the Hopkinton

High School, Room 203 on Thursday March 24, 2005 at 7:00 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Commissioners:

Robert Carpenter

William Chapin

Mark Connelly

Steve Clough, Superintendent
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Contoocook Village Precinct

Contoocook MS-37

liS-37

BUDGET FORM FOR VILLAGE DISTRICTS
WHICH HAVE ADOPTED THE PROVISIONS OF RSA 32:14 THROUGH 32:24

DATE OF MEETING

VILLAGE DISTRICT:

In

^<^iyri\^ccOJc^ County: /Ylegev/Wf<^

the Town(8) Of: Mo^)fca/><tWV

Mailing Address: --KO 6q< 4-/^

CrA^dj^f^. U44 C3c^&^

Phone #: Fax#:

IMPORTANT:

E-Mail:

Please read RSA 32:5 applicable to all nnunicipallties.

1

.

RSA 32:5 requires this budget be prepared on a 'gross* basis showing all revenues and appropriations. At least one public liearing must

be held on this budget

2. This budget must be posted with the Village District warrant not later than the fifteenth day before the day of the meeting.

3. When completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with the warrant. Another copy must be placed on file with the village district

cleric, and a copy sent to the Department of Revenue Administration at the address below.

This is to certify that this budget was posted with the warrant on ttie^(date)

BUDGET COMMITTEE
PiBase sign In Ink.

IIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH T
FOR DRA USE ONLY

E DISTRICT WARRANT

NH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

MUNICIPAL FINANCE BUREAU
P.O. BOX 487, CONCORD, NH 03302-0487

(603)271-3397

MS-37

R«v. 07/02
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Contoocook Village Precinct

Contoocook MS-37

MS-37 Budget - Town/City of.

1 2

FY

Actual Estimated

WARR. Estimated Revenues Revenues Revenues

Acct.# SOURCE OF REVENUE ART.# Prior Year Prior Year Ensuing Year

TAXES xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3190 Interest & Penalties on Delinquent Taxes

3311-3319 FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

FROM STATE XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3351 Shared Revenues 2.539 2,539 2,539

3354 Water Pollution Grant

3359 Other (Including Railroad Tax)

3379 FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

CHARGES FOR SERVICES XXXXXXXXX xxxxxxxxx XXXXXXXXX

3401 Income from Departments

3402 Water Supply System Charges 70,000 73,273 70,000

3403 Sewer User Charges

3404 Garbage - Refuse Charges

3409 Other Charges 1,000 1,000 1,000

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES XXXXXXXXX xxxxxxxxx XXXXXXXXX

3501 Sale of Village District Property

3502 Interest on Investments 100 171 100

3503-3509 Other 1,500 9,662 2,000

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN XXXXXXXXX xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3912 From Special Revenue Funds

3913 From Capital Projects Funds 150,000

3914 From Proprietary Funds

3915 From Capital Reserve Funds 60,000 60,000 160,000

3916 From Trust & Agency Funds

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3934 Proc. from Long Term Bonds & Notes

Amts VOTED From F/B ("Surplus")

Fund Balance ("Surplus") to Reduce Taxes

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE & CREDITS

"BUDGET SUMMARY"
PRIOR YEAR COMMISSIONERS BUDGET COMMITTEE

SUBTOTAL 1 Recommended (from page 4) 314,190 587,900 587.900

SUBTOTAL 2 Special warrant articles Recommended (from page 5)

SUBTOTAL 3 "Indtvidual" warrant articles Recommended (from page 5) 150,000 150.000

TOTAL Appropriations Recommended 587,900 587,900

Less: Amount of Estimated Revenues & Credits (from above) 385,639 385,639

Estimated Amount of Taxes to be Raised 201,261 201,261

Maximum Allowable Increase to Budget Committee's
(See Supplemental Schedule With 10% Calculation)

Recommended Budget per RSA 32:18:

MS-37

Rev. 07/02
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^^^^ Contoocook Village Precinct ^^^^
Contoocook MS-37

""^"^""

PROPOSED Warrant Articles 2005

To see if the Precinct will vote to authorize the placement of all unexpended funds

appropriated for engineering and planning services into the Capital Reserve Fund for

Replacement of Water Mains.

To see if the Precinct will vote to authorize the Commissioner to raise through

assessment of taxes, the sum $150,000.00 to be placed in the Capital Reserve Fund for

Replacement of Water Mains.

To see if the Precinct will vote to authorize the expenditure of not more than

$300,000.00. to be appropriated from the Capital Reserve Fund for Replacement of

Water Mains, to replace existing mainline valves, clean and re-line the pipeline from the

dam to the existing new pipeline to water treatment facility.
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Hopkinton Village Precinct

Hopkinton MS-37

MS-37 2005

BUDGET FORM FOR VILLAGE DISTRICTS
WHICH HAVE ADOPTED THE PROVISIONS OF RSA 32:14 THROUGH 32:24

DATE OF MEETING:

VILLAGE DISTRICT: Hopkinton .County: Merrimack

In the Town(s) Of: Hopkinton

Mailing Address: c/o Brenner Fuller. Treasurer

136 South Rd.. Hopkinton. NH 03229

Phone #: 603-746-3057 Fax #: 603-746-6808 E-Mail: brfullerfltoomcast.net

IMPORTANT:

Please read RSA 32:5 applicable to all municipalities.

1 . RSA 32:5 requires this budget be prepared on a 'gross' basis showing all revenues and appropriations. At least one public hearing

must be held on this budget

Z This budget must be posted with the Village District warrant not later than the fifteenth day before the day of the meeting.

3. When completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with the wan^nL Another copy must be placed on file with the village district

cierk, and a copy sent to the Department of Revenue Administration at the address below.

This is to certify that this budget was posted with the warrant on the (date)

BUDGET COMMITTEE
Please sign in ink.

r^>^vju<A

DGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE V DISTRICT WARRANT
FOR DRA USE ONLY

NH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

MUNICIPAL FINANCE BUREAU
P.O. BOX 487, CONCORD, NH 03302-0487

(603)271-3397

M8-37
R«v. 07/02

F149



Hopkinton Village Precinct

Hopkinton MS-37
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Hopkinton Village Precinct

Hopkinton MS-37
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Hopkinton Village Precinct

Hopkinton MS-37

MS-37 Budget - Town/City of. Hopkinton FY 2005

AccL« SOURCE OF REVENUE
WARR.
ART.«

Estimated Revenues
Prior Year

TAXES xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3190 Interest & Penalties on Delinquent Taxes

3311-3319 FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

FROM STATE XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3351 Shared Revenues 135 135 135

3354 Water Pollution Grant

3359 Otiier (Including RaUroad Tax) 480

3379 FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

CHARGES FOR SERVICES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3401 Income from Departments 67531 66756 125926

3402 Water Supply System Charges

3403 Sewer User Charges

3404 GartMge - Refuse Charges

3409 Other Charges 100 265 100

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

S501 Sale of Village District Property

3502 interest on investments 25 3

3503-3509 Other
•

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX xxxxxxxxx

3912 From Special Revenue Funds

3913 From Capital Projects Funds

3914 From Proprietary Funds

3915 From Capital Reserve Funds

3916 From Trust & Agency Funds

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3934 Proc. from L^ng Term Bonds & Notes 46000

Amts VOTED From F/B fSurplus") 8415 8415 9662

Fund Balance ("Surplus") to Reduce Taxes

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE & CREDITS 122206 76054 135823

-BUDGET SUMMARY-
PRIftftVEAR CdMMISSIdMERS

SUBTOTAL 1 RKomriMMM (from page 4) 90756 148801

SUB 1U 1AL 2 SfMCial warrant itldM RKorniMfKlwl (from pag« S) 46000

8UBT0TA1. 3 *b agaS)

lUIALAppropt.-^ „
136756 148801

Laaa: Amount of Estimated Rwwiuaa & CredMi (from abova) 122206 135823

Estknatad Amount of Taxes to be Ralaad 14550 12978

Maximum Allowable Increase to Budget Committee's Recommended Budget per RSA 32:18:

(See Supplemental Scliedule With 10% Calculation)
MS-37

V. 07102
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____^_^__. Hopkinton School ^__^_^__.
Board Report

The School Board is pleased to report over the past twelve months two

significant achievements: first, continued recognition of academic excellence of

our administrators, faculty and students; and second, the hard work and close

attention to money matters allowing the District to return $358,865 to the

Town, used by the Town to reduce the Municipal tax rate.

Hopkinton students' performance on the statewide achievement tests was

especially noteworthy as Hopkinton students performed at the upper 10% of

New Hampshire Schools in the State mandated third, sixth and tenth grade tests.

Over the past several years, the performance of our students has demonstrated

steady improvement as a result, in part, of integrating the K-12^^ grade

curriculum. It must be emphasized that Hopkinton does not "teach to the test."

Rather, our faculty present to their students at all grade levels the opportunity

to excel using a variety of teaching methods - problem solving, integration of

technology or hands on learning. The Harold Martin and Maple Street Schools

were recognized as New Hampshire Blue Ribbon Schools for parent and

community volunteerism, an award the District has received for the past two

years. Significantly, under the leadership of Principal Steve Chamberlain and

Assistant Principal Matt McGonagle, the Hopkinton Middle/High School was

recognized as one oftwo high schools in the State to be a National Blue Ribbon

School for consistent high scores in state assessments of student achievement.

This award, given by the U.S. Department of Education, is further evidence

of state and national recognition of the academic excellence of the Hopkinton

schools.

Of the 89 graduates of the Class of 2004, 1G% have enrolled in four-year

colleges, 10% have enrolled in two-year colleges, two students have entered the

military service, and 12% have joined the work force. In almost every instance,

the choice made by the graduate was one in which they had several options.

Those options were the product of our graduates' hard work and competence

of the high school faculty. It is noteworthy that the graduates were almost

universally able to gain admission into the college of their first choice or into

the work force pursuing a profession or interest likely focused by participating

in a regional vocational training program.

As every reader of this report appreciates, school funding in New Hampshire

is a topic that is subject to court decisions and political efforts to meet the

State's responsibilities identified by the New Hampshire Supreme Court. As
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a result, over the past several years, in particular, it has been very difficult for

your School Board, as well as every school board in the State, to develop their

budgets as the level of state assistance, and resulting state property tax have

generally been unknown while developing a proposed budget and, most recently,

at the time of budget presentation at the District meeting. This past year was

more of the same. Despite these obstacles, and through the diligent efforts of

our Superintendent and his Leadership Team, the School District was able to

return to the Town $358,865. A portion of the returned funds reflects the fact

that pursuant to our collective bargaining agreements the District is obligated

to set aside funds for specific purposes, for example, retirement of up to three

teachers. If no teachers retire, or less than three teachers retire, then the funds

set aside for that purpose will not have been spent. This example coupled with

tightfistedness on virtually every line item in the School District's budget has

resulted in the District being able to return unspent, unencumbered funds to the

Town. As noted, this year the amount returned was $358,865. In June 2003,

the amount was $355,844. In 2002, the amount was $53,883. Under state

law, when a school district returns such funds to the Town, those funds become

revenue and may be utilized by the Town to reduce Town taxes and the resulting

tax rate. The returned funds do not directly reduce the School Districts tax rate.

The taxpayers and residents of Hopkinton can be assured that your School

Board will continue to be fiscally responsible. Over the past year, the School

Board, working with administrators as well as representatives of each of our

bargaining units, was able to significantly reduce the health insurance costs for the

School District without compromising medical coverage. It must be emphasized

that the reduction in health insurance costs, estimated to be $130,000, was

the result of the efforts of your administrators, teachers, aides and custodians

working together with a common goal of doing everything possible to reduce

healthcare costs and to constrain those costs on a going forward basis. Those

efforts have been successful.

Our sports teams have continued to do well as indicated by the level of

participation and success in state tournaments. Over 2/3s ofthe high school body

participates in a team sport during the course of a school year, and 71 students

received designation as a scholar athlete by the New Hampshire Interscholastic

Athletic Association. We were honored with four state championships this

past year. Additionally, eight students were selected to participate in the

New Hampshire Allstate music and jazz festivals and over 45 high school

students participated in three drama production ranging from Shakespeare to a

contemporary production for the student body. The Hopkinton High School
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Mathematics Team received recognition of their second place in the State

Mathematics Competition. The Hopkinton High School Interact Club has

continued its tradition ofpublic service within our community, and has expanded

efforts to include the participation of over 30 students in assisting with the

building and renovation ofschools and community facilities in Honduras. This

was the first year of the Ingy Arnold Award where a member of the community

is recognized for their support of Hopkinton athletics. We congratulate Kevin

Chittim on receiving this worthy recognition.

Our community should be proud that we have, across the board, exceptional

students who excel in the classroom, in the concert hall, on the playing field,

and in their community.

On behalf of the Hopkinton School Board,

Arpiar G. Saunders, Jr., Chair
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Superintendent s Report

January 2005

Our District's efforts over the past year are consistent with three District Goals.

These goals have guided our efforts to advance learning and the meaningful

development of each child and young adult within our schools. The goals are

specific to:

• Defining and applying relevant curriculum and assessment practices

for each student's learning;

• Employing the best practices in classroom instruction in every classroom

each day, and;

• Ensuring that District policies and resources effectively support

opportunities for the advancement of learning and development for

students and District personnel.

These goals are realized through a continuum that incorporates individualized

goal setting for each staffmember and school. Our District is fortunate to have

a high level of commitment of professional and support staff to collaboration

on curriculum development and planning through grade level or department

configurations and through District committee work. Close to seventy percent

(70%) of professional staff participate in one or more District committees.

The achievements and recognitions for our District, as noted in the reports of

the District Principals and Board, are a result of these collaborative efforts. We
believe that worthy changes in the culture of teaching and learning are realized

when those closest to classroom instruction and student life are invited to

suggest strategies for improvement. We are extremely proud ofthe achievement

of the District; however, we remain mindful of the obligation to continuously

improve our instructional practices, curriculum, and focus upon each student's

well-being.

The challenges before us includes refining our curriculum and instructional

strategies, cultivating and expanding our students sense of creativity and

expression through the arts and participation in student activities and

organizations, promoting the importance of a sense ofcommunity and cultural

diversity, and meeting the requirements ofthe expanding expectations from state

and federal legislation without compromising our current profile in teaching and

student services. Worthy examples of the efforts in this regard are the K-6 After

School Enrichment Program, the Annual "Celebration of the Arts" Program, the

strong interest and participation in the Peer Leadership Programs, the expanse of

student exchange programs, and the significance of the efforts of the high school
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Interact Club in their support and participation in assisting the less fortunate

children in Honduras, to mention a few.

In the near future, the school community must be prepared to address the

facility needs due to the steady increase in student population, advances in

curricular offerings and facility upgrades necessary to meet the health and safety

needs ofstudents and staff. As this planning evolves, we encourage all community

members to participate in forthcoming discussions on the demands upon our

current facilities and the tentative plans to address these needs.

We all must recognize the major challenge school funding imposes upon all

communities within our state. The reality of decreasing state aid for education

result in increases in individual taxpayer obligations to fund their community's

schools. Over time, the ultimate impact is on learning opportunities for our youth.

Our students deserve to have the current profile of excellence sustained.

Over the past year, we have experienced changes in our administrative and

teaching staff The District is indebted to Michelle Lattice for her efforts as

Director ofTechnology over the past five years. Her replacement will be met with

a well established and effective technological infrastructure. We also welcome

Michelle Clark who assumes the position of District Business Administrator in

early February 2005. Michelle's experience in municipal finance will serve the

District and the community well as we face the complex issues surrounding

school finance. We also wish to acknowledge Ty Houston's twenty-four years

in the District of teaching middle school social studies. We wish him well upon

his retirement in June 2005.

As the District faces the challenges ahead, we must continue to focus upon

the aspirations and achievements of the community's youth as displayed in

each classroom lesson, school program, activity, or community event. A recent

example being the inspiration our students brought to our state for their part

in the recent Governor's Inauguration Ceremony.

The community's continued support for their schools is acknowledged and

greatly appreciated. We look forward to working together in the promising

year ahead.

Richard W Ayers
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Principals' Report
2004 School Year

Many themes permeated through Hopkinton Middle and High School

during the 2004 - 2005 school year. The spring of 2004 saw the end of

Hopkinton High School's centennial celebration. The 100th graduation was

an extraordinary event. The graduates arrived at the Hopkinton Fairgrounds

Durgin Arena in a parade ofantique cars. Nearly the entire faculty honored the

graduates by attending in their academic regalia. The graduation was a fitting

culmination to a year of celebration. The class of 2004 graduated 89 seniors;

86% of the graduates went on to two or four year colleges or universities.

We welcomed a wonderful cast of new staff members to the school in the

fall of 2004. Barb Jenkins joined us from the Maple Street School to co-lead

the middle school chorus, Chuck Mills rejoined the high school staff as the

coordinator/teacher ofthe senior project pilot program, Dr. FoadAfshar joined

the staff to implement a student assistance program, Janet Plummet became

the new library assistant. Rick Senatore joined the middle school staff as a part-

time mathematics teacher, Anne Smith joined the high school special education

staff on a part time basis, Maureen Doucette joined the Fine and Performing

Arts Department as a part time middle and high school theatre teacher, Mark

Dingman and Marcia Stansfield became instructional assistants, Mary Ellen

Ramsdell became the clerical assistant and Mary Ann Mann filled the role of

permanent substitute teacher.

The election played an important role in the school year. A mock Democratic

National Convention began the school's integration of the election and politics

into the curriculum. John Kerry narrowly defeated Dennis Kucinich for the

nomination. The election was also used as a theme by a number of teachers

throughout the school. Deputy Town Clerk, Sandy Babson, spent a day in the

high school providing students with a convenient opportunity to register to

vote. Andy Dusseault, social studies teacher, invited Representative Christine

Hamm to visit his classes and moderated a forum at the Hopkinton Town
Hall for candidates running for local offices and brought students to a "Kids

Voting New Hampshire" event in Manchester. Hopkinton Middle and High

Schools also participated in the statewide "Kids Voting New Hampshire" mock
election where over 38,000 students voted. Martha Kruse arranged for students

to register to vote as part of the Connections Cafe Course she co-teaches with

Holly Charron.
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Innovation played an important role in the 2004 - 2005 school year. In late

August 96% of the seventh graders attended a "Salute to Seventh Graders"

orientation program. The students experienced an abbreviated day, played

Frisbee Golf with the administrators, and of course received their locker

assignments. Fourteen seniors participated in a pilot of the senior project

program. Students pursued passions in glass blowing, fashion design, and

writing, directing and producing a play. The students will be instrumental

in the continued development of the Senior Project as a potential graduation

requirement. The middle school saw substantive changes to the requirements

for membership on the honor roll. Work ethic, behavior, and academic honesty

have been added to the academic requirements necessary to be celebrated as

members of the honor roll gold and silver lists. In November, several National

Honor Society members completed a phone survey of recent Hopkinton

High School graduates. Two interesting statistics collected were that 100% of

graduates said that they felt successful in college and 92 % of graduates felt

that Hopkinton High School prepared them well for their post high school

lives. The faculty council ofthe John L. Babson Chapter ofthe National Honor

Society revised the application and membership process. Some of the changes

include applicants documenting service, participating in an interview, and

obtaining letters of support.

The high school achieved incredible success in athletics this year. The boys

Nordic ski team, the girls soccer team, and the boys and girls cross-country teams

won state championships. The school saw its first ever Class M cross-country

individual champion as well. Due to incredible community support the athletic

department expanded to include a girls and boys lacrosse team and a freshman

boys basketball team. We also had students representing Hopkinton High School

in state swimming and gymnastic competitions. While success is one measure of

sports, another measure is the importance oflearning teamwork, sportsmanship,

hard work, and maintaining one's grades. To that end it was just as impressive

that 224 of our school's 353 high school students participated on school teams

this year. Of those, 71 are being recognized as Scholar Athletes (athletes who
have participated in at least two sports seasons and earning a spot on the Honor

Roll or High Honor Roll for each of the first three quarters). The inaugural

"Inge Arnold" award was awarded to Kevin Chittim. The award commemorates

Inge's incredible support of Hopkinton Athletics. It is impossible to thank the

community for their tremendous support of the athletic program.

Service is an important part ofour school. Many students and staffcontinue to

give their time and resources to serve others. This year, the Interact Club made
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a second trip to Honduras, the athletic department supported a community

drive for athletic equipment for Haiti and the Dominican Republic, and both

the middle and high school student councils' participated in "Project Santa

Claus" to benefit local needy families. In addition, members of the senior class

reinvigorated the senior to senior program, the World Language Honor Society

sang holiday songs at retirement homes, and most of the school participated in

a school and community clean up to celebrate Earth Day. Students continue

to eagerly volunteer for the good of others.

A strong, effective professional development program is an important part

of our school improvement process. This year the staff continued curriculum

development using the Understanding by Design format. The main focus of

professional development was preparing for the New England Association of

Schools and Colleges (NEASC) re-accreditation visit in the spring of 2006. A
thorough self-study ofour school s ability to meet seven standards is underway. One
ofthe most important aspects ofthe self-study is the development and adoption of

a school's mission statement. The faculty and school board adopted a new mission

statement in November. The middle and high school challenge course continued

to grow. In November the first high element, a repelling tower, was installed. The

staff participated in two high element-training sessions. Middle and high school

students will soon be getting a 50-foot high view of the school.

An abundance of effective committee work took place throughout the school

year. The district's Assessment Committee coordinated a pilot of the Northwest

Evaluation Association's computerized Measures of Academic Progress (MAP)

assessment. Students in grades seven through nine took the test in the fall. Students

also participated in a pilot of the New England Common Assessment Program

(NECAP), the National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP) and the

New Hampshire Educational Improvement and Assessment Program (NHEIAP).

Hopkinton Middle and High School students have performed well on each

assessment. The Safety and Security/CrisisTeam Steering Committee coordinated a

review ofthe district's preparedness guidebook, made budget recommendations, and

planned site evacuation drills and crisis team training. The committee continues to

help the district prepare for emergencies. The Best Schools LeadershipTeam oversaw

the pilot of the new Teacher Evaluation Plan (TEP) and investigated trimesters as

a way to restructure a school schedule to better utilize time.

The fine and performing arts continue to be a focus of our school. The high

school drama club presented a Shakespearean review in the spring and six

wonderful one-act plays in the fall. The middle school drama club presented

three one-act plays in the winter. The new middle and high school theatre
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arts courses are making drama opportunities available to students who cannot

join the after school club. The middle and high school chorus joined forces

under the direction of Paul Silverman and Barb Jenkins to create a foundation

for future growth. The musical groups performed wonderful concerts at the

school and all over New England. The middle school chorus and high school

Steel Band had the honor of performing at Governor Lynch's inauguration.

The students and staff supported an amazingly successful Celebration of the

Arts program. The high school halls and rooms were filled with performances

and exhibitions. Ten students participated in the artist in residence program,

Janice Perry facilitated a workshop for high school students called "Constructing

Identity/Performing Self: Creating Autobiographically-based Performance." The

Forensics Tournament has grown to an enormous level. Students from three

schools gathered at the high school for performances in speech, improvisation,

and dramatic interpretation categories. Students also successfully participated

in the Rotary four-way speech contest with a Hopkinton High School student

winning a state award.

The school continues to believe that busy young people are safer young

people. Along with the increased athletic opportunities, the school supported

the creation of a Ping Pong Club, an Environmental Club and an American

Sign Language (ASL) Club. (Community members Kim Coe and Deb Dyer-

Quinn have graciously given their time to direct the ASL Club.)

Students and adults from all over the world visited our school. We hosted

yearlong exchanges with students from Germany and Brazil. The GAPP
(German American Partnership Program) program sponsored a German student

exchange. We hosted 23 students for a three-week visit. Host students will make

the return visit to Germany this summer. Adult visitors from Azerbaijan and

Venezuela also spent time in our schools.

Students, staff, and the entire school received recognition this year. Students

were recognized by the National Merit Scholar Program, the College Board for

Advanced Placement test performance, and Starter Corporation's All American

Teen Program. The New Hampshire Jazz All State Music Festival recognized

three students. Scott Semmens, high school science teacher, received an

"Eddy" for being named NH "Environmental Teacher of the Year." Hopkinton

High School received the honor of being nominated by the New Hampshire

Department of Education as a No Child Left Behind Blue Ribbon School for

consistent high performance on state assessments in Mathematics and English.

These are just some of the many examples of excellence in our schools.
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Maple Street School said goodbye to Gina Gambino, Special Education,

Molly Ireland, Long-Term Substitute, Amanda Leonard, Behavioral Specialist

Assistant, and Instructional Assistants Alesia Fowler and Ellen Davis left Maple

Street School in 2004. Stacy Wilson was hired to teach Special Education and

Marcella MacKenzie was hired as an instructional Assistant. Maple Street School

also welcomed Fran Burdette as a Behavior Specialist and Cynthia Kruse as

Long Term Substitute for the 2004-5 school year.

The Maple Street School staffwas excited to participate in several professional

development activities in 2004. While maintaining support for Guided Reading

and Write Traits, two staple programs in the school. Maple Street and Harold

Martin School teachers were trained in the use of the Understanding by Design

curriculum planning model and the Rebecca Sitton Spelling Program.

Additionally, teachers from all levels engaged in a pilot of Northwest

Evaluation Association's "Measures of Academic Progress (MAP)" testing to

help inform decision making processes and improve instruction.

Maple Street school continued to expand upon its student course offerings

by adding "Expanding Horizons", an after school enrichment program.

This program was volunteer led and offered a variety of courses to peak

student interests. Maple Street and Hopkinton High School staff also began

a preliminary exploration of Elementary Level Foreign Languages, with the

intent to bring this curriculum to the MSS in future years.

In 2004, several changes were made to existing Unified Arts courses. Of
particular note was the restructuring of Chorus from a three-year series of

courses to two courses. Choral Music was offered in grade four. Chorus is

grade five, with an emphasis on performance in the latter grade. Resultantly,

Maple Street School was able to offer a course of Integrated Arts for sixth

grade students for the first time, providing exploration of Musical Theater,

Oral Story telling, and Dramatic Arts. In addition, grading of students in the

Unified Arts was made a uniform practice at grades four through six, based on

effort and attendance.

Maple Street school was fortunate to receive the services ofMaureen Doucette,

Arts Integration Specialist from Hopkinton High School, who worked with

teachers to assist them in the integration of arts activities in their instruction.

Her work was more than evident when students from grade five hosted

their annual poetry recitation; their readings accented through their notably

demonstrated poise, enunciation, gesturing, and on-stage persona.

S13



Additionally, Maple Street School and Harold Martin School staff

collaborated to realign their existing Social Studies and Science curricula to

reflect the Districts needs and new expectations received from the State Grade

Level Expectations.

One ofthe most visible accomplishments for the 2003-2004 School year was

seen on the playground ofMaple Street School. Through the cooperative efforts

of the MSS playground committee and our parents and students combined

efforts, MSS raised funds for and constructed a new playground set of events.

These events replaced ones that had been in place in excess of twenty years,

bringing new and exciting challenges for children's play. We are very grateful to

the members of the committee with special thanks going to Phil Wallingford

and Andrea Nielsen, Co-Chairs.

Harold Martin School bid farewell to the following staff members: Ann
Walker, Tracy Whitney, Brenda White, Elaine Blizzard, Becky Bonefant, and

Dianne Lindsay. We welcomed the following instructional assistants to our

team: Elissa Barr, Robin Crouch, Renee Fowler, Joyce Kilens, Peggy Lyman and

Suzanne Ives. We were also glad to welcome Custodian Fred Case, Permanent

Substitute Cynthia Kruse, Special Educator Bonnie McAuliffe, Occupational

Therapist Christen Doneski, Preschool Teacher Kelli Bruns, ESOL Teacher

Lyena Carroll, School Counselor/Maternity Leave Substitute Mandy Eraser,

Behavioral Specialist Fran Burdette, and Classroom Teacher/Permanent

Substitute Stephanie Ducharme.

Harold Martin School continues to move forward on many initiatives.

We have enjoyed many joint P-6 projects with Maple Street School such as

developing new social studies and science curriculums as mentioned above,

and initiating new spelling/phonics programs. Our kindergarten sessions

have increased by about 30 minutes for each session to allow greater literacy

opportunities for our "K" students. In addition, our third grade continued the

tradition of working with staff from UNH's Browne Center, as they explored

cooperative games in the area of experiential learning.

Our after school enrichment program, "Reaching For The Stars" continues

to grow with nearly half ofour school population participating for a number of

weeks every spring. Scores of volunteers are involved in this program as well as

many other important facets of the school. In fact, Harold Martin School for the

second year in a row, won the "Blue Ribbon Award" from the New Hampshire

Partners in Education for our exemplary volunteer program. A big thanks to

Volunteer Coordinator Kelli Cyr and PTA Past-President Vicki Baronas and
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current President Julie Morris for their leadership. Also, The Harold Martin

School is continuing its partnership with the Concord Community Music

School with another eight-week series of classes.

Technology continues to be a major focus for our school. We purchased

new Mac computers to fill our lab, and this was the first time that we had the

same version computers in our lab, which greatly facilitates student and staff

training. The staff continues to grow in their use of email, both as a parent-

school communication model as well as internal use. We now utilize an on-line

program to keep track of our professional development and set goals and our

report cards are now completed on the computer as well. We are beginning a

new initiative this year as part of our assessment program to institute digital

portfolios in various classrooms.

Perhaps the biggest change at HMS this year was the debut of our fully

inclusionary preschool program, which runs every morning five days a week.

The preschool serves our three and four year old special education population

but over half of our preschool children are regular education students.

Our District is very proud to announce a new partnership with New England

College (NEC) to begin receiving their student teachers in our buildings

while taking advantage of the resources NEC has to offer our district. This

collaboration assists both parties to share and develop knowledge to assist in

the growth of the teaching profession.

We have many opportunities for families to enjoy each other at HMS. Our
Fun Fair in May has grown every year and is probably the largest event of its

kind in the town every year. Our Parent's Day lunch attracts an enormous

amount of families, often over more than one generation, who come to HMS
to have lunch together in our cafeteria. It makes our kids very happy to share

lunchtime with their parents on THEIR turf We also co-sponsor with PTA
one or two family-friendly movie nights a year, which usually involve entire

families.

Field trips provide important out-of-the-classroom opportunities for our

students. One of the important examples is the Highland Games. The Games

celebrate Scottish culture and tradition and the organizers arrange for special

presentations for Hopkinton students at the Fairground.

HYSA, Harold Martin School, and Airline Ambassadors International this

year sponsored a worthy endeavor to provide sports equipment to the children

of hurricane ravaged Haiti and Dominican Republic. Students brought in old

hats, cleats, (HYSA) t-shirts that children have out-grown, and other sports
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equipment (gloves, bats, helmets, balls). All of this was sent to the island of

Hispaniola.

The next phase of the elementary school playground plan began and it's

HMS's turn to take center stage. We have been developing our plan for a couple

of years now, and while we do not require a major overhaul of our playground

structure, we are looking at some wonderful enhancements for our children

and the community, which include: additional swings, an asphalt basketball

court, a kicking wall, an outdoor gazebo classroom, a storage shed, a walking

path around the playground, enlargement of our soccer field

Harold Martin and Maple Street Schools welcomed painter Kim Casey as our

Artist-in Residence this past year. She worked with our students on a variety

of mural type projects. Also, this year's Visiting Author, Jennifer Ericcson,

delighted her audience with tales from her books, and stories of life as a children's

book author. She filled our music room for her community presentation with

children of all ages and their parents.

Periodically we plan events for the entire school so that we can celebrate our

Harold Martin School community. This past year both Harold Martin and

Maple Street hosted a powerful performance from a Plymouth State University

troupe that presented a play entitled "TIGER". The focus of the presentation

was on each of the letters of the word TIGER:

T: Tolerance I: Inclusion G: Giving E: Empathy R: Respect

Through comedy, song, and dance, TIGER emphasized the same type of

values our students are taught through our Second Step program. Additionally,

several teachers at Harold Martin and Maple Street extended their participation

by joining a graduate level course in Bullying Prevention, taught by the founders

of the program. This course will assist the teachers in integrating an "anti-

bullying" message into day-to-day activities in the District.

Over the last year, we held our first Evacuation Drill at HMS. In case of an

emergency where we would have to evacuate the building (such as a fire in the

middle of the winter), we are using St. Andrew's new Parish House as a warm,

safe harbor when necessary The drill went exceedingly well and we completed

the entire process in 25 minutes from fire alarm to walk over and return to

the building. I am proud of the way our students behaved and relieved that

we have St. Andrew's as an option. A special thanks to goes to Pastor Hank
Junkin for his contributions.

All of the opportunities stated above cannot be created without the endless

support from the community. The Booster Club, Friends of Performing Arts
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(FOPA), "Hop Into Arts", Parent Advisory Committee, and the Parent Teachers

Association all give incredible support to the schools. It is a privilege to work

in this community for such wonderful students and with such an exceptional

faculty. We are thankful for the opportunity to be a part of the Hopkinton

School District and look forward to the exciting challenges and opportunities

we will face in the year to come.

Respectfully submitted,

Steven M. Chamberlin

Principal, Hopkinton Middle High School

Michael A. Bessette

Principal, Maple Street School

William V. Carozza

Principal, Harold Martin School
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^^__^^_^^ Health Services Report _^^^^^_^_
2003-2004

This marks the fourth year that myself, Mrs. Kathy Schaefer and Mrs. Sheila Conley

have had the pleasure of serving as your school nurses at Maple Street, Hopkinton

Middle-High, and Harold Martin Schools respectively. In that time we have seen the

trend in public health, and in our school practices, move away from simply caring

for illness toward promoting health and wellness practices for a lifetime.

Research is telling us that good health practices begun in childhood can

prevent more serious health problems later in life. Hopkinton is not immune
from the health issues that young people face today. As school nurses, we take

our responsibility seriously to fight the epidemic ofchildhood obesity, to prevent

substance abuse, and to promote emotional and social health. To that end, we

are glad to have contributed to the development and implementation of health

curriculums that are now a part of each child's education in Hopkinton. The

subjects that students discuss in health classes at the elementary level are diverse

and include such topics as disease transmission, benefits of physical activity,

nutrition, sleep needs, stress management, accident prevention, gun safety, safe

food handling, sun safety, tobacco, alcohol and drug use. Adolescent issues are

covered in the new health classes for our middle- schoolers. Parents are encouraged

to discuss these health topics with your child as a way of incorporating what

we've talked about in school into your family's routine.

Naturally these education efforts are in addition to our traditional duties as

school nurses, as evidenced by the numbers below. Working with students, staff

and families individually remains basic to our roles in the school. The support

of a caring community makes our efforts easier and rewarding.

Education is very important to us as clinicians as well. This year Ms. Conley,

Ms. Schaefer and myself attended conferences at both The Children's Hospital

at Dartmouth and St. Anselm's College as we strive to base the care we give on

the most up to date information available on school nursing.

Finally, the Hopkinton School Community is extremely fortunate to have had

as its school physician Dr. Lynn Durand. Dr. Durand has overseen our health

services and given generously of his time and many talents for many years. For

all that you have done for the youth of Hopkinton Dr. Durand, thank you.

Respectfully submitted,

Jan Hilliard, RN, NCSN
Maple Street School Nurse
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Hopkinton School District

Health Services Report
2003-2004

Pupil Enrollment

Vision Screening

Hearing Screening

Heights and Weights

Scoliosis Screening

First Aid Visits

Transported to doctor's office

Transported to dentist

Medications

old Martin

School

Maple Street

School

Middle/High

School

286 254 534

303 270 273

321 264 14

391 256 132

157 165

4,106 3,372 6,884

3 5

1 2

2,101 1,620 3,600

CLINICS & SPECIAL REFERRALS

Vision referrals 10 5 25

Hearing referrals 2 2

Scoliosis referral 4 10

Dental referrals 1 2

Drug & alcohol referrals 3

Orthopedic referrals 3

Neurologic referrals 1

Flu shot clinic (#staff) 28 32 42

Total visits to the nurse 7,176 5,992 10,484
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2003-2004 Hopkinton School District

Funds Balance Sheets

EXHIBITA-

1

HOPKINTONSCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30. 2004

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Agency fund loans receivable

Interfund receivable

Total assets

General

Fund

$ 529,439

11,350

2,353

13,738

143.598

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 14,083

Accrued salaries and benefits 11,971

Interfund payable 75,000

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved for special purposes

Unreserved:

Undesignated,

Reported in general fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

101.054

90,559

150,000

358.865

599.424

Building

Project

Fund
Grants

Fund

Capital Other Total

Reserve Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

$ 548,500 $ $

109,434 197,288

150.000

$ 11,150 $ 1,089,089

11,350

8,244 10,597

3,864 310,586

13,738

883 294,481

$ 9,546 $

38,540 99,888 75,000

38.540 109.434 75.000 24.141

659,960

659.960

122,288

122.288

$ 700.478 $ 698.500 $ 109.434 $ 197.288 S 24.141 $ 1.729.841

$ 3,777 $

6,053

14.311 _

27,406

11,971

294,481

14.311

348.169

90,559

932,248

358.865

1.381.672

$ 700.478 $ 698.500 $ 109.434 $ 197.288 $ 24.141 $ 1.729.841

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2003-2004 Hopkinton School District

Funds Balance Sheets

EXHIBITA-2
HOPKINTONSCHOOL DISTRICT

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances

to the Statement ofNet Assets

June 30, 2004

Total fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit A- 1

)

$1,381 ,672

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Cost $ 16,728,148

Less accumulated depreciation (4.821.302 '^ 11,906,846

Interfund receivables and payables between governmental funds

are eliminated on the statement of net assets.

Receivables $ 294,481

Payables (294,481 ) -0-

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds. (109,381)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable are

not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds.

Long term bonds and notes $ 6,093,500

Compensated absences 54.856 (6.148.356)

Total net assets - governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 7.030,781

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2003-2004 Hopkinton School District

Funds Balance Sheets

EXHIBITA-3
HOPKINTONSCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement ojRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2004

Building Capital Other Total

General Project Grants Reserve Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVE^f^JES
School district assessment $ 6,809,198 $ $ $ $ $ 6,809,198

Other local 54,394 1,293 302,834 358,521

State 4,209,501 3,812 4,213,313

Federal 1.988

11.075.081

242.824

242.824

71.597

378.243

316.409

Total revenues 1.293 11.697.441

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:

Instruction 6,825,146 242,824 68,894 7,136,864

Support services:

Student 632,360 632,360

Instructional staff 514,997 514,997

General administration 40,001 40,001

Executive administration 454,887 45^887
School administration 560,174 560,174

Operation and

maintenance of plant 845,748 845,748

Student transportation 388,665 388,665

Non-instructional 358.640 358,640

Debt service:

Principal 270,000 270,000

Interest 279,405 279,405

Facilities acquisition

and construction 38.540

38.540

38.540

Total expenditures 10.811.383 242.824 427.534 11.520.281

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 263.698 (38.540) 1.293 (49.291) 177.160

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 150,000 50,000 49,291 249,291

Transfers out (174,291) (75,000) (249,291)

Bond issued 548.500 548.500

Total other financing sources

and uses fl74.29n

89,407

698,500

659,960

(25.000)

(23,707)

49.291 548.500

Net change in fund balances 725,660

Fund balances, beginning 510.017

$ 599.424

145.995

$ 122.288

656.012

Fund balances, ending $659,960 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1.381.672

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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2003-2004 Hopkinton School District

Funds Balance Sheets

EXHIBIT C-l

HOPKINTONSCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

REVENUES
School district assessment

Other local

State

Federal

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:

Instruction

Support services:

Student

Instructional staff

General administration

Executive administration

School administration

Operation and maintenance of plant

Student transportation

Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Original

and Variance

Final Positive

Budget Actual nVegative)

$ 6,809,198

24,500

4,130,809

$ 6,809,198

54,394

4,137,265

1,988

11.002.845

$

29,894

6,456

1.988

10.964,507 38.338

7,035,190 6,740,950 294,240

620,326

546,210

100,801

434,474

595,720

895,131

373,987

632,701

506,498

66,204

429,532

563,266

848,867

388,110

(12,375)

39,712

34,597

4,942

32,454

46,264

(14,123)

270,000

279.405

270,000

279.405

10.725.53311.151.244 425,711

ri 86.737) 277.312 464.049

(219.107) (174,291) 44.816

$ (405.844) 103,021

405,844

$ 508.865

$ 508.865

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Association/Accoimtants & Auditors

193 North Main Stieet - Concord • New Hampshire - 03301-5063 • 603-225-6996 • FAX-224-1380

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR 'S REPORT

To the Members of the School Board

Hopkinton School District

Hopkinton, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the Hopkinton School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004 which

collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the School District' s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these

financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial

position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hopkinton

School District as of June 30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 2, as of July 1, 2003, the School District has implemented a new financial reporting model, as

required by the provisions of the GASB Statement No, 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management 's Discussion

and Analysis -for State and Local Governments

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information are not a required part of the basic

financial statements, but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the

methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the

information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the

Hopkinton School District' s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules

are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. They

have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,

aie fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements take as a whole.

August 6, 2004
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HOPKINTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysts (MD&A)

Of the Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

INTRODUCTION

The Superintendent of Schools and Business Administrator of New Hampshire School Administrative

Unit (SAU) #66, as management of the Hopkinton School District (the District), offer readers of the

District's annual financial statements this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of

the District for the fiscal year which ended June 30, 2004, This discussion and analysis is prepared in

accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34

(GASBS-34) with which the District intends to comply beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30,

2004. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional

information found within the body of the annual audit.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

a Total District net assets were $7,030,781 at June 30, 2004. This was an increase of $11 8,366

(2%) over the prior year.

a The District's total net assets of $7,030,781 on June 30, 2004, consisted of $6,361,846 in

capital assets net of debt, $659,960 in assets restricted for special purposes, and an

unrestricted net asset balance of $8,975.

Q The District's long-term obligations of $6,148,356 consisted of $6,093,500 in general obligation

bonds and $54,856 in compensated absences. Under GASBS-34 these liabilities are reflected

as a reduction in net assets.

Following a facility study in fiscal year 2002 - 2003 and based on the recommendations of

Lincoln/Haney Engineers and Independent Roof Service, Inc., the District brought forward a

major, district-wide capital roof project which was finalized by the townspeople at the

March 20, 2004, Annual School District Meeting. Construction began at the end of June 2004,

and was completed prior to the opening of school for the 2004 - 2005 year. Total costs

spanning three fiscal years (02-03, 03-04 and 04-05) are $798,170 of which $18,000 was raised

in Warrant Article IV in March 2002, $150,000 was raised in Warrant Article X in March, 2003,

while the remainder was raised through 2004, Warrant Articles I, I! and IX The major funding

for the project is in the form of a five (5) year bond in the amount of $548,500 Procurement of

this bond has increased the District's total outstanding principal debt to $6,093,500 at June 30,

2004, well within the guidelines of accepted practice.

a The District has established procedures for submitting claims for reimbursement for services to

students eligible through the Medicaid for Schools Program. In 2003-04, the District received

$1,988, but anticipates this figure to increase in subsequent years to at least $10,000.

During the year, the District's expenses of $1 1,579,075 for all governmental expenditures were

$118,366 less than the total revenues of $11,697,441. Revenues consist of: charges for

services; operating grants and contributions; and general revenues (which can include local and
state property tax assessments and grants or contributions not restricted to specific programs).

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the

basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together

provide a comprehensive overview of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two

kinds of statements that present financial information from different perspectives:

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to

provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector

business, and to provide both long-term and short-term information
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The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the

difference between the two reported as net assets. This statement of net assets contains a very

significant change in the District's financial reporting because it includes fixed assets, debt, contractual

obligations and compensable absences as elements of the assets and liabilities of the District. By
including these elements, a more complete picture of the District's net assets is presented than has

previously been available

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District's net assets changed during

the most recent fiscal year All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event

giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported In this statement for some items that will result In cash flows only in future fiscal

periods. Growth in net assets over time can generally be expected to reflect improving financial

condition, while shrinkage would indicate declining financial condition. Other indicators of financial

health might be changes in District revenues, facility condition, growth/decline in student population, and
adequacy of District budgets.

The Government-wide Financial Statements show functions of the District that are principally supported

by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues as "Governmental Activities" These functions are

accounted for in the General Fund, Special Revenue (Federal) Fund, and the Capital Fund.

Intergovernmental revenues include local, state and federal monies. The governmental activities of the

District include instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, student transportation

and operation of non-instructional services. Taxes and intergovernmental revenues also support fixed

assets and related debt.

The Government-wide Statements also outline non-major Governmental activities, which are the Food
Service Fund

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about

the District's most significant funds-not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the

District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular programs. Some
funds are required to be estatDlished by state law and by bond covenants. The Board of Trustees

establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that the District

is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain revenues. The District has two kinds of funds:

a Governmental funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds,

which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted

to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.

Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps

one to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the

near future to finance the District's programs Because this information does not encompass
the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional

information at the bottom of the government funds statements explaining the relationship (or

differences) between them

a Fiduciary funds - the District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others; for

purposes of the District, the student activities funds and the private-purpose trust funds are

agency funds The District is responsible for ensuring that assets reported in these funds are

used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong All of the

District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a

statement of changes in fiduciary net assets We exclude these activities from the district-wide

financial statements because the District cannot use the assets to finance its operations.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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NET ASSETS

Net Assets for the period ending June 30, 2004. The current year's financial statements are

dramatically different from past years as a result of implementing GASBS-34. Comparing this year's

data with records from last year could be misleading to a researcher since last year's data was not

prepared in a GASBS-34 format. Nonetheless, the District is pleased to be able to offer the more
meaningful GASBS-34 financial report format to our readers. Next year's reports will offer comparative

data. The District's combined net assets were $7,030,781 at June 30, 2004,

The following are significant current year

transactions that have had an impact on

the Statement of Net Assets:

1 , The District implemented GASBS-
34 and recorded fixed assets and

long-term debt for the first time.

Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

1,435.360

11.906,846

13,342,206

Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

453,555

5,857,870

6,311,425

Investment in capital assets (net of debt)

Restricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets

Total Net Assets

6.361.846

659.960

8.975

7,030,781

Changes in Net Assets. The District's total revenues were $11,697,441; total net expenses

$11,579,075, resulting in an increase of net assets of $118,366. The largest part, 96.94%, of the

District's revenues came from the local tax assessment and the State of New Hampshire. The State of

New Hampshire's sources include the locally raised state property tax, federal aid received through the

state, and the various state aid programs.

The District's expenditures were largely for

instruction and support services (91 54%)
while a new expense, depreciation,

accounts for 2.89% of total expenses

Program Revenues

Charges for services 325,112 278%
Operating grants & contributions 499,556 4.27%

General Revenues
School District assessment 6,809,198 58,21%
Local sources 26,522 .22%

State of NH sources 4,028.178 34.44%
Federal sources 1,988 -02%

Earnings on investments 6,887 .06%

Total Revenues 11,697,441 100%

Functions / Programs

Instruction 7,141,526 61.68%
Support Services 3,457,309 29,86%
Food service program 371.452 3.21%

Unallocated Expenses
Interest 274,079 2.36%
Depreciation 334,709 2 89%
Total Expenses 11,579,075 100%

Revenue in Excess of 118,366
Expense
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GOVERNMENTAL SUMMARY

Summary of Revenues. The biggest share, $1 1 ,338,920 (nearly 97%), of revenue was derived from

local appropriations and intergovernmental sources. The state property tax is included as part of

intergovernmental revenue even though it is raised locally. This revenue statement includes revenues

from local, state and federal sources.

Governmental Revenues 2003-04

Federal Sources,

316.409.3%

Intergovernmental

Revenue. 4,213.313,

36%

Other Local Revenue,

351 .634 , 3% Earnings on Investment.

/" 6,887 . 0%

School District

Assessment. 6,809,198

58%

Summary of Net Expenditures. The Hopklnton School District used its budgetary resources as

depicted below. Nearly 74% of all expenses were on instruction and instructional support. This

expense statement includes expenses paid from local, state and federal appropriations.

Governmental Expenditures 2003-04

Debt Service-R-incipal,

Other Support
270.000 , 2%

Services, 397,180,3%

Rjpil Transportation

Services, 388,665 . 3%

Operation & Rant Maint,

845,748 . 7%

School Adrrinistration

Services. 1.055,062,-

9%

Debt Service- Interest,

279.405 , 2%

Instruction, 7.136,864

63%

Instructional Support

Services. 1.147,357,

11%
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INDIVIDUAL FUND ANALYSIS

General Fund
The General Fund is what most people think of as "the budget" since it is the focal point of the Annual

District Meeting and largely supported by locally raised taxes. The local appropriation and the state

property tax are raised locally and make up 82% of general fund revenues. Together, the revenues

raised locally and the state adequacy grant comprises over 99% of the District's General Fund
Budgetary Revenues.

General Fund Revenues 2003-04

All Other, Other State &
State Property 34, 103 , 0% r- Federal,

Tax, 2,124,235-A^ ' / 107,099,1%

, 19% \

NH Adequacy

Grant,

1,905,931 , 17%

Tuition, 22,278 ,

0%

Local

Appropriation,

6,809,198 , 63%

School level expenditures constitute 78% of the total general fund (net of refunds) expenditures of

$10,913,437

School Level General Fund Expenditures

Middle/High

School,

4,439.791 ,'

41%

District-wide,

2,438,978 ,

22%

Maple Street

School,

1,872,788,

17%

Harold Martin

School,

2.161,881 ,

20%
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the District reviews its annual budget and will sometimes make minor
adjustments to reflect unexpected changes in revenues and expenditures. These adjustments over the

past year did not change the bottom line but rather accommodated unanticipated needs such as

increased/decreased enrollment, increased/decreased material costs and unanticipated repairs within

functions and objects. A procedure is in place that when such budget adjustments are necessary, there

must be at least a three-tiered approval process. The process includes building principal, business

administrator and superintendent signature, and in the event that the adjustment exceeds $5,000, Board

approval is also necessary.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

The strong financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well

As the District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of

$1,381,672, an increase from last year's ending fund balance of $725,660. The District's sound fiscal

management policies and procedures have historically resulted in a positive general fund balance to

ultimately offset taxes Other factors contributing to this positive fund balance include items which must

be budgeted for but may or not be expended.. The approximate breakdowns of the 2003-2004 general

fund savings are as follows:

Retirement and course reimbursements (contractual agreements) $ 170,000

Special Education (out of district tuition, contracted services and transportation) 138,865

Personnel 49,000
Contingency 50,000

Supplies & Materials 30,000

Utilities
' 12,000

Repair & Maintenance 44,000

Liability Insurance 15,000

Transfer to Maintenance Trust Fund from Surplus -150,000

General Fund Balance Returned to Town $ 358,865

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

On June 30, 2004, the District reported capital assets of $1 1,906,846, which consist of a broad range of

capital assets, including land & improvements, buildings & improvements, machinery and equipment,

infrastructure and work in progress More detailed information about the District's capital assets is

presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Governmental Activities Total % Change
2004 2003 2004 over 2003

Land & Improvements $ 603,210 $ 603,210 0.00%

Buildings & Improvements 15,616.098 15.616,098 0.00%

Machinery & Equipment 422.000 411.600 2 53%
Infrastructure 48,300 48.300 00%
Work In Progress 38,540 100.00%

Totals at Historical Cost 16,728,148 16,679,208

Total Accumulated Depreciation -4,821,302 -4.441.181 8 56%

NET CAPITAL ASSETS $11,906,846 $ 12.238,027 -2.71%

I
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Long-Term Debt

On August 1, 1997, the District issued a series of general obligation bonds totaling in the aggregate

$6,992,000. The District added a $548,500 bond during this fiscal year for repairs to the roofs at the

Hopkinton Middle/High School, Harold Martin School and the Maple Street School The following table

illustrates the changes and balances for all long-term debt More detailed information on the District's

debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements,

Governmental Activities

2004 2003

Total % Change
2004 over 2003

General Obligation Bonds

Compensated Absences

Capital Leases Payable

$ 6,093,500

54,856

$5,815,000

45,102

6,815

4.79%

21 63%
-100.00%

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT $6,148,356 $5,866,917 4.80%

SUIVIIVIARY OF FEDERAL SUPPORT OF THE DISTRICT

During fiscal year 2004, Hopkinton School District applied for and received the following Federal grants:

Title I, Early Reading Success , was awarded for the period 9/8/03, to 6/30/04, in the amount of

$34,968. This grant funded reading improvement programs in the District's elementary schools

and impacted students whose reading proficiency was significantly below grade level.

Title 1 1A, Class Size Reduction , was awarded for the period 10/16/03, to 12/31/04, in the amount
of $58,375 This grant funded professional development programs and the personnel costs of

additional teachers thereby reducing the class sizes in the District's schools.

Title I ID, Technology Education , was awarded for the period 8/1/03, to 6/30/04, in the amount of

$2,561 , This grant funded the costs to provide educators with consistent ongoing professional

instructional technology development to prepare them to use technology to improve teaching

and learning-

Title IV, Safe & Drug Free Schools , was awarded for the period 10/20/03, to 9/30/04. In the

amount of $6,582. This grant's objective was to offer a disciplined environment conducive to

learning, by preventing violence in and around schools and strengthen programs that prevent

the illegal use of alcohol, tobacco, and drugs, involve parents, and coordinated with related

Federal, State, and community efforts and resources.

Title V, Innovative Programs , was awarded for the period 2/2/04, to 12/31/04, in the amount of

$25,058 This program contributes to the improvement and innovation of elementary and

secondary programs.

Title VI, Creative Educational Leadership , was awarded for the period 6/1/04, to 6/30/04, in the

amount of $4,900 This grant supports the administration of State assessments or to carry out

other activities related to ensuring that the State's schools and local education agencies are

held accountable for results.

CHESP, Hopkinton Independent Schools , was awarded for the period 9/15/03, to 6/30/04, in the

amount of $32,098. This grant encourages elementary and secondary schools and community-

based agencies to create, develop, and offer service-learning opportunities for school-age

youth; educate teachers about service-learning and incorporate service-learning opportunities

into classrooms to enhance academic learning; coordinate adult volunteers in schools; and
introduce young people to a broad range of careers and encourage them to pursue further

education and training.
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Special Education, IDEA, was awarded for the period 8/15/03, to 8/31/04, in the amount of

$157,142. This grant funded special needs services for students throughout the District.

Special Education, Pre-School. was awarded for the period 8/15/03, to 6/30/04, in the amount of

$5,255- This grant funded special needs services for pre-school students within the District.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several

circumstances that could affect its future financial health:

a Health Insurance rates can vary dramatically from one year to the next To address this

seemingly uncontrollable budget line item, a committee comprised of representatives from

management, wellness committee, bargaining units and the town spent the 2004 school year

reviewing health insurance options, developing and submitting Requests for Proposals to health

insurance providers and making recommendations to the Board to include expanded wellness

programs, educating staff on the pros and cons of the various health plan options and most
significantly - moving from a COMP 100 plan to a COMP 1000 plan. This final action is

expected to save the District at least $20,1 12 in 2004-05.

Catastrophic aid reimbursements have decreased in 04-05 due to a reduction in the number of

students whose individual costs have reached the level of 3/4 times the state average tuition in

order to qualify for such funding. This decrease is the direct result of a concerted effort on the

part of the district administration to provide services for students within our schools rather than

relying on out-of-district placements. Building capacity within our schools has necessitated an

increase of two half-time special education teachers and two additional instructional assistants

In spite of these staff additions, the District still realizes a net savings in the range of $50,000 to

$100,000 in comparison to costs it could easily incur in paying out-of-district tuition and
transportation, even considering Catastrophic Aid reimbursements which are realized only in the

following school year. Although the potential always exists for the service needs of current

residents to increase or for new students to move into the District, providing programs and

services within the home community supports student growth, stability, and smooth transitions

as well as being cost effective.

Q The uncertainty of state funding can have a profound impact on the financial health of the

District. As most are aware, we entered District meeting last year without firm numbers for

anticipated state revenue. Until the state can determine the best method for funding education,

this uncertainty is expected to continue.

Q To control worker's compensation and property liability insurance costs, the Business Office is

working closely with its insurance carrier, PRIMEX, to develop methodologies for containing

costs and is currently negotiating a premium savings for 2005-06

Q Entering into a new lease/purchase method for computer replacement in 2004-05 will provide

for well-planned, up-to-date equipment rotation at a lesser cost than was previously available..

This results in a savings of over $7,000 while improving the educational experience by

standardizing equipment and software

The budget assumptions used to prepare the budget for 2005 included an increase of over 8%
in salary increases due mainly to contractual step and column increases and new positions. All

line items were carefully reviewed and brought into alignment based on actual expenditures

from the prior year, some with modest increases, others with decreases.
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FUTURE BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS

In New Hampshire, the public school fiscal year ts July 1-June 30; other programs, i.e , some federal

budgets, operate on a different fiscal calendar but are reflected in the District overall budget as they

impact on the District.

Significant Board action that impacts finances in the future includes:

1

.

Bargaining unit negotiations with The Hopkinton Education Association whose current contract

expires on June 30, 2006, The District remains committed to supporting an adequate teacher

salary schedule as a part of its goal to continue improving the educational performance of its

students.

2. Negotiations with the Hopkinton Educational Support Staff and Teamsters Local No, 633,

bargaining units which are also expected to take place in the 2005-2006 fiscal year

3 The next phase of the District's facility upgrade plan, which will be planned during the 2005-

2006 fiscal year

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's

accountability for the money it receives If you have questions about this report, or need additional

financial information, contact Richard W Ayers, Superintendent, Carolyn Rioux, Interim Business

Administrator or Michelle Clark, Business Administrator (effective January 31, 2005) at (603) 746-5186
or by mail at:

Hopkinton School District

ATTN: Business Administrator

204 Maple Street

Contoocook, NH 03229
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2003-2004 Hopkinton School District

Report ofActual Special Education

Expenditures for Programs and Services

2002-2003 2003-2004

Expenditures Expenditures

Description Function Net of Refunds Net of Refunds

Expenditures Related to Special Education:

Special Instruction 1200 1,076,548 1,259,751

Psychological Services 2140 90,383 73,986

Speech Services 2150 121,389 155,335

Occupational Therapy Services 2160 75,507 69,964

Special Services Administration 2332 113,354 105,236

Pupil Transportation (Special Ed) 2722 60,041 49,443

Other Expenditures (Federal Projects)

IDEA 131,610 146,710

Preschool 5,255 $5,255

Total Special Education Expenditures 1,674,087 1,865,680

Tuition

Catastrophic Aid

Medicaid Reimbursement

Federal Grants

Total Special Education Revenues 172,552 173,994

Net Cost of Special Education 1,501,535 1,691,686

7,635 14,185

28,052 5,856

1,988

36,865 151,965
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Hopkinton School District^""^^^^^
Treasurer s Report

"""^"^""^^

Year Ended June 30, 2003

General and Special Revenue Funds

Balance Operating & Operating Investments (BNH & MBIA) 7/1/03: $ 853,988

Deposits in Transit 6/30/03 9,296

Outstanding Checks 6/30/03 (263,231)

General Fund Receipts 10,762,615

Food Service Receipts 366,135

Other Special Revenue Receipts 242,824

Interest Earned 8,089

Disbursements General Fund and Special Revenue Funds (1 1,427,777)

Deposits in Transit 6/30/04 (1 1,350)

Outstanding Checks 6/30/04 303348

Bank Balance 6/30/04 $ 843,937

Capital Projects

Balance Capital Projects (Bow Mills) 7/1/03: $

Receipts - Bond Proceeds 548,500

Interest Earned

Disbursements

Bank Balance 6/30/04 $ 548,500

Receipts for all District funds are deposited at the Bank of New Hampshire,

Concord, New Hampshire. However, funds are accounted for separately as

transactions of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds (including the Food

Service Fund) and the Capital Projects Fund. All District disbursements, except

for school activity funds, are paid from the Bank ofNH account.

The District receives all State funds electronically into the NH Public Deposit

Investment Pool (MBIA). These funds are transferred to the Bank of NH
account as needed.

A new money market account was added in 2004, at the Bow Mills Bank and

Trust of NH, to separate the roof capital project funds into a higher interest

bearing account.

Arnold C. Coda, Treasurer
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School Building Repair and
""^^""^^

Maintenance Trust Fund
^""^^"^

June 30, 2004

Fund Balance as ofJune 30, 2000: $186,61

1

2000-2001 Interest Earned $ 10,303

2000-2001 Operating Transfers Out ($64,500)

Fund Balance as ofJune 30, 2001: $132,414

200 1 -2002 Interest Earned $ 2,93

1

200 1 -2002 Operating Transfers Out ($ 7,000)

Fund Balance as ofJune 30, 2002: $128,345

2002-2003 Operating Transfers In $ 50,000

2002-2003 Interest Earned $ 1,649

2002-2003 Operating Transfers Out ($ 20,0 1 2)

Fund Balance as ofJune 30, 2003: $ 1 59,982

2003-2004 Operating Transfers In $50,000

2003-2004 Interest Earned $ 1 ,294

2003-2004 Operating Transfers Out ($88,987)

Fund Balance as ofJune 30, 2004: $122,289
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Minutes
Hopkinton School District

= Annual Meeting =^
March 20, 2004

Hopkinton Middle High School. Contoocook, NH

Moderator Charles Dibble called the annual meeting ofthe Hopkinton School

District to order at 9:05 a.m. on March 20, 2004, at the Hopkinton Middle

High School gymnasium.

The Moderator recognized Lucille Gaskill, who led the Pledge of

Allegiance.

The Moderator recognized Joy Bloomfield for the purpose of presenting

special awards. Lucille Gaskill was honored in appreciation of her 27 years of

service to the School District and community as chair of the Hopkinton Budget

Committee. In addition, Lucille will be given a lifetime pass to Hopkinton

Middle High School sports and art events.

The Moderator introduced the administrators of the school district: Dr.

Richard Ayers, Superintendent, Sharon Silva, Business Administrator, Valerie

Aubry, Director of Student Services, Michelle Lattke, Director of Information

and Technology Services, Bill Carozza, Principal of Harold Martin School,

Michael Bessette, Principal ofMaple Street School, Steve Chamberlin, Principal

of Hopkinton Middle High School, Matt McGonagle, Assistant Principal of

Hopkinton Middle High School. He also introduced Sue Batchelder, School

District Clerk, Edith Allison, Supervisor of the Checklist, and Tom Barry of

Upton & Hatfield, representing the School District.

The Moderator explained the parliamentary procedures for the meeting. He
then gave announcements of upcoming events, and expressed appreciation to

Rick Schaefer, Director of Facilities, and members of the Hopkinton Middle

High School custodial staff for the arrangements and set up for this School

District meeting. He also thanked Steven Lux, Hopkinton High School student,

for operating the PA system today.

The Moderator recognized School Board Chairman Joy Bloomfield for the

purpose of introducing members of the School Board: Larry Donahue, Arpiar

Saunders, Kim Fuller, and Ed Kaplan. Ms. Bloomfield also introduced and

thanked Jon Spencer, student representative to the School Board for the past

two years.
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ARTICLE I : The Moderator recognized Ed Kaplan, for the purpose ofmoving

Article I, seconded by Kim Fuller, as follows: that the School District vote to raise

and appropriate the sum of $548,500 (Five Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand,

Five Hundred Dollars) for repair or replacement of roofs at Hopkinton Middle/

High School, Maple Street School, Harold Martin School and to authorize the

issuance ofnot more than $548,500 (Five Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand, Five

Hundred Dollars) of bonds or notes in accordance with the provisions of the

Municipal Finance Act (RSA Chapter 33) and to authorize the School Board

to issue and negotiate such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest

thereon; and to see if the School District will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum not to exceed $ 1 5,000 (Fifteen Thousand Dollars) for the first year of debt

service and to authorize the Board to take any other action or to pass any other

vote related thereto.

Mr. Kaplan further explained this article. Over the years approximately

$20,000 has been spent on repairs to the roofs. Beginning in 2002, the Board

authorized outside consultation on a comprehensive repair to the roofs. The

Board had some concerns about the recommendations given, and in 2003

commissioned a new consulting group specializing in municipal buildings. In

the fall of2003 authorized bids were sought for structural repairs. In March, the

bids came in much higher than expected, due primarily to increased structural

steel costs. At the School Board meeting on March 16th, the Board came up

with a new option: to accept the bid for the high school, at $478,000; to reject

the $290,000 bid for Maple Street, based on consultants' advice that new bids

will be coming in at the $200,000 range; and finally to put $18,000 toward

repairs to the Harold Martin School roof rather than committing to expensive

structural work at this time. Those repairs are expected to last 4-5 years. By

altering the plans in this way, the Board will be able to stay within the proposed

bond amount.

David Lancaster asked if the structure of the roofs was evaluated before

renovations were done years ago. Ms. Fuller replied yes, but didn't have a dollar

amount for the total repair costs. Mr. Saunders explained that some ofthe needed

repairs at the high school involve different areas ofthe roof Mr. Lancaster asked

Sharon Silva about the length of the time of the bond issue, and the amount of

interest to be paid; Ms. Silva replied that the 5-year bond will cost $67,000 in

interest at 4%, but she is hoping to be able to reduce this to 3%.

Mr. Lancaster discussed putting the entire amount requested in Article I into

this year's budget under Article VI, in anticipation of the loss of state funding

for next year. After legal consultation with Mr. Barry, David Lancaster made a
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motion, seconded by Arnold Coda, to table Article I in order to amend Article

VI to include the bond amount in Article I.

Discussion followed. Mr. Kaplan explained that requesting this amount as part

of the budget rather than a bond item would increase the tax rate approximately

16 percent. Although $67,000 in interest is a significant amount of money,

spreading the cost of repairs out over five years would address a major expense

while also maintaining the ability to address ongoing operating expenses. Ed

Taylor asked if there would be an opportunity to amend the amount of Article

I, if this motion to table passes; the answer was yes. Kathy Schoch asked whether

both Article I and an amended Article VI could pass, which was technically true

but unlikely to happen. Arnold Coda asked for clarification on the impact on

the tax rate: if Article I is included under the budget in Article VI, the impact

on the tax rate would be approximately 16.3 %. Without the bond amount

included in Article VI, the increase in the tax rate if the budget passes would

be approximately 8%.

Mr. Lancaster reiterated the significance of the states decrease in funding; we

will need an additional $1.6 million next year to cover the deficit. Christine

Hamm explained that as of yesterday's State Senate vote, the aid to Hopkinton

next year could be cut by approximately $500,000, from $1,905,931 aid in

2004 to $1,436,310 to be awarded in 2005. The House has not yet voted on

this measure, but the intent is for state aid to decline over time.

The Moderator called for a vote on the amendment to set aside Article I to

insert the requested amount into Article VI. The amendment failed by voice

vote.

The Moderator returned discussion to Article I. Mr. Taylor asked whether

the Board had considered bonding the full amount needed for roof repairs,

approximately $900,000, over a longer period of time, and what the tax impact

would be. Mr. Kaplan replied that although this was possible, the Board felt

that it wouldn't be in the best interest of the community, that Harold Martin

School repairs will be acceptable for a period of time.

Clark Kidder asked what the life expectancy of the roof replacement would

be; the answer was twenty years with a 1 0-year watertight guarantee. Mr. Kidder

noted that this 5-year bond will cover a 20 year roof replacement. In 4-5 years we

will need to take care of only the Harold Martin roof, for an amount projected

to be about $75,000. Mr. Kidder supported the bond issue; and urged the school

board to consider level funding, so that the necessary repair funds will be in the

capital reserve account at that time.
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Dale Warner asked ifthe contingency fund is set aside every year, is it available

to fix the roof? Mr. Kaplan replied that the contingency fund is returned to the

town at the end of each year if there are no contingencies requiring its use. The

building and maintenance trust fund is applied to maintenance issues, but it is

not large enough for this magnitude of repair.

Byron Carr asked what materials will be used and whether the old materials

will be stripped. Mr. Kaplan replied that the R- 1 9 solid foam insulation will be

installed and that all old materials will be stripped.

Mark Connelly noted that the information presented at this meeting was not

included in the written information presented to the town. He asked whether

we could repair the roofs this year, and present a warrant article at next year's

meeting for a roof replacement bond. Mr. Kaplan explained that the only real

change arose because of unanticipated materials costs increases, which were

addressed by suggesting less comprehensive repairs to the Harold Martin roof.

To repair the roofs now, and then request a bond for structural repairs next year,

would represent an additional unnecessary expense.

Mr. Taylor asked whether the amount requested in Article IV, for immediate

repairs, would also be influenced by increased materials costs. Mr. Kaplan replied

that this amount represented just patching and not structural work, and it is

the best available estimate.

The Moderator called for a ballot vote on Article I. Polls opened for one hour

at 10:08. The meeting was briefly suspended to expedite the voting process. The

Moderator reconvened the meeting at 10:30.

ARTICLE II was passed over until the results of Article I could be tallied,

because it is related to Article I.

ARTICLE III : The Moderator recognized Joy Bloomfield for the purpose of

moving Article III, seconded by Larry Donahue, as follows: that the School

District accepts reports of agents, auditors, committees and officers chosen, or

to take any other action in relation thereto.

The Moderator called for a vote, and Article III passed without debate.

ARTICLE IV was passed over until the results of Article I could be tallied,

because it is related to Article I.
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ARTICLE V: The Moderator recognized Larry Donahue for the purpose of

moving Article V, seconded byJoy Bloomfield, as follows: that the School District

vote to establish the salaries of the School Board and the compensation for any

other officers or agents of the District as printed in the 2004/2005 budget, or

to take any other action in relation thereto.

The Moderator called for a vote and Article V passed without debate.

ARTICLE VI : The Moderator recognized Joy Bloomfield for the purpose of

moving Article VI, seconded by Arpiar Saunders, as follows: that the School

District vote to raise and appropriate $12,235,375 (Twelve Million, Two
Hundred Thirty-Five Thousand, Three Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars) for the

support of schools, for the payment of salaries for the School District officials

and agents, and for the payment of statutory obligations of the District, or to

take any other action in relation thereto.

Mr. Saunders discussed this article. Article VI was recommended by the Budget

Committee but not the School Board. A recent change in state statute requires

that the recommendation of the Budget Committee, rather than the School

Board, must be stated in the Warrant ifthere is a difference between the two. The

Budget Committee recommended cutting $200,000 from the proposed budget

submitted by the School Board. The proposed budget represented an increase

of 4.77% over last year's budget. This is the first time the Budget Committee

has requested a reduction in at least eight years, and it was not a unanimous

decision of Budget Committee. The Budget Committee voted to reduce the

overall budget, not specific line items. The impact of this reduction was detailed

in the newsletter sent to town members by the School District.

Mr. Saunders briefly explained the budget proposed by School Board. The

budget process begins in September, and is usually concluded by January. The

Board reviews budget as a whole, considering the impact on taxpayers and the

relation to any state legislative action. The School Board's proposed budget of

$12,435,375 was $350,000 less than that presented by the Leadership Team to

the School Board. School budgets in surrounding towns have increased above

that of Hopkinton.

There are three areas of increase: first are salaries, which are contractual

obligations agreed upon at last year's meeting. The second area is benefits,

principally health insurance. Bids are out now to improve costs of similar

policies, and the district's policies are linked to town employees' policies. Bids

are presently being reviewed, and the School Board anticipates that next year

there will be no increase in cost of benefits.
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New positions were discussed. Enrollment has increased significantly at the

high school level, a 25% increase since 1998-1999. New families in town are

enrolling students at the secondary level, and less than 4% ofsecondary students

are now going to private schools, which is a significant change.

Two half-time special education positions, one at elementary and one at

the high school, have been requested to continue serving our children in our

district as much as possible, which significantly decreases our costs and keeps our

children in town. A half-time high school computer teacher is needed because

technology use has increased dramatically, and we must increase our computer

education staff by 1/5 in high school to meet state guidelines. Project Lead the

Way, the preengineering program, has increased the number of female students

participating in these programs by one third, and the numbers of students

enrolled at the Vocational Education programs in Concord have tripled. The

integrated arts position addresses the critical role played by the arts in education

at Maple Street School and the high school. Reductions include two instructional

assistant positions. The five-year review of our budget process indicates that we

are in line with surrounding districts such as Bow, Kearsarge, and Weare.

A $1.9 million adequacy grant was received from the state this year. Next

year this amount will be $460,000-$480,000 less, and the intent is to phase

out the statewide property tax. If the adequacy grant is not changed,, next year's

tax rate with the proposed budget would be 3.91%, with a 70-cent impact on

the tax rate.

The Moderator opened debate on Article VI. Carrie Thompson made a

motion, seconded by Howard Helrich, to amend the dollar amount of Article

VI to $12,435,375 (Twelve MiUion, Four Hundred Thirty Five Thousand,

Three Hundred Seventy Five Dollars). Ms. Thompson noted that in the current

economy, globalization has had a significant impact on jobs, and creative and

critical thinkers will be more employable.

Jane Bradstreet, member ofthe Budget Committee, thanked the school board

for their work and explained her opposition to the amendment. In 1998 the

budget was $8 million. Today we have a $12.4 million budget with an increase

of only 36 students. Although the budget increase over last year is not large,

budgets have increased consistently over the last several years. Ms. Bradstreet

also noted that the Budget Committee was not necessarily in agreement with

the school board's proposed cuts. In recent years the School Board has been

able to give back large amounts of surplus, so the budget is not so tight to as

to require elimination of critical things. She noted that residents consistently

support schools, but she finds the increases staggering.
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Tom Yestramski opposes the amendment, noting that he has long supported

the schools but feels that the small 1.5% decrease sends a signal to the school

board to decrease costs.

Ed Taylor: At the February 9 public meeting on budget it was suggested that

some money does come back at the end of the year; maybe this is a year not

to do so.

Mr. Saunders replied that the $50,000 contingency in budget will come back

to the town. There are contractual obligations in the budget for items, such as

teacher retirement, which may or may not be utilized, cannot be spent on other

items. Have sharpened pencils but many have no control over funds.

Arnold Coda stated that he does not support the amendment. All present

support education; some items could be removed from the budget without

significant impact. He is concerned that items such as lacrosse, which were

voted down last year but have been represented as a cut to this year's proposed

budget, represent wants rather than needs. He feels concern that Hopkinton

has become a pretentious town in which some people vote for items without

regard for the impact of the increased tax burden on others.

Louise Carr opposes the amendment because of the impact on our senior

population. By 2020, our senior population will increase by 200%. The average

personal income for seniors is only $896 per month; school budget increases have

outpaced personal income increases. High health care costs, for example, not

only increase insurance costs for teachers but strongly impact seniors, particularly

their prescription costs. Please remember those who built the community into

what it is today.

Ron Lajoie, with three sons educated in the Hopkinton system, high property

taxes, and will have two kids in college next year, and understands the tax burden

schools. However, Hopkinton schools are consistently highest in testing scores,

students are admitted to the best colleges, and college level courses are offered.

He applauds teachers for their extra effort, and notes that many increases are

due to the fact that there are significant changes in the schools, as they fill roles

not traditionally taken. He supports the amendment because the increase is

worth the investment.

Judy Dibble spoke in favor of the amendment. Ms. Bradstreet's comments

were well taken, but Ms. Dibble feels that the school board is fiscally responsible,

and will give back funds to the town if at all possible.

Liane Kerbyson asked whether the items slated to be cut without the

amendment are final; in particular she is concerned about the cut in physical
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education. Mr. Saunders replied that the recommendations printed in the

newsletter have not been brought for review before the Board.

Peter Cowan stated that the school board has done its job, they are invested with

authority, and we should defer to their judgment. They have cut $350,000 from

the Leadership Team's budget. Further, he feels that since 45 kids participated

in lacrosse this year the $8,000 is worthy.

Dick Drescher requested that this article be voted by ballot and the Moderator

affirmed that several voters had requested this already and that a ballot vote

would be taken.

Al Bloomquist asked how many students are speakers of other languages; Val

Aubry explained that there are six at the present time, and that some students

have spoken no English whatsoever.

Byron Carr noted that his land taxes have doubled, so he understands the tax issues,

but he foimd that although he participated in sports and art, art training has been more

important than sports training in his life, and that drama would have helped more.

David Lancaster asked for an explanation of $135,000 in three line item

increases as follows: health services salaries increasing by 15%. Mr. Saunders

explained that this was a contractual step salary scale increase for three people.

Second, there was a 20% increase in media and technology; Mr. Saunders

explained that this included the half-time computer technician as well as sofirware

and other purchases. Third, increases of professional services of 118%. Mr.

Saunders explained that this reflects a realignment in the budget process, but not

necessarily increases of people in categories. Mr. Lancaster was also concerned

that if lacrosse becomes funded at $8,000, we will need to raise this amount in

future years to fund a varsity level team. Mr. Saunders' information was that our

team would likely stay at the junior varsity level for several years. Mr. Lancaster

noted that cocurricular activities were cut 43%. Mr. Saunders replied that no

programs were cut; supplies and other areas were cut, but not programs. Mr.

Lancaster noted that no other school in Class M has an NHIAA sanctioned

lacrosse team; recreational lacrosse is still available as an option here.

Nini Allen commented that there is indeed drama at the middle and high

school levels; Mr. Saunders apologized and noted that more than 50 students

participate in Ms. Allen's after school program. Ms. Allen commented that

students in drama are not validated by the school system, at present. She also

asked what the tax impact ofthe new preschool would be. Ms. Aubry replied that

there would be no tax impact, and that housing the preschool at Harold Martin

School significantly reduces the cost of the IDEA-mandated preschool.
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Hearing no further debate, the Moderator noted that a ballot vote was requested

on the amendment to Article VI, and the ballot vote was so taken. With 227

ballots cast, 169 voted yes and 58 voted no, and the amendment passed.

The Moderator then asked for sense ofmeeting to see ifthe ballot voted requested

earlier for Article VI was still needed. It was determined that a ballot voted was

needed on this article, and the meeting was briefly suspended to complete the

vote. With 242 ballots cast, 182 voted yes and 60 voted no, and Article VI

passed.

Motion to restrict reconsideration of Article VI made by Peter Cowan and

seconded by Arnold Coda was passed.

ARTICLE I : It was announced that with 277 ballots cast 185 voted yes, 92

voted no, and Article I passed.

ARTICLE II : The Moderator recognized Kim Fuller for the purpose ofmoving

Article II, seconded by Ed Kaplan, as follows: that the School District appropriate

up to $3,000 (Three Thousand Dollars) of the interest earned on the bonds

and notes under Article I, for repair or replacement of roofs at the Hopkinton

Middle/High School, Maple Street School and Harold Martin School or to take

any other action in relation thereto.

The Moderator called for a vote, and Article II passed without debate.

ARTICLE IV: because Article I passed, the School Board requested that Article

IV be passed over.

ARTICLE VII : The Moderator recognized Joy Bloomfield for the purpose

of moving Article VII, seconded by Kim Fuller, as follows: that the School

District raise and appropriate $7,500 (Seven Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars)

to support the After School Art and Drama Programs and the Out-of-School

Suspension Program, pursuant to RSA 32:6-a, or to take any other action in

relation thereto.

Ms. Bloomfield explained that these programs were previously funded through

federal grants.

The Moderator called for a vote and Article VII passed without debate.
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ARTICLE VIII : The Moderator recognized Larry Donahue for the purpose of

moving Article VIII, seconded by Ed Kaplan, as follows: that the School District

vote to establish a General Contingency Fund to meet the cost ofunanticipated

expenses that may arise during the year and to raise and appropriate $50,000

(Fifty Thousand Dollars) to be placed in this fund, or to take any other action

in relation thereto.

The Moderator called for a vote and Article VIII passed without debate.

ARTICLE IX: The Moderator recognized Ed Kaplan for the purpose ofmoving

Article IX, seconded byJoy Bloomfield, as follows: that the School District vote to

appropriate $80,180 (EightyThousand, One Hundred and Eighty Dollars) from

the School Building Repair and Maintenance Trust Fund Account established

March 6, 1993, for the purpose of repair, renovation and related services of the

Hopkinton High School, Maple Street School and Harold Martin School, or

to take any other action in relation thereto.

The Moderator called for a vote and Article IX passed without debate.

ARTICLEX: The Moderator recognized Kim Fuller for the purpose ofmoving

Article X, seconded by Larry Donahue, as follows: that the School District vote

to appropriate up to $150,000 (One Hundred and FiftyThousand Dollars) to be

added to the School Building Repair and Maintenance Trust Fund, established

March 6, 1993, and authorize the School Board to transfer up to said amount

from the year end undesignated surplus fund balance available on June 30, 2004,

or to take any other action in relation thereto.

Ed Taylor asked for clarification as to whether a specific number is needed,

rather that "up to" $150,000, in order to set the tax rate. Ms. Fuller explained

that the actual amount will depend on the amount of unexpended funds.

Moderator Dibble further explained that if there is money left over, any surplus

amount, up to $150,000, will be put into the fund. This will have no impact

on the tax rate.

The Moderator called for a vote and Article X passed with no further

discussion.
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ARTICLE XI : To transact any other business that may legally come before said

meeting.

The Moderator recognized Dale Warner. Mr. Warner asked for a clarification

regarding the ownership and intended purpose of George's Park. Mr. Saunders

replied that the town owns the park, and the school district uses it in agreement

with the town. Some maintenance is performed by the school district and some

by the town.

David Lancaster requested that the number ofvoters present (304), the number

of registered voters in Hopkinton (approximately 3980), and the percentage of

registered voters present (approximately 7.5%) be recorded in these minutes.

There being no further business before the meeting, motion to adjourn made

by Arpiar Saunders, seconded by Ed Kaplan, was passed at 12:40 p.m.

Respectfully submitted.

Sue Batchelder

School District Clerk
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Warrant for the 2005 Annual
==^^ Hopkinton School District Meeting =^^

The State ofNew Hampshire

To the inhabitants of the Town ofHOPKINTON, in the County ofMERRIMACK, in the

said State, qualified to vote in school district affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Hopkinton High School Gymnasium in said

HOPKINTON on Saturday, the Nineteenth (19^) day of March, 2005, next at 9:00 a.m.

o'clock in the forenoon to act upon the following articles:

ARTICLE I; To hear reports of agents, auditors, committees, and officers chosen or to

take any other action in relation thereto.

ARTICLE II: To see if the school district will vote to establish an Expendable Trust

Fund under the provisions ofRSA 35:l-b for the purpose of Educating Educationally

Disabled Children and to raise and appropriate the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars

($50,000) to be placed in this fund. Furthermore, to designate the school board as agents

to expend from this fund or to take any other action in relation thereto. (The Hopkinton

School Board recommends this appropriation.) (The Hopkinton Budget Committee

recommends this appropriation.)

ARTICLE III: To see if the school district will vote to designate the school board as

agents to expend from the School Building Repair and Maintenance Trust Fund

previously established March 6, 1993. In order for agents to expend such funds, they

shall hold a public hearing prior to expenditure, and expenditures shall be made for only

the purpose for which that trust fund was established.

ARTICLE IV: IfARTICLE II passes, to see if the school district will vote to raise and

appropriate as an operating budget, the Budget Committee's recommended amount of

Thirteen Million Two Hundred Forty Eight Thousand Two Hundred Ninety Five Dollars

($13,248,295) for the support of schools, for the payment of salaries for the school

district officials and agents, and for the payment of statutory obligations of the district, or

to take any other action in relation thereto. The Hopkinton School Board recommends
Thirteen Million Two Hundred Forty Eight Thousand Two Hundred Ninety Five Dollars

($13,248,295).

Or, ifARTICLE 11 does not pass, to see if the school district will vote to raise and

appropriate as an operating budget, the Budget Committee's recommended amount of

Thirteen Million Two Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Two Hundred Ninety Five Dollars

($13,268,295) for the support of schools, for the payment of salaries for the school

district officials and agents, and for the payment of statutory obligations of the district, or

to take any other action in relation thereto. The Hopkinton School Board recommends
Thirteen Million Two Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Two Hundred Ninety Five Dollars

($13,268,295).
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Warrant for the 2005 Annual=^ Hopkinton School District Meeting =^^=
The State ofNew Hampshire

ARTICLE V: To see if the school district will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) for the purpose of a General Contingency Fund to meet

the cost of unanticipated expenses that may arise during the year or to take any other

action in relation thereto. (The Hopkinton School Board recommends this appropriation).

(The Hopkinton Budget Committee recommends this appropriation.)

ARTICLE VI: IfARTICLE III does not pass, to see if the school district will vote to

appropriate the sum of Forty Two Thousand Four Hundred and Seventy Dollars

($42,470) for the purpose of repair and maintenance of the Hopkinton High School,

Maple Street School and Harold Martin School and authorize the withdrawal of Forty

Two Thousand Four Hundred and Seventy Dollars ($42,470) from the School Building

Repair and Maintenance Trust fund established for this purpose or to take any other

action in relation thereto. (The Hopkinton School Board recommends this appropriation.)

(The Hopkinton Budget Committee recommends this appropriation.)

ARTICLE VII: To see if the school district will vote to appropriate up to One Hundred

Thousand Dollars ($100,000) to be added to the School Building Repair and Maintenance

Trust Fund, established March 6, 1993, and authorize the school board to transfer up to

One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) from the year end undesignated fund balance

(surplus) available on June 30, 2005, or to take any other action in relation thereto. (The

Hopkinton School Board recommends this appropriation.) (The Hopkinton Budget

Committee recommends this appropriation.)

ARTICLE VIII : To transact any other business that may legally come before said

meeting.
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Warrant for the 2005 Annual
=^^= Hopkinton School District Meeting =^^=

The State ofNew Hampshire

WARRANT TO ELECT SCHOOL DISTRICT OFFICERS

FURTHER: You are hereby notified to meet at the Hopkinton Town Hall on Tuesday,

the Eighth (8^) day of March, 2005, with the polls open at 7:30 a.m. and remaining open

continually until 7:00 p.m. to act upon the following subjects:

To choose by nonpartisan ballot, the following School District Officers.

A. 2 School Board Members 3 Year Term
B. 1 Moderator 1 Year Term
C. 1 Clerk 1 Year Term
D. 1 Treasurer 1 Year Term
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2005-2006
School District Budget

(MS27)

MS-27

SCHOOL BUDGET FORM
BUDGET FORM FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS WHICH HAVE ADOPTED

THE PROVISIONS OF RSA 32:14 THROUGH 32:24

OF: HOPKINTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NH

Appropriations and Estimates of Revenue for the Fiscal Year From July 1. 2005 to June 30, 2006

IMPORTANT:

Please read RSA 32:5 applicable to all municipalities.

1 Use this form to list ALL APPROPRIATIONS in the appropriate recommended and not recommended

area. This means the operating budget and all special and individual warrant articles must be posted.

2. Hold at least one public hearing on this budget.

3. When completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with the warrant. Another copy must be placed

on file with the school clerk, and a copy sent to the Department of Revenue Administration at the address

below.

We Certify This Form Was Posted on (Date):.

BUDGET COMMITTEE
Please sign in ink.

<a^a^X/

L ^ra^lA-^Vjlt^

IM)/JjUa^ (O^L^^XI^

THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE SCHOOL WARRANT

FOR DRA USE ONLY

NH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

MUNICIPAL FINANCE BUREAU
P.O. BOX 487, CONCORD, NH 03302-0487

(603)271-3397

MS-27

Rev. 07/02
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2005-2006
School District Budget

(MS27)

MS-27 Budget - School District of HOPKINTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

2 3 4

_ FY 2005-2006

5 6

Estimated

WARR. Actual Revenues Revised Revenues Revenues
Acct# SOURCE OF REVENUE ART.# Prior Year Current Year ENSUING FISCAL YEAR

REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES xxxxxxxxx XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

1300-1349 Tuition 4 22,278 10,000 10,000

1400-1449 Transportation Fees

1500-1599 Earnings on Investments 5,594 6,000 3,000

1600-1699 Food Service Sales 233,940 230,000 349,069

1700-1799 Student Activities 10,239 7,500 13,500

1800-1899 Community Services Activities 4,566 2,500 2,500

1900-1999 Other Local Sources 67,035 2,000 2,000

REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

3210 School Building Aid 4 81,000 79,569 109,269

3220 Kindergarten Aid

3230 Catastrophic Aid 4 8,999 3,519 3,500

3240-3249 Vocational Aid

3250 Adult Education

3260 Child Nutrition 4 3,812 3,500 3,500

3270 Driver Education 4 17,100 16,500 16,000

3290-3299 Other State Sources

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

4100-4539 Federal Program Grants 4 59,053 75,000 87,500

4540 Vocational Education

4550 Adult Education

4560 Child Nutrition 4 51,373 40,000 52,000

4570 Disabilities Programs 4 151,967 75,000 87,500

4580 Medicaid Distribution 4 1,988 10,000 10,000

4590-4999 Other Federal Sources (except 4810) 45,380

4810 Federal Forest Reserve

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

5110-5139 Sale of Bonds or Notes 548,500

5221 Transfer from Food Service-Spec.Rev.Fund

5222 Transfer from Other Special Revenue Funds

5230 Transfer from Capital Project Funds

5251 Transfer from Capital Reserve Funds

MS-27

Rav. 07/02
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(MS27)

MS-27 Budget - School District of HOPKINTON SCHOOL DISTRICT - FY 2005-2006

Acct# SOURCE OF REVENUE
WARR.
ART.#

Actual Revenues

Prior Year

Revised Revenues

Current Year

Estimated

Revenues

ENSUING FISCAL YEAR

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES CONT. xxxxxxxxx XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXX

5252 Transfer from Expendable Trust Funds 6 75,000 80,180 42,470

5253 Transfer from Non-Expendable Trust Funds

5300-5699 Other Financing Sources

5140 This Section for Calculation of RAN's

(Reimbursement Anticipation Notes) Per RSA

198:20-D for Catastrophic Aid Borrowing

RAN, Revenue This FY less

RAN, Revenue Last FY

=NETRAN

Supplemental Appropriation (Contra)

Voted From Fund Balance 7 50,000 150,000 100,000

Fund Balance to Reduce Taxes 355,844 358,865

Total Estimated Revenue & Credits 1,245,168 1,698,633 891,808

**BUDGET SUMMARY**

Current Year

Adopted Budget

School Board's

Recommended Budget

Budget Committee's

Recommended Budget

SUBTOTAL 1 Appropriations Recommended (from page 3) 13,089,555 13,268,295 13,268,295

SUBTOTAL 2 Special Warrant Articles Recommended (from page 4) 150,000 150,000 150,000

SUBTOTAL 3 "Individual" Warrant Articles Recommended (from page 4) 50,000 92,470 92,470

TOTAL Appropriations Recommended 13,289,555 13,510,765 13,510,765

Less: Amount of Estimated Revenues & Credits (from above) 1,698,633 891,808 891,608

Less: Amount of Cost of Adequate Education (State Tax/Grant)* 3,377,796 4,331,844 4,331,844

Estimated Amount of Local Taxes to be Raised For Education 8,213,126 8,287,113 8,287,113

Maximum Allowable Increase to Budget Committee's Recommended Budget per RSA 32:18: $14,794,654

(See Supplemental Schedule With 10% Calculation)

•Note: You will also be required to pay a State Education Tax RSA 76:3 and you may be required to pay an additional

excess education tax in the amount of $ .

MS-27

Rev. 07/02
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BUDGET COMMITTEE SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE
(RSA 32:18, 19, & 32:21

VERSION #1 REVISED 1996

Local Govt. Unit; Hopkinton School Fiscal Year Ending: 2005-2006
er-Lstrict

1. Total RECOMMENDED by Budget Committee

RECOMMENDED AMOUNT

.13,510,765

LESS EXCLUSIONS:

2. Principle: Long-Term Bonds & Notes 404,700

3. Interest: Long-Term Bonds & Notes 267,167

4 . Capital Outlays Funded From Long-Term
Bonds & Notes per RSA 33:8 & 33:7-b.

5. Mandatory Assessments

6. TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Sum of rows 2-5) 671,867

7. AMOUNT RECOMMENDED LESS RECOMMENDED
EXCLUSION AMOUNTS (Line 1 less Line 6) 12,838,898

8. Line 7 times 10% 1,283,889

THIS IS THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE INCREASE TO BUDGET COMMITTEES
RECOMMENDED BUDGET. See versions 2 & 3 if you have collective
bargaining items.

:mba

S58



2004-2005
School District

Operational Budget

Board Members:

Arpiar G. Saunders, Chairperson

Lawrence J. Donahue, Vice Chairperson

Joy Bloomfield

Kim M. Fuller

Edward M. Kaplan

District Administration:

Richard W. Ayers, Superintendent

Michelle R. Clark, Business Administrator

Valerie Aubry, Director ofStudent Services

Michelle Lattke, Director ofTechnology

William Carozza, Harold Martin School Principal

Michael Bessette, Maple Street School Principal

Steven Chamberlin, Hopkinton Middle/High School Principal

Matthew McGonagle, Hopkinton Middle!High School Assistant Principal
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2004-2005
School District

Operational Budget

REVENUE SOURCES
Actual Revenues

03/04

Estimated Revenues

04/05

Estimated Revenues

05/06 Variance

REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES

Tuition

Earnings on Investments

Food Service Sales & Transfers Into FS
Student Activities & Participation Fees

Community Service Activities

Other Local Sources (Grants)

Other Local Sources (rent/tuition/etc)

REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

School Building Aid

Catastrophic Aid

Child Nutrition Food Service

Driver Education

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

Federal Program Grants

Disabilities Programs (IDEA,PRESCH)

Other Federal Sources (Child Nutrition)

Medicaid Reimbursement

Other Federal Sources

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Sale of Bonds or Notes

Transfer from Expendable Trust Funds

MS 24 MS 27

22,278 10,000 10,000 $ -

5,594 6,000 3,000 $ (3,000)

233,940 230,000 349,069 $ 119,069

10,239 7,500 13,500 $ 6,000

4,566 2,500 2,500 $ -

65,035 - - $ -

2,000 2,000 2,000 $ "

81,000 79,569 109,269 $ 29,700

8,999 3,519 3,500 $ (19)

3,812 3,500 3,500 $ -

17,100 16,500 16,000 $ (500)

59,053 75,000 87,500 $ 12,500

151,967 75,000 87,500 $ 12,500

51,373 40,000 52,000 $ 12,000

1,988 10,000 10,000 $ -

45,380 $

548,500 $ (548,500)

75,000 80,180 42,470 $ (37,710)

TOTAL MS-24 REVENUES $ 839,324 $ 1,189,768 $ 791,808 $ (397,960)

State Adequate Education Grant

State Property Tax
$

$

1,905,931

2,124,235

$

$

1,651,957

1,725,839

$

$

1,932,016

1,608,020

$

$

280,059

(117,819)

TOTAL REVENUES Before Local Tax $ 4,869,490 $ 4,567,564 $ 4,331,844 $ (235,720)

Voted from Fund Balance

Fund Balance - To Reduce Taxes
$

$

50,000

355,844

$

$

150,000

358,865

$

$

100,000 $

$

(50,000)

(358,865)

Total Estimated Revenues Before Local Tax $ 5,275,334 $ 5,076,429 $ 4,431,844 $ (644,585)

TOTAL ESTIMATE TAX RATE IMPACT

-14.54% Increase

Actual Tax Rate

2004-2005

Presuming a 3%
Increase in Valuation

2005-2006

$

Variance

%
Variance

Valuation

Assessment
$597,012,844.00

8,213,126.00

$ 614,923,229.32

4,431,843.60

Local Tax Rate $ 13.76 $ 7.21 $ (6.55) -47.61%

Valuation

Assessment
$

$

579,465,025

1,725,839.00

$

$

596,848,976

2,146,684.00

State Tax Rate $ 2.98 $ 3.60 $ 0.62 20.76%

TOTAL TAX $ 16.73 $ 10.79 $ (5.93) -35.46%
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Total 2004 - 2005 Operational Budget with Warrant Articles $13,289,555

- OPERATIONAL BUDGET INCREASES -

1 Salaries: For non-unionized and unionized personnel $588,336

2 Salaries: Increase substitute line item, previously under funded 1 7,463

3 New Positions: Salary and benefits for new PT bookkeeper in the Central 29,675

Office, 1 hour per day-office clerical help at Harold Martin School Increased

Positions: 1/5 Behavior Specialist, 8 extra days in summer for Middle/High

School Guidance, 1/10 High School Adventure Education Teacher

4 Benefits: Primarily due to district retirement costs which increased by 22.35%; 123,565

results in a $73,375 increase in retirement when compared to last year's rate

5 Insurance: Increase in Property & Liability Insurance and Workers 19,300

Compensation Insurance

6 New Budget Items: NEASC is a once every 10-year accreditation requirement 22,503

and M.A.P. testing

7 Debt Service: Principal and Interest now includes the 04-05 Bond Issue 105,782

8 Food Service: Transfer to supplement the increase in expenditures over 36,000

revenues

Total Significant Increases $942,624

- OPERATIONAL BUDGET DECREASES -

1 Special Education: Tuition reduced to anticipated expenditure ($15,000)

2 Other: Supplies, Textbooks, Materials, Printing, Advertising, Audit Fees and (74,704)

Equipment

3 Transportation: Reduction resulting from change to leasing an 1 8-22 passenger (20,000)

bus for Vocational & Special Education travel

Total Significant Decreases ($109,704)

- WARRANT ARTICLES -

1 2005 - 2006: Sum of Warrant Articles $242,470

2 2004-2005: Sum of Warrant Articles (including roof bond) (854, 1 80)

Total Warrant Article Decrease ($611.710)

Total Proposed 2005 - 2006 Operational Budget with Warrant Articles $13,510,765
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Major Budget
Component Descriptions

SALARIES: Salaries; Salaries Secretarial/Clerks; Salaries Substitutes; Salaries

Temps; and Salaries Summer.

BENEFITS: Health Insurance; Dental Insurance; Life/LTD Insurance;

Workers Compensation; Retirements; FICA; Sick Bank; Unemployment

Insurance; Tuition Reimbursement.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: Instructional Services; Instructional

Improvement; Curriculum Development; Conferences and Conventions;

Contracted Pupil Services; Contracted Evaluation Services; Contracted Pupil

Health Services; General Testing; Alcohol/Drug Programs; Management

Services; Data Processing; Statistical Services; Legal Services; and Other

Professional Services.

PROPERTY SERVICES: Water; Sewer; Water Inspection; Cleaning Services;

Disposal Services; Snow Plowing; General Repair and Maintenance; Repair Non-

Instructional Equipment; Painting; Repairs Plumbing/Electrical; Repairs Heat

and Ventilation; Repairs Building Interior and Exterior; Rent/Lease Equipment;

Film Rental; Contracted Services; Maintenance Agreements - Buildings and

Grounds.

OTHER SERVICES: Transportation; Liability Insurance; Postage; Advertising;

Printing; Communications; Vocational Tuition; Tuition; and Travel.

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS: Supplies; Small Tools and Hardware; AV
Supplies; Books; Periodicals; Microfilm; Electricity; Oil Heat; Gasoline; Propane

Gas; Reference Materials; Software; and Telecommunications.

PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT: Additional/New Equipment; Replace

Equipment; Additional/New Furniture; Replace Furniture; and New
Vehicles.

OTHER ITEMS: Dues and Fees; Bond-Principal; Bond-Interest;

Contingency; Fund Transfers; Miscellaneous; Other Uses of Funds.
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Hopkinton School District

2005-2006 Proposed
Operating Budget

TOTAL OF OPERATIONAL PROGRAMS

The 2005-2006 Hopkinton School District Operational Budget is grouped into five basic operational programs:

Instructional Programs; Student and Staff Servdces; Administrative Services; Facilities and Transportation; and

Debt Service with Fund Transfers.

Special warrant articles can be found at the end of this document and are not included in the operational budget

totals.

-INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS-

The functions found within the Instructional Programs group are Regular Educational programs. Special

Educational programs, Vocational programs, and other Instructional programs.

Regular Educational Programs (llOO's)

The Regular Education portion of the 2005-2006 budget contains instructional activities designed to provide all

students with learning experiences that prepare them to become productive citizens and family members. All

grade levels and subjects are fiinded in this section.

1100 Regular Education
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Salaries 3,834,717 3,810,668 4,139,023 4,498,695 359,672

Benefits 1,141,131 1,093,510 1,265,791 1,347,031 81,240

Professional 25,772 48,481 54,372 11,772 (42,600)

Services

Property Services 47,291 43,121 36,911 35,667 (1,244)

Other Services

Supplies and 151,796 147,001 153,057 162,755 9,698

Materials

Property/ Equipment 23,363 38,536 30,320 28,948 (1,372)

Other Items 2,720 1,549 2,720 550 (2,170)

Totals 5,226,790 5,182,867 5,682,194 6,085,418 403,224

Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements.

Increased Benefits relate primarily to increases in district contribution to NH Retirement, which increased

22.35% overall.

$42,500 decrease in Professional Services results from transferring $46,800 of ESOL Contracted Tutor to

Special Programs, but also includes a new line item for $5,000 to pay for the Measures of Academic Progress

program; although this pilot program is in place in 2004-2005, this is the first year budgeted.

$9,283 of the increase in Supplies and Materials is the purchase of new textbooks.
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Hopkinton School District

2005-2006 Proposed
Operating Budget

-INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS-

Special Education Programs (1200's)

This budget is for instructional activities designed primarily for students who require special services. These

services include pre-kindergarten, kindergarten, elementary and secondary services for the gifted and talented;

mentally, physically, emotionally, and learning disabled; culturally different; bilingual and other special services.

1200 Special Education Programs
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

|

Salaries $ 997,937 $ 972,642 $ 1,130,122 $ 1,061,978 $ (68,144)

Benefits 262,275 223,532 319,250 242,340 (76,910)

Professional Services 72,342 39,493 79,496 19,300 (60,196)

Property Services 200 200 300 100

Other Services 208,283 108,237 161,200 91,500 (69,700)

Supplies and Materials 15,276 15,391 15,916 14,872 (1,044)

Property/Equipment 1,797 1,830 3,361 793 (2,568)

Other Items 106

TOTALS 5 1,558,110 $ 1,361,231 S 1,709,545 $ 1,431,083 $ (278,462)

• Administrative costs totaling $132,870 across all Special Programs budget components moved to fiinction code

2332 Office of Superintendent to more accurately report instructional activities from administrative activities.

• $27,360 moved to 1 100 Regular Instruction; this amount moves 65% of preschool expenditures which do not

relate directly to Special Programs.

• Professional Services increased $46,800, resulting from transferring ESOL Contracted Tutor from 11 00

Regular Instruction, while $89,165 was transferred out of Professional Services to function 2163 Occupational

Therapy and Physical Therapy services to more accurately reflect related costs.

• Other decreases in Salaries & Benefits are due to movement of employees within budget, federal grant

programs and employee change in benefit plans.

• The decrease in Other Services results from transferring $60,000 in Transportation - Out of District costs to the

Transportation ftinction 2700.

This budget represents a steady decline in out-of-district tuition costs over the past six years, which reflects a

concerted effort on the part of the district administration to build capacity in our schools for students with a variety

of significant special needs. Providing programs and services within the home community supports student growth

and smooth transitions as well as being cost effective.
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INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS-

Vocational Programs (1300)

This budget is for instructional activities that provide students with the opportunity to develop the knowledge,

skills, and attitudes needed for employment in an occupational area.

1300 Vocational Education
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Other Services $8,0000 $ 7,875 $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $

TOTAL $ 8,000 5 7,875 $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $

These funds are for tuition to the Concord School District Regional Vocational Program and a limited amount

for supplies for the School-to-Work Program.

Other Instructional Programs (1400)

This budget contains funds for activities commonly known as co-curriculeir programs. Funds in this category are

for the coaches, officials, equipment, and supplies for school sponsored activities under the guidance and

supervision of staff designed to provide motivation, enjoyment, and improvement of skills for students. Co-

curricular programs normally supplement the regular instructional program and include such activities as band,

chorus, and athletics.

1400 Other Instructional Programs
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

1

Salaries $ 152,558 $ 132,825 $ 152,852 $ 162,849 $ 9,997

Benefits 36,117 15,870 19,696 26,533 6,837

Professional Services 11,650 3,699 1,650 37,160 35,510

Property Services 400 59 400 400 -

Supplies and Materials 10,650 13,079 6,075 12,950 6,875

Property/ 3,700 8,961 5,325 5,350 25

Equipment

Other Items 27,215 26,445 29,565 3,416 (26,149)

TOTAL 5 242,290 $ 200,937 $ 215,563 $ 248,658 $ 33,095

Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements.

Professional Services increased $7,500 due to reporting the 04-05 After-School-Suspension program as a

Warrant Article but is now reported as an Operating Budget expenditure of $5,000 in 05-06; an additional

$6,000 increase is due to a change in reporting of Athletic Participation Fees. Previously, revenues would net

against this expenditure; this is the first year budgeted to reflect the proper gross budgeting of the expense, with

revenues now reported in general fund revenues.

Items previously classified in Other Items are now reported in Professional Services to more accurately reflect

costs.
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-STUDENT AND STAFF SERVICES-

Student and Staff Services include Guidance Services; Health Services; Psychological Services; Speech Pathology

and Auditory Services; Physical and Occupational Therapy; Improvement of Instruction Services, and Media

Services.

Guidance Services (2120)

This budget provides for counseling with students and parents, consultation on learning problems, evaluation of

students, and assisting students as they make educational decisions and choose their own career plans.

2120 Guidance Services

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Salaries $ 228,655 $ 228,143 $ 232,345 $ 249,794 $ 17,449

Benefits 61,605 61,545 70,724 73,929 3,205

Professional Services 1,430 524 1,430 1,454 24

Other Services

Property Services

Supplies and Materials 3,151 2,815 3,565 5,035 1,470

Property/Equipment

Other Items

TOTAL S 294,841 $ 293,027 $ 308,064 $ 330,212 $ 22,148

Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements.

Health Services (2130)

This budget addresses physical and mental health services. It is predominately for school nursing services but does

include some direct instruction.

2130 Health Services

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease
|

Salaries $ 94,676 $ 102,919 $ 110,895 $ 120,631 $ 9,736

Benefits 23,384 25,273 32,487 29,215 (3,272)

Professional Services 600 104 600 600

Property Services 400 89 400 430 30

Other Services 50 50 - (50)

Supplies and Materials 3,822 3,027 3,901 3,777 (124)

Property/Equipment 100 100 693 515 (178)

Other Items 105 210 105 105

Total $ 123,138 S 131,722 $ 149,131 $ 155,273 $ 6,142

• Salary increases are in accordance with contractual agreements.

• Decrease in Benefits is due to health insurance plan changes.
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STUDENT AND STAFF SERVICES-

Psychological Services (2140)

This budget includes activities concerned with administering psychological tests and interpreting the results. The

gathering and interpreting of information about student behavior, working with staff members in planning school

programs to meet the special needs of pupils as indicated by psychological tests, is included here. Behavioral

evaluation, planning, and managing a program of psychological services, including psychological counseling for

students, staff, and parents, is funded in this section of the budget.

Speech Pathology Services (2150)

These fiinds include activities which have as their purpose the identification, assessment, and treatment of children

with impairments in speech, hearing, and language.

Physical and Occupational Services (2163)

These funds include activities which assess the need for and provide treatment to increase the physical,

communication and occupational skills of students.

Psychological, Speech & Physical/Occupational Services

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease
|

Salaries $ 139,801 $ 141,684 $ 148,897 $ 270,002 $ 121,105

Benefits 31,326 30,707 34,916 46,795 11,879

Professional Services 26,800 31,128 32,300 19,412 (12,888)

Property Services

Other Services 1,000 747 1,000 1,000 -

Supplies and Materials 3,236 3,218 4,057 AMI 355

Property/Equipment 185 125 123 916 793

Other Items

TOTAL $ 202,348 S 207,610 5 221,293 5 342,537 5 121,244

• Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements.

• $89,165 transferred to this function, from Special Programs, to more accurately separate direct costs from

instructional services.

Professional Services decrease due to movement of funding to federal grant.
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Improvement of Instruction Services (2210)

This budget includes activities designed primarily for assisting teaching and support staff in planning, developing,

and learning experiences for students. These activities include curriculum development, staff development,

inservice training, and other training programs for instructional and support staff.

2210 Improvement of Instruction

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease
1

Salaries $ 10,450 $ 8,723 $ 11,550 $ 13,160 $ 1,610

Benefits 51,182 18,650 51,070 47,631 (3,439)

Professional Services 27,675 23,844 31,050 34,813 3,763

Other 500 500

Supplies and Materials 9,922 9,922

Property & Equip 600 72 900 3,568 2,668

Other Items 2,400 2,400

TOTALS $ 89,907 $ 51,289 $ 94,570 $ 111,994 $ 17,424

• Increase due to 2006 NEASC (Accreditation) for Hopkinton High School, which is required every ten years.

• Decrease in Benefits results from a tuition reimbursement adjustment to actual.

• Overall budget contains cost conservation in summer curriculum expenses.
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-STUDENT AND STAFF SERVICES-

Media and Technology Services (2222 and 2225)

This budget includes both the Hbrary and computer assisted instruction programs. The Hbrary programs include

activities such as integrating information skills into the curriculum, selecting, acquiring, preparing, cataloging, and

circulating books and other materials. The computer assisted instruction program includes activities concerned

with planning, programming, writing, and presenting educational projects which have been especially programmed

for a computer to be used as the principle medium of instruction.

2222 Media
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Salaries $ 201,075 $ 192,029 $ 174,075 $ 182,514 $ 8,439

Benefits 58,497 51,990 46,858 48,820 1,962

Professional Services 1,423 1,368 1,423 1,423

Property Services 3,800 3,274 3,800 3,800

Other Services

Supplies and Materials 41,645 38,415 43,645 42,205 (1,440)

Property/Equipment 3,300 9,649 3,830 2,180 (1,650)

Other Items 400 300 300

TOTAL $ 310,140 $ 296,726 $ 273,931 $ 281,242 $ 7,311

• Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements, plus transferring longevity

payments from Regular Programs.

• Reductions in Supplies and Materials and Property/Equipment lines are an effort to reduce the budget.

This section of the budget includes the hardware and software needs district wide. This category includes the staff

that provides educational instruction as well as support of technology.

2225 Technology Services

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease
1

Salaries $ 57,224 $ 75,890 $ 134,159 $ 143,251 $ 9,092

Benefits 14,048 18,287 46,071 53,352 7,281

Professional Services

Property Services 5,200 2,360 8,200 47,264 39,064

Other Services - - - 3,390 3,390

Supplies and Materials 10,290 9,226 10,275 16,570 6,295

Property/Equipment 59,400 61,219 74,165 26,000 (48,165)

Other Items

TOTAL $ 146,161 $ 166,982 $ 272,870 $ 289,827 5 76,957

Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements.

Property/Equipment line transferred to Property Services to more accurately reflect expenditure.
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-ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES-

The Administrative Cost section of the 2005-2006 budget includes School Board services, Treasurer, Annual

District Meeting costs, legal expenses, audit fees, the Office of the Superintendent, and the School Administrative

Offices.

School Board Services (2310)

This budget includes activities of the School Board according to State law and their responsibilities for the

development of policy and oversight of the District. The budget covers the costs of the District Treasurer and

services rendered in connection with any school system election. These include the election of officers, bond vote,

budget and appropriation vote, and all district sponsored meetings. Also included here is funding for counsel in

regard to law and statutes, and independent auditor services.

2310 School Board Administration

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease
|

Salaries $ 9,950 $ 8,841 $ 10,050 $ 10,725 $ 675

Benefits 914 788 887 1,022 135

Professional Services 19,200 24,879 27,200 25,200 (2,000)

Other Services 9,500 2,651 4,000 4,000

Supplies and Materials 1,200 1,200

Other Items 11,237 2,875 11,237 11,237

TOTAL $ 50,801 S 40,034 $ 53,374 $ 53,384 $ 10

• Professional Services are decreased to reflect actual auditing services costs.

*NOTE: Although the Contingency Fund is normally reported in function code 2310, it is presented to be voted

upon as a separate warrant article and is not included in the totals above.
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-ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES-

Office of the Superintendent (2320, 2332 & 2515)

This budget includes activities associated with the administration of the school district and operations of the S.A.U.

office. The funded positions for the Superintendent, Business Administrator, Bookkeepers, Director of Student

Services, Administrative Assistant, and Receptionist/Secretary are included here.

2320, 2332 & 2515 Office of Superintendent
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

|

Salaries $ 255,128 $ 249,652 $ 246,415 $ 370,014 $ 123,599

Benefits 89,946 82,487 89,438 137,713 48,275

Professional Services 15,000 11,112 12,500 15,250 2,750

Property Services 15,850 38,727 11,500 11,500

Other Services 34,550 27,830 36,250 32,950 (3,300)

Supplies and Materials 16,750 20,148 14,650 16,450 1,800

Property/Equipment 1,500 14,350 1,500 2,000 500

Otlier Items 5,750 10,549 6,750 6,800 50

TOTAL S 434,474 $ 454,855 S 419,003 S 592,677 $173,674

• Administrative costs totaling $132,870 across all budget components, moved from function code 1200 Special

Programs, to more accurately report administrative activities separate from instructional activities.

• Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements, in addition this includes an

increase of $10,800 for a new part-time Bookkeeper at the Central Office, to assist with the increased work

flow in accounts payable, receivables and payroll.

Office of the School Principal (2410)

This budget includes activities concerned with the management of our schools. It includes the activities performed

by the principal and any other assistants in general oversight of the operations of the school, evaluation of the staff

members in the schools, assignment of duties to staff members, supervision and maintenance of the records of the

school, and coordination of school instructional activities within the district. It also includes clerical staff costs and

office expenses.

2410 Office of the School Principal

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Salaries $ 382,008 $ 370,135 $ 404,672 $ 438,628 $ 33,956

Benefits 130,224 121,613 148,081 159,644 11,563

Professional Services 9,685 9,811 10,185 10,135 (50)

Property Services 850 231 850 650 (200)

Other Services 44,308 38,113 41,953 41,734 (219)

Supplies and Materials 16,580 11,948 18,980 17,887 (1,093)

Property/Equipment 1,500 171 2,149 1,000 (1,149)

Other Items 10,565 8,152 10,565 8,165 (2,400)

TOTAL $ 595,720 $ 560,174 $ 637,435 $ 677,843 $ 40,408

• Salary and Benefit increases are in accordance with contractual agreements.

• Reductions in all other areas are an effort to reduce the budget.
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-BUILDINGS AND TRANSPORTATION-

Maintenance of Buildings (2600)

This budget includes costs associated with the maintenance and upkeep of all district buildings. This includes

salaries and benefits for custodial and maintenance staff and also includes the operating costs of heating, light and

venting systems, and repair of facilities. The cost of custodial supplies, rubbish removal, water, sewer, snow

removal, landscaping, grounds maintenance, and building liability insurance are also contained herein.

2600 Maintenance of Buildings

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease
1

Salaries $ 340,762 $ 334,855 $ 351,323 $ 349,317 $ (2,006)

Benefits 130,475 121,282 141,339 174,050 32,711

Professional Services 100 454 100 100

Property Services 124,815 122,943 127,540 132,225 4,685

Other Services 34,700 25,909 27,000 35,390 8,390

Supplies and Materials 241,029 211,237 236,512 244,160 7,648

Property/Equipment 23,250 21,066 23,250 24,050 800

Other Items

TOTAL $ 895,131 $ 837,748 $ 907,064 $ 959,291 $ 52,227

• The Benefits line item reflects realignment and an increase in workers compensation costs for custodians and

maintenance personnel.

• Property Services increase is attributed to a 3% increase in HVAC contract and the added budget line to pump
the septic system at Harold Martin School.

• The Other Services line item includes an $8,000 increase in property & liability insurance.

• Supplies and Material increase includes an $8,000 increase in electric costs district-wide and a $3,500 increase

in custodial supplies, e.g., ice melt, cleaning supplies, etc.

Pupil Transportation Services (2700)

This budget defines Hopkinton's transportation contract costs and includes all student transportation.

2700 Pupil Transportation
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

|

Salaries $ 5,950 $ 5,457 $ 5,950 $ 16,245 $ 10,295

Benefits 605 699 333 2,430 2,097

Professional Services

Property Services

Other Services 359,432 371,716 382,401 430,744 48,343

Supplies and Materials

Property/Equipment

Other Items 8,000 10,793

TOTAL S 373,987 $ 388,665 $ 388,684 $ 449,420 $ 60,736

Other Services increase is a reclassification of $60,000 from Special Programs - Out of District plus an

increase in annual contract for bus services. This budget is also reduced by $20,000 due to a change from

outside contracting the smaller passenger bus to within district.
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-DEBT SERVICE & SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

Debt Service

These funds are set aside for District debt service. The debt service budget consists oftwo bond repayments; 1)

the 5-year bond issued in 2004, to support the recently completed roof repair at Harold Martin School, Maple

Street School, and Hopkinton Middle/High School and 2) the 20-year bond issued in 1 997, for construction

projects at the Maple Street School and Hopkinton High School.

5100 Debt Service

Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Principal

Interest

$ 270,000

279,405

$ 270,000

279,405

$ 285,000

266,085

$ 404,700

267,167

$ 119,700

1,082

TOTAL S 549,405 $ 549,405 $ 551,085 $ 671,867 $ 120,782

Bond Schedules can be found in the Appendix to this document.

Food Service General Fund Portion

This is a new budget line item to assist the Food Service program with the increase in expenditures which exceeds

the revenue generated from breakfast and lunch sales.

General Fund Supplement
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Food Service S $ 49,291 $ 36,000 $ 36,000

TOTAL $ X 49,291 5 5 36,000 $ i6,000

Other Funds (5200)

Funds in this budget are transferred from the General Fund to other funds, such as the Food Service Fund, and are

allocations for gross budgeting which is offset by matching revenue amounts. In this manner, the entire scope of

the Hopkinton School District's operating budget can be summarized in one budget.

5200 Other Funds
Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed 05-06 Increase/Decrease

Federal & State Grants

Food Service

$ 175,000

342,607

$311,718

342,607

$ 175,000

368,569

$ 175,000

368,569

$

TOTAL 5 517,607 5 654,i25 5 543,569 X 543,569 X
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SUMMARY BY BUDGET COMPONENTS

This chart provides an overview of the basic budgetary components contained within each of the department level

budgets presented in this budget document, exclusive of warrant articles. Budget components include: Salaries;

Benefits; Professional Services; Property Services; Other Services; Supplies and Materials; Property; Other Items.

Summary by Budget Component Budget

03-04

Expended

03-04

Budget

04-05

Proposed

05-06

Increase/

Decrease

% Chg

Salaries $ 6,710,892 $ 6,634,463 $ 7,252,328 $ 7,887,802 $ 635,474 8.76%

Benefits 2.031.729 1,866,233 2,266.941 2,390,506 123,565 5.45%

Professional Services 211,677 194,898 252,306 176,619 (75,687) (30.00%)

Property Services 198,806 210,804 189,801 232,736 42,935 22.62%

Other-Transp, Tuition, Printing 699,823 583,078 661,854 658,630 (3,224) ( .49%)

Supplies, Books & Materials 514,825 475,577 511,533 545,841 34,308 6.71%

New/Replace Equipment 118,095 156,009 144,716 91,752 (52,964) (36.60%)

Debt Service & Transfer 1,133.004 1,313,700 1,155,896 1,284,409 128,513 11.12%

Total 5 11,618,851 5 11,434,763 5 12,435,375 $ 13,268,295 $ 832,920 6.70%

Debt Service, Transfers &
Other

10%

Benefits

18%

New/Replace Equipment

1%

Supplies, Books, Materials
/

4% /

Transp, Tuition, Other

5%

Property Services

2%

Professional Services

1%

Salaries

59%

This chart represents the Proposed 2005-2006 Operating Budget by Major Budget Component.
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SUMMARY BY OPERATIONAL PROGRAMS

This chart summarizes the Hopkinton School District's Operational Budget, exclusive of warrant articles,

according to the five major operational programs defined within this budget document: Instructional Programs;

Student and Staff Services; Administrative Services; Facilities and Transportation; and Debt Service & Fund
Transfers. It provides a clear illustration of specific operational components, as well as their respective impact on

the overall budget.

Summary by Operational Program Budget 03-04 Expended 03-04 Budget 04-05 Proposed

05-06

Increase/

Decrease

% Chg

Instructional Programs $ 6,792,900 $ 6,551,972 $ 7,399,739 $ 7,524,501 $ 124,762 1.69%

Student & Staff Services
1,408,825 1,348.294 1.535,422 1,759,742 224,320 14.61%

Administrative Services
1,080,995 1,055.063 1,109,812 1.323,905 214.093 19.29%

Facilities and Transportation
1,269,118 1,226,413 1,295,748 1,408.711 112,963 8.72%

Debt Service and Fund Transfers
1,067,013 1,253,021 1,094,654 1.251.436 156,782 14.32%

Total $ 11,618,851 5 11,434,763 5 12,435,375 $ 13,268,295 $ 832,920 6.70%

Debt Service and Fund

Transfers

9%

Facilities and

Transportation

11%

Administrative

Services

10%

Student & Staff

Services

13%

Instructional Programs

57%

This chart represents the majority of the Proposed 2005-2006 Operating Budget is dedicated directly to

Instructional Programs.
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2004-2005 Teacher Roster

Last Name First Name Position

Afshar Foad Teacher .5

Alberici Michael Teacher

Alibrandi Nancy Elementary Librarian

Aubertin Lori Teacher

Baker Sharon Teacher

Barton Sandra Teacher

Batchelder Susan Teacher .4

Bewersdorf Joyce Elementary (Literacy)

Bickford Lawrence Teacher

Blanchard Dorothy Teacher

Blinn Christina Teacher

Boyko Sandra Teacher

Brandt Richarc. Teacher

Brizard James Mathematics Teacher

Bruns Kelli Teacher .8

Burdette Francoise Teacher .8

Carrigg Nancy Teacher .6

Carroll Lyena ESOL Teacher .6

Charron Holly Teacher

Chase David Teacher

Chorney Kenneth Teacher

Christie Bridget Teacher

Clark Debra Teacher

Codd Sally Teacher

Conley Sheila Nurse

Connolly Patricia Teacher

Cotnoir Michelle Teacher

Cross Alicia Teacher

Dickson Mark Teacher

Dinan Christine Speech and Language Pathologist K-6

Doucette Maureen Teacher .6

Duana Ann Morea Teacher .6

Duncan Mary-Christina Guidance Counselor

Dusseault Andre Teacher

Follansbee Joan Teacher
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LastName FirstName Position

Forgiel Kathleen Teacher

Forsten Robert Psychologist

Godfrey John Science Teacher

Grady Maureen Mathematics Teacher

Grady Teresa Teacher

Griffin Edna Teacher

Harb Mary Teacher

Hassett Leanne Spanish Teacher .6

Heinz Patricia Teacher

Helm Dorothy Teacher

Henderson Beth Anne Teacher

Hilliard Jan Nurse/Coordinator of Health Services

Hodgdon Lary Teacher

Hoik Diane Comp Consumer/Homemaking Ed

Houston Tyrus Teacher

Jacques Kristin Teacher

Jenkins Barbara Teacher

Jones Debra Teacher

Kaplan Madelon Teacher

Kelsey Vera Dabney Teacher

Kleiner Jacqueline Guidance

Kociuba James Teacher

Kruse Martha Teacher

Kruse Cynthia Permanent Substitute

Laclair Kathleen English Teacher

Lajoie Corrine Guidance

List Jane Teacher

Lochheac Shelley Librarian

Mann Mary Ann Permanent Substitute

Marasca Maureen Teacher

Martin Curtis Teacher

May Karen Reading Specialist

McAuliffe Bonnie Teacher .5

McClellan Susan English Teacher

McNally Deborah Elementary (Literacy).

8

Meserve Daniel 3/5 Teacher, 2/5 Athletic Director

Mills Charles Senior Project Coordinator .2

Morin Diana Teacher
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Last Name FirstName Position

Moskal Pamela Teacher

Nadeau Robert Social Studies Teacher

Nadeau Susan Teacher

Nichols Linda Teacher

Olson Carl Teacher

Patterson Holly Special Education Teacher (K-6)

Pepper Kathleen Teacher

Perkins Eileen Teacher

Pheffer Michae Teacher

Pierce Kenneth Mathematics Teacher .8

Pike Deborah Teacher

Pothier Linda Teacher

Reinacher Eileen Special Education Teacher

Renauld William Teacher

Roberts Patricia Teacher

Roberts Susan Teacher .4

Schaefer Kathy Nurse

Semmens Scott Teacher

Senatore Richard Teacher .8

Silverman Paul Teacher

Smith Deidre Teacher .6

Smith Anne Teacher .5

Stokes Timothy Teacher

Thornley Melanie Teacher .8

Tilley Davie Teacher

Timm Michael Teacher

Travis Deborah Teacher

Turcotte Sarah Teacher

Walsh Linda Teacher

Welch, Jr. Richard Teacher

Wilson Stacy Teacher

Woolner Robert Teacher

Yonemura Isobel Teacher

Zecha Jason Guidance Counselor

Zipke Scott Teacher
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Town Election of Officers

Tuesday, March 8, 2005

Hopkinton Town Hall

330 Main Street

Polls Opens 7:30 A.M.

Polls Close 7:00 PM.

Annual Town Meeting
Hopkinton High School Gym

Saturday, March 12, 2005

9:00 A.M.

Contoocook Village Precinct

Annual Meeting
Hopkinton High School - Room 203

Thursday, March 24, 2005

7:00 PM.

Hopkinton Village Precinct

Annual Meeting
Hopkinton Town Hall

330 Main Street

Tuesday, March 22, 2005

7:30 PM.
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